
 
 

 
 

 

TO: Commissioners  

FROM: Community Mitigation Fund Review Team  

CC: Edward Bedrosian  

DATE: June 1, 2018  

RE: 2018 Community Mitigation Fund 

This memorandum provides an analysis of the applications for funding under the different 
components of the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund (“2018 CMF”):  Specific Impact 
Grants, Transportation Planning Grants, Non-Transportation Planning Grants, Workforce 
Development, Tribal Gaming Technical Assistance Grant, and Reserves.   

The Community Mitigation Review Team (“Review Team”) reviewed the applications to 
ensure the applications are in compliance with the 2018 Guidelines.  As part of this review 
process, copies of the applications were sent to the licensees for their review and comment.  
Conference calls and meetings were held between the applicants and the Review Team.  
Requests for supplemental information were submitted to the applicants and their 
responses are attached to this memorandum as Exhibit A .  Numerous meetings were held 
by the Review Team to ensure a thorough review process of every application.    

The following chart shows the overall recommendations of the Review Team as compared 
to the overall anticipated spending targets in the 2018 Guidelines. 

Recommendations of the Review Team 

To effectuate a consistent and efficient system to analyze the applications, the Review 
Team utilized the review criteria specified in the 2018 Guidelines. 

 A demonstration that the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility;  

 The significance of the impact to be remedied;  

 The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact;  

 The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure;  

 A demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party;  

 The significance of any matching funds for workforce development pilot program 
activities or planning efforts, including but not limited to the ability to compete for state 
or federal workforce, transportation or other funds;  

 



 
2018 Community Mitigation Fund Memorandum 
2 | P a g e  

 Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award;  

 A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure;  

 A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant; and  

 The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation request.  
 Supplemental criteria for has been added to transportation, non-transportation  and 

Workforce Development Pilot Program categories in order to address specific items 
within that category of application as outlined below.   

Additional Criteria For 2018 Transportation Planning Grants 

To effectuate a consistent and efficient system to analyze the applications, the Review 
Team utilized the review criteria specified in the 2018 Guidelines. 

1. The planning projects must be clearly related to addressing transportation issues or 
impacts directly related to the gaming facility. 

2. Required to submit a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort prior 
to funding being awarded 

3. Eligible planning projects must have a defined area of issue that will be investigate as 
well as a clear plan for implementation of results. 

4. No application for more than two years for any municipal employee. The CMF will not 
pay the full cost of any municipal employee 

5. Detail on what it will contribute to the planning projects such as in-kind services 
6. Consultation with the RPA 
7. Transportation Planning Grant funds may be sought to expand a planning project begun 

with reserve funds or to fund an additional project once the reserves have been 
exhausted 

8. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

 
Additional Criteria for 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 

1. The planning project must be clearly related to addressing issues or impacts directly related 
to the gaming facility.   

2. Applications involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant. 

3. Funds may be used for planning.1   

Additional Criteria for 2018 Workforce Development Pilot Programs 

                                                      
1 This criteria item has been a Commission standard for planning projects (funded under Reserves).  The Guidelines 
state “The criteria for the use of the reserve remain the same. This reserve can be used to cover impacts that may 
arise in 2018 or thereafter. It may also be used for planning, either to determine how to achieve further benefits 
from a facility or to avoid or minimize any adverse impacts.” 



 
2018 Community Mitigation Fund Memorandum 
3 | P a g e  

1. Does it develop a pilot program that will address any claimed impacts? 
2. A program in Region A or Region B that structures intentional connections among 

adult basic education, occupational training, and post-secondary education 
programs 

3. Does it accomplish the goal of assisting low-skilled adults to obtain education and 
career training to enable them to join the regional labor market?  

4. Does the application address the anticipated goals of the program (see page 15 of 
the Guidelines)?  

5. Industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to work in the most in-
demand occupations related to the expanded gaming industry or a focus on 
occupations that could be in high demand from the casino, potentially negatively 
impacting the regional business community  

6. Governmental entity applying for workforce development funds will also need to 
provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development project such 
as in-kind services or workforce development funds  

7. Does the application include a regional consortium approach? 

8. Does it contain eligible activities that structure adult basic education, occupational 
training and post second education for adult learners?  

The evaluation criteria is highlighted to indicate the Review Team’s determination of 
compliance with the Guidelines. 

Meets Criteria Review Team not 
Unanimous/Concerns Identified 

Does not meet Criteria 

   

 
  



 
2018 Community Mitigation Fund Memorandum 
4 | P a g e  

The following chart shows the anticipated spending targets in the 2018 Guidelines 
compared to the funding requests received by the deadline and the potential 
recommended awards.  A more detailed chart follows for individual applications. 
 
 Guidelines 

Targeted 
Spending 

Applications Awards 

Specific Impact (not including 
public safety training)* 

No Target Set $1,774,464.04 $425,000.00 

Transportation Planning 
($200,000 per application plus 
any regional planning 
incentive) 

$1,000,000.00 $1,748,000.00 $1,498,600.00 

Workforce Development (2 
Regional pilots programs of 
$300,000) 

$600,000.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00 

Non-Transportation Planning 
($50,000 per application plus any 
regional planning incentive) 

No Target Set $250,000.00 $140,000.00 

Public Safety Training $2,500,000.00 $3,261,107.84 $1,975,042.32 

Totals: $6,000,000.00 $7,933,571.88 $4,938642.32 

 
 Anticipated 

Spending 
Applications Awards 

Hampden County Sheriff Lease 
Assistance 

 

$800,000.00 $800,000.00 $765,000.00 

Tribal Technical Assistance Grant $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 

Holyoke (submitted April 2018) N/A $100,000.00 $100,000.00 

Wrentham Reserve N/A $40,000.00 $40,000.00 
 

*While the Commission established a $6.0 million target for overall awards in the 2018 
Fund, there is no specified target for specific impact applications or non-transportation 
planning in the 2018 Guidelines.  The Guidelines do specify that no more than $500,000 
Category 2 operational impacts may be funded unless otherwise determined by the 
Commission 

 
 



2018 Community Mitigation Fund Memorandum 

 

 Guidelines Targeted 
Spending 

Applications Recommendation of 
Review Team 

Specific Impact (not including public safety training)* No Target Set $1,774,464.04 $425,000.00* 
 Everett  $400,000.00 -0- 
 Hampden County DA  $475,00.000 $125,000.00* 
 Hampden County Sheriff  $800,000.00 $765,000.00 
 Lynn  $100,000 -0- 
 Springfield - Focus  $555,925.00 $300,000.00 

 Springfield - Valet  $243,539.04  -0- 
Transportation Planning ($200,000 per application plus any 
regional planning incentive) 

$1,000,000.00 $1,748,000.00 $1,498,600.00 

 Attleboro* (funding will come out of the Community’s 2016 Reserve)  $100,000.00  Reserve 
 Boston  $200,000.00  $200,000.00 
 Chelsea  $200,000.00  $200,000.00 
 Medford  $200,000.00  $198,600.00 
 West Springfield  $200,000.00  $200,000.00 
 Everett/Somerville  $425,000.00  $425,000.00 
 Revere/Saugus  $425,000.00  $275,000.00 
Workforce Development (2 Regional pilots programs of 

 
$600,000.00 $900,000.00 $900,000.00 

 Boston Private Industry  $300,000.00 $300,000.00 
 Holyoke CC2*  $300,000.00 $300,000.00 
 MetroNorth REB  $300,000.00 $300,000.00 
Non-Transportation Planning ($50,000 per application plus any 
regional planning incentive) 

No Target Set $240,000.00 $140,000.00 

 Everett  $50,000.00  -0- 
 Malden  $50,000.00  $50,000.00 
 Revere  $50,000.00  $50,000.00 
 Saugus  $50,000.00  0 
 West Springfield  $40,000.00  $40,000.00 

Public Safety Training $2,500,000.00 $3,261,107.84 $1,975,042.32 
 MA State Police**  $2,516,948.00 $1,814,544.00 
 Springfield Police**  $744,159.84 $160,498.32 

Totals: $6,000,000.00 $7,933,571.88 $4,938,642.32 

    

                                                      
*$60,000 for a scholarship awarded on March 15, 2018 
**Awarded on April 12, 2018 



2018 Community Mitigation Fund Memorandum 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Supplemental Information Requests and Responses 
 



 
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 
1 | P a g e  
 

 

SPECIFIC IMPACT APPLICATIONS GRANTS (Maximum $500,000) 

Applicant Description Amount 
Requested 

Review Team 
Proposal 

Everett Operation of a pilot shuttle service between downtown Everett and 
the new Chelsea Silver Line Station to help relieve congestion on 
Lower Broadway that is being caused by construction activities. 

$400,000.00 -0- 

Hampden County 
District Attorney 

The requested funding would be used “to hire additional assistant 
district attorneys, victim and witness advocates, and administrative 
staff to handle additional burdens in caseloads that are created 
directly and indirectly by the influx of people, money, and 
entertainment that this gaming project will bring. Furthermore, some 
staff hired with the mitigation funds would also be assigned to the 
Hampden District Attorney’s Community Safety and Outreach Unit.” 

$475,000.00 
(plus $475,000 
for the next ten 
years (totaling 

$5.225 million)) 

$125,000.00 

Lynn Review of Traffic Improvements (Route 1A widening study, Boston 
Street business corridor traffic review,  Route 1A traffic review, 
pothole repair) (initial application revised to focus solely on Route 
107.)  

$100,000.00 -0- 

Mass. State Police 
(Public Safety 
Training)** 

Hiring, Training, and Compensation of  Troopers for the Expansion of 
the Gaming Enforcement Unit 

$2,516,948.00 $1,814,544.00 

Springfield Police 
Department (Public 
Safety Training)** 

Training and Equipment for Recruit Officers to Attend Police Training 
Academy, and additional personnel costs. 

$744,159.84 $160,498.32 

Springfield Relocation Costs of Focus Springfield $555,925.00 $300,000* 

Springfield  Continuation of Valet Program until 2019 $243,539.04 -0- 
Total: $5,835,571.88 $2,400,042.32 

Hampden County 
Sheriff’s 
Department***  

Lease Assistance for the Western Mass. Correctional Alcohol Center 
for 2018 and 2019 

$800,000.00 $765,000.00 

*Maximum possible award assuming conditions can be met. 
**Awarded by Commission on April 12, 2018   
*** Awarded by Commission on April 12, 2018.  Please note that the award amount has been modified to reflect the correct amount of a 
prior award. 
 

 



 
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 
2 | P a g e  
 

 

Everett 

Licensee’s Response:  “Wynn Boston Harbor1 supports the City of Everett's effort to reduce 
vehicular congestion through the development of local shuttles to connect residents of the 
community to the new silver line service in Chelsea. 
 
The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We would 
like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the resources 
available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for decades to 
come.” 

MassDOT:  “MassDOT has several concerns regarding the request of the City of Everett for 
$400,000 to implement a pilot shuttle service between downtown Everett and the Chelsea 
Silver Line station. The application lacks specificity on cost breakdowns and other details of 
the pilot service. As such, the information provided in the application is more suited to a 
feasibility study for the service rather than the rollout of the service itself. Furthermore, the 
city should consider other mitigation strategies that could alleviate the circumstances 
resulting in constrained transit service. 

The city could consider options such as hiring additional traffic enforcement or 
collaborating with the MBTA to solve the issue without the addition of a new service. For 
example, Bus Route 104 could serve as an alternative for travelers in this area. The city 
should also determine whether the proposed service would be utilized enough to make the 
investment worthwhile. The MBTA’s Silver Line extension will soon be operational, and 
this may greatly impact demand for the pilot service. Considering all of these existing 
services, the application does not provide sufficient justification for this pilot shuttle 
service. Finally, it should be noted that adding an additional bus service to the 
transportation network may add to experienced congestion, while also contributing 
negatively to air quality. Overall, while MassDOT supports the city’s efforts to improve 
transit services in the area, we encourage exploring other options that could be a better use 
of funds.” 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 

 

In its application, Everett noted that “[t]raffic congestion on lower Broadway in Everett near the Wynn 
Boston Harbor site is increasing as construction related activities, such as the installation of utilities, require 
lane closures that result in severe traffic bottlenecks….This not only has an impact on personal vehicular 
traffic, but it also severely constrains transit service which connects Everett residents to rapid transit at 
Sullivan Square. Buses that are delayed in traffic are unable to make as many t rips on their routes as 
scheduled, thus reducing capacity on a corridor that already operates above capacity during most hours of 
the day.”   

“[b]y creating a quicker means of accessing the MBTA transit system than taking a bus down Broadway to 

                                                      
1 Wynn Resorts changed the name of its planned facility to Encore Boston Harbor during the course of the review.  
Some references in the document reflect the name of the facility at the time, Wynn Boston Harbor. 



 
 
3 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

the Sullivan Square MBTA station, we believe that we will be able to divert some Everett drivers who 
currently contribute to lower Broadway vehicular congestion, from car to shuttle. Additionally, current 
transit users who travel by bus down Broadway to access the MBTA subway system would have a time-
saving alternative, as the shuttle route would not traverse such congested roadways.”    

In Everett’s response letter to the Review Team, Everett stated that major roadway construction will 
continue through the end of the 2018 construction season with some additional work occurring in the spring 
prior to the June opening.    

The Review Team questioned whether the claimed impact was occurring by February 1, 2018.  The Review 
Team agrees that construction activity was having an impact on traffic by that date.  However, very 
significant work in the Lower Broadway corridor did not begin until March 2018.  The work on the corridor 
includes utility work, roadway widening, paving, curbing, sidewalk and traffic signal installation. The 
majority of the most disruptive work on Lower Broadway is expected to be complete by late summer 
2018, with final completion by the end of November 2018. 

Everett did note that “[t]he construction of the Wynn Boston Harbor facility has yielded increased traffic 
congestion on lower Broadway, for reasons that range from roadway improvements that necessitate lane 
closures to construction and employee traffic (there are currently 1,250 construction workers onsite daily, 
the majority of whom drive to work).”  Overall, however, the Review Team believes that the application is 
predominantly based on the expected impacts rather than the impacts that were occurring as of February 
1, 2018.    
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied  
Everett’s application stated that “[t]hese bottlenecks create traffic congestion on Broadway and Alford 
Street as far north as Rte. 16 and as far south as Bunker Hill Community College in Charlestown….During the 
period of construction on Broadway and Route 16, it is understood by all that there will be unavoidable 
negative impacts to traffic flow while certain lanes are closed and/or detoured to allow construction of the 
new roadway mitigation funding to operate a pilot shuttle service, between downtown Everett and the new 
Chelsea Silver Line station, that would be operated as a contracted service by the City and provide access to 
a competitive alternative to the existing preferred route to downtown Boston.”   In its response letter to the 
Review Team, Everett also highlighted the impact construction is having on bus riders using both Broadway 
and Revere Beach Parkway, specifically noting late-running buses.   It stated that “[d]elays due to this 
construction [on buses] are, at peak periods, upwards of 20-30 minutes.” 

Although limited traffic data to demonstrate the impact was submitted in the application, the Review 
Team is aware of the significant traffic impacts that are currently occurring and will soon occur in the 
corridor.  The traffic that was occurring by the February 1, 2018 application date was, in comparison, less 
significant. 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact  

Everett stated that “These funds are for a new pilot service that seeks to take cars off of lower Broadway, 
decreasing vehicular demand and lessening the existing congestion by shifting mode share. The mode share 
shift is incentivized by creating an attractive alternative for Everett drivers through an efficient connection 
to a new local MBTA transit option (Silver Line).” 

“…[b]y creating a quicker means of accessing the MBTA transit system than taking a bus down Broadway to 
the Sullivan Square MBTA station, we believe that we will be able to divert some Everett drivers who 
currently contribute to lower Broadway vehicular congestion, from car to shuttle. Additionally, current 
transit users who travel by bus down Broadway to access the MBTA subway system would have a time-
saving alternative, as the shuttle route would not traverse such congested roadways. 



 
 
4 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

In Everett’s response to the Review Team, the City provided more emphasis on the impact of the 
construction activities on buses and less emphasis of the mitigation measure as a method to move cars out 
of the Broadway area.   The response letter stated that “the primary purpose of this shuttle is not to take 
cars off of the road… While we anticipate that some drivers will utilize the new service, we also recognize 
that much of the vehicle traffic on the corridor is regional traffic that is not easily captured with transit.”      

The Review Team was not convinced that the proposed mitigation measure would address the impact.  In 
the Review Team’s letter to the City, the Review Team questioned whether the pilot shuttle could 
become operational by the time of the conclusion of the significant construction activity in the Lower 
Broadway area.  In Everett’s Response, Everett noted that “[w]e believe that two to three months would be 
required to procure the shuttle service.” By this schedule, assuming no delays, the shuttle service would 
just become operational by September (assuming the three month procurement schedule).    

Everett did note that “[o]ur most recent discussions with Encore Boston Harbor indicate that major roadway 
construction will not be finished by August; rather it will continue until the end of the construction season 
with some additional work occurring in the spring prior to the June opening of the resort. In addition to the 
roadway work, we anticipate a large volume of vehicles as the internal fitting out of the building continues 
and requires large numbers of workers onsite.” 

MassDOT also had concerns regarding this potential measure questioning whether the service would be 
utilized, whether the new service would contribute to congestion and expressed concerns about the lack of 
specificity about the cost and other details of the service (see MassDOT response above).   

4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure  

In addition to concerns about whether the shuttle service could be initiated in time, the Review Team 
questioned whether the proposed measure would take cars off of the road in the Lower Broadway area.  
As noted, Everett responded that “…the primary purpose of this shuttle service is not to take cars off the 
road- although we would celebrate a mode shift to transit- 2but rather to provide usable and attractive 
transit options to Everett residents whose travels are being negatively impacted by the congestion on the 
Broadway Corridor as a result of construction related to the Encore resort.”  MassDOT indicated a concern 
about the potential that the shuttle could add to the congestion.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party. 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities 

N/A 

 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

Everett’s application noted that construction traffic creates traffic congestion as far north as Route 16 and 
as far south as Charlestown.  Further, the shuttle service would connect with the new Silver Line BRT Service 
from Chelsea to South Station. 
The Review Team believes that Everett did demonstrate regional benefits from the proposal.  

8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

NO 

Everett’s application stated that “[m]ost of the improvements in the agreement support the operational 
phase of the casino. Additionally, the city has grown significantly since the execution of the HCA five years 



 
 
5 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

ago, with increasing residential density and new commercial development.  Because Broadway is a primary 
route into the City of Boston for both Everett residents, and non-residents commuting from the north who 
wish to bypass 1-93, we are seeing increasing traffic congestion on this roadway that we did not fully 
anticipate 5 years ago. Other factors, such as non-related utility work, all increases traffic congestion.” 

The Review Team understands that the proposed shuttle could potentially provide important benefits to 
the City.  Although the extent of construction related traffic may not have been anticipated when the HCA 
was executed, the HCA clearly contemplated traffic improvements that would be needed to address 
traffic.  Everett has and will receive significant funding under its HCA to address additional impacts and to 
improve conditions for its residents.  The Review Team was not convinced that HCA funds are not 
available to fund the proposed mitigation measure. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

Everett included a comprehensive listing of the traffic mitigation that Encore Boston Harbor is required to 
complete.  Such list did not include the proposed shuttle.  The list did make reference to a “fixed-route 
shuttle bus to and from the Project and the MBTA Orange Line stations.”   However, this shuttle service will 
be available once the Encore Boston Harbor facility is open, not during the construction period.   
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request.  
Everett stated that “[w]e estimate that approximately $300,000 of the mitigation funding would be put 
towards the operating costs of a service, with the remaining $100,000 used for planning, logistics and 
operations management of the service. Estimated operating costs for a bus service are approximately $100 
per hour, yielding roughly 3,000 hours of operations, or 12 hours per weekday for one year.  This further 
breaks down to approximately 20-25 round trips per day between Everett Square and the Mystic Mall Silver 
Line station. This number of trips could allow 20 minute headways during peak travel periods and hourly 
service during the mid-day and off peak hours”  Its application indicated that further refinement of the 
budget would be necessary.  It’s stated that “[a]s part of this larger planning process, we will work with the 
consultants on this proposal specifically to refine cost estimates for the service, with goal being to maximize 
the number of trips offered to residents.” 

The Review Team did not believe that Everett’s initial budget and timetable were sufficiently detailed.  
The Review Team requested further information about the timetable.  Everett provided the additional 
detail (e.g. a procurement of two to three months). 

Recommendation:  The Review Team does not recommend that the Commission fund the 
pilot shuttle service at this time.  It questioned whether the mitigation measure could be 
timely initiated to address the construction related impacts.  Further, it was unclear 
whether the proposed shuttle service would have a discernible impact on Lower Broadway 
related traffic.  While the shuttle could provide important connection benefits to Everett 
and regional commuters, the Review Team was not convinced that the measure clearly 
addressed a construction related impact.  The Review Team does commend the City for all 
of its efforts to create new transit connections for its citizens and would be encouraged if 
Everett continues to pursue such connections with HCA funds or other funds that could 
become available from other agencies or in future community mitigation funding rounds. 



 
 
6 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

Hampden County District Attorney (DA) 

MGM Springfield Response: 

“The Hampden County District Attorney (DA) is applying for $475,000 initially and $475,000 a 
year, for ten years, in mitigation funds towards the hiring of additional staff.  We believe that 
the services of the DA's office are critical in keeping the City of Springfield a safe city to live, 
work and play.  The safer that Springfield is, the more local businesses, including ours, will 
prosper and the overall well-being of residents of Springfield and the region will be enhanced. 
To be clear, however, while MGM is supportive of the DA's services and this request, MGM 
Springfield does not anticipate a significant increase in crime associated with our Project.” 
 
1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 

occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 
 

The Hampden District Attorney’s Office’s application is not intended to address construction related 
impacts.  The District Attorney’s office requested a waiver of this requirement, stating, among other 
reasons, that the public interest would be served because “[t]he District Attorney’s Office should not be 
foreclosed from requesting funds as the projected and predicted impacts on this office in particular and 
public safety in general will be immediate….  

Not granting the waiver would be a substantial hardship for this office. Both Springfield District Court and 
Superior Court are consistently the busiest in the State. With our very limited budget, this office cannot 
absorb the impact of additional cases without compromising public safety. Victims of crime and the public 
deserve to have justice without delay. Other local public safety departments have been awarded funds to 
proactively plan for the casino impact. This office should also be given the opportunity to demonstrate why 
these funds are needed now as opposed to months after the casino has been in operation. Justice cannot be 
accomplished retroactively. “ 

For reasons identified below, the Review Team believes that the District Attorney’s Office’s request for a 
waiver of this section of the Guidelines is warranted.  
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied  
The application stated that “[t]he requested funding is $475,000 initially and $475,000 a year for the next 
ten years. The total amount of funding would be $5.225 million.  The proposed funding will be used to hire 
additional assistant district attorneys, victim and witness advocates, and administrative staff to handle 
additional burdens in caseloads that are created directly and indirectly by the influx of people, money, and 
entertainment that this gaming project will bring. Furthermore, some staff hired with the mitigation funds 
would also be assigned to the Hampden District Attorney’s Community Safety and Outreach Unit. Over the 
past three years the unit has brought programing to over 7,500 young people throughout Hampden County 
on pressing issues facing today’s youth, including addition and opiate use, social media use, distracted 
driving, bullying, and many other important topics. It is the goal of this office to expand the unit and reach 
more young people and offering more content around healthy relationships, human trafficking, and training 
and employment for underserved communities. It is the goal of this office to proactively engage young 
people through programming and prevention education that keeps them out of the criminal justice system. 
The investment of mitigation funds to community outreach will be approximately $50,000 a year.” 

In its response letter to the Review Team, the District Attorney’s Office stated “that this office cannot 
absorb the impact of any additional cases without compromising public safety across the county. The casino 
will employ approximately 3,000 people and expects to draw 10,000 people daily to the downtown 
Springfield area. This, coupled with the increased police presence both inside and outside of the casino, will 



 
 
7 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

translate into additional cases coming into court.  

The Review Team agrees that the District Attorney’s Office could be significantly impacted by a potential 
increase in cases.  However, it remains unclear what the level of increase will be.  The Commission’s 
analysis of Plainridge Park related crime has not demonstrated such a significant increase in activities.  
However, as acknowledged by the Review Team, “[t]he Commission realizes that the results for a full 
resort casino directly within a city of Springfield’s size may be different than the Plainridge Park 
experience.”  In general, the Commission anticipates making great efforts to fund mitigation efforts that 
are based on quantifiable impacts rather than predicted impacts. 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact NO 

The Review Team does not believe that the proposed mitigation measure ($5.225 million over ten years) 
is specifically tailored to the impact.  The need for this level of resources is not evidenced in the 
application, as the level of increase in crime is not yet knowable.  Indeed, as mentioned, the 2018 
Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines were developed to address known versus predicted impacts. The 
Review Team also questioned how the Community Safety and Outreach Unit proposal fits within the 2018 
Guidelines.  Compared to the potential need for Assistant District Attorneys and Victim Witness 
Advocates to help with potential increase caseload, the connection between casino caused impacts and 
the Community Safety and Outreach Unit, which engages area youth, is less direct, especially given that 
the minimum age to place a wager at a gaming establishment in Massachusetts is 21 years of age.  
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure  

The Application stated that “[t]he increase in both the number of people coming into the area on a daily 
basis, as well as the increase in police presence, will translate into additional cases to be handled by the 
Hampden District Attorney’s Office.  Every infraction, however minor, will result in a new case that the 
office must handle and, thereby, devote human and financial resources.  However, as noted above, the 
number of casino related cases is unknowable at this time.  The application did not specify how many 
assistant district attorneys would be hired with the requested funding.  Similarly, the application did not 
specify how many victim witness advocates and administrative staff would be hired.  In response to a 
request from the Review Team, the DA’s Office stated that “[w]hile not all cases involve a named victim, 
almost all cases involve witnesses who are needed throughout the process of a prosecution. Advocates 
devote much of their time to helping victims and victims' families, but also assist prosecutors with the 
locating and preparing of witnesses who are not victims. Therefore, it is fair to say that victim witness 
advocates are assigned on most, if not all, cases.”   

It is unclear if the casino related activities would result in a need for victim witness advocates that is similar 
to the general need for such victim witness advocates.  The application also noted that “staff hired with the 
mitigation funds would also be assigned to the Hampden District Attorney’s Community Safety and 
Outreach Unit”.  As noted, the Review Team questioned how this item fits within the 2018 Guidelines.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party. 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities 

N/A 

 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

The application referenced the work of the Community Safety and Outreach Unit which, over the past three 



 
 
8 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

years has brought programming to over 7,500 young people throughout Hampden County.  In addition, 
because the District Attorney’s Office is the “chief law enforcement office in Hampden County,” any award 
to support the Office would help the region.  
 
The Review Team believes that the positive regional impact of the DA’s office is clear and that such belief 
is not dependent upon the regional benefits of the Community Safety and Outreach Unit. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

The application provides significant detail about how the District Attorney’s Office did not have the 
benefit of a host or surrounding community agreement and seeks a similar status through a multi-year 
award. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

MGM Springfield is under no requirement to provide funding to the DA’s Office. 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. NO 

As noted earlier under section 4, the original application did not provide detail regarding how the 
requested funds would be allocated between funding for assistant district attorneys, victim witness 
advocates, and administrative staff.  The timetable was an expansive one, covering ten years.   
 
Recommendation: 
The Review Team was convinced that even a short period of additional caseloads could have a 
significant detrimental impact on the DA’s Office which, in turn, could impact the region.  
However, in the absence of any data on gaming related caseloads, the Review Team does not 
recommend that the Commission provide the level of resources requested.  The Review Team 
recommends that the Commission authorize funding to cover the costs of one Assistant District 
Attorney for a fiscal year.  In addition, the Review Team recommends that Commission staff 
work with the DA’s Office to develop a system to track gaming related caseloads.  The Review 
Team recommends that $25,000 be made available for the development of such system.   
While the Review Team recommends that the Commission authorize $25,000 in 2018 funds for 
this purpose, Commission staff could explore the repurposing of 2017 funds.  As the 
Commission is aware, the Commission set aside $25,000 for this purpose in 2017 (developing a 
tracking system).  These repurposed funds could potentially be utilized to develop a system that 
would work in the Hampden County District Attorney’s Office (and other DA’s Offices).  If the 
Commission authorizes an award for the DA’s Office, the Review Team believes that $100,000 
would be sufficient to cover the salary and benefits of an Assistant District Attorney for a year.   
Reports indicate that the salary of an incoming Assistant DA is approximately $46,000 a year.   
The DA’s Office may need a more experienced ADA to handle gaming related cases.   The 
Review Team recommends, as a condition to the grant, that the DA’s Office shall be required to 
keep statistics regarding gaming related caseloads even while a system is being developed to 
track such caseloads.  The Review Team understands that the interim accounting of caseloads 
will not likely be as accurate as any gaming related caseload report generated by the eventual 
caseload tracking system.  The Review Team does not recommend that the Commission provide 
funding at this time for the Community Safety and Outreach Unit.  The connection to the 



 
 
9 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

gaming facility is not as readily apparent.  The Review Team recommends that the authorization 
of funding such types of activities could be considered in future grant cycles which will need to 
take into account operations related impacts (compared to construction related impacts under 
the current Guidelines).  Given the uncertainty about the number of gaming related caseloads 
that the DA’s Office will experience, the Review Team is more uncertain about the number of 
cases that would necessitate a VWA (as Victim Witness Advocates are needed only on a 
percentage of cases)2.  While the Review Team does not recommend that the Commission 
provide funding for Victim Witness Advocate at this time, the Commission could specify that 
the DA’s Office could reallocate some of the awarded funding to pay for a percentage of the 
cost of a victim witness advocate.  Under such a reallocation, the $100,000 in funding could be 
used to pay for a percentage of an Assistant District Attorney and a percentage of a Victim 
Witness Advocate.   
 
In general, the Review Team notes that MGL c. 23K, sec. 61 (the mitigation fund) specifically 
references the purpose of paying for costs incurred by district attorneys’ offices.   The Review 
Team knows that the Commission looks forward to working to develop a system that will help 
the Hampden County District Attorney’s Office and other District Attorney’s Offices with their 
gaming related resource needs.    
 
Recommendation on Waiver Request:  The DA’s Office requested a waiver of the Commission’s 
guideline that states that 2018 Specific Impact Grant funds “may not be used for mitigation of 
impacts that have not occurred by February 1, 2018.”   The Review Team recommends that the 
Commission grant the waiver request, as even a short period of overburdened resources at 
the DA’s office could have a significant negative impact.    A draft motion incorporating the 
approval of the waiver request will be provided to the Commission.  
 

Lynn 
 
Lynn Licensee’s Response:  
“Wynn Boston Harbor supports the City of Lynn's effort to improve public transportation options for 
commuters. We are particularly supportive of water transportation options as we will operate three 
shuttles to connect us to Long wharf and the Seaport in the inner-harbor. We intend to coordinate our 
shuttle schedule with other ferry operators to encourage increased use of the waterways for 
transportation. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community Mitigation 
Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We would like to encourage 
greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the resources available are put toward 
highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for decades to come.” 

MassDOT Response:  “MassDOT has concerns regarding the request of the City of Lynn in the 
amount of $100,000 for congestion mitigation and improvements to infrastructure. Although 
not a surrounding community, Lynn could be the source of both a temporary and permanent 

                                                      
2 In its response letter to the Review Team, the DA’s Office stated that “it is fair to say that victim witness 
advocates are assigned on most, if not all, cases.” 



 
 
10 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

workforce in the form of construction and casino employees traveling to and from the casino. In 
the application, the City of Lynn has identified a number of studies that could provide beneficial 
recommendations to the area. None of the potential studies are discussed in enough detail to 
fully assess. Furthermore, the amount of money requested is not enough to complete the 
numerous studies mentioned. We recommend that one, potentially two, specific projects be 
selected for study based on the amount requested. These studies should be directly related to 
impacts from the casino development. Preliminary cost estimates and a schedule for 
implementation should also be provided.  Without this information, it is difficult to properly 
evaluate the application.” 

CONSIDERATION OF AN OPTION TO TREAT THE LYNN APPLICATION AS A TRANSPORTATION 
PLANNING APPLICATION INSTEAD OF A SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT APPLICATION 

In 2018, Lynn submitted an application that was very similar to the one it submitted in 2017.  At the 
time, the Review Team recommendation noted that “[t]he Review Team was not convinced that the 
increased congestion observed on Route 107 and Route 1A by the Lynn Department of Public Works can 
satisfactorily be tied to the construction of the Wynn Boston Harbor Casino.  While the Review Team 
was not convinced regarding the significance of the construction related traffic, both last year’s Review 
Team and the Commission recognize the potential impacts of an operational Wynn Boston Harbor 
casino on Lynn roads.  However, the purpose to this category of grants, Specific Impact Grants, is for 
impacts that relate to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have occurred or are 
occurring as of February 1, 2017.” 
 
The Review Team Recommendation last year stated that “Lynn’s Specific Mitigation Impact application 
is not supportable, in the opinion of the Review Team because they do not address a construction 
impact that occurred by February 1, 2017 (the Criteria for Specific Impact Grants).”  However, the 
Review Team noted that “much of Lynn’s specific impact application was a transportation planning 
application.  It is the Review Team’s opinion that Lynn’s choice in determining which project should be 
put on which form should not be the cause of such a disadvantageous result to Lynn – no funding to 
help ease potential traffic congestion.”  The Review Team believes that Lynn’s current 2018 application 
also is not supportable as a Specific Impact Application.  However, it does fit well within the 
Transportation Planning category.  Lynn did not submit a separate Transportation Planning application 
this year.  Thus, it does not appear that Lynn application was submitted to provide a method to go 
beyond the application limits for transportation grants.  As such, the Review Team recommends that the 
Commission consider reviewing this application as a Transportation Planning Application instead of a 
Specific Impact Grant Application.  The Remainder of this review treats Lynn’s application as if it were 
filed as a transportation planning application.  If the Commission determines not to treat the application 
as a Transportation Planning application, the Review Team does not believe that the 2018 Specific 
Impact Grant is supportable because, just as in 2017,  the proposed mitigation measures do not address 
a construction impact that occurred by February 1, 2018 (the Criteria for Specific Impact Grants.) 
 

1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility / A demonstration that he impact is being caused by the proposed 
gaming facility / Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming 
facilities that have occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 

NO 

Although Lynn’s initial 2018 application to the Commission included numerous options for transportation 
study (e.g. left hand lane to ferry entrance, commuter rail stop at the GE facility, pothole repair, and the 



 
 
11 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

determination of other solutions along the Boston Street business corridor), Lynn’s Response to the Review 
Team Committee stated its intent to focus its grant application solely on improvements to Route 107.   The 
response stated that “[f]ollowing consultation with Mayor McGee, the City of Lynn has determined not to 
utilize the 2017 Grant or the 2018 Grant for a left-hand turn lane at the Blossom Street Ferry Terminal. 
Mayor McGee has identified the Route 107 Corridor has the most significant cause of traffic congestion and 
delays. …“ Following the determination to focus on the Route 107, City officials reached out to MassDOT to 
identify which intersections it would prefer to prioritize along the Route 107 Corridor. Frank Suszynski, 
District 4 Project Development Engineer (frank.suszynski(&,state.ma.us), is coordinating next steps on the 
project. City officials intend to meet with Mr. Suszynski to coordinate efforts regarding this project. Much of 
these discussions will be dependent upon whether the City of Lynn is awarded the 2018 Grant from the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission…. The City of Lynn was contacted by Mr. William Bartlett of the Army 
Corps of Engineers on May 16, 2018. Mr. Bartlett was requesting a Certification from Lynn Chief Financial 
Officer certifying there were available funds to conduct the feasibility study for the dredging of Lynn Harbor. 
It is expected that a Cost Sharing Agreement between the City of Lynn and the Army Corp of Engineers will 
be executed within the next 60 days. The inability of larger ferries and boats to utilize much of the Lynn 
Harbor has negatively effected the Harbor from becoming a transportation hub of the North Shore. Lynn 
intends to utilize the $100,000.00 from the 2016 award to fund its portion of the Feasibility Study. Last year, 
Congressman Seth Moulton secured federal financing for this important study. Absent the 2016 award, Lynn 
would be unable to meet its obligations to conduct the feasibility study.” 
     
An increase in traffic on Route 107 was one of the factors Lynn identified for consideration in its 2017 
Community Mitigation Fund application.  While the Review Team was not convinced that the increase in 
traffic on Route 107 was caused by the construction workers traveling to the casino construction site, the 
Review Team does not have any reason to doubt that Route 107 may be experiencing increased traffic.   The 
Review Team notes that transportation planning applications allows communities to conduct planning 
activities in order to develop alternatives that may be necessary if traffic levels exceed those that were 
contemplated when the Commonwealth conducted its environmental reviews of the Everett casino project.   
Thus, under a transportation planning application it is not necessary to show an impact that is currently 
happening.   However, applicants still must demonstrate a direct link between the potential impact and the 
gaming facility. 

When asked to provide further information demonstrating the connection between the proposed mitigation 
measure (traffic studies related to Route 107) and the Encore Boston Harbor casino, Lynn stated that “[t]he 
website [provided to the Review Team] contains detailed findings from the MassDOT regarding the Route 
107 corridor.  Rather than printing several hundred pages, the City has elected to provide the commission 
with the link explaining the traffic issues with the corridor caused in part by the construction of the Encore 
Facility.”   The Review Team conducted an initial but perhaps not exhaustive review of the report on the 
Website and did not immediately see documentation of the connection to the casino.  Specifically, there 
was no mention of the Encore Boston Harbor Casino in the section of the report entitled “Route 107 
Corridor Traffic Growth Estimates.”   That section did not reference the Encore Boston Harbor facility but 
instead focused on more localized drivers of traffic.   The report explained Route 107 as “a regional and local 
roadway that stretches from Revere to Salem in the North Shore area of Massachusetts. It is an arterial 
roadway running in the northeast-southwest direction through the municipalities of Revere, Saugus, Lynn 
and Salem, with the corridor serving as a vital link to commercial activities and regional employment 
centers.”    

The Review Team was not convinced that the City provided information sufficient to demonstrate the 
direct link between the expected traffic increases and the Encore Boston Harbor casino.  However, the 
Review Team notes that a significant percentage of traffic will commute through the nearby area.  For 



 
 
12 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

example, the project’s Draft Environmental Impact Report noted that 11% of casino related traffic was 
expected to utilize Route 1.  The Review Team believes that further review of Route 107 impacts would 
complement efforts by Revere and Saugus to examine Route 1 and Route 99.  
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied NO 
For the reasons stated above, the Review Team was not convinced, at this time, regarding the significance 
of the impact of the future Encore Boston Harbor traffic to Route 107.  However, the Review Team 
applauds the decision of the City to focus on this important corridor.  In 2017 and 2018, MassDOT 
recommended that the City focus its activities on one or two studies versus that wide range of activities 
included in its Community Mitigation Fund applications to date.  The Review Team believes that further 
conversations between the City, Commission staff, and MassDOT may allow the City to satisfactorily 
demonstrate the need for further Route 107 efforts.  Specifically, the City states its intent to utilize its 
$100,000 2017 Community Mitigation Fund grant for Route 107 related activities.  The Review Team 
welcomes further conversations to potentially use this 2017 grant for the purpose of Route 107 related 
activities.  Indeed, in its response letter to the Review Team, Lynn noted that “City officials intend to meet 
with Mr. Suszynski [of MassDOT] to coordinate efforts regarding this project.”  The Review Team is 
encouraged by the focus and effort regarding Route 107 demonstrated by the City.  
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact NO 

Lynn’s application stated that it hopes to conduct a “feasibility study from Chestnut Street south to the 
Beldon Bly Bridge in Saugus”, citing numerous bottlenecks in the area.   It noted that both the existing grant 
of $100,000 and a new 2018 grant would be needed to conduct a comprehensive study.  Further, it 
explained that it is in conversations with MassDOT to determine if there “are certain intersections in this 
corridor that it would prefer to be prioritized in the short term.”  The feasibility study would be “to improve 
light cycles along the corridor and to perhaps purchase land from the General electric to widen areas where 
significant bottle necks occur.” 

It was unclear to the Review Team whether the City intends to use 2018 planning funds for the actual 
purchase of land or the study of a purchase of land.  2018 planning funds may not be used for land 
purchases under the 2018 Guidelines.    
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure NO 

As noted, the Review Team is encouraged by the focus on one (non-ferry) project and understands that the 
City is taking active steps to move this study forward, including upcoming communications with MassDOT.  
However, given the early stage of this focus on Route 107 (specifically the intersections south of the 
Chestnut street area), the Review Team was not convinced, at this time, of the need for 2018 funds to 
conduct the necessary planning activities in 2018.  The Review Team notes that Commission staff should 
actively work with Lynn to determine how the 2017 funds could be used in 2018.  By the time of the next 
funding round in 2019, the scope, budget, and timetable for comprehensive studies may be more 
ascertainable.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party. 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities 

N/A 

 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 



 
 
13 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

Lynn’s application did not specifically stress the importance of regional benefits from any award.  However, 
since the subjects of its requests are transportation projects that could benefit the region, the Review Team 
understands the regional benefit of Lynn’s requests.  Specifically, Lynn’s focus on Route 107 would allow it 
to understand important regional connections from Salem and Saugus and beyond.   
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. NO 

Lynn’s application did not provide a detailed scope, budget or timetable for the project.   However, it did 
note that $100,000 is not likely sufficient for the type of comprehensive study that Lynn hopes to pursue.   
MassDOT has previously explained that such comprehensive studies take significant resources.     
 
Recommendation: 
The Review Team did not recommend additional funds at this time but is encouraged by the 
focus on one project, namely the Route 107 project.  The Commission staff looks forward to 
conversations about utilizing the 2017 funds for such purpose assuming that the nexus to the 
casino can be more sufficiently demonstrated. 
 

Springfield Focus 
 
Licensee Response:  “The City of Springfield on behalf of Focus Springfield is applying for $555,925 in 
mitigation funds to cover the shortfall cost of replicating their studio at another location above and 
beyond the lease termination/relocation payment Focus Springfield expects to receive from MGM 
Springfield. Focus Springfield currently occupies the ground level space at 101 State Street and is 
expected to remain there for the remainder of FY18. MGM supports this request as Focus provides 
important community television programming and remains an important contributor to the local 
community.” 
 
1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 

occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 
YES 

Focus Springfield Community Television (“Focus Springfield”) in Springfield has requested mitigation funds 
related to impacts resulting from the upcoming opening of the MGM Springfield casino.  The building 
occupied by Focus Springfield was purchased by MGM in 2015 and, in late 2016, Focus Springfield received 
notice that its lease would be terminated.  Focus Springfield now requests $555,925 in mitigation funds to 
assist in mitigating the casino impact by building a suitable replacement of its current facility, estimated to 
cost $1,155,925.   
 
Focus Springfield operates a public access television and performing arts studio, training facility, and 
business office located at State Street and Main Street in Springfield.  The television studio is a federally-
designated nonprofit, and is designated by the City of Springfield as being for the benefit of the city 



 
 
14 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

residents as well as those working or attending school within the city.  According to the Community 
Mitigation Fund Application, Focus Springfield was created by the city to stimulate economic development 
by putting the “focus” on the positive aspects of living, learning, and working in Springfield through 
performance, education, and government programming.   
 
Because it is unclear when the lease between Focus Springfield and MGM Springfield will terminate, there 
is some ambiguity whether the proposed mitigation measure would mitigate an impact that has occurred 
or is occurring as of February 1, 2018.  Springfield’s response letter to the Review Team stated that “[a]s 
per the Lease terms, the latest date that Focus may occupy the Premises is the lease term expiration date 
of September 30, 2019.  The lease includes a termination provision which permits either party to 
terminate the lease “at any time after November 30, 2018”.  If MGM chooses to exercise their right to 
terminate following November 30th, Focus would have to vacate the Premises as early as March 1, 2019.”  
Although it is unclear when Focus Springfield would need to vacate its current location, the Review Team 
believes that the impact was occurring as of February 1, 2018.  The current lease follows a notice of 
termination of the prior lease issued by MGM Springfield on November 18, 2016.  Although this 2016 
termination notice was later rescinded, it has been clear to the City that Focus Springfield will need to 
vacate its location.   Springfield could be impacted by the disruption or loss of the services that Focus 
Springfield provides to the City.   
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 
According to the Community Mitigation Fund Application, the incoming MGM Springfield casino and Focus 
Springfield’s resulting [potential] eviction presents a significant hardship for viewers in the 40,000 cable TV 
households and businesses of Springfield, who rely on Focus Springfield to stay informed about  what is 
happening in their local community.  The application notes that, on a daily basis, city agencies and others 
“rely on Focus to provide timely, and often critical information to City residents.” 
 
The Review Team does not disagree that Springfield could be significantly impacted if the services Focus 
Springfield has provided are not available to Springfield. 
 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact  

Focus Springfield has identified a location to which it could relocate the studio.  Such an effort would 
require relocation of the offices, equipment, and all other property, along with substantial construction and 
build out of the new facility.  Focus Springfield has procured estimates that design, construction, moving 
costs, legal fees, and acquisition of permits will cost approximately $1,155,925.  The budget includes 
$300,000 provided by MGM by virtue of a termination fee as well as $300,000 provided by the landlord of 
the location to which the facility will be relocated.  Focus Springfield therefore requests mitigation funds in 
the amount of $555,925 to cover the budget shortfall. 

The Review Team believes that the proposed mitigation would address the impact if it enables Focus 
Springfield to continue to provide these services to Springfield.  There is a possibility that other budgetary 
factors could, in the future, impact Focus Springfield’s ability to continue to provide services to 
Springfield, despite any grant for relocation costs.  The Review Team has no reason to believe that Focus 
Springfield would not be able to provide such services if the relocation issue is resolved.  However, the 
Review Team mentions this possibility, however slight or large, to note that any grant for relocation costs 
does not guaranty that that the City would receive the needed services over the long term.   
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure  

In response to a request for a detailed updated breakdown of the estimated costs of the Focus Springfield 



 
 
15 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

move, Springfield provided such updated information.  It also provided a summary of the new location 
options that it reviewed.    

The Review Team believes that Focus Springfield did engage in an extensive process to find a new location 
for the facility.  However, the updated information, as of yet, does not provide sufficient detail to enable the 
Review Committee to determine that the relocation costs are as reasonable as they can be by minimizing 
the need for assistance from the Community Mitigation Fund.  No information was provided to demonstrate 
that either MGM Springfield or the City of Springfield have independently verified that the relocation costs 
estimated by Focus Springfield have been so minimized.  The Guidelines anticipated that the provision of a 
match by either the licensee or the community would have functioned as a method to ensure that the 
overall project cost is minimized.  However, as discussed below, the match proposed by the City (MGM 
Springfield’s termination payment) resulted more from a continuation of a prior lease than from a 
contribution to the overall cost of a mitigation measure discussed by the parties.  

5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party. 

 

The original application provided significant information about the public benefits of the Focus Springfield 
facility.  In response to concerns raised by the Review Team regarding the Constitutionality of providing 
funding through Springfield to Focus Springfield, the City stated that “Focus was created by the city in 2012 
to operate the public, education, and government (PEG) television station…. PEG stations, by definition are 
charged with fulfilling the public purpose of covering local news, government events, and educational 
programming that may be overshadowed on a national television channel. The Focus studio is the focal 
point for the delivery of these services to the public in Springfield.” 

“The proposed location at STCC will only enhance the public purposes described above and in Exhibit D. In 
addition, the grant will add new public purposes with regard to the public purposes of work force 
development, education, tourism, and economic development, consistent with the mission of the 
legislatively created STCC Assistance Corporation; the owner of the facility of which FOCUS is proposing to 
relocate.” 

The City also noted that “the applicant is open to specific discussions regarding the manner and means by 
which the grant could be structured, appropriated and disbursed.”     
 
The Review Team continues to have concerns whether the application demonstrates that the mitigation is 
for a public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party.  It is clear that the 
proposed mitigation (relocation costs) would be for the benefit or maintenance of a private party.  It is 
also clear that Focus Springfield conducts numerous activities that significantly benefit Springfield and the 
region.  The Review Team remains concerned because of how the impacts (potential loss of these benefits 
to the public) are proposed to be mitigated (through a payment from the City to a private entity).  
Attached to this memorandum is an advisory from the Department of Revenue Division of Local Services 
that describes the Constitutional difficulties involved in providing funding to private parties.  This explains  
the Anti-aid amendment to the Massachusetts Constitution, which has applicability to grants to private 
parties, including non-profits.  For example, in response to a community’s inquiry about the legality of 
grants to non-profit organizations, the DOR DLS advisory stated that “[s]uch grants are hard to justify 
under the state constitution’s Anti-aid amendment…, which prohibits public funds or property from being 
given to charitable, educational, religious or other private organizations, no matter how worthy.”  Indeed, 
the complexities of the legal issues involving the Anti-aid amendment cannot be captured in one 
sentence, or even in one brief advisory.  However, the Review Team remains unconvinced that the 
current proposed structure, involving a relocation payment to a private entity, is the best method to 
mitigate the potential impacts to the City.  Although the City noted that “it is open to discussions 



 
 
16 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

regarding the manner and means by which the grant could be structured, appropriated and disbursed,” it 
has not yet provided such alternative methods to enable the City to mitigate the potential impacts 
(potential disruption of loss of valuable services).  Thus, the Review Team recommends that any award 
must be conditioned upon the City of Springfield determining a method that does not run afoul of the 
Constitutional prohibitions.  The Review Team also recommends that Springfield should be required to 
consult with the DOR DLS, provided that the DOR DLS is available to provide some advice.    
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 

pilot program activities/ The Commission will not fund any applications for assistance 
for non-governmental entities unless the applicant governmental entity or the licensee 
or both provide funding to match, in the case of host communities, or significantly 
match the assistance required from the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund. Any such 
application for assistance to non-governmental entities by a host community must 
demonstrate that the host community, the licensee, or a combination of the host 
community and licensee will match the assistance required from the 2018 Community 
Mitigation Fund.    

 

In response to a question from the Review Team, Springfield stated that “The City would like the 
Commission to consider the MGM lease termination fee in the amount $300,000.00 as consideration for the 
Host Community…. The original lease between C&W Realty and Focus Springfield was to have a term of July 
2012 to July 2022. When Blue Tarp acquired 1200 Main/101 State St. in October of 2016, they assumed all 
of the leases in the building. Shortly thereafter, MGM served Focus with a one year Termination Notice, 
requiring that Focus surrender the premises by November. 18, 2017. The original lease contains a provision 
requiring an early termination payment of $300,000, within 30 days of vacancy. In the Amendment to the 
lease, MGM promises to freeze the termination payment at $300,000.” 
 
Springfield, in its response to the Review Team, stated the Host Community does not have other 
funds to allocate to the expenses of the Focus Springfield relocation.” 
 
The Review Team questioned whether the MGM Termination payment should be counted as a match.  
The $300,000 termination payment was included in the original lease between Focus Springfield and its 
prior landlord.  The City said that it is not able to provide a match.   Although the termination payment 
was included in the original lease, MGM Springfield and Focus Springfield voluntarily entered into a new 
lease that includes the termination payment.   Thus, the Review Team believes that there is at least some 
additional reason why the termination payment could be construed as a match for the purposes of the 
Guidelines.   The Review Team notes that the relocation benefit included in the HCA for all other 
applicable entities has been waived by the parties in favor of the $300,000 termination payment. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 
In response to a Review Team question, Springfield noted that “Focus’s services extend beyond Springfield,” 
highlighting programs for the District Attorney, Members of Congress from Massachusetts and Connecticut, 
economic development events, regional candidate debates, a regional Opioid Prevention Conference, 
service to the Massachusetts Broadband Institute, and other regional programs. 

The Review Team believes that the application demonstrates significant potential regional 
benefits. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

 

In response to a request from the Review Team, the City stated that “…the City’s Request for Waiver of 



 
 
17 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

Limitation of Specific Impact Grant Amount, the City of Springfield is applying on behalf it’s PEG Access 
entity, Focus Springfield for this Specific Impact Grant, because the City itself is unable to financially 
contribute to Focus Springfield’s relocation at this time. The City would like the Commission to consider the 
MGM lease termination fee in the amount $300,000.00 as consideration for the Host Community does not 
have other funds to allocate to the expenses of the Focus Springfield relocation.” 

“The timing of locating Focus at its current location and the approval of the project site for a resort casino 
did not provides sufficient time or information to include relocation of the studio to a location off site.” 

“However, as the design plans were submitted, and then modified, 50% design plans submitted for review 
during early 2017, revealed the non-profit PEG Access television studio was not included in the plans for the 
for profit resort casino.” 
 
The Review Team does not dispute Springfield’s explanation that Focus Springfield’s specific situation was 
not contemplated when it entered into the Host Community Agreement.    The HCA does include a 
displaced tenant payment, which as summarized in the HCA summary, states that  
“[f]or tenants located in the project area who need to be relocated, based on the tenants’ existing square 
footage, MGM will pay displaced tenants that agree to relocate within the City $3/sq. ft. (or $4/sq. ft. if 
tenants relocate within the City’s Business Improvement District) towards their new security deposit and 
moving costs.”  This payment was waived in the new lease.     
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

Springfield noted that “[a]s such, the only relocation benefit provided was the same benefit that was 
provided for tenants under Exhibit E, paragraph 9 for displaced tenants. The intent of this provision was 
geared toward displaced office tenants. It was not anticipated to be utilized by Focus. An eviction letter was 
received by Focus, and an amended lease was entered into. (Exhibit A). The ability of Focus to continue to 
serve the public from a new location hinges on the availability of mitigation funds.”  As noted previously, 
this payment has been waived by the parties in the lease extension.  
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. YES 

Springfield provided more detail regarding the moving costs.  However, it is difficult for the Review Team to 
determine if cost savings could be realized, as noted earlier   
 
Recommendation: 
The Review Team continues to remain unconvinced that the proposed mitigation measure is 
the best method to avoid Massachusetts Constitutional difficulties.  The Review Team also 
remains unconvinced that sufficient detail has been provided to determine that the mitigation 
request is reasonable.  The Review Team also had questions regarding the match.  If the 
Commission determines that the termination payment should be counted as a match, the 
Review Team notes that under the Commission’s Guidelines, a grant should not exceed the 
amount of the matched funds or $300,000.  Pursuant to the Guidelines, “[t]he Commission will 
not fund any applications for assistance for non-governmental entities unless the applicant 
governmental entity or the licensee or both provide funding to match, in the case of host 
communities, or significantly match the assistance required from the 2018 Community 
Mitigation Fund.  Any such application for assistance to non-governmental entities by a host 
community must demonstrate that the host community, the licensee, or a combination of the 



 
 
18 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

host community and licensee will match the assistance required from the 2018 Community 
Mitigation Fund.  The Review Team recommends that any award should be contingent upon a 
determination that the assistance can be provided under Massachusetts Constitutional 
restrictions. 
Waiver Request:  Springfield requested a waiver of the Guideline that Specific Applications 
should not exceed $500,000 based on the maximum received award Springfield will not reach 
this threshold. 
 

Springfield Valet 
 
Licensee Response:  “[t]he City of Springfield on behalf of Caring Health Center is applying for 
$258,389 in mitigation funds to extend the Valet Parking program for 15 months due to limited 
on street parking. MGM supports the extension of the valet program, which we believe has 
been a creative and effective solution to parking constraints within downtown during our 
construction and remains appreciative of the Commission's active involvement in and support 
of that solution. However, to be clear, much of our construction that affects on-street parking is 
expected to finish once we open or shortly thereafter.” 
 
MassDOT Response:  “MassDOT has reservations about the transportation benefits of the City of 
Springfield’s application for $234,539 for the continuation of its valet program. As mentioned in 
the application, construction of the MGM Casino has largely depleted parking supply for nearby 
businesses. This has caused traffic congestion as people drive around searching for limited 
available parking spaces. According to the application, the pilot of the valet program was 
heavily used and improved conditions. The program also provides better access to the area for 
those who are unable to walk from a parking spot that is far away from their destination. 
However, it seems like the issues that the valet program seeks to address will drastically lessen, 
if not totally disappear, when the casino opens. Therefore, the application should better explain 
why this program would still be necessary after the casino opens.  Overall, MassDOT believes 
that this application does not effectively address the transportation issues associated with the 
casino development.” 
 
1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 

occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 
YES 

In 2016, the Commission provided a grant to the City of Springfield for $200,000.  Last year, the Commission 
authorized an additional $31,523.00 to continue the valet program “through the opening of the MGM 
Springfield facility or the opening of its garage to the public.”  During the review of this funding, the 
Commission discussion stated that funding for the valet program would only be authorized for this pre-
operations period.  

This application requests valet parking assistance for an additional 15 month period after the opening.  It 
states that “[a]lthough the Casino development opens in September of 2018, there is no express deadline 
for the cessation of other construction activities directly related to the development of MGM. Due to the 
strong likelihood of additional development activities directly correlating to the MGM development taking 
place after the technical opening of the Casino, it is anticipated that continued traffic congestion will be 
present after September of 2018. For example, MGM is currently building a daycare facility on Union Street, 



 
 
19 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

and the building attached to 1049 Main Street (in the rear) is developing a hotel. An additional hotel is 
potentially being considered between Main Street and Wilcox Street as well. As expected, the construction 
of a gaming facility is acting as a catalyst for additional development, which directly impacts all existing 
businesses and parking in the South End of Springfield. With these types of Casino development- related 
construction projects continuing beyond the opening of the MGM site, adverse parking impacts in the area 
will not come to a complete stop in September 2018. As such, the applicant is respectfully seeking grant 
funds to continue operation of the valet program into early 2019, for a total of 15 months.”  

It further states that “[t]he increase in expenditures between the 2017 application and the 2018 application 
is the result of an increase in staffing and expenses for the Program vendor, which was necessitated by the 
increase in demand for the services. The program's monthly ridership totals have increased substantially 
since inception from 293 vehicles during January of 2017 to 1335 vehicles through October of 2017. The 
projected budget for the Program to operate successfully for fifteen (15) months from February 2018 until 
April 2019 is thus more than the fifteen (15) month budget projections used for the 2017 application.” 

In response to a question from the Review Team on why non-MGM construction should be considered in 
determining construction related impacts, Springfield stated that “[t]he MGM Springfield development is a 
Category 1 gaming facility, whose construction and development has spurred additional construction and 
development activities within the impacted area of the City's South End, which would not be taking place 
but for the casino project. Examples of this can be seen through MGM's present construction of a daycare 
facility on Union Street, as well as through the development of a hotel located at the rear of the 1049 Main 
Street property, and the potential for an additional hotel to be located between Main Street and Wilcox 
Street. These ancillary developments have anticipated completion dates beyond the official opening of the 
MGM project, and will result in traffic and parking impacts for businesses within the affected area of Main 
Street. As such, those construction activities should be considered in determining how to mitigate impacts 
from the MGM casino.”  
 The Review Team was not convinced that construction related activities as anticipated in the 2018 
Guidelines will continue to have a significant impact after the opening of MGM Springfield as the majority 
of construction will be completed.  See further discussion under section 3.  
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied  

Springfield stated that “[p]rior to the legalization of casino gambling in the Commonwealth, ample on-street 
parking was available for businesses in the South End neighborhood of Springfield. In 2011, the State 
Legislature authorized resort casinos, and a casino operating license was awarded to MGM Springfield soon 
afterward. In 2015, groundbreaking began for an MGM Springfield casino in the South End of Springfield, 
directly across the street from businesses on Main Street, between State Street and Union Street. With 
large-scale construction still presently underway, patrons of these businesses continue to be confronted by 
heavy traffic congestion on a daily basis. Other routine challenges include widespread loss of on street 
parking, the elimination of accessible parking spaces, unplanned utility outages, and increased noise, dust, 
anxiety, and other difficulties that result whenever a major construction project is dropped at the center of 
a dense, urban neighborhood. Approximately 2,400 parking spaces have been eliminated in the south end 
corridor, and the project has absorbed much of the available parking within walking distance of said 
businesses, and has increased the price of parking in that section of the City.”  

“On-street parking combined with off street lots leased by CHC were anticipated to provide adequate 
parking for patients and staff; however, most of the leased patient and staff parking lots were subsequently 
acquired by MGM Springfield for use as construction parking lots.” 
 
“CHC patients have no other realistic parking options. The City, as well as the Springfield Parking Authority, 
owns no public parking facilities in Springfield's South End. The nearest municipal parking lot is adjacent to 



 
 
20 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

the Springfield Public Library's main branch and is reserved for library employees and patrons. Moreover, 
this lot is eight blocks away. Transportation planners typically use a one-quarter mile radius as the distance 
people may be expected to walk for commuting. Being located one-third mile from CHC, the library lot 
exceeds this standard. Furthermore, to walk from the library requires a pedestrian to cross several busy, 
heavily traveled streets. While this situation can be expected to challenge anyone, particularly during winter 
months, it is impossible for patients who are ill, who have limited mobility, or who are traveling with 
children.” 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact  

The Commission has previously determined that the proposed mitigation measure would help address 
construction related parking impacts.  Springfield provided statistics regarding how the program has 
worked.  It stated that “As a result of 2017 Specific Impact grant funds awarded to the City of Springfield on 
behalf of the businesses located on Main Street between State Street and Union Street, 11,729 cars were 
parked during the period January 1-December 31, 2017. Approximately 9% of the number of vehicles using 
the MGC Valet Program is nonhealth center related.” 

The 2018 CMF Guidelines states that “the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund is available only to mitigate 
impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities.”  (Emphasis and underlining added).  
Given this and the prior Commission discussion regarding the provision of valet funding through the opening 
of the casino, the Review Team focused on whether MGM Springfield’s application demonstrates that 
construction activities could continue to cause impacts that would warrant the requested mitigation.  In its 
application, Springfield referenced that MGM Springfield is “currently building a day care facility on Union 
Street.”  This is an MGM Springfield related construction activity.  However, the construction of the facility is 
due to be completed this summer, before the period of the requested mitigation.  As noted earlier, 
Springfield also referenced the potential construction of non-MGM Springfield hotels.  The Review Team 
believes that construction by non-MGM Springfield entities was not intended to be considered “impacts 
related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities.”  In regard to the development of hotels that 
may be prompted by MGM Springfield, the Review Team notes that, in response to a prior valet parking 
grant request, MGM Springfield previously noted that “the [prior year] application explains that increased 
real estate development pressures in the immediate vicinity of the project have caused the cost of 
parking to rise, and it is important to highlight that such "spin off" economic development is precisely 
one of the underlying goals of the Gaming Act.”    
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure  

The Commission previously determined that the proposed mitigation measure, valet parking for a 
neighborhood impacted by construction period parking impacts, is feasible and reasonable.     The 
Review Team questioned both the continuation of the program for 15 months after the opening of 
the MGM Springfield casino and an increase in the budget since the 2017 application.   The Review 
Team asked Springfield:  “In the 2017 application, the chart on page 14 states that $151,280 would be 
necessary for the continuation of the program for 15 months.  The 2018 Application states that $243,539.04 
would be necessary to continue the service for 15 months.  Please provide further information concerning 
the increase in expenditures from 2017 to 2018.”  Springfield responded that “[t]he increase in expenditures 
between the 2017 application and the 2018 application is the result of an increase in staffing and expenses 
for the Program vendor, which was necessitated by the increase in demand for the services. The program's 
monthly ridership totals have increased substantially since inception from 293 vehicles during January of 
1335 vehicles through October of2017. The projected budget for the Program to operate successfully for 
fifteen (15) months from February 2018 until April 2019 is thus more than the fifteen (15) month budget 



 
 
21 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

projections used for the 2017 application.    
 
In the event that the Commission determines to approve a continuation of the valet program post the 
end of the current grant, the Review Team recommends that Commission staff meet with Springfield to 
determine if such increase is warranted prior to any disbursement of new funds.  This approval of an 
updated budget would be required as part of the grant contract.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party. 
 

YES 

This grant , if awarded would fund an activity previously approved by the Commission.  The City of 
Springfield has confirmed to the Review Team that the program would continue to be for the benefit of 
the neighborhood rather than one entity. 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 

development pilot program activities 
n/a 

 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

The application did not highlight regional benefits from the mitigation award.  However, as the valet 
program serves commuters from throughout the region, the Review Team does not dispute that the 
program may have regional benefits. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements 

are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
 

This would be a continuation of a previously approved program.  See 2016 Community Mitigation Fund 
deliberations and memorandum.  Further, Springfield also provided an update regarding its plans for its HCA 
funds.  In its response to the Review Team, Springfield stated that “[t]he Host Community Agreement (the 
"HCA") between the City and MGM Springfield includes community impact fees for the host community, a 
community development grant, and all stipulations of responsibilities between the host community and the 
applicant, including stipulations of known impacts from the development and operation of a gaming 
establishment. The Agreement also includes a "PILOT" Agreement pursuant to G.L. Chapter 121A that is in 
lieu of taxes under G.L. c. 59. Together, the payments under the PILOT; the grant; and the impact fees 
average approximately $26 Million/year. Under the HCA some of the 121A payments have been prepaid, 
but in essence, that revenue under 121A that is in lieu of taxes, prior to pre-payments, begins at 
approximately $17.5 Million/ year upon commencement of operation of the casino. These 121 A payments 
were estimated as approximating the same amount as the tax payments that would have been generated 
under G.L. chapter 59. These are revenues that go into our general fund and will, essentially, close the gap 
of a structural deficit that is related to the City's levy limits. The 121A agreement was entered into to 
provide more certainty and predictability to the parties from a cash flow basis, and minimizing the risk of 
appeals to the ATB that could cause risk to the City's overlay account as well as increased costs associated 
with litigation of such appeals. 

The Community Development Grant was negotiated to support early childhood education; elementary, 
secondary and higher education; libraries; health initiatives; project compliance and the betterment of the 
City and its residents. As to the impact fees, a total fixed amount of $2.5 Million will be paid as well as an 
additional variable amount as a proportion of Gross Gaming Revenue, increased over time to reflect the CPl. 
During negotiations over the RCA the City's attorneys engaged the services of a consultant with expertise on 
the issues of known impacts from the development and operation of a gaming establishment. That 



 
 
22 | P a g e  
2018 SPECIFIC IMPACT GRANT ANALYSIS 

 
 
 

consultant, The Innovation Group, estimated mitigation costs for the police, fire, and law departments as 
well as general administrative cost for the City, in the form of up- front startup costs as well as annual costs. 
As a result, the first fixed Community Impact Fee of $2.5M, increased by CPI, will be paid on a pro-rata basis 
upon operation commencement.” 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be 

completed by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to 
any agreements between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

MGM Springfield has been required to continue to provide parking opportunities for neighbors pursuant to 
the City of Springfield’s Site Plan review and applicable Section 61 requirements.  
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request.  

As noted earlier, the Review Team had some questions regarding the requested budget under this year’s 
grant request versus prior years.  Further, it was not understandable why an additional 15 month period is 
being requested. 
 
Recommendation: 
The Review Team does not recommend this grant request.  The Review Team was mindful of 
the Commission’s previous discussions that such valet parking assistance shall be provided 
during the construction period.  The Review Team was not convinced that MGM Springfield 
Construction activities after the MGM Springfield opening would significantly disrupt the 
availability of parking in the area compared to the construction period, especially because 
MGM Springfield’s new parking garage will be open.  In the event construction activity causes 
disruptions, MGM Springfield and the City of Springfield will continue to determine methods to 
minimize impacts on neighbors.  The Review Team notes that Commission staff has prepared a 
grant extension using previously approved authorizations that will enable the program to 
continue into September.     



































































































 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
1 | P a g e  

 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\Transportation FINAL Analysis 060518.docx 

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

Community Description Requested 
Amount 

Review Team 
Proposal 

Attleboro Traffic Study of Route 1, Route 1A, and Route 123 to Identify 
Improvements  

$100,000 $100,000 (funded 
out of Attleboro’s 

2016 Reserve) 

Boston Sullivan Square/Rutherford Avenue Design $200,000 $200,000 

Chelsea 100% Design / Engineering of Beacham / Williams Street Corridor 
(25% design/planning in initial application) 

$200,000 $200,000 

Everett /Somerville Joint Application for Design & Permitting of Station Enhancements / a 
Weather Protected Connecting Structure to Provide Enhanced Access to 
Assembly Square MBTA Station 

$425,000 $425,000 

Medford Survey, Completion of Documents, Completion of Final Design 
documents and complete permitting for the South Medford Connector 

$198,600 $198,600 

Revere/Saugus Joint Application for Continued Salary Support for Transportation 
Consultant Firm And for Preliminary Traffic Designs for Elements 
Within Phase 1 of the Route 1 Improvement Project 

$425,000 $275,000 

West Springfield Professional engineering consultant to collect data, analyze and 
design improvements to portions of both Park Street (Route 20) and 
Park Avenue (Route 20) between the intersections of Elm Street 
(Route 20) and Union Street, easterly to the North End Bridge 
Rotary at Route 5 to mitigate transportation impacts associated with 
additional casino traffic 

$200,000 $200,000 

Total:  $1,748,000 $1,498,600.00 

 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
2 | P a g e  

 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\Transportation FINAL Analysis 
060518.docx 

Attleboro 
 
The City of Attleboro requests funding for a Traffic Study of Route 1, Route 1A, and Route 
123 in order to identify improvements required as a result of impacts created by the 
operations of a casino in Plainville. 
 
Licensee Response:  As requested, we have reviewed the application for funding from the 
2018 Community Mitigation Fund (the "Application") from the City of Attleboro. The 
Application makes a number of claims about the impact of Plainridge Park Casino on traffic 
volumes. We have not independently assessed these claims and, thus, take no position on 
them. As you are aware, Plainville Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC ("PGR") has conducted 
a series of impact studies, including traffic studies, pursuant to its host and surrounding 
community agreements (the "Impact Studies"). We therefore refer you to the findings set 
forth in the Impact Studies. Nevertheless, we have no basis to object to the requests made 
in the Application to the extent that further study is likely to lead to improved traffic flow in 
the area. 
 
MassDOT Response:  “MassDOT supports the City of Attleboro’s request for $100,000 to 
study and implement potential mitigation measures related to impacts of casino traffic. As 
indicated in the application, Route 1 in particular seems to experience considerably more casino 
traffic than was expected. One of the focuses of the study would be safety, as there are four 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) clusters in the area. Improving safety conditions 
is consistent with MassDOT policy. MassDOT has proposed an intersection improvement project 
for the Route 1/Route 1A/Route 123 intersection in the 2020 Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP). The application mentions this project, and the city plans to coordinate with 
MassDOT for any potential mitigation measures at that intersection. “ 
 

Transportation Criteria 
1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 

gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that the 
impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the proposed 
mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

Attleboro’s application stated that “it appears that the environmental documentation in support of 
Plainridge Park Casino may have underestimated the impact on traffic along the Route 1 corridor, thus 
rendering these previous improvements inadequate. The Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) for the 
development suggested that only 8% of the 6,512 weekday daily trips (or 520 trips) would use Route 1 to 
the south of the site. In the 2016 Post Opening Traffic Monitoring Program Memorandum, actual traffic 
counts indicated that 7,508 daily trips are actually being made to the Plain ridge Park Casino. In addition, the 
Memorandum indicates that approximately 34% are using Route 1 to the south of the site to access the 
Plainridge Park Casino. 

The result is that Route 1 south of the site is currently carrying approximately 2,550 additional vehicles per 
weekday. When compared to the pre-development estimate of 520 trips, casino-related traffic is nearly 
400% greater than originally anticipated. This has further exacerbated conditions along Route 1, particularly 
in areas such as Attleboro where the corridor was already at capacity prior to the opening of Plain ridge Park 
Casino.” 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
3 | P a g e  

3 
6/4/18 

The Review Team asked Attleboro, “[i]n 2016, Vanasse and Associates, Inc. performed a Post Opening 
Traffic Monitoring Program for the Plainridge Park Casino. Figures 7B and 8B of that study show the levels of 
service at the studied intersections for the Friday PM and Saturday afternoon peak periods.  These figures 
generally show little or no change in levels of service for the intersections closest to Attleboro.  Please 
provide additional information on how you expect the increases in traffic caused by Plainridge Park Casino 
will affect the intersections proposed by be studied given the results of the Traffic Monitoring Program.” 

Attleboro responded that “One of the inherent problems with a Traffic Monitoring Program is that it 
provides only a single snapshot of traffic conditions on a given day.  The pre-development study was based 
on traffic volumes collected in April 2015 while the post-development traffic volumes were collected in July 
and August of 2016.  Traffic volumes can vary significantly between these months…. The greatest concern 
that we have with the data, and as we noted in the Application, is that the Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) for Plainridge Casino significantly underestimated the use of Route 1 south of the site as a primary 
access route.  The EIR suggested that only 8% of all vehicles would use Route 1 south of the site, when in 
fact, 34% of the traffic is traveling on Route 1 to the south.  Because of this underestimation, intersections 
south of the Route 1/Route 152 intersection were not evaluated in the EIR.  …. 

Unfortunately, the lack of a meaningful review in the EIR of intersections south of the Plainridge site makes 
quantification of impacts difficult.  However, it is clear from the Application that Route 1 south of the site is 
carrying 2,000 more vehicles per day than what was projected in the EIR.  The Transportation Planning 
Grant will help to rectify the oversight in the EIR that have affected traffic flow on Route 1 in the City of 
Attleboro. 
The Review Team believes that Attleboro has provided sufficient detail that the issue or impacts being 
studied are directly related to the gaming facility.  Upon the conclusion of the traffic studies, Attleboro 
plans implementation measures.  The Review Team believes that such measures can be supported if 
Attleboro can demonstrate the connection between the mitigation measure and the Plainridge Park 
casino.  If the $100,000 for the study and the implementation steps is granted, the Review Team 
recommends that the Commission require that Commission staff must provide approval prior to the 
implementation of such measures.  This would be done through the grant contract process. 

2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area of 
issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ The 
feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

Attleboro included significant detail regarding the proposed traffic study, including, but not limited to 
collection of traffic volume data and the analysis of baseline operations at nine intersections.  It also 
included detail regarding the proposed measures, which, according to its response to the Review Team, 
include traffic signal improvements likely at all of the signalized intersections and signal coordination. 
3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  N/A 

4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 
development pilot program activities 

YES 

The application mentioned that “…the City of Attleboro will seek additional funding (as yet unidentified) 
that may be required to cover the remaining costs of identified improvements as well as provide in-kind 
staff services through its Department of Planning and Development, Department of Budget and 
Administration, and Department of Public Works.” 
The Review Team believes that Attleboro sufficiently demonstrated an in-kind match. 

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
4 | P a g e  

4 
6/4/18 

The application mentions a study in the area conducted by SRPEDD in 2012 but does not indicate that the 
applicant has been in recent contact.   
The Review Team recommends that Attleboro consult with SRPEDD if grant funding is provided.  

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project   
Attleboro has not yet utilized its Reserve.    

7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

YES 

MassDOT’s response states that “MassDOT has proposed an intersection improvement project for the 
Route 1/Route 1A/Route 123 intersection in the 2020 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The 
application mentions this project, and the city plans to coordinate with MassDOT for any potential 
mitigation measures at that intersection.” 

General Criteria 
1. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
N/A 

2. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

In the 2017 Analysis, “Attleboro has an agreement with Springfield Gaming and Redevelopment, LLC to 
cover ‘tangible and verifiable incremental costs and expenses of police, fire and other aid rendered by 
Attleboro public employees resulting directly from the operation of Plainridge.’”   
The Review Team believes that this provision of Attleboro’s surrounding community agreement may have 
applicability if Attleboro can demonstrate such tangible and verifiable incremental costs resulting directly 
from the operation of Plainridge Park. 
3. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed by 

the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant. 

YES 

As was indicated by Attleboro, the “FEIR did not analyze or evaluate traffic conditions on Route 1 in the City 
of Attleboro.”  

 
Recommendation- The Review Team recommends that the Commission authorize 
$100,000 for its proposed traffic study and potential implementation measures, subject to 
the condition that the Town must seek Commission staff approval prior to the 
implementation of any such measures.  As part of the request for implementation funding, 
the Town would need to provide information demonstrating the connection between the 
mitigation measure and Plainridge Park impacts.  Further, the Review Team recommends 
that the Commission require the Town to consult with MassDOT and with Plainridge Park 
prior to the study (as Attleboro’s surrounding community agreement may have some 
applicability).  MGC would further require a copy of the Report to be sent to Plainridge Park 
Casino and the MassDOT.  Attleboro has not yet utilized the $100,000 reserve that the 
Commission authorized in 2016.  Pursuant to the 2018 Guidelines, such funds must be 
expended prior to accessing any Transportation Planning Grant funds.  As such, the 
$100,000 award, if authorized by the Commission, would need to come from Attleboro’s 
2016 Reserve.    



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
5 | P a g e  

5 
6/4/18 

Boston Transportation 

The City of Boston is requesting funds to cover costs associated with the engineering and 
design services for the reconstruction of Sullivan Square/Rutherford Avenue in Charlestown.   

Licensee Response:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the City of Boston's effort to redesign 
and construct Rutherford Avenue and Sullivan Square.  

We have been working very closely with the City of Boston and the Boston Transportation 
Department on this important project. We are encouraged by the speed and attention the 
city has given to this long forgotten transportation network. The number one concern of 
the residents of Charlestown, Everett, Somerville and others from the north shore is that 
the long term improvements to Sullivan Square will not be pursued or completed. The 
City's efforts should be commended and their participation and engagement with the 
Lower Mystic Regional Working Group applauded and replicated for other projects. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. This is 
one such project that can lead to dramatic regional improvement in the future.” 

 
MassDOT Response:  MassDOT supports the City of Boston’s request for $200,000 to cover 
costs associated with developing the design for the reconstruction of Sullivan Square/Rutherford 
Avenue. As mentioned in the application, the city had previous plans to redesign streets at 
Sullivan Square/Rutherford Avenue to mitigate existing congestion. With the development of the 
Wynn Casino, the city decided that a new design would now be necessary to mitigate both 
current congestion and future congestion expected from the casino. We note that the city 
received funds for the same effort last year. The application does not discuss any progress that 
has been made with that funding. MassDOT suggests that the city provide an update on how last 
year’s grant money was used before new grant money is distributed. Finally, the application 
would be stronger if a detailed breakdown of the $15 million design cost and schedule was 
provided. 
 

Transportation Criteria 

1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that the 
impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the proposed 
mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

The City of Boston stated that “[a]s provided by the MEPA documentation related to the casino/hotel 
development, some 70% of the traffic generated by the casino/hotel is expected to go through Sullivan 
Square.  As such, the City is revisiting the prior design for Sullivan Square / Rutherford with the intention of 
having the final design reasonably accommodates the casino / hotel traffic.” 

The Review Team strongly agrees that Boston’s review of the design for the Sullivan Square / Rutherford 
Avenue improvements is clearly related to transportation issues or impacts directly related to the gaming 
facility.  The Commission provided funding for design in last year’s program.  Both the Encore Boston 
Harbor improvements to Sullivan Square required under the applicable MEPA Section 61 Findings and a 
review of Boston’s longer term designs for the area have been significant considerations in the 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
6 | P a g e  

6 
6/4/18 

Commission’s ongoing review of the Encore Boston Harbor project and the license conditions.  These 
conditions include, but are not limited to, a requirement for Encore Boston Harbor to contribute $25 
million to this project. 

2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area of 
issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ The 
feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

Scope:  The Boston Transportation Department has a contract with Tetra Tech, Inc. under which it will 
provide 25% engineering design services relative to the reconstruction of Sullivan Square/Rutherford 
Avenue in Charlestown. 

Budget:  This Tetra Tech contract is for $3,949,254 with 80% funded by Federal Highway.  The City stated 
that “[t]he current request for $200,000, added to last year’s award of $250,000 would reduce the City’s $3 
million share to $2,550,000.” 

Timetable:  As noted by Boston, “[t]he City has determined that the plan will include underpasses at Sullivan 
Square and at Austin Street.  With that decision made and announced to the public, our consultant will be 
going full speed ahead with the design.  We anticipate submitting 25% plans by June of 2018 and will 
complete the design by 2020.  The project will be advertised in FFY 2020 and construction will be funded 
over a five year period of 2020- 2024.” 

3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  N/A 
4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 

development pilot program activities 
YES 

According to Boston’s application, The City stated that “[t]he current request for $200,000, added to last 
year’s award of $250,000 would reduce the City’s $3 million share to $2,550,000.” 

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

YES 

Boston, MAPC, and the Commission (with others) are participants in the Lower Mystic Regional Working 
Group, whose work includes extensive analysis of the Sullivan Square redesign. 

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project  YES 

Boston used its reserve fund to assist in this project. 

7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

YES 

In Boston’s Response letter, Boston stated that “[o]n May 24, 2018, the final votes were cast by the MPO 
approving the new TIP for Federal Fiscal Years 2019 - 2023.  Rutherford Avenue/Sullivan Square was 
approved once again at a total construction cost of $152 Million over a five year construction period.  It has 
held its position with funding starting in 2020.  Almost $117 million is included in years 2020 - 2023.  The 
last $35 million will be included in 2024 when next year's TIP is put in place as it will cover the period of 
2020-2024.” 

General Criteria 
4. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 

not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

Pursuant to Boston’s Surrounding Community Agreement, funding has been made available for Sullivan 
Square redesign after Encore Boston Harbor is operational, “Wynn shall be responsible for a payment equal 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
7 | P a g e  

7 
6/4/18 

to Twenty Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000), provided that the Sullivan Square Infrastructure Project (as 
defined below) is designed, constructed, and permitted to accommodate the traffic impacts of the Project. 
Wynn shall make the payment to the SSIP Fund (as defined below) in equal annual installments of Two 
Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000) beginning on the first anniversary of the Opening Date 
for a term of ten (10) years,…” 

The Lower Mystic Regional Working Group is evaluating this plan.  Wynn’s SSFEIR MEPA Certificate required 
the creation of a working group to “assess and develop long-term transportation improvement that can 
support sustainable redevelopment and economic growth in and around Sullivan Square.” 

Wynn’s mitigation efforts in Sullivan Square and the $25M obligation are specified in the Commission’s 
Section 61 findings for this project.  These requirements did not require Wynn to provide funding for 
redesign of Sullivan Square/Rutherford Avenue prior to the opening of the Encore Boston Harbor project, 
but did include funding for immediate improvements to Sullivan Square. 

5. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed by the 
licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements between such 
licensee and applicant. 

See General Criteria Answer # 1. 

 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendation:  The Review Team recommends that the 
Commission provide $200,000 in funding. 
  



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
8 | P a g e  

8 
6/4/18 

Everett / Somerville Joint Transportation  

The cities of Everett and Somerville filed a Joint Application for Design & Permitting of Station 
Enhancements / a Weather Protected Connecting Structure to Provide Enhanced Access to 
Assembly Square MBTA Station. 

Licensee Response:  “Wynn Boston Harbor fully supports the head house expansion study that 
is part of a broader regional effort to connect pedestrians and bicyclists over a dedicated bridge 
to the MBTA station opening up new transportation options to thousands of people. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. This joint 
initiative between the Cities of Everett and Somerville is exactly the type of regional 
collaboration and big thinking we hope will continue as the Community Mitigation Fund 
matures post opening.” 

MassDOT Response: “MassDOT supports the request of the City of Everett and the City of 
Somerville for the amount of $425,000 to advance the design and permitting for a 
pedestrian/bicycle bridge that crosses the Mystic River and Orange Line tracks in order to 
provide access to existing transit services at the MBTA Assembly Square Station in Somerville. 
The improved access is anticipated to encourage the public as well as casino patrons and 
employees to use alternative modes of transportation instead of driving a personal vehicle. This 
work is consistent with the aims of MassDOT and the MBTA to improve multimodal 
transportation. It is also consistent with the recommendations of the Lower Mystic Regional 
Working Group to continue to develop a regional “active transportation” network – of which 
this proposed bridge is cited as a key link. The applicants plan to develop any design in close 
coordination with the MBTA and DCR. No design should assume any changes to the Assembly 
Square Orange Line Station without the express consent of the MBTA.”  

Transportation Criteria 

1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that the 
impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the proposed 
mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

The application states that the “Wynn project will result in increased traffic within the Lower 
Broadway/Sullivan Square area and beyond. The Wynn Boston Harbor Resort ("Gaming Facility”) will be a 
significant traffic generator within the Lower Broadway/Sullivan Square area and beyond. Despite being less 
than a mile from a rapid transit station located at Assembly Row in Somerville, there is no direct walk access 
between the transit station and the Casino as the Mystic River lies in the way. This fact is detrimental to the 
hope that a significant share of the transportation mode share could occur on transit but will instead occur 
on the roads either in private vehicles, ride sharing, or shuttle busses. This fact was recognized when the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission required the Licensee to provide shuttle bus service to and from 
adjacent MBTA stations and provide an additional $250,000 to the Department of Conservation and 
Recreation (OCR) to study a pedestrian bridge over the Mystic River connecting to the Assembly Square 
Orange Line station. That study is currently nearing completion, and will deliver a 25% design. This 
application seeks grant funding to advance design development of the potential headhouse expansion and 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
9 | P a g e  

9 
6/4/18 

support regional efforts to mitigate traffic impacts of the Gaming Facility.” 

The funding will be used to advance the design and permitting to expand public access to the existing MBTA 
Assembly Square Station in Somerville. The proposed station enhancement s are being planned in close 
coordination with planning and design for OCR's Draw Seven Park and the proposed bicycle/pedestrian 
bridge over the Mystic River. The expansion will provide direct access between Assembly Station and the 
Draw Seven Park, via a weather protected connecting structure outside the paid zone of the station and a 
new East Headhouse situated on the Draw Seven Park side of the Orange Line tracks. The project will meet 
MBTA accessibility standards, and will be thoughtfully designed to be aesthetically sympathetic to the 
surrounding context. This expansion would provide a direct link for pedestrians and bicycles from the 
Assembly Row and Assembly Square station to the proposed OCR riverfront trail to the south and the 
proposed Crossing Bridge between Somerville and Everett. The bridge would provide direct access from the 
OCR trail system, the Wynn Boston Harbor facility, the new Public Harborwalk, and Route 99 in Everett 
through the Draw Seven Park to the proposed headhouse at Assembly Station. Together these projects 
improve regional multimodal transportation network and connectivity to the Mystic River Watershed area. 

The Review Team strongly agrees that funding for the design and permitting of a connection to the MBTA 
Assembly Square Station is clearly related to the impacts of the gaming facility and, if implemented, 
would result in a significant transit improvement in the area. 

2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area of 
issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ The 
feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

The application stated the requested funds would allow the cities to submit 60% Design documents to 
MBTA for review and then to respond to MBTA 60% Design review comments and obtain approval to 
advance the design to a 90% level. 
The specificity of the budget and timetable was enhanced through the use of a recently completed 30% 
design of the Connector project. 

3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  N/A 
4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 

development pilot program activities 
NO 

The application stated that “[t]he Cities of Everett and Somerville will partially match the assistance 
provided by the gaming commission by providing staff time, meeting space, and other coordination and 
administrative time that will be required for a project of this magnitude.” 

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

YES 

The Joint Application referenced the work of the Lower Mystic Regional Working Group.  Further, it noted 
that other studies including the Everett Transit Action Plan, the Lower Broadway Master Plan, the MassDOT 
Bike Master Plan and others have recommended a Mystic River pedestrian bridge.  

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project  YES 

This is a new project.  

7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

 

In answer to a question from the Review Team, the Joint Applicants noted that “[t]he Cities along with 
Encore Boston Harbor are currently engaged in conversations with the Commonwealth and its 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
10 | P a g e  

10 
6/4/18 

transportation agencies to determine the most advantageous way in which the Mystic River Pedestrian 
Bridge and Assembly Row Connector can be financed and constructed in concert with one another. It is 
agreed by all parties that only one of the project components alone, the bridge or the connector, will not be 
a success without the other and that a combination of public-private partnerships and grant funding is the 
most likely scenario to fund the overall project. The Cities of Everett and Somerville continue to engage 
Encore Boston Harbor, MassDOT, the MBTA as well as numerous advocacy groups and NGOs including the 
Mystic River Watershed Association, Somerville Transportation Equity Partnership, Transportation for 
Massachusetts, MassBike and others to seek a comprehensive funding solution for the project.” 

General Criteria 
1. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 

N/A 

2. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

The City of Somerville’s surrounding community agreement calls for Encore Boston Harbor to provide 
$250,000 for transportation impacts, specifically for staffing and other public safety initiatives related to 
increased pedestrian and vehicular traffic. 

Everett will receive significant funds through the HCA.  However, this project (if the connector and the 
pedestrian bridge) was not listed in the HCA. 

The Review Team agreed these projects were not specifically listed in the HCA or SCA and that the 
Transportation Planning Grant funds are an appropriate use for this project.  The annual payment under 
Somerville’s SCA does not commence until the Encore Boston Harbor facility is operational.  

3. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any 
agreements between such licensee and applicant. 

YES 

A review of the SSFEIR decision, Section 61 findings and Host Community Agreement did not identify this 
project as part of the required mitigation.   Wynn was required to provide $250,000 for design of a 
pedestrian bridge crossing the Mystic River.    

 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendation:  The Review Team was unanimous in its support 
for this application.  This is exactly the type of project envisioned for the use of Transportation 
Planning Funds.  There is a clear nexus to the gaming facility and, if implemented, the Connector 
will help mitigate both traffic congestion and improve mode share through the corridor.  Given 
the importance of mode share for the Encore Boston Harbor project, this planning effort should 
be strongly supported. 
  



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
11 | P a g e  

11 
6/4/18 

Chelsea Transportation 

The City of Chelsea is requesting funding of $200,000 to undertake a formal 100% 
design/engineering process, in order to initiate a comprehensive re-design of the 
Beacham/Williams Corridor, in accordance with MassDOT's highway standards, From Mulberry 
St. to the Everett city line. The initial application stated that “[t]he funds will be utilized to 
commission a consultant engineer to prepare a 25% design plans, 25% right-of-way plans, and a 
functional design report for the planned reconstruction of Beacham and Williams Streets.”  
Since the initial application was received, Chelsea has pledged additional local funding to 
enable Chelsea to prepare a 100% design plan instead of the 25% design plan anticipated in the 
original application.  Chelsea sought and successfully obtained a $3 million economic 
development administration construction grant to rehabilitate this corridor and spur local 
economic development. 
 
Licensee Response:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the City of Chelsea's efforts to improve 
Beecham and Williams Streets. 

Preparing 25 percent design documents for this corridor will position the City well for 
additional funding to improve this long forgotten but important transportation route. The 
road will connect many of our vendors to our service road at the terminus of Beecham Street 
in Everett. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We 
would like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the 
resources available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for 
decades to come.” 

MassDOT Response:  MassDOT supports the City of Chelsea’s application for $200,000 to 
develop a 25% design for the reconstruction of the Beacham/Williams corridor. The city 
anticipates that this corridor will experience a large amount of traffic related to the future 
Wynn Casino development. This design would be based on the Beacham/Williams Corridor 
Study that was previously funded by the Gaming Commission. The reconstruction will seek to 
improve safety and provide access for pedestrians and bicyclists in the corridor, goals which 
align with MassDOT’s aims. 

Transportation Criteria 
1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 

gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that the 
impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the proposed 
mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

In its application Chelsea states that, “…[tT]raffic volume, trip frequency, air emissions, and traffic crashes, 
stressing an increasingly taxed and congested roadway network, will directly result from the operations of a 
gaming facility. The Beacham/Williams Corridor, consisting of Williams St. and Beacham St. in Chelsea, will 
disproportionately shoulder these impacts. Spanning east to west through Chelsea, this gateway corridor 
provides access from Chelsea, East Boston (Logan Airport), and points northward. It's the preferred route of 
Transportation Network Company (Uber, Lyft) vehicles, as well as traditional taxis and livery vehicles, since it 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
12 | P a g e  

12 
6/4/18 

provides a route to circumvent the tolls associated with the three harbor tunnels and Route 1. As one of the 
most direct routes where drivers can eschew highly-congested principal arterials, this corridor will handle a 
striking fraction of future trip generation induced by the casino. Moreover, the corridor provides the sole 
bicycle connection between East Boston, Chelsea, Everett, and Boston, including the only bicycle linkage 
from these areas to the casino. 

Furthermore, the corridor provides a direct thoroughfare for present and future employees of the casino, 
ranging from construction laborers to hospitality professionals. It also serves as a primary truck route and 
vital regional industrial and commercial areas, including the New England Produce Terminal and surrounding 
fresh produce cluster. Construction materials and equipment frequently traverse the corridor to the casino 
site. In the future, a multitude of goods, materials, and equipment serving the casino will be transported 
along the corridor. While the extent of these future impacts are fluid, they are projected to reveal a 
measurably negative impact on this specific corridor, as well as the interrelated urban roadway network 
bisecting the City….” 
The review team feels that this corridor is a gateway thoroughfare which could better serve pedestrians, 
vehicles, bicyclists and freight for the casino by the improvement of its roadway conditions and through 
comprehensive planning. 

2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area of 
issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ The 
feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

“Building off of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission-funded Beacham/Williams Corridor Study, the 25% 
[now 100%] design process will chart necessary roadway improvements to overhaul an unsafe and derelict 
corridor that includes numerous crash clusters, antiquated and inoperative infrastructure, and no facilities 
for pedestrians or bicyclists. Evident deficiencies points, such as the intersection of Williams St. and Spruce 
St., will delay casino-bound traffic and increase the probability of traffic crashes. The study corroborated the 
severity and causality of deficiencies, such as the one present at this intersection. This design process will 
directly mitigate all multi-modal transportation impacts associated with the casino along this corridor. 

In Chelsea’s response letter to the Review Team Chelsea stated that “According to our estimates, the design 
and engineering task will cost approximately $525,000 to $600,000. Full corridor reconstruction is estimated 
to cost approximately $8,000,000…. 

3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  N/A 
4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 

development pilot program activities 
YES 

In its response letter, Chelsea stated that “[f]or the design process, the City anticipates utilizing 
approximately $300,000 to $400,000 in local funding, augmenting the $200,000 in MGC’s mitigation funds 
requested by the City. For reconstruction, the City recently sought and successfully obtained a $3,000,000 
construction grant from the Economic Development Administration’s Public Works and Economic 
Development Program (PWED), part of the Department of Commerce. Seeking to catalyze economic 
development, spur regional employment growth, and preserve critical economic sectors and associated 
employment, PWED program funds were awarded to the City to rehabilitate this essential thoroughfare, in 
support of the agglomeration of produce distribution companies, the Boston Harbor casino, and associated 
industries. The City has proposed $5,000,000 in construction funding in the FY’20 Capital Improvement 
Program”. 

“The City of Chelsea will provide in-kind services, in the form of staff time. This will encompass an assigned 
project manager and economic development specialist, overseen by the Director of Planning and 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
13 | P a g e  

13 
6/4/18 

Development. The City of Chelsea has also requested funding (up to $200,000), as part of its FY'19 Capital 
Improvement Program, to supplement mitigation funds.” 

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

YES 

Chelsea’s application states, “…The MAPC unequivocally supports the City in its pursuit to design and 
rehabilitate this important multi-modal corridor…” 

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project  YES 
Chelsea applied for funding in 2016 which formed a basis for this application.  The scope of work for the 
2016 study included a field survey, condition assessment, environmental screening, and road safety audit.  
Additionally, the study included the collection and the analysis of vehicular, pedestrian and bicyclist volume 
and directional statistics, and the rendering of a conceptual design. 

7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

YES 

As noted earlier, Chelsea’s response to the Review Team stated, “[f]or reconstruction, the City recently 
sought and successfully obtained a $3,000,000 construction grant from the Economic Development 
Administration’s Public Works and Economic Development Program (PWED), part of the Department of 
Commerce. Seeking to catalyze economic development, spur regional employment growth, and preserve 
critical economic sectors and associated employment, PWED program funds were awarded to the City to 
rehabilitate this essential thoroughfare, in support of the agglomeration of produce distribution companies, 
the Boston Harbor casino, and associated industries. The City has proposed $5,000,000 in construction 
funding in the FY’20 Capital Improvement Program.” In its original application Chelsea noted that, [t]he City 
of Chelsea and the City of Everett have collaborated closely on this corridor. Everett also aims to rehabilitate 
their portion of Beacham St.  They are currently undertaking a 25% design process. Both cities have recently 
submitted a request for Transportation Improvement Program funding to the Boston MPO, potentially as a 
joint construction project.” 

The Review Team strongly agrees that the funding to Chelsea has enabled it to compete for additional 
funding, including the $3 million EDA grant. 

General Criteria 
1. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a demonstrated 

public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
N/A 

2. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

$275,000  
(estimated)  

Transportation 
Impacts  

“Contingent upon …an unconditional, non-appealable License”; 
Wynn agreed to complete all necessary improvements as 
determined in accordance with MEPA process”  

$300,000  Transitional Roads 
Payments:  
(a)  

One-time, upfront, non-refundable payment; to “make 
certain roadway improvements on all transitional roads in 
preparation for the Project”  

$225,000  (b)  On or before 90th day following opening (aesthetic quality, 
signage and safety needs)  

$250,0000  (c)  On or before 90th day following opening (pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic)  

The Review Team noted that the SCA does not list the roadways in this application for improvement. 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
14 | P a g e  

14 
6/4/18 

3. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed by 
the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant. 

YES 

This corridor was excluded from the MEPA process. 

 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendation:  The Review Team was unanimous in its support 
for Chelsea’s application.  This is exactly the type of project envisioned for the use of 
Transportation Planning Funds as it will build upon the 2016 Reserve/Transportation Planning 
Grant.   
The Review Team believes the project could improve connections with its neighbors.  However, 
it expressed some concern about potential impacts on Lower Broadway.  The Review Team 
recommends that the issue should be monitored and that Chelsea should be required to make 
efforts to work with Everett to address potential impacts on Lower Broadway.  

In general, however, the Review team notes that the existing grant has proven to be very useful 
to Chelsea.  Chelsea stated that “[t] he funds provided to Chelsea to date from the Commission 
have been markedly instrumental in securing the Economic Development Administration grant. 
Without the transportation corridor study, funded by the Commission in 2016, the City would not 
have had the refined set of information necessary to successfully secure this federal funding.” 
 
  



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
15 | P a g e  

15 
6/4/18 

Medford Transportation 

The City of Medford is requesting a total of $198,600 in transportation planning grants.  
Medford is requesting funding for a “Survey, Completion of Documents and Permitting for the 
South Medford Connector.” 

Licensee Response:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the City of Medford's effort to increase 
pedestrian and bicycle connections in area. 

The South Medford Connector would be a beautiful complement to our Harbor Walk and the 
miles of dedicated bicycle and pedestrian paths that are either open, being constructed, or in 
planning throughout the region. This path leads directly to the Assembly Row MBTA station 
and if a bridge were ever constructed over the Mystic River, could be a direct, protected 
transportation corridor for our employees and patrons throughout the region. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We 
would like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the 
resources available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for 
decades to come.” 

MassDOT Response:  MassDOT supports the City of Medford’s request for $198,600 for the 
purpose of developing final design documents and completing permitting for the South 
Medford Connector. The project involves the construction of a network of multi-use paths 
along the Mystic River. This design follows a feasibility study that was previously funded by 
the Gaming Commission. As mentioned in the application, this path network would fill a gap 
in the regional off-road pathway system along the Mystic River and provide alternative car-
free access to the casino site. MassDOT supports improvements to alternative transportation 
facilities. 

Transportation Criteria 
1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 

gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that 
the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the 
proposed mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

The City is seeking $198,600 “to create survey and final design documents and complete permitting for the 
South Medford Connector;”  “phase I conceptual design funded by the 2017 Transportation Planning Grant 
($60,000)…These funds will be used to design a shared-use path on state-owned public land, resulting in a 
network of walking and biking paths along the Mystic River for active transportation.’ 
 
The Commission approved funding for the conceptual design of the South Medford connector in 2017.   At the 
time, the Review Team memorandum stated that “[t]he Review Team was satisfied that the South Medford 
connector study is clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility, especially if the pedestrian bridge is built over the Mystic River.  Wynn Boston Harbor is 
currently actively working on the design of this pedestrian bridge.  Proceeding with the study now would 
allow the South Medford Connector project to proceed while answers are determined regarding the 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
16 | P a g e  

16 
6/4/18 

pedestrian bridge.” 

The Review Team’s continues to agree that the project meets this aspect of the criteria  
2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area 

of issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ 
The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

Medford provided a detailed scope of services from Nitsch Engineering, which includes a wetlands flagging and 
survey, preliminary design plans, permitting, and then the creation of final design plans in Phase 2 .  In 
response to a Review Team question, Medford provided additional information why it believes the estimate 
for the work to be reasonable.  The City also plans to utilize the services of the Mystic River Watershed 
Association, which has experience with similar projects.  Medford also consulted with DCR regarding the 
scope.   Medford also stated that “[a]ll funds will be dispersed in compliance with public procurement 
requirements, with a bid process and contracts.” 

In its proposal, Nitsch stated that the “[t]iming of Phase 2 can be determined once funding is secured.” 
However, the Review Team has no reason to believe why Phase 1 and Phase 2 could not be completed in a 
reasonable time, perhaps within the fiscal year.  
As the development of a cost estimate for the Connector is part of the planning study, Medford is not yet able 
to provide an estimate of the cost to build the Connector.  
 
The Review Team believes that Medford submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable. 

3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  n/a 
4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or 

workforce development pilot program activities 
YES 

Medford stated that “[f]rom the City of Medford, the Director of Energy and Environment will be the 
project manager for this, contributing her time.  Additionally, the Associate Environmental Agent will 
assist with the permitting paperwork and coordination with the Conservation Commission and 
Procurement Office staff will handle contracts and invoices. As this project will be on state land, staff 
from the MA Dept of Conservation and Recreation will be involved with this project it would “contribute 
in kind services in the form of preparation of RFP’s, procurement of consultant services, management 
of consultants and coordination with the relevant agencies….” 

It did not provide an estimate of in-kind services.  However, the Review Team believes that Medford 
submitted sufficient in-kind services.  

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

YES 

Medford has consulted with the MAPC on aspects of its 2018 submission. 

The South Medford Connector project could have strong regional benefits.  It is included in the 
MAPC’s Landline, Regional Green Network and in the DCR 2009 Mystic River Master Plan.  Both the 
City of Somerville and DCR are supportive of this request.  As noted previously by DCR, “[t]his link 
would connect the expansive network of waterfront paths along the Charles River, Fresh Pond, 
Alewife Brook and Mystic River.”  Medford is working with Arlington, Somerville, Malden, Everett, and 
Boston as part of the Mystic Greenways Initiative. 

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project  YES 

This grant would build upon the 2017 Transportation Planning Grant. 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
17 | P a g e  

17 
6/4/18 

7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

NO 

The City notes that “[t]he Governor’s office has been expanding trail funding across the state through the EEA, 
MassDOT and DCR. We will advocate to these entities for funding and apply for grant opportunities as 
appropriate (i.e. Recreational Trails Program, DCR Partnership Program). We also anticipate that this may be 
an appealing project for the Gaming Commission to fund.”  The Review Team note that the Applicant may 
need to rely on future Gaming Commission funds to complete the project.  

General Criteria 
4. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party 

N/A 

5. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements 
are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

The Medford Surrounding Community Agreement includes payments before opening that are unrelated to the 
projects contained in this application:  funding for the Krystle Campbell Peace Garden.   

6. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be 
completed by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to 
any agreements between such licensee and applicant. 

YES 

These measures are not already required. 

 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendation: The Review Team recommends that the 
Commission provide $198,600 in funding to Medford to support the proposed activities.    
 
  



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
18 | P a g e  

18 
6/4/18 

Revere/Saugus Transportation  
 
The City of Revere and Town of Saugus plan to use funds for the support of anticipated 
transportation planning assistance and for preliminary traffic designs for elements within 
Phase 1 of the Route 1 Improvement Project.    
 
Licensee Response:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the joint effort between the cities of 
Revere and Saugus to plan for and implement improvements throughout the Rt. 1/Rt. 99 
corridor. We encourage them to continue their outreach to surrounding cities, including 
Malden, Chelsea and Everett to develop large-scale regional improvement plans. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We 
would like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the 
resources available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for 
decades to come.” 

MassDOT Response:  MassDOT supports the request of the City of Revere and the Town of 
Saugus for funds toward the second year of a salary for a joint transportation planner to 
continue to work to identify key improvements to be made along the Route 1 corridor.  
However, we have reservations about the request for funds to obtain preliminary designs for 
transportation improvements. The application mentions that roads in the area currently 
experience significant deficiencies, and this is expected to worsen because of the casino.  The 
Gaming Commission awarded a grant last year for the same purpose. The application does 
not discuss any progress that has been made with that funding. MassDOT suggests that the 
cities provide an update on how last year’s grant money was used. Additionally, the 
application should better document the casino’s future traffic impact in their communities, 
identify the potential improvement projects, and provide a more detailed breakdown of the 
proposed use of the funds. 

Transportation Criteria 

1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that the 
impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the proposed 
mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

The Revere/Saugus initial application stated that “The Town of Saugus and the City of Revere will use 
$[2]75,000 of the requested funds solely to address through the preliminary design phase, traffic issues and 
impacts directly related to anticipated traffic volume increases from the opening of the Wynn Casino in 
Everett in 2019. These will focus on key locations along the Route 1- Route 99 corridor. The $150,000 
remainder of the joint request will be used to continue to provide salary support and necessary benefits for 
the Revere-Saugus contracted Joint Transportation Planner whose function is to advance needed casino 
related traffic improvements through the regional transportation planning and funding processes.” 

In the response to the Review Team the Joint Applicants noted:  

“… After the submission, because of difficulties in hiring a full-time planner, the communities determines 
that they would instead seek to use the funds from the 2017 CMF grant for a transportation consultant firm 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
19 | P a g e  

19 
6/4/18 

to provide the needed services.”  No funds have yet to be disbursed under the grant for the transportation 
planner.  In the letter to the Joint Applicants, the Review Team asked, “[t]he Transportation Planning Grants 
are anticipated to pay for activities during the upcoming fiscal year.  Have you determined how this may 
impact the need for funding in FY19 since it understandably took time to initiate the FY18 grant?”  The Joint 
applicants responded that “[g]iven the time required to evaluate and approve the 2018 Transportation 
Planning Grant, the communities have instructed the consultant traffic planning and engineering firm BETA 
Inc., to revise the scope and project timeline so as to accelerate the planning initiative and conclude its 
efforts under the 2017 grant by October 31. 2018. The revised scope and timeline are being forwarded to 
the Commission separately. BETA Inc. was engaged through a public procurement process.”     

So, in sum, as of the date of the response, Saugus and Revere plan to utilize the first $150,000 (awarded in 
2017) for consultant firm services (instead of a contract planner (full-time consultant)) through October 31, 
2018, and then utilize a new requested $150,000 for the continuation of those consultant firm services from 
November 1, 2018 through August 30, 2019.  In addition to those services, the Joint Applicants hope to 
secure $275,000 to fund the preliminary conceptual design of actions to advance the Route 1 Improvement 
Project, particularly in regards to the Route 1 – Route 99 corridor.  The Joint Applicants described this 
additional $275,000 in their response letter as “[t]he City of Revere and the Town of Saugus are looking to 
identify and pursue funding for the Route I Improvement Project in segments. This approach would make 
MassDOT project expenditures more manageable as they relate to the Boston MPO TIP. Based on previous 
evaluations and due to the Route I and Route 99 corridors being major arterial feeders for the Wynn Casino 
in Everett, the goal is to evaluate measures at the Route I and Route 99 interchange that will provide 
preliminary traffic improvements for this congested corridor.  The activities to pursue this early action item 
will consist of the elements identified under our response to Item 6 below.  The improvements for the Route 
I and Route 99 interchange  would be the priority followed by the Route I and Route 60 interchange (at 
Copeland Circle).”  The Joint applicants also stated that “[n]o Mass DOT improvements to improve the Route 
I -Route 99 corridor are currently underway or are in the TIP for the near term. The entire focus of this grant 
effort is aimed at moving the long-delayed Route I Improvement project through the TIP process in a way 
that is both physically and fiscally feasible.  The City of Revere and the Town of Saugus see opportunities 
arising through the build-out of Overlook Ridge alongside Route I, the reclamation of the Saugus Quarry on 
Route 99 and the master planned development of the Weylu's/Caddy Farms site at the junction of Routes I 
and 99.”.    

“The City of Revere and the Town of Saugus have long been plagued by the woeful inadequacy of outmoded 
old Route 1. The highway is subject to ever increasing traffic volumes and virtual gridlock during attenuated 
morning and evening rush hours. A number of Route 1 interchanges have very high accident rates because 
of this increased traffic. The City and the Town believe the Wynn Casino will bring substantial volumes of 
new traffic onto the Route 1-Route 99 corridor. Saugus believes that to a lesser but still significant degree, 
some casino generated traffic may bypass lower Route 1 exiting the highway onto Walnut Street Central 
Street or Main Street-Center Street and on to Winter Street then Ballard Street and then Route 107 as an 
alternative way to access route 16 towards Everett.  

Revere will be negatively impacted by traffic heading to Route 16 west from Route 1 south and some 
northeast originated traffic will choose to follow route 107 through the heart of the city to access route 16 
west. And of course Revere will undoubtedly see an increase of traffic along already overtaxed route 1A as 
residents of North Shore coastal communities use that route to connect to route 16 and the Wynn Casino. 
The City and the Town hope to work together and enlist the support of other nearby impacted communities, 
so as to affect key roadway improvements along these arterials that will help alleviate existing traffic and 
offset anticipated traffic problems resulting from increased volume attributable to the new casino. 

As neither Revere nor Saugus has been recognized as a Surrounding Community to the Wynn Casino, the 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
20 | P a g e  

20 
6/4/18 

grant would provide the means to these communities to jointly and cooperatively begin pursuing measures 
to mitigate anticipated casino traffic impacts. In the process, some negative conditions that pre-date the 
casino may be alleviated. 

Additionally, certain transportation improvement projects that may be advanced as a result of this MGC 
planning grant will help set the stage for both Revere and Saugus to realize positive mixed-use development 
at two major vacant but valuable sites along the Route 1 corridor. The first is the former Weylu's/Caddy 
Farms property, a more than 40 acre site located partly in Revere and partly in Saugus….” 

It is unclear to the Review Team how the work of the proposed consultant firm relates to the review of 
the Route 1 Improvement Project.  As originally envisioned, the Commission’s 2017 grant would pay for 
the cost of an transportation planner to help coordinate the Joint Applicants efforts to study potential 
casino related traffic impacts and to develop further plans to address unmet impacts.  As of the response 
letter, the Joint Applicants have notified the Review Team that it is choosing to accelerate the work of the 
consultant.  We have yet to receive the proposed scope of such consultant. 

2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area of 
issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ The 
feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 

 

It is still unclear to the Review Team what will be the scope of the 2017 funded consultant.  Also, it is 
unclear what items of the Route 1 Corridor Plan will be advanced.  The joint applicants stated that “[t]he 
Town of Saugus and the City of Revere will use $[2]75,000 of the requested funds solely to address through 
the preliminary design phase, traffic issues and impacts directly related to anticipated traffic volume 
increases from the opening of the Wynn Casino in Everett in 2019. These will focus on key locations along 
the Route 1- Route 99 corridor. The $150,000 remainder of the joint request will be used to continue to 
provide salary support and necessary benefits for the Revere-Saugus contracted Joint Transportation 
Planner whose function is to advance needed casino related traffic improvements through the regional 
transportation planning and funding processes. 

3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  N/A 
4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 

development pilot program activities 
YES 

As with the case of the 2017 Joint Transportation Planning Grant, both the City of Revere and Town of 
Saugus will provide significant in-kind services to support this initiative. This includes: the provision of office 
space and supplies; administrative and fiscal support services; and substantive interrelationship with not 
only line planning personnel, but other municipal experts in the public safety, Traffic, public works and 
engineering departments. 

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

YES 

The City of Revere and the Town of Saugus have been in communication with the Metropolitan Area 
Planning Council regarding the goals and approaches to this joint transportation planning effort. 
Additionally, Saugus and Revere have frequently consulted with the Cities of Malden and Chelsea as to the 
prospect of greater collaboration with them, and perhaps more surrounding communities, to advance 
regional transportation planning efforts on a number of fronts, but most specifically on mitigation of casino 
related traffic impacts. 

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project   



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
21 | P a g e  

21 
6/4/18 

The Commission provided $150,000 in funds for a planner in 2017 to Revere/Saugus. 

7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 
application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 

 

The Applicant stated that “[n]o Mass DOT improvements to improve the Route I -Route 99 corridor are 
currently underway or are in the TIP for the near term.  The entire focus of this grant effort is aimed at 
moving the long-delayed Route I Improvement project through the TIP process in a way that is both 
physically and fiscally feasible.  The City of Revere and the Town of Saugus see opportunities arising through 
the build-out of Overlook Ridge alongside Route I, the reclamation of the Saugus Quarry on Route 99 and 
the master planned development of the Weylu's/Caddy Farms site at the junction of Routes I and 99.  The 
communities believe the continuance of these three major development projects and this initiative to 
advance early action items in the Route I Improvement Project is fortuitous.  It is the intention of Revere 
and Saugus to engage these three developers to support the highway improvement in terms of process and 
perhaps through some financial participate in the project.  Although the applicants note the each Route 1 
projects being considered in the TIF process, the requested funds are designed to potentially change that. 

General Criteria 
1. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
N/A 

  
2. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 

not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

Revere and Saugus do not have Surrounding Community Agreements. 

3. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed by 
the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant. 

YES 

 

 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendation: In its Response to the Review Team, the Joint 
Applicants expressed an intention to accelerate the work of the consultant traffic planning and 
engineering firm that it plans to use as a replacement of the full-time consultant specialist 
position authorized by the Commission in the 2017 grant process.  It is unclear, as of the date of 
this review, how such work would be accelerated.  When the Commission approved the funding 
for the first year of a transportation planner, it was understood that the planner would be 
available throughout the year to help organize and effectuate the transportation planning 
needs for the two communities.  The job description submitted by the two communities 
included a range of activities that occur throughout the year such as “facilitating the timely 
review, approval, and implementation of such projects in and through the local and regional 
transportation planning...agencies, formulating transportation policies, coordinating the 
implementation of transportation projects with each other,” etc.  An accelerated program 
through October 31, 2018 seems inconsistent with that original yearlong purpose.  The Review 
Team understands that the communities decided to pursue the use of firm instead of an 
individual because of difficulties in hiring an individual to meet the needs of the communities.   
Although the Review Team does not dispute the need to use a firm instead of an individual, the 
Review Team does not agree that the acceleration is in keeping with the purpose of the original 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
22 | P a g e  

22 
6/4/18 

grant.   Therefore, the Review Team does not support shrinking the time frame for this work 
until October 31, 2018, thusly necessitating the need for additional funds to carry the planning 
activities through the balance of the fiscal year.  Thus, the Review Team does not recommend 
that the Commission provide $150,000 for the “second year” of the planner.  As the funding for 
the first year of the planner (or now the firm) remains unspent, the Review Team believes that 
the communities could use the existing funding during Fiscal Year 2019.    
 
The communities stressed the importance of planning related to Route 1.  The Review Team 
supports additional planning related to Route 1, as a significant percentage of Encore Boston 
Harbor traffic will use Route 1.  The Applicants referenced the existing Route 1 Improvement 
Plan.  They plan to look at aspects of that plan to implement in the near term.   The Review 
Team recommends that the Commission condition any funding for the study of specific aspects 
of the Route 1 Corridor plan on a demonstration of a direct link between potential Encore 
Boston Harbor impacts and the particular Route 1 improvement being studied.  The Review 
Team further recommends that the Commission condition any award upon a requirement that 
the applicants consult with MassDOT and with MAPC on the areas of study.  Finally, the Review 
Team recommends that the Commission state that no funds shall be available to the 
communities for the purposes of such Route 1 studies until Commission staff determines that 
the communities have met these conditions and are in compliance with other aspects of the 
grant contract executed between the Commission and the communities.    Given the breadth of 
the potential improvements to Route 1, the Review Team does not dispute that $275,000 is a 
reasonable amount to request.      
 
  



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
23 | P a g e  

23 
6/4/18 

West Springfield Transportation 
 
The Town of West Springfield is requesting funding to cover professional engineering 
consultant to collect data, analyze and design improvements to portions of both Park Street 
(Route 20) and Park Avenue (Route 20) between the intersections of Elm Street (Route 20) 
and Union Street, easterly to the North End Bridge Rotary at Route 5 to mitigate 
transportation impacts associated with additional casino traffic. 

Licensee Response:  “The Town of West Springfield has applied for a 2018 Transportation 
Planning Grant from the Community Mitigation Fund in the amount of $200,000 to support the 
study of traffic impacts on the route 20 corridor.  MGM supports the efforts to help further 
fund the design and permitting of the project beyond the significant funding MGM already 
provided and will provide to the Town under its surrounding community agreement with the 
Town.” 

MassDOT Response:  “MassDOT supports the request of the Town of West Springfield in the 
amount of $200,000 to hire a consultant to analyze and design improvements that would 
mitigate transportation impacts associated with casino traffic. The town plans to develop and 
design mitigation measures for all transportation modes in accordance with Complete Streets 
guidelines, a concept which MassDOT supports. The application provided three engineering 
quotes for the proposed project and we believe that the quotes are reasonable and show a 
commitment to its implementation. The town is prepared to pay the additional costs outside 
of what the grant would cover.” 
 

Transportation Criteria 

1. Clearly related to addressing transportation issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility / The significance of the impact to be remedied /A demonstration that 
the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility / The potential for the 
proposed mitigation measure to address the impact  

YES 

As per the Town’s application, “The Project area of this grant proposal includes portions of both Park Street 
(Route 20) and Park Avenue (Route 20) between the intersections of Elm Street (Route 20) and Union 
Street, easterly to the North End Bridge Rotary at Route 5.  A project location map is attached in Appendix 
A. 

This is part of a primary travel route to and from the casino as noted in our past traffic studies for the casino 
development….” 
“…These roadways are not only a primary travel route for patrons to/from the casino, but will in turn serve 
as a critical commuter route for its employees living not only in West Springfield, but in neighboring 
communities such as the City of Westfield. Route 20 is a primary roadway through the community traversing 
through the City of Westfield’s downtown and connecting many communities to the west.” 
The Review Team believes that West Springfield demonstrated the areas of its study are related to 
potential impacts from the MGM Springfield gaming facility.  According to the MGM Springfield Draft 
Environmental Impact Report, approximately 4.7% of MGM Springfield’s trips will traverse through the 
North End Bridge in West Springfield.  This is immediately adjacent to the study area. 

2. Submitted a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for the planning effort; Defined area of 
issue that will be investigated as well as a clear plan for implementation of results/ The 

YES 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
24 | P a g e  

24 
6/4/18 

feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure 
The Review Team believes that West Springfield included a detailed scope and budget for the work.  As 
noted by MassDOT, West Springfield included three engineering services quotes.  It further noted that 
“[f]inal detailed scopes, budgets and timetables will be requested form the firms over the next few 
months.”  In its Response to the Review Team, West Springfield stated that “[t]he project design will take 
approximately 9-12 months to complete dependent upon the consultant selected by the Town. Therefore, if 
awarded the project in July of this year, the Town would select one of the three consultants and enter into a 
contract with them in August/September of 2018, with a final design estimated to be ready in the Summer 
of 2019. The project could then be advertised for construction in late Summer/ Fall of 2019. 

The Review Team is comfortable with the scope, budget, and timetable for this project and is confident 
that more detail will be available if the grant is authorized by the Commission. 
3. No more than two years for any municipal employee.  N/A 

4. In-kind services / The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 
development pilot program activities 

YES 

The application stated “The Town is requesting a transportation planning grant of $200,000 from the 
Community Mitigation Fund to assist with addressing impacts to the study area.  These funds, in their 
entirety, will be used to contract with an engineering firm to develop improvements the Town will advance 
to construction. The Town has solicited three fee proposals from three engineering firms (copies of each are 
attached in Appendix G).  These proposals range from $224,785 - $250,000.  The Town is committed to 
funding the additional $24,785 to $50,000 in excess of the grant, depending upon the consultant selected.” 
The Review Team believes that this potential 25% match is significant. 

5. Consultation with the RPA / Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation 
award 

YES 

West Springfield stated that “[a]s previously noted in the application, the Town has worked with the Pioneer 
Valley Regional Planning Commission since the late 1990’s on improvements to the project area.” 
The Review Team believes that West Springfield will continue to work closely with the Pioneer Valley 
Planning Commission (“PVPC”).  PVPC submitted a letter of support for the grant proposal. 

6. Expand a planning project begun with reserve funds or to fund an additional project  YES 
As noted in West Springfield’s response to the Review Team, “[t]he intersection of Park Street, Park Avenue, 
Elm Street and Union Street is the transition area between the project under design utilizing 2017 Mitigation 
Grant Funds, and our current 2018 application. The 2017 project calls for design improvements to the 
intersection of Westfield Street and Elm Street, along with the Elm Street corridor leading up to the Park 
Street, Park Avenue, Elm Street and Union Street intersection, with anticipation that there will be minor 
improvements for the transition into the intersection.  
Our 2018 application picks up at the tail end of our 2017 project (and includes) the intersection of Park 
Street, Park Avenue, Elm Street and Union Street and continue easterly to the Route 5 rotary and North End 
Bridge under jurisdiction on the Massachusetts Department of transportation. The activities described in the 
current application are directly related to the 2017 project as part of a larger scope to improve the Route 20 
corridor.” 
7. Demonstrates the potential for such transportation project that is the subject of a CMF 

application to compete for state or federal transportation funds 
YES 

The town stated that “[t]he town is committed to advancing products of the grant to construction.” 



 
 

2018 Community Mitigation Fund Analysis 
Transportation Planning Applications 
25 | P a g e  

25 
6/4/18 

General Criteria 
1. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
N/A 

2. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

YES 

West Springfield stated that “The surrounding community agreement did not include the Park Avenue and 
Park Street corridors.  Only the Memorial Avenue corridor was part of the agreement.” 

3. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any 
agreements between such licensee and applicant. 

YES 

West Springfield stated that “[t]he MEPA Certificate dated December 31, 2014, for the final Environmental 
Impact Report did not include transportation improvements to this project area that is part of a primary 
travel route to/from the casino…. There are no transportation mitigation measures to the Park Street and 
Park Avenue corridors that are required to be completed by the licensee. The Off-Site infrastructure 
improvements are primarily within the City of Springfield with the exception of work on the Memorial 
Bridge which is not part of this project area.” 
 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendation:  The Review Team recommends that the 
Commission authorize $200,000 in 2018 CMF funds to complement the work authorized in 
the 2017 Commission award.    
  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Supplemental Information Requests and Responses 
 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\Transportation FINAL Analysis 
060518.docx 

 

 



 

S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\Transportation FINAL Analysis 
060518.docx 

 





























































































































































 
 

 
 

1 

 

  

                                                      
* Assumes agreement to repurpose funds and all conditions are met 

Workforce Development Application Grants (Maximum $300,000 per Region) 

Entity Program Requested 
Amount 

Review Team 
Proposal 

REGION A 

Metro North Regional 
Employment Board 

Metro North Casino Careers 
Consortium (MNCCC) 

$300,000.00 $300,000.00 

Boston Private Industry 
Council 

Greater Boston Casino Pipe 
Line Initiative (GBCPI) 

$300,000.00 $300,000.00* 

REGION B 

Holyoke Community 
College 

Work Ready $300,000.00 $240,000.00 
($60,000 for 
scholarships 
previously awarded) 

 
Total: $900,000.00  



2 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

TO: Stephen Crosby, Gayle Cameron, Eileen O’Brien, Bruce Stebbins and Enrique Zuniga 

FROM: Catherine Blue, John Ziemba, Derek Lennon, Jill Griffin, Joe Delaney, Crystal Howard, and 
Mary Thurlow (2018 Community Mitigation Fund Review Team) 

CC: Edward R. Bedrosian, Jr.  

DATE: May 14, 2018  

RE: 2018 Workforce Development Application Review 

This memorandum provides an analysis of the applications for funding under the Workforce 
Development Pilot Program (“Workforce Program”) component of the 2018 Community Mitigation 
Fund (“CMF”).  The Community Mitigation Review Team (“review team”) reviewed the 
applications to determine the suitability of the applications and to ensure the applications are in 
compliance with the 2018 Guidelines.  As part of this review process, copies of the applications 
were sent to the licensees for their review and comment.  An in-person meeting was held with 
each applicant and the review team.  Supplemental information requests were sent to the 
applicants after these meetings (attached as Exhibit A).  Responses to these supplemental requests 
were received (attached as Exhibit B) and numerous in-house application analysis meetings were 
held by the review team.  We note that there were no comments submitted on behalf of any of 
the Workforce Development applicants in the Request for Comments that was issued after the 
applications were received by the February 1, 2017 due date. 

This year the Commission made available funding for certain career pathways workforce 
development pilot programs in Regions A and B for services to residents of communities of these 
Regions.  The total funding available for such grants was determined to likely not exceed $600,000.  
No application for a grant in each Region could exceed $300,000.  As with all community 
mitigation funding requests, the Commission reserved the ability to determine a funding limit 
beyond what is detailed in the Guidelines.  

The Workforce Program was developed to provide interested residents in gaming regions the 
ability to attain academic and occupational credentials needed to work in the most in-demand 
occupations related to the gaming industry.  Additionally it was established to assist the 
unemployed or underemployed to either get their GED or Adult Basic Education (“ABE”) which 
would position them to get future jobs in the casino industry or training in advance by the 
backfilling of jobs. 

 



3 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

To effectuate a consistent and efficient system to analyze the Applications, the Review Team 
utilized the review criteria specified in the 2018 Guidelines.  Additionally, for the Workforce 
Development Pilot Program Applications it was determined that supplemental information would 
be needed to assess the applications.  Those questions are in brown. 
 
 A demonstration that the impact is being caused by the proposed gaming facility; 
 The significance of the impact to be remedied; 
 The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact; 
 The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure; 
 A demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party; 
 The significance of any matching funds for workforce development pilot program activities 

or planning efforts, including but not limited to the ability to compete for state or federal 
workforce, transportation or other funds; 

 Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award; 
 A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 

not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure; 
 A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed by 

the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant; and 

 The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation request. 
 

Supplemental Guidelines Used To Evaluate Workforce Development Applications 

1. Does it develop a pilot program that will address any claimed impacts? 
2. A program in Region A or Region B that structures intentional connections among adult 

basic education, occupational training, and post-secondary education programs 
3. Does it accomplish the goal of assisting low-skilled adults to obtain education and career 

training to enable them to join the regional labor market?  
4. Does the application address the anticipated goals of the program (see page 15 of the 

Guidelines)?  
5. Industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to work in the most in-demand 

occupations related to the expanded gaming industry or a focus on occupations that 
could be in high demand from the casino, potentially negatively impacting the regional 
business community  

6. Governmental entity applying for workforce development funds will also need to provide 
detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development project such as in-kind 
services or workforce development funds  

7. Does the application include a regional consortium approach? 



4 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

8. Does it contain eligible activities that structure adult basic education, occupational 
training and post second education for adult learners?  

The evaluation criteria is highlighted to indicate the Review Team’s determination of compliance 
with the Guidelines 
 

Meets Criteria Review Team not Unanimous/ 
Concerns Identified 

Does not meet Criteria 

   
 
The below chart shows the overall recommendations of the Review Team as compared to the 
overall anticipated spending targets in the 2018 Guidelines. 
 

REGION A 

MetroNorth Regional Employment Board (“REB”) 

REB - Background:  “The Metro North Regional Employment Board (REB) is a public-private 
partnership whose mission is to enable area residents to gain skills that will maximize their 
economic self-sufficiency and to provide employers with the workforce they need to effectively 
compete in the changing world economy. 

The REB serves the following 20 Massachusetts cities and towns:  Arlington, Belmont, Burlington, 
Cambridge, Chelsea, Everett, Malden, Medford, Melrose, North Reading, Reading, Revere, 
Somerville, Stoneham, Wakefield, Watertown, Wilmington, Winchester, Winthrop, and Woburn.” 

Summary:  The REB proposes the continuation of the regional consortium called the Metro North 
Casino Careers Consortium (“MNCCC”) started through the funding awarded by 2017 Community 
Fund Grant.   

2018 Application Program Elements 

Extension 
or NEW 

Description of 
Activity 

# of 
Students 

2018/2019 
Budget 

Proposed Outcomes * 

Extension NECAT Everett 
Culinary Training 
Program 

36 $95,000 The NECAT Everett program will move to the 
Parlin Middle School.  A regular, Monday- 
Friday training program is proposed. 
---------------- 
The 2017 Grant is expected to fund a total of 
40 trainees (January 2018 through August 
2018) for the NECAT Everett Culinary Training 
Program 

In addition the 2017 Grant helped fund 12 
students at the Somerville Community 
Corporation / Bunker Hill Community College 



5 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

2018 Application Program Elements 

Extension 
or NEW 

Description of 
Activity 

# of 
Students 

2018/2019 
Budget 

Proposed Outcomes * 

Culinary Training Program (no new funds for 
this requested) 

Extension Community 
Engagement and 
Outreach / Career 
Advising 

 $10,000 “Outreaching to local residents, informing 
them of the employment 
opportunities,…and recruiting 
participants for the program and services 
funded through this project” 

“In each partner city, there will be a 
location…where local residents can go to 
meet a casino career advisor.”  Services 
include:  information on employment, 
assessment of interests and needs, 
program referral, and training on how to 
use the Wynn employment Website. 

Regional career advisors will meet on a 
quarterly basis. 

“…the REB expects to expand this network in 
the 2018 project, … to include other 
organizations from communities not included 
in the 2017 project. These include The 
Neighborhood Developers in Revere, the City 
of Medford, the North Shore Career Centers 
in Lynn, and ABCD in Medford/ Malden/ 
Everett.” 

Since the start of the 2017 grant period in 
August 2017, there have been three official 
quarterly meetings including advisors from 
Everett, Chelsea, Malden, Cambridge, 
Somerville, Boston, and One Stop Career 
Centers in Boston and Metro North; Advisors 
funded from matching funds in 2017 

NEW English For 
Employment 

72 (4 cycles 
of 18 

students) 

$60,000 “…MBRCCC proposes to implement English 
for Employment (EFE) courses, an English for 
Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) program 
specifically contextualized to the hospitality 
industry and focused on employment 
outcomes….” 

NEW Job Readiness 
Training 

90 (5 cycles 
of 18 

$50,000 MBRCCC proposes “…job readiness 
preparation, such as a resume, job 



6 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

2018 Application Program Elements 

Extension 
or NEW 

Description of 
Activity 

# of 
Students 

2018/2019 
Budget 

Proposed Outcomes * 

students) interviewing skills, workplace communication 
skills, and other “soft skills” that make an 
employee successful in obtaining and 
retaining employment.” 

Extension Program 
Management 

 $85,000 Management of all program elements, 
coordination among all partners and 
cities, technical assistance to partners, 
tracking outcomes, and grant reporting 

*The MNREB application (on page 9) also includes a series of program impact measures (e.g. 
number of individuals reached through outreach, number of individuals trained, etc.) 

Licensee’s Comments:  “On behalf of Wynn Boston Harbor, I submit this letter of support in 
regards to the application for grant funding from the consortium led by the Metro North Regional 
Employment Board for the 2018 Community Mitigation Fund Workforce Development Pilot 
Program. This proposed project will be an important investment designed to create an integrated, 
comprehensive system in order to meet the workforce needs of the region's residents and 
employers impacted by the new Wynn Boston Harbor gaming facility and resort. 

As a partner in the project, Wynn Boston Harbor will: 

• Contribute knowledge and expertise regarding curriculum, student assessment, and program 
design to ensure graduates of the training programs supported through this consortium meet our 
hiring needs. 

• Participate in mock interviews, info sessions, career panels, and other career development 
activities for the participants of the training programs supported through this consortium. 

• Interview qualified candidates of the training programs supported through this consortium for 
employment opportunities at Wynn Boston Harbor. 

• Meet with and train the network of "casino career advisors" to ensure they are knowledgeable 
about the various job openings, career pathways, and hiring requirements for the permanent jobs 
once the facility opens in summer 2019. 

Wynn Boston Harbor will be an active and supportive member of this consortium. We look 
forward to working with all consortium partners to ensure the success of this project.” 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018. A demonstration that the impact is being 
caused by the proposed gaming facility /Does it develop a pilot program that will address 
any claimed impacts? 

YES 

The REB’s application noted that the casino in Everett “is creating, and will create, an impact on the 



7 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

region's labor market and workforce development system.  The facility will bring over 4,000 new 
jobs to the region”… “including, but not limited to, hospitality, culinary, building maintenance, IT, 
accounting, and cash handling. This influx of thousands of new jobs will put additional strain on a 
region that is already struggling to fill many open positions. For example, over 1,600 of the new 
jobs are expected to be in hospitality and culinary positions, in a region that is already experiencing 
a shortage of workers in these industries. This situation necessitates a regional, comprehensive 
approach to addressing the workforce impact created by this new gaming facility. The region will 
need to prepare and train local residents for jobs directly at the gaming facility as well as address 
the needs of existing employers who will be impacted by the project.” Additionally the application 
reflects the already-existing anticipation of hospitality jobs to fill due to the property coming to 
Assembly Row, which includes a Marriott Hotel and several new restaurants. † 
 
As stated in the application, the pilot program proposed addresses the 4,000+ jobs to be available 
at Encore, but also addresses “backfill” needs that may come up as a result of the casino’s 
opening.‡ 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied /A program in Region A or Region B that 
structures intentional connections among adult basic education, occupational training, 
and post-secondary education programs 

YES 

The application proposes English for Employment and Job Readiness Training programs§, alongside 
NECAT’s culinary program, as well as a network of Casino Career Advisors to aide in the referral of 
services and program throughout the region, including ESOL.** The program intends to impact at 
least 198 participants through these components.†† 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact‡‡/Does it 
accomplish the goal of assisting low-skilled adults to obtain education and career training 
to enable them to join the regional labor market? 

YES 

The REB proposes a continuation of the regional consortium called the Metro North Casino Careers 
Consortium (“MNCCC”).  The purpose of the MNCCC is to prepare and train local residents for jobs 
related to a casino in Everett, as noted by REB, “engage local residents and move them through this 
sequence of services in an integrated manner, culminating with a job at Wynn or another impacted 
employer.” 

The main components of the project: Community Engagement and Outreach; Career Advising; 
ESOL/ABE/Job Training and Job Readiness; and Job Placement, are designed to increase capacity 
and fill gaps in the regional workforce development system.  These project components are 
partnerships that will address the current and future needs of employers in the region, needs that 

                                                      
† Metro North Regional Employment Board Application: Impact Description; pp.2 (1) 
‡ Metro North Regional Employment Board Application: Connection to Gaming Facility; pp.5 (3) 
§ Metro North Regional Employment Board Application: Scope of Project; pp.8-9 (3) (4) 
** Metro North Regional Employment Board Application: Scope of Project; pp.8 (c) 
†† Metro North Regional Employment Board Application: Measurement of Impact; pp.9 (5) 
‡‡ See Workforce Development Pilot Program goals on Page 15 of the 2018 CMF Guidelines, such as e.g. help low 
skilled adults “[t]o align and accelerate ABE, GED, and developmental programs and provide nontraditional students 
the supports they need to complete postsecondary credentials of value in the regional labor market. To mitigate a 
strain in existing resources and a potential impact to the regional labor market” 



8 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

are not being sufficiently addressed by the existing system.  As a regional consortium, the project 
will work closely with existing programs in the region to maximize impact.   

(The REB stated in follow-up correspondence that the Somerville/Bunker Hill Culinary Arts program 
originally created under the 2017 grant will be discontinued due to issues with Pell funding.) 

The committee agreed that the programs and services offered through the project were tied to 
the needs of the local casino and others in the regional hospitality industry. However, regarding 
the funding for ESOL classes, the committee would like to ensure that awards are given to 
established, strong-performing ABE programs in a timely manner; which can be discussed during 
contract negotiations.  

4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure /Does the 
application address the anticipated goals of the program (see page 15 of the Guidelines) 

YES 

The committee agreed that the REB’s application meets the purposes of the 2018 Community 
Mitigation Fund Guidelines.  The main components of the project are designed to increase capacity 
and fill gaps in the regional workforce development system.  

5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
/Industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to work in the most in-demand 
occupations related to the expanded gaming industry or a focus on occupations that could 
be in high demand from the casino, potentially negatively impacting the regional business 
community? 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities /Governmental entity applying for workforce development funds 
will also need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development 
project such as in-kind services or workforce development funds 

YES 

The application indicates that, “In addition, partner municipalities have committed $229,743 in 
cash match and another $107,215 of in-kind resources have been committed from project 
partners.”§§ The budget provided demonstrates the individual dollar amounts for cash and in-kind 
matches from each source/partner. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award /Does the application 
include a regional consortium approach? 

YES 

The application states that the grant program, “…will address the impacts on a regional level, 
partnering with host and surrounding communities and organizations with those communities to 
ensure that local residents are aware of, and prepared for all of the employment opportunities that 
will be available.” The application also indicates that “[t]he cities that are part of the Consortium 
include Everett, Chelsea, Malden, Somerville, and Cambridge.” In a response to additional 
questions from the committee regarding the Casino Career Advisors, the REB noted that 
participants include representatives from Boston, as well as Everett, Chelsea, Malden, Cambridge, 

                                                      
§§Metro North Regional Employment Board Application: Proposed Mitigation; pp.2 (2)(a) 
 



9 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

and Somerville.  
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

N/A 

The Gaming Economic Fund is dependent on the commencement of operation of a destination 
resort casino. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

N/A 

 
10. The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation request 
/Does it contain eligible activities that structure adult basic education, occupational 
training and post second education for adult learners? 

YES 

Detailed scope and budget were included in original application. Timetable was provided in follow-
up communication. 

Recommendation: Full Funding 
As the REB application meets the purposes and requirements set out in the 2018 Community 
Mitigation Fund Guidelines, the review team recommends that the Commission approve 
$300,000 for the Metro North Casino Careers Consortium. The MGC staff will work with the REB 
to ensure concerns regarding the ESOL providers are addressed. Additionally, as a condition of 
funding, the committee would request that the MNREB meet with the other regional 
employment board grant applicant to discuss concrete areas for collaboration. 

 

Boston Private Industry Council (“PIC”) 

PIC - Background: “[t]he Boston Private Industry Council (PIC) is a nonprofit organization that 
strengthens Boston’s communities and its workforce by connecting youth and adults with 
education and employment opportunities that align with the needs of area employers. Our work is 
grounded in the belief that meaningful employment changes lives, lifts people out of poverty, and 
strengthens the local economy. 

The Boston Private Industry Council is both the city’s Workforce Development Board and its 
school-to-career intermediary organization. The PIC brings together employers, educators, and 
workforce organizations, often by industry sector, to help guide the agenda for education and 
workforce preparation.” 

Summary:  PIC proposes a total of 90 students in all its programs.   

2018 PIC Application Program Elements 

Extension 
or New 

Description of 
Activity 

# of Students 2018/2019 
Budget 

Proposed Outcomes 

NEW English for 12 slots for one $12,960 For unemployed and low-wage workers 



10 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

2018 PIC Application Program Elements 

Extension 
or New 

Description of 
Activity 

# of Students 2018/2019 
Budget 

Proposed Outcomes 

Hospitality Classes year of English; 
6 hours/week 

to improve their English for backfill or 
jobs at the casino. 
“…customized curriculum with several 
ESL providers to increase the supply of 
potential hospitality workers in the 
pipeline.” BEST will share their 
curriculum… provide three train-the-trainer 
sessions for teachers, including how to use 
the curriculum, lesson planning around the 
curriculum, hospitality-specific activities, 
how to interview using behavioral 
questions, and hospitality specific 
information.” 

NEW Casino Career 
Navigator 

Staff position $75,000 “…will manage the day-to-day activity of 
the project. Their role will be to liaise 
with Encore and other employers.” 

NEW Upskilling for 
current 
housekeepers  

25-30 slots for 
current 
housekeepers 

$21,600 Training current housekeeper to prepare 
them for housekeeping jobs at Wynn 
resorts 

NEW Community 
Supports 

3 Boston 
programs, 
Chelsea, 
Everett, 
Somerville 

Funding for 6 
organizations at 
$8,500 

$51,000 
 

“This will provide some local support to 
ensure that residents who enter the 
pipeline are getting the support and 
encouragement they need to continue.” 
Casino pipeline – connecting communities 
with Workforce Development (WFD) 
through community partners 

NEW Gaming pilot – 
increasing diversity 
at the gaming 
tables through job 
readiness supports 
and subsidized 
training 

35 scholarships $38,500 Provide 200 hours of training in casino 
games – blackjack, poker, roulette, etc. 16 
weeks of part-time instruction or 
consolidated weekend training. 

Existing 
Program 

Future Chefs - paid 
hands-on training 
in after school jobs 
(10 hours a week)  

12 high school 
students for 6 

months 

45 students 
would 

participate in 6 

$42,000 Grant would fund hands on training in after 
school jobs for 12 high school students. 
 



11 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

2018 PIC Application Program Elements 

Extension 
or New 

Description of 
Activity 

# of Students 2018/2019 
Budget 

Proposed Outcomes 

week 
exploratory 

classes 

 

Licensee’s Comments:  “On behalf of Wynn Boston Harbor, I submit this letter in support of the 
application for community mitigation grant funding for the Greater Boston Casino Pipeline 
Initiative (GBCPI). 

The GBCPI will fund a workforce development initiative to create a pipeline to quality careers in 
gaming and hospitality, expand industry focused English as Second Language (ESL) classes, upskill 
hospitality workers, and provide tuition and support for gaming school applicants. This program 
will move residents from our host and surrounding communities into better jobs with plentiful 
opportunities for advancement and create a pipeline to meet the needs of Wynn Boston Harbor 
and the local businesses impacted by our new casino resort.  

We are excited to work with the Boston Private Industry Council on this project and their 
community partners like BEST Hospitality Training. I have met with the leadership team at BEST to 
talk about ways to collaborate in the future. Our Executive Vice President Operations and I toured 
the facility and spoke with one of the current English for Hospitality students. We recognize BEST 
as a high-quality training provider, knowledgeable in the industry and with a track record of 
success. We'd be happy to work with BEST and all partners of the GBCPI project….” 

 
1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 

occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018. A demonstration that the impact is being 
caused by the proposed gaming facility /Does it develop a pilot program that will address 
any claimed impacts? 

YES 

The application states that the Greater Boston Casino Pipeline Initiative (GBCPI) “seeks to address 
the needs for qualified candidates for the approximately 4,500 available positions at Wynn Boston 
Harbor.” The proposal states “This investment comes at a time when the unemployment rate in 
the Greater Boston area is down to 3.1%, below the statewide average of 3.8%... The tight labor 
market for jobs in accommodations and food services will experience additional pressure with the 
opening of the Wynn Casino…Real-time job postings also indicate that demand is currently high for 
workers in the hospitality and food service occupations.” 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied /A program in Region A or Region B that 
structures intentional connections among adult basic education, occupational training, 
and post-secondary education programs 

YES 

 GBCPI states in their proposal that they will “Create a pipeline for front-of-house and back-of-
house positions at Wynn Boston Harbor and for the resulting backfill created in Boston due to the 
casino hiring…Fund a pool of students through a gaming school...training for under-employed 
hospitality and other retail/service workers to upskill them to better jobs… Provide a 



12 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

contextualized, customer service/hospitality ESL curriculum to several ESL providers, along with 
training for ESL teachers, in order to increase the number of people in the pipeline.” 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact /Does it 
accomplish the goal of assisting low-skilled adults to obtain education and career training 
to enable them to join the regional labor market?  

 

This program states that GBCPI “will help job seekers move from unemployment to Employment…” 
In response to a request for additional information, GBCPI replied that “the process outlined in the 
proposal is to provide broad outreach and orientation to casino jobs in Boston, Everett, Chelsea, 
Somerville and neighboring communities. Interested individuals will self-select to attend additional 
orientations that focus on job specific exploration (gaming, hospitality, etc.)… The community 
partner agencies and the mentors will provide community supports to job seekers. …This will 
create a framework to support access to better jobs.  The mentors/community supports are 
programs, organizations, and individuals who will provide peer support. They will provide outreach 
to communities who have not traditionally connected with Career Center network (immigrant and 
limited English speakers) and enroll residents in group sessions.  Regarding the rational for gaming 
school scholarships, the applicant states, “the cost of these newly designed gaming classes may 
create further barriers and impact those with the greatest needs… Particularly since Wynn Boston 
Harbor is the only employer in the region, taking these classes without a guarantee of being hired 
creates a financial risk for participants.” The committee agreed that the application contained 
strong components, including the occupational training in gaming and hospitality as well as the 
English for Hospitality class. They also recognize that using volunteers for community mentoring, 
support and outreach for the purposes of workforce development is innovative, and has 
potential for engaging those disconnected from the traditional workforce system.  Although the 
review team agreed the community support strategy was innovative they asked in supplemental 
questions, “What is the connection to measurable goals?” The applicant replied, “This will 
provide some local support to ensure that residents who enter the pipeline are getting the 
support and encouragement they need to continue.  This will support achieving the identified 
goals.” The review committee would require clear, specific goals and reporting for the 
community supports strategy. 

Additionally, the committee is concerned that this proposal may have challenges that may limit 
the potential for impact. The committee expressed concern that this broad strategy focused on 
funding many strands of work rather than going deep on several may limit the potential for 
impact. For example, the proposal requests $42,000 to fund 6 month of part-time jobs for 12 
high school students through Future Chefs culinary program and $12,960 for 12 slots annually in 
English for Hospitality classes. The scale of these interventions may not address the concerns 
identified in their application. For this reason, the committee is recommending restructured 
funding allocations. 

4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure /Does the 
application address the anticipated goals of the program (see page 15 of the Guidelines)  

 

A supplemental response indicated that the proposal has incorporated several new approaches 
including the involvement of community partners to connect job seekers to the workforce 



13 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

development system and to jobs at EBH, a gaming training pilot with job readiness supports and 
scholarships, and the sharing of a customized customer service/hospitality English language 
curriculum while leveraging an existing program like BEST hospitality training.  GBCPI’s proposal 
highlights plans to build a network “to connect the existing workforce system with the community 
supports available for residents.” Utilizing “community-based programs and organizations as part 
of the planning, recruitment and training aspects of the overall initiative.” As stated above, the 
committee has concerns about the broad nature of the proposal and the many partners making 
up the casino pipeline network without a clear reporting structure or lines of responsibility. To 
address this, the committee would recommend discussing clear and effective management 
controls, goals and reporting in an agreed upon work plan with the applicant prior to any award 
of funds. 
 
The committee agreed that the Casino Navigator position could be accomplished utilizing 
existing resources, and could in turn redirect funding toward gaming scholarships and/or 
hospitality training, which would expand the reach of the program and maximize its intent.  
 The committee agreed that the Casino Navigator position to “manage the day-to-day activity of 
the project…to liaise with Encore and other employers…host information sessions to inform 
residents” was extraneous, and could be accomplished utilizing existing match staff and other 
resources given EBH’s commitment to establish neighborhood satellite career centers and to 
hold outreach sessions throughout their host and surrounding communities. Additionally, the 
proposal identifies staff in-kind matches including the Career Centers’ commitment to identify a 
staff member to be the casino advisor, trained on industry needs.  
 
Additionally, the committee determined that funding requested for upskilling housekeepers 
would be better utilized in a pre-apprenticeship capacity. Although the Committee recognizes 
the value in Best Hospitality Training program, they questioned whether the request for grant 
funds to upskill current housekeepers (rather than expand BEST’s pre-apprentice program) and 
train them in “Wynn Specific Branding” was the most effective use of grant dollars, given EBH’s 
indications that experience in most of these roles is not necessary. The committee agreed that 
the casino itself should be performing training in the competencies upon hire. 
 
The committee would also like to further explore the estimated costs for data management in 
the proposal.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 
demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
/Industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to work in the most in-demand 
occupations related to the expanded gaming industry or a focus on occupations that could 
be in high demand from the casino, potentially negatively impacting the regional business 
community? 

YES 

The GBCPI indicates in its proposal that it “will address the need for qualified candidates for … 
Wynn Boston Harbor, a luxury resort and casino that is currently under construction in Everett. The 
GBCPI will create a pipeline of interested job seekers to resolve the backfill needs of local hotels 
and restaurants as talent migrates to Wynn. The GBCPI’s proposal also indicates that it “will 



14 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

enhance the capacity of the existing workforce system (career centers and training providers) to 
reach residents interested in casino and hospitality jobs, assist with intake and assessment, and 
connect with community resources to support the transition to employment.” 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities /Governmental entity applying for workforce development funds will 
also need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development project 
such as in-kind services or workforce development funds 

YES 

In-kind matches totaling $144.250 include $61,450 in staff time match: The City of Boston Mayor’s 
Office of Workforce Development committed $30,000 in training funds and $12,000 in services 
provided through its Roxbury Center for Financial Empowerment. Boston PIC, Casino Action 
Network, BEST all offered staff time valued at $61,450. Best has committed six slots ($5,000 each) 
in their house keeping pre-apprentice job seeker class with a value estimated at $30,000 total and 
to share their English for Hospitality Curriculum with 2-3 providers at a value of $10,800. There 
were no cash matches provided. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award /Does the application 
include a regional consortium approach? 

YES 

The proposal states, “GBCPI will serve residents in Boston and the neighboring towns of Chelsea, 
Everett, and Somerville.” In response to supplemental information the applicant stated, “We will 
work with six CBO’s (three in Boston, one in Everett, one in Somerville and one in Chelsea) to 
convene local community and service CBO partners in their areas to provide services for their 
community/neighborhood/constituents.” They also mentioned in their supplemental response, 
that “resident/membership-based community organizations that serve as the community support 
have started reaching out to leaders, people acting as mentors, local service organizations, 
churches, and similar groups in their area…  If funded, each local area will convene the core 
committee then plan an ongoing schedule of public information sessions. We will target Everett, 
Chelsea, Somerville, and the Boston neighborhoods of Dorchester, Mattapan, Roxbury, and 
Charlestown and East Boston.” 
 
Some members of the committee found that there was little evidence in the application or in the 
grant interview of a consortium approach. However, the applicant provided further details in the 
supplemental response to questions regarding the involvement of the towns of Chelsea, Everett 
and Somerville.  The proposal does focus heavily on neighborhoods in Boston. 
 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 
not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 

N/A 

 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 
by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

N/A 

 



15 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

10. The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation request 
/Does it contain eligible activities that structure adult basic education, occupational 
training and post second education for adult learners? 

 

The applicant provided a budget in the grant application and further details in a supplemental 
response to questions from the committee. The committee has further questions regarding some 
budget estimates. These details can usually be worked out in contract negotiations. 

Recommendation: The Committee recognizes the potential and innovation within this 
application, but continues to have concerns about the feasibility and potential for achieving the 
stated impact. Several committee members viewed the proposal as ambitious, choosing to focus 
on many areas too broadly.  

The review team found some issues with the funding requests but given the existing workforce 
needs in the region, the recommendations below restructure funding to allocate requested 
dollars for identified priority areas. This will involve further communication with the applicant 
regarding the feasibility of the restructured funding, pending Commissioners’ approval. 

Funding recommendations are as follows: 

$300,000 

As requested: 
• $12,960 for English for Hospitality Classes (as requested) 
• $51,000 for Community Supports for six community based organizations at $8,500 each for 

services provided to support and outreach to jobseekers 
With revisions: 

• $55,000 for funding 50 Gaming Scholarships at $1,100/seat (increase of $16,500) 
• $125,000 for 25 slots in Best Pre-apprentice program (redirected from $21,600 for 

upskilling current housekeepers) 
Subtotal of $243,960  

+ $29,275 overhead for Private Industry Council @ 12% 
Total Funding $273,235  

Funding in Question: 
• $20,000 for Data Management *** 
• $4,297 for Other (marketing)  

 
Recommended funding denials:  

• $75,000 for Casino Navigator position  
• $42,000 for Future Chefs 
• $21,600 for Upskilling of Current Housekeepers  

                                                      
*** The review team will discuss the necessity of these funds and whether they dollars can be reprogrammed into 
other approved uses 



16 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

• $2,500 Advisory Committee 
 

The Committee recommends not funding the Casino Navigator position ($75,000) as it was 
agreed that the work could potentially be accomplished utilizing existing staff and other 
resources given EBH’s commitment to establish neighborhood satellite career centers and to 
hold outreach sessions throughout their host and surrounding communities. The committee 
further recommends shifting funding to Best Hospitality Training’s Pre-Apprentice Program 
rather than upskilling individuals who currently hold positions as housekeepers. The Committee 
believes that this will maximize impact, allowing more individuals without existing experience 
an opportunity to begin rewarding hospitality careers.  Additionally, as a condition of funding, 
the committee would request that the PIC meet with the other regional employment board 
grant applicant to discuss concrete areas for collaboration in addition to joining Metro North 
Regional Employment Board/Encore Boston Harbor’s Casino Career Advisors group. The 
committee would recommend funding $300,000 with the suggested revisions following 
conversations and agreement with the applicant. 
 

Region B 

Summary:  In 2017 HCC worked in collaboration with Springfield Technical Community College 
(“STCC”) and Springfield Public Schools (“SPS”) in developing and implementing an innovative High 
School Equivalency (HSE) and workforce readiness program, Hampden Prep.  The program this 
year provides a collaboration of HCC/STCC/SPS.  

Scholarship for MCCTI students:   (approved 4/12/18) $60,000 

HCC/ STCC Line Cook Training:  $57,307 

Year 2 of Springfield Public Schools Ahead of 
the Game:   

$100,000 

Year 2 of STCC/HCC Hampden Prep:   $82,693 

 

2018 Application Program Elements 
Extension 
or NEW 

Description of 
Activity 

# of Students 2018/2019 
Budget 

Outcomes 

NEW Gaming School 
Scholarship Fund 

75 $60,000 • Trained in two games with 
successful completion 

• Already approved 
NEW HCC / STCC  (TWO) 

Line Cook Training 

75 (5 cohorts 
of 15) 

$57,306 • Certificate of Completion 
• ServSafe Certification 
• TIPS Certification 
• Option National Career Readiness 

Certificate 
Extension Year 2 of SPS Ahead 

of the Game 
100 Adult $100,000 Improvement in: 

• Literacy and math skills GED/HIISET 



17 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

2018 Application Program Elements 
Extension 
or NEW 

Description of 
Activity 

# of Students 2018/2019 
Budget 

Outcomes 

Program:  Program 
has newly designed 
curriculum for 
2018/2019; runs 
February 1, 2019 
through August 30, 
2019 (7 month 
program) 

Students completion  
• Placement in postsecondary 

certification courses and/or 
permanent placement with MGM 
Springfield 

------- 
With the 2017 Grant, SPS expects to 
exceed 100 participants by the end of 
January 2019 (13 month program 
plus start-up activities). 

Extension  Year 2 of STCC /HCC 
Hampden Prep 
Program 

60* $82,693 “…Provides local education (high 
school credential) and career 
readiness exploration and 
certificate…”  

“…provide transition services to 
individuals looking to move from 
Ahead of the Game to skills training 
of TWO and MCCTI to employment.” 

------------ 

The 2017 Grant will fund 90 students 
(classes began 2/20/18 plus start up 
activities).  

HCC - Background:  “....[w]e offer a wide range of options, from credit degree and certificate 
programs to professional certifications and resume-building courses for current and new 
employees….”  HCC offers in-person classroom experience as well as online classes and certificate 
programs.  It also offers training through the Massachusetts Casino Career Training Institute.  

Licensee’s Comment:  “Holyoke Community College is applying for $300,000 in mitigation funds to 
help with workforce development efforts in the region.  As HCC has indicated, the greater 
Springfield area is in need of more resources to help elevate the skillsets of the unemployed and 
underemployed.  One specific area in which we are aware of a skills gap is in the hospitality 
industry. We think that the collaboration between HCC, STCC, Springfield Public Schools, and 
Regional workforce partners is a huge win for preparing not only MGM's future workforce but the 
workforce of other hospitality and Springfield area businesses.  These efforts can lead to a 
tremendous pool of applicants that may entice potential employers to consider Springfield as their 
future home. As a result, MGM supports this effort.” 



18 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018. A demonstration that the impact is being 
caused by the proposed gaming facility /Does it develop a pilot program that will address 
any claimed impacts? 

YES 

The HCC Application noted that the Hampden County REB identifies already-existing gaps in the 
local hospitality industry for prep/server positions, to be further exacerbated by MGM’s need of 
150-200 line cooks for opening. Additionally, MGM Springfield will need 450 dealers, a position 
that does not yet exist in MA; therefore no existing training programs are available. A large pool of 
MGM’s positions require a minimum of a high school diploma or equivalent, but in both Springfield 
and Holyoke, over 20% of residents do not meet that requirement. The Work-Ready program 
proposed will accelerate achievement of the equivalent, and in partnership with HCC and STCC, 
offers occupation-specific programs for cooks, dealers and hospitality workers. ††† 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied /A program in Region A or Region B that 

structures intentional connections among adult basic education, occupational training, 
and post-secondary education programs 

YES 

The Work Ready collaborative curriculum detailed in the HCC application includes Ahead of Game 
(the City of Springfield’s Adult Basic Education program,) a continuing education program with a 
workforce development model including general skill-building, as well as casino-focused industry 
preparation. Upon completion, students can advance to Hampden Prep, a partnership with 
STCC.‡‡‡ Successful students from this program will be connected with appropriate staff to explore 
college programs at HCC and STCC.§§§ 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact /Does it 

accomplish the goal of assisting low-skilled adults to obtain education and career training 
to enable them to join the regional labor market?  

YES 

The proposal intends to continue the Springfield Public Schools Ahead of the Game program, and 
STCC’s Hampden Prep, both Adult Basic Education initiatives funded in last years CMF. The HCC 
proposal includes a request of $60,000 which funds 75 scholarships for individuals to attend MCCTI 
cost-free**** (already approved by the Commission on March 15, 2018). The additional funds 
provide nearly 300 individuals with access to culinary skills training needed to address the local 
workforce gaps.†††† Bus passes are also included in the funding request, to aid in improved access 
to these programs.‡‡‡‡ 

4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure /Does the 
application address the anticipated goals of the program (see page 15 of the Guidelines)  

YES 

Program partners are accredited and have extensive experience in educational offerings. The 
application indicates that STCC’s HiSET to post-secondary transition statistics are “Over the past 

                                                      
††† Holyoke Community College Application: Impact Description; pp.1-3 
‡‡‡ Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 12-14 
§§§ Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 18 
**** Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 3 (2)(b) 
†††† Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 5 (d) 
‡‡‡‡ Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 12 (3) 



19 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

two years, 127 STCC/SALC students have transitioned to STCC credit and non-credit programs and 
85 have entered non-subsidized employment.”§§§§ Application achieves all stated bulleted goals of 
program on pg 15 of Guidelines. The committee believes the applicant’s focus on gaming and line 
cook training is reasonable and appropriate. 
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party 
/Industry-recognized and academic credentials needed to work in the most in-demand 
occupations related to the expanded gaming industry or a focus on occupations that could 
be in high demand from the casino, potentially negatively impacting the regional business 
community? 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 

pilot program activities/Governmental entity applying for workforce development funds 
will also need to provide detail on what it will contribute to the workforce development 
project such as in-kind services or workforce development funds 

 

In a supplemental response the applicant wrote that the partners have provided over $190,000 in 
institutional match, including: 
Springfield Public Schools – Ahead of the Game –estimated at $80,000 per year in staff time, 
advertising, technology, and student mentoring. 
Springfield Technical Community College – Hampden Prep estimated at $45,805. 
Includes $25,000 cash match for gaming scholarships, and in kind match for program coordination, 
administrative and IT support, classrooms, recruitment activities, and community outreach. 
Holyoke Community College (HCC) – MCCTI and Line Cook Training, estimated at $65,250. 
Includes in kind match for grant management, program coordination, administrative and IT 
support, classrooms, kitchen labs, curriculum development, recruitment activities, and community 
outreach.  Also $25,000 cash match each for the Line Cook training pilot and gaming scholarships. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award /Does the application 

include a regional consortium approach? 
YES 

HCC’s application lists the Work Ready program partners, which include organizations with impact 
throughout Hampden County including Springfield, Holyoke, Ludlow, and Chicopee.***** 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 

not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
N/A 

 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 

by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

N/A 

 

                                                      
§§§§ Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 18 (3) 
***** Holyoke Community College Application: Scope of Project; pp. 18-19 



20 
 
S:\ZIEMBA\Mitigation Grants\2018 Mitigation Fund\Analysis\2018 Workforce Dev Analysis Final 060518.docx 

 
 

10. The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget, and timetable for each mitigation request 
/Does it contain eligible activities that structure adult basic education, occupational 
training and post second education for adult learners? 

YES 

Detailed scope, budget and time table were included in the original application.  

 
Recommendation: Full Funding 
As the HCC application meets the purposes and requirements set out in the Community 
Mitigation Fund guidelines, the review team recommends that the Commission approve 
$300,000. for the project. However, the committee recommends not funding the $10,000 
requested for the Springfield Works Assessment Tool development as it is not directly tied to the 
casino project and instead, the committee suggests supporting additional scholarships. 

























































































2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
1 | P a g e  
 

NON-TRANSPORTATION PLANNING GRANTS (Maximum $50,000) 

Community Description Requested Amount Review Team Proposal 

Everett Planning and Design of a Wayfinding System  
 

$50,000 -0- 

Malden The funds would be used to engage a planning consultant to 
assist in the completion of a Broadway Corridor Framework 
Plan to study existing physical and economic conditions, 
project gaming facility related impacts on the Corridor, 
provide recommendations relating to land use, economic 
development, and the public realm, and provide an action plan 
to implement these recommendations.  

$50,000 $50,000 

Revere The City of Revere would utilize $42,000 of a $50,000 grant to 
continue the services of an economic development consultant 
to perform duties over an additional period of 6 months. The 
balance of the grant, $8,000, would be used to undertake 
marketing and promotional efforts about these development 
opportunities and the potential linkage with the Wynn Casino. 

$50,000 $50,000 

Saugus Development of a bike path connecting the Northern Strand 
Community Trail to the future location of the Saugus 
RiverWalk.  

$50,000 -0- 

West 
Springfield 

The funds would be used to hire an architectural and 
engineering consultant to conduct a Police Facility Needs 
Assessment and Location Study. 

$40,000 $40,000 

Total $240,000 $140,000 

 

 

 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
2 | P a g e  
 

EVERETT 
Licensee Comment:  “Boston Harbor supports the City of Everett's effort to increase tourism 
dollars in the community by creating a better experience through improved signage and 
wayfinding measures.  We will attract people from around the region, country and world.  
Better signage and easier navigation is important to increase spin off economic activity. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area.  We would 
like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the resources 
available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for decades to 
come.” 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018.  The planning project must be clearly 
related to addressing issues or impacts directly related to the gaming facility.  Applications 
involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant.     

YES 

In its application, Everett stated that “The Wynn Resort Casino will be a major tourist generator for the region.  
Despite being within Everett, there is not a comprehensive wayfinding system to guide visitors to explore and 
enjoy other parts of the community. The lack of a system will be a lost opportunity to retain visitor dollars within 
the city. This impact was not significantly highlighted nor thoroughly planned previously”.    

In response to a question from the Review Team why wayfinding should not be considered transportation 
planning, Everett stated that “insert sentence from the response.”  Everett’s initial application stressed the 
transportation benefits or a wayfinding system including assisting users to travel between destinations and the 
encouragement of walking and bicycling.  However, it also stated economic development and marketing goals 
that can be achieved through wayfinding. 

The review team believes that a wayfinding system could provide important economic development and 
marketing tools to the City but was not convinced that the wayfinding system would not involve “transportation 
planning or design.”  The Review Team notes that the City of Everett has applied for the maximum amount under 
the Transportation Planning Grant category in this year’s funding round.    
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 

The City expressed that the lack of a wayfinding system may be a lost opportunity to retain visitor dollars within 
the City.”    

The Review Team agrees that the maximization of tourist opportunities within the City is an important goal and 
that a wayfinding system may help with that goal.  The system would also provide important transportation 
benefits. 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

The application expressed the economic and transportation benefits of a wayfinding system.  The application did 
not provide any data or statistics to demonstrate the effectiveness of a wayfinding system to achieve these 
benefits.  However, the Review Team found no reason to doubt that a wayfinding system may have a positive 
impact. 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure NO 

The City provided an estimated budget for the development of a wayfinding system of approximately $480,000.  
The $50,000 requested would be sufficient, according to the budget, to pay for the planning costs ($30,000) and 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
3 | P a g e  
 

some design costs, specifically “the cost of designing the full program including prototype development, 
approvals, documentation and bidding.”   

The City referenced a number of potential resources to pay for the full costs of the wayfinding system and the 
annual maintenance costs (approximately 10% of the total project cost), including City capital funds, corporate 
grants, and potentially DLTA funds from the regional planning agency. 

The Review Team agreed that the $50,000 could significantly help Everett develop a wayfinding system but was 
not convinced that other funding would be available in the near term to develop such a system, once planned.  
However, the Review Team notes that a purpose of the Commission’s planning grants has been to enable 
communities to conduct the initial planning that would make it easier for them to see the necessary funding for 
projects.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private party. 
N/A 

6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development pilot 
program activities 

 

The application stated that “The Cities of Everett will partially match the assistance provided by the gaming 
commission by providing staff time, meeting space and other coordination and administrative time that will be 
required for a project of this magnitude. As previously stated the City will seek DLTA funds from the regional 
planning authority to assist with the creation of the system.” 
The City did not provide an estimate quantifying how much staff time or administrative time would be provided 
as an in-kind match.  Therefore, the Review Team was not able to determine how significant the in-kind match 
would likely be. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award NO 

The application did not specify any regional benefits but did mention that the City would work with the regional 
planning agency.  
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are not 

available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
NO 

In response to a question from the Review Team, Everett stated that “The City has not previously contemplated 
using HCA funds for wayfinding, and to date, the preopening HCA funding has been used for property tax relief 
as an interim measure to address housing affordability.”  In its application, Everett notes that the “[i]mpact of 
tourism was not fully anticipated” in developing the Host Community Agreement. 

The Review Team has no reason to doubt that impact to Everett tourism outside of the casino area was not 
fully anticipated.  Everett has prioritized its prior to casino opening funding for capital items.  Although future 
implementation of wayfinding (signage, etc.) would involve capital expenditures, planning for wayfinding 
would not seem to be within this priority. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed by 

the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any agreements 
between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

No wayfinding system is required under Wynn’s Section 61 Findings. 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. YES 

The application included a detailed scope and budget but did not include a timetable.  The Review team has no 
reason to doubt that the first phase planning activities could be accomplished within the year.  

Recommendation:  The Review Team remains unconvinced that the project would not 
involve transportation planning or design (which are not eligible purposes for the 2018 Non-
Transportation Planning Grant).  The Review Team notes that the City of Everett has applied for 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
4 | P a g e  
 
the maximum amount under the Transportation Planning Grant category in this year’s funding 
round.  However, the Review Team does believe that the predominant purpose of the grant 
request would be to help promote further tourism within the City.  Even with these competing 
beliefs, the Review Team does not recommend that the Commission authorize this grant 
because it involves transportation planning and because Everett separately applied for a 
maximum amount transportation planning grant.    

MALDEN 

Licensee Comment:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the City of Malden's effort to improve the 
Route 99 corridor from Route 1 to Everett. Similar efforts are underway in Saugus and Revere 
and we would encourage greater cooperation to ensure maximum success and positive impacts 
throughout the area. Additionally, Mayor DeMaria has continued to talk about the northern 
Route 99 corridor as an important regional connection and working together to extend the 
dedicated bus lanes to improve transportation options and encourage greater use of public 
transit. 

The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We would 
like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the resources 
available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for decades to 
come.” 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that 
have occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 / The planning project 
must be clearly related to addressing issues or impacts directly related to the 
gaming facility.  Applications involving transportation planning or design are not 
eligible for the 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant.     

YES 

As noted in Malden’s application, Malden is seeking funding “to engage a planning consultant to assist 
in the completion of a Broadway Corridor Framework Plan to study existing physical and economic 
conditions, project gaming facility related impacts on the Corridor, provide recommendations relating 
to land use, economic development, and the public realm, and provide an action plan to implement 
these recommendations.”   It further stated that “[t]he opening of the Wynn Boston Harbor Resort in 
2019 will bring positive and negative impacts to Malden’s economic base. This includes generating 
new business, bringing new customers to existing businesses, and conversely drawing customers away 
from existing Malden businesses….. Broadway/Route 99 will serve as a critical corridor between Route 
1 and the Wynn Boston Harbor Resort in Everett. The gaming facility will be located directly on 
Broadway just over 2 miles away.” 
 
The Review Team believes that Malden’s proactive approach to develop a Broadway Corridor 
Framework Plan will help the City to take advantage of opportunities that may result from the 
Encore Boston Harbor facility and to help minimize any economic disruptions in this corridor.  The 
Review Team notes that Malden’s approach fits squarely within the Commission’s plans for these 
non-transportation planning funds, and earlier with Community Mitigation Fund planning funds 
made available to communities.  Such reserve planning funds were authorized to be “used for 
planning, either to determine how to achieve further benefits from a facility or to avoid or minimize 
any adverse impacts.     



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
5 | P a g e  
 
 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 

Malden’s application stated that “[t]he Broadway Corridor in Malden will likely see increased usage, 
regional visibility, and a new development focus as a result of gaming facility operations. Therefore, 
planning is needed to determine appropriate land use, regulatory, and economic tools to mitigate 
negative impacts from the gaming facility and take advantage of new economic opportunities. This 
includes protecting existing desirable uses, ensuring new development will benefit Malden’s 
community character, and providing a path to harness positive resort-driven economic impacts and 
prevent Corridor deterioration.”  It further stated that “the Broadway Corridor is home to several 
critical commercial, industrial, and institutional uses. It’s imperative that the City explore methods to 
safeguard these uses from gaming facility spillover effects. 

The Review Team believes that Malden has demonstrated the significance of the potential impact 
to businesses in this corridor and the potential opportunities that may arise from well thought out 
planning.   
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

Malden plans to use the funds “to study existing physical and economic conditions, project gaming 
facility related impacts on the Corridor, provide recommendations relating to land use, economic 
development, and the public realm, and provide an action plan to implement these 
recommendations. This document will address specific impacts by providing the City of Malden clear 
and action-oriented plan to protect important uses, prepare for and regulate new development along 
the Corridor, and utilize gaming facility-driven economic opportunities to grow Malden’s business 
community and prevent Corridor deterioration.” 
 
The Review Team believes that Malden’s planning effort may provide significant benefits for the 
community. 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure YES 

The City of Malden stated that it “will ensure that all services are procured in a competitive bid 
process with contracts.”   The City’s estimate of $50,000 for this work “is based on the City’s 
comparable plan for the Commercial Street Corridor, which was funded through a $75,000 
MassDevelopment grant. The cost for the Broadway Corridor plan will be less expensive through a 
more limited scope tailored to address gaming facility impacts…” 
 
The Review Team believes that Malden has demonstrated the feasibility and reasonableness of the 
proposed mitigation measure. 
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a 
private party. 

N/A 

6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce 
development pilot program activities 

YES 

Malden noted that the study will utilize “previously compiled economic and land use data, and 
increasing in-kind services from the Malden Redevelopment Authority and the City.” 

Although Malden did not attempt to quantify the in-kind contributions, the Review Team has no 
reason to believe that the staff investment from the City and the Malden Redevelopment Authority 
(MRA) in this important effort will not be significant.  The effort will involve senior staff members 
from both the MRA and will involve many departments within the City. 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
6 | P a g e  
 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

The City of Malden stated that it “decided to not partner with neighboring communities on this 
application. The uses, development typology, and issues impacting Broadway in Malden differ 
significantly from those in Everett…. These differences make planning for the length of the Corridor in 
a single study problematic, as they are very different in character and challenges. However, the City of 
Malden believes there is potential to develop a regional effort with the Town of Saugus and the City of 
Everett to advance a comprehensive Broadway Corridor strategy. Through the Framework Plan, 
Malden will explore ways to create a unified and complementary experience along the entirety of 
Broadway.” 
 
The Review Team is encouraged by Malden’s approach to try to work with Saugus and Everett and 
would recommend that Malden should share its plans with its neighbors.  The Commission has 
shared similar plans with other communities.  Part of the agenda for the Community Mitigation 
Fund staff for the upcoming year should be to make it even easier for communities to access studies 
conducted by other communities. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community 

agreements are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

Malden stated that “the Surrounding Community Agreement focuses primarily on the use of Malden 
as a transportation hub, road improvements, roadway safety, business preference, and a jobs 
program. The agreement did not anticipate physical economic development, land use, and public 
impacts related to the gaming facility, particularly along this critical route to and from the resort. 
Similarly, the MEPA decision and City’s comments are directed toward environmental quality issues 
and does not address physical economic development, land use, and public realm impacts. 
 
Once the Encore Boston Harbor facility is operational, Malden, as a transportation hub, will receive 
significant funds as part of its surrounding community agreement.   That said, the Review Team 
does not dispute Malden’s characterization of the SCA and the MEPA decisions. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be 

completed by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant 
to any agreements between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

See above discussion under question #8. 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation 

request. 
YES 

In response to question from the Review Team, Malden stated that “[t]he timetable for developing 
the Framework Plan will be an aggressive one, but we are unable to provide you with the details as of 
this time,” stating that the timetable is dependent upon responses to the RFP document. 
 
The Review Team believes that Malden provided sufficient detail on the scope and budget for the 
project and understands why it is unable at this time to provide more specificity regarding the 
timetable.”  The Review Team notes that staff will get more information about the scope, budget, 
and timetable in the grant implementation process, should the Commission choose to award this 
grant.  
 

Recommendation:  The Review Team recommends that the Commission provide $50,000 
in funding for this well thought out proposal by Malden.   



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
7 | P a g e  
 

REVERE 
Licensee Comment:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the City of Revere's effort to capture more 
business and development opportunity for the City and the region resulting from our project. 
 
We anticipate that the successful opening of our resort will spur increased economic activity 
and opportunity throughout the region. We applaud the City of Revere for planning ahead to 
capture these opportunities and positive benefits. 
 
The Massachusetts Gaming Commission, through the resources available in the Community 
Mitigation Fund, has the opportunity to make substantial improvements to our area. We would 
like to encourage greater regional planning and study in the future to ensure that the resources 
available are put toward highly impactful initiatives that will benefit the region for decades to 
come.” 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 / The planning project must be 
clearly related to addressing issues or impacts directly related to the gaming facility.  
Applications involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 2018 
Non-Transportation Planning Grant. 

YES 

City of Revere proposes to use a 2018 MGC Non-transportation Planning Grant of $50,000 to further 
advance its economic development goals by continuing the services of a consultant to work closely with 
the Mayor, his Chief of Staff and the City's Director of Strategic Planning and Economic Development to 
devise and assist in implementing actions aimed at better positioning the city to realize economic 
development opportunities associated with the Wynn Casino in neighboring Everett and to advance several 
key economic development initiatives now underway or about to commence.  
 
The Review Team believes that Revere’s proactive approach to develop a plan to spur development of 
mixed-use developments with potential linkages to the Encore Boston Harbor facility will help the City to 
take advantage of opportunities that may result from the Encore Boston Harbor facility and to help 
minimize any economic disruptions in this corridor.  The Review Team notes that Revere’s approach fits 
squarely within the Commission’s plans for these non-transportation planning funds, and earlier with 
Community Mitigation Fund planning funds made available to communities.  Such reserve planning 
funds were authorized to be “used for planning, either to determine how to achieve further benefits 
from a facility or to avoid or minimize any adverse impacts.” 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 

“[t]he City of Revere will utilize $42,000 of this $50,000 grant to continue the services of an individual 
qualified consultant to perform these duties over an additional period of 6 months. The balance of the 
grant, $8,000, will be used to undertaken marketing and promotional efforts about these development 
opportunities and the potential linkage with the Wynn Casino.” 
 
The Review Team believes that Revere has demonstrated the significance of the potential impact to 
businesses in this corridor and the potential opportunities that may arise from well thought out 
planning.      
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

Revere is advancing comprehensive planning for the major development opportunities at the 160 acre 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
8 | P a g e  
 
Suffolk Downs and the 35 acre Wonderland Park site, and as it continues to implement the major 
Waterfront Square Transit Oriented Development at Wonderland station and Revere Beach. The City 
believes it can be greatly aided in pursuing these major initiatives and linking them to economic 
development opportunities that will come with the opening of the Wynn Casino in Everett through the use 
of these MGC Non-Transportation Planning grant funds. Mayor Arrigo believes an experienced and 
knowledgeable consultant can measurably bolster his senior staff capacity for complex development 
management in a number of areas including: business to business linkage, particularly with respect to the 
hospitality sector which is Revere's growth industry; marketing and promotion of the City as a leisure and 
business travel destination; and positioning Revere residents to benefit from job training mechanisms to be 
funded under MGC's 2018 Workforce Development Pilot Program Grant in Region A. 
 
The Review Team believes that Revere’s planning effort may provide significant benefits for the 
community. 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure YES 

[t]he sole purpose of the combined 2015/2016 Reserve Fund and 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant 
is aimed at capitalizing on linkage opportunities expected to be presented with the opening of the Wynn 
Casino in the second half of 2019. 
 
The Revere proposal is a continuation of a current CMF grant.  The Review Team believes that Revere has 
demonstrated the feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure. 
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party. 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 

pilot program activities 
 

As noted in the Malden review, the Review Team would recommend that Revere should share its plans 
with its neighbors.  The Commission has shared similar plans with other communities.  Part of the agenda 
for the Community Mitigation Fund staff for the upcoming year should be to make it even easier for 
communities to access studies conducted by other communities. 
Although Revere did not attempt to quantify the in-kind contributions, the Review Team has no reason 
to believe that the staff investment from the City in this important effort will not be significant. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

The City of Revere is constantly engaged with the Metropolitan Area Planning Council as its projects growth 
and seeks to capitalize on its potential for larger scale development at key sites. This includes consideration 
of linkage opportunities in the areas of leisure and business travel and hospitality as well as business to 
business opportunities that are expected to emerge with an operational Wynn Casino in the second half of 
2019. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements 

are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

Revere does not have a surrounding community agreement. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be 

completed by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to 
any agreements between such licensee and applicant 

 

 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
9 | P a g e  
 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. YES 

The Review Team believes that Revere has provided sufficient detail on the scope and budget for the 
project as it currently administering the Commission’s 2017 grant for the first phase of this project.  The 
Review Team notes that staff will get more information about the scope, budget, and timetable in the 
grant implementation process, should the Commission choose to award this grant. 

Recommendation:  The Review Team recommends that the Commission provide $50,000 in 
funding for the next stage of this important planning effort in Revere.   

Saugus 

Licensee Comment:  “Wynn Boston Harbor supports the Town of Saugus's effort to connect the 
Northern Strand Community Trail to the future location of the Saugus RiverWalk.  The Northern 
Strand Trail is a tremendous resource for the area, connecting our Harbor Walk to Nahant 
Beach by traversing Everett, Malden, Revere, Saugus and Lynn. While we fully support this 
initiative, we do not believe that the Saugus business community will suffer once we open. In 
fact, we believe that just the opposite will occur and businesses will benefit from the new 
attention and increased visitation being paid to the area. 

Regardless, connecting this trail to a new RiverWalk and business district is a worthy initiative 
that could lead to an overall increase in the health, well-being and vibrancy of the area. We 
encourage the Town of Saugus to work closely with other communities on this initiative.” 
 
1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 

occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018; The planning project must be clearly 
related to addressing issues or impacts directly related to the gaming facility.  
Applications involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 2018 
Non-Transportation Planning Grant.     

 
 

Saugus’s application states that “a bike path connecting the Northern Strand Community Trail to the future 
location of the Saugus RiverWalk.”  It further notes that “[i]n order to spur economic development 
opportunities unrelated to retail and restaurants the town is pivoting towards outdoor recreation that will 
activate the underutilized waterfront along the Saugus River. The bike path will provide a recreational 
opportunity for tourists to experience the community and spend money locally, whether on other 
recreational activities on the waterfront or at a local store while stocking up on refreshments.”  
In response to a question from the Review Team why the development of a bike path should not be 
considered transportation planning, 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 

The Town of Saugus noted that “Although there will be an increase in tourism to the area, the Town of 
Saugus needs to find new ways to maintain its economic viability as less people frequent local retail centers 
and restaurants, choosing instead to enjoy the new amenities at the gaming facility. The bike path is one 
way the town will continue to promote itself as an open space destination, an on-going efforts that is taking 
the shape with the development of an open space brochure, wayfinding, and branding scheme”.  
The Review Team agrees that the maximization of tourist opportunities within the Town is an important 
goal and that the development of the Saugus Riverwalk may significantly help with that goal.  The system 
would also provide important transportation benefits. 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

The application expressed the economic and transportation benefits of a wayfinding system.  For example, 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
10 | P a g e  
 
the application stated “[t]he gaming facility will attract both tourists and local consumers to its new 
shopping and dining options. Funding to connect the Northern Strand Community Trail to the planned 
RiverWalk offers the Town of Saugus a chance to draw tourists to the community through recreational 
opportunities which will spur spending at local establishments that might otherwise be overlooked. 
Enhancing and expanding connectivity between the gaming facility and Saugus will allow the town to 
maintain economic relevance despite a shift in how revenue is generated. Additionally, these funds will 
build upon the Community Mitigation Fund projects approved by the Commission”.   

The application did not provide any data or statistics to demonstrate the effectiveness of a wayfinding 
system to achieve these benefits.  However, the Review Team found no reason to doubt that a wayfinding 
system may have a positive impact. 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure  

In response to a request from the Review Team, Saugus noted that the overall project cost is approximately 
$3M and will be voted on in August 2018. 

As a detailed budget was not provided in the original application, the Review Team was unclear how 
significant the planning grant would be given the outstanding budget questions.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party. 

N/A 

 
6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 

pilot program activities 
 

The Application stated “[p]resently, the town's Department of Planning and Development, as well as the 
Town Manager's office will provide additionally funding for this project…. In-kind services will be provided 
by the Department of Planning and Development and Department of Public Works.  The Department of 
Planning and Development will work with DPW to select materials, develop a schedule, work on a public 
outreach campaign, and implement other aspect of the project such as wayfinding.”   

The City did not provide an estimate quantifying how much staff time or administrative time would be 
provided as an in-kind match.  Therefore, the Review Team was not able to determine how significant the 
in-kind match would likely be.  However, given prior conversations with the Town about the priority of 
the Saugus Riverwalk, the Review Team does not have reason to doubt that the Town will expend 
significant resources in the development of this priority for the Town. 

7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 
The Town stated that “The bike path is essentially an extension of the Northern Strand Community Trail and 
ties into the large East Coast Greenway project promoted and supported by the Department of 
Conservation and Recreation.” 
As such, the Review Team believes that Saugus has demonstrated significant regional benefits. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements 

are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

Saugus does not have a surrounding community agreement. 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 

by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any 
agreements between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

This mitigation measure is not already required. 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request.  



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
11 | P a g e  
 
The initial application did not include a detailed budge or timetable for the mitigation request.    
 

Recommendation:  Applications involving transportation planning or design are not 
eligible for the 2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grant.  The review team recommends 
not approving this application as transportation planning is ineligible for this funding. 

WEST SPRINGFIELD 

Licensee Comment: “[t]he Town of West Springfield is applying for mitigation funds in the 
amount of $40,000 to fund the hire of an architecture and engineering consultant to 
conduct a Police Facility Needs Assessment and location study. 

While MGM supports this effort, we do not anticipate a significant increase in crime or 
public safety issues in West Springfield related to our Project.” 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018; The planning project must be clearly 
related to addressing issues or impacts directly related to the gaming facility.  
Applications involving transportation planning or design are not eligible for the 2018 
Non-Transportation Planning Grant. 

 

The application stated that “the Town will be hiring additional police to address the projected increase in 
crime and calls for service. The impact on the Police Station will be a greater need for space to 
accommodate the growth in staff and services rendered. Significantly, the Police Station is not currently 
equipped to handle any such growth, and additional space will be necessary to meet the needs of the Police 
Department. An analysis of the various options (i.e. renovation, relocation, new construction, etc.) will be 
essential to determine the best strategy for meeting the Police Department’s casino-generated needs.  
The determination that the operation of the Casino will cause the West Springfield Police to need more 
space to operate out of is supported by the fact that it is acknowledged in the Surrounding Community 
Agreement between MGM and the Town of West Springfield that crime rates and public safety will be 
significantly and adversely impacted by the Casino. In other words, the demand for additional space for 
police operations is directly correlated to the need to increase police staffing levels in order to address the 
significant adverse impact on crime and public safety resulting from the Casino.”   

It also stated “[t]he requested funds will be used to address an impact directly related to the MGM 
Springfield Casino as they will fund a Police Station Needs Assessment and Location Study that would not 
otherwise be necessary if not for the increased crime and public safety issues that will result from the 
Casino.  
The projected increase in calls for service and associated need to hire more police staff is a direct result of 
the upcoming opening of the Casino.”  

In its letter to the West Springfield, the Review Team asked West Springfield to provide additional 
information why it believes that space for more police officers would directly result from the operation of 
the MGM Springfield facility.  In its response, West Springfield stated that “The projected need is the result 
of the hiring of the eight additional patrolmen, plus another eight additional officers to be hired in the near 
future.” 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied  

In its response to questions from the Review Team, West Springfield stated that “Traffic headed to and from 
the Casino is also expected to affect West Springfield, as we have major state highways and interstate 
highways that weave through the community and connect to Downtown Springfield.  Increased congestion 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
12 | P a g e  
 
from folks utilizing our roads to access the casino will undoubtedly cause more calls for service related to 
traffic accidents.” 

In response to the Review Team’s questions regarding the need for growth in the West Springfield’s police 
force, “The hiring of the eight additional officers was directly and solely in response to the opening of the 
MGM Casino. Calls for service are expected to increase as a result of increased crime and public safety 
issues stemming from the proximity of West Springfield to the MGM Casino….” 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

The Town has sufficiently demonstrated that the funds will enable it to plan for increased space needs. 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure  

West Springfield provided a detailed analysis regarding the cost of similar consultant work.  In its initial 
application, West Springfield did not provide information about the potential cost of expanding the police 
station or how the Town would pay for such costs.  As such, as of now, it is unclear whether any expansion 
can be accomplished in the near term.  However, a purpose of the study would be to help the Town 
determine answers to these questions.  Thus, similar to other planning requests, planning may help the 
town determine the reasonableness and feasibility of any potential expansion.  
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party. 

N/A 

6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities 

YES 

According to the application, “The Town of West Springfield will contribute in-kind services in the form of 
staff time to assist in the completion of the Study. More specifically, staff from the Police Department, 
Engineering Department, and Planning and Development Department will work with the consultants to 
provide local knowledge, data, and other information and support as necessary to facilitate a robust and 
comprehensive analysis of the police facility needs and location options.” 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

The application stated that “However, the Town believes that by properly planning for and providing 
adequate local police facilities, that it will be in better position to handle local crime and public safety issues 
which will benefit the region as a whole.  Rather, “[e]xcerpt from the Surrounding Community Arbitration 
Report (Attachment F):  “…the Town is by far the closest geographically to the site of the MGM project. It is 
within plain view and 800 yards walking distance across a bridge from the MGM site. This leads to the 
Town’s neighborhoods of Merrick and Memorial, which are its lowest rent and lowest cost areas. The Panel 
concludes that this proximity is likely to cause public safety issues, including increased crime.” 
 
The Review Team believes that West Springfield sufficiently demonstrated regional benefits from this 
award.  
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements 

are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

As noted in the application “[w]hile the impact on the Police Station was not specifically anticipated in the 
Surrounding Community Agreement, the overall increase in crime and public safety issues necessitating 
increased police services was anticipated. There is a direct connection between the increased police services 
and the need for extra space from which to provide those services.”    
In response to a question how the Town plans to prioritize its SCA funding, the Town stated that “The Town 
has prioritized the use of the funds received through the Surrounding Community Agreement for public 
safety, as public safety is anticipated to be significantly impacted by the opening of the MGM Springfield 



2018 Non-Transportation Planning Grants 
13 | P a g e  
 
Casino.”  It additionally stated that “The Surrounding Community Agreement funds will be used to offset the 
cost of hiring eight additional police patrolmen.”    
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 

by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any 
agreements between such licensee and applicant 

N/A 

10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request.  
The Review Team believes that West Springfield sufficiently demonstrated regional benefits from 
this award. 
 

Recommendation:  This application meets the purposes and requirements set out in the 2018 
Community Mitigation Fund Guidelines, the review team recommends that the Commission 
approve this application. 































































































































RESERVE PLANNING / TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT 
1 | P a g e  
 
 

RESERVE PLANNING / TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT (Maximum $200,000) 

Community Description Requested Amount Review Team Proposal 

SRPEDD  Tribal technical assistance planning studies to assist 
communities surrounding Taunton 

$200,000.00 $200,000 

Holyoke The initial $35,000 of funds would be used to engage a 
consulting firm to coordinate staff and community 
stakeholders in a Holyoke Tourism Plan.  The remaining 
$65,000 will be reserved to implement the deliverables of the 
Tourism Plan. 

$100,000.00 Use of Reserve 

Wrentham Creation of New Route 1 Zoning Regulations $40,000.00 Use of Reserve 

Total:   $340,000.00 $200,000 



RESERVE PLANNING / TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT 
2 | P a g e  
 
 

SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
(“SRPEDD”)  

SRPEDD anticipates planning requests for studies to assist communities in geographic 
proximity to the potential Tribal Gaming facility in Taunton with regard to traffic capacity and 
operational impacts should the construction of the Tribal Gaming facility move forward.   

Pursuant to the Guidelines, “[t] he Commission shall make available no more than $200,000 in 
technical assistance funding to assist in the determination of potential impacts that may be 
experienced by communities in geographic proximity to the potential Tribal Gaming facility in 
Taunton.” 

The guidelines further stated that “[s]uch funding will only be made available, after approval of 
any application by SRPEDD or a comparable regional entity, if it is determined by the 
Commission that construction of such gaming facility will likely commence prior to or during 
Fiscal Year 2019.” 

SRPEDD has applied for funding to assist communities in geographic proximity to the potential 
Tribal Gaming facility in Taunton with regard to traffic capacity and operational impacts should 
the construction of the Tribal Gaming facility move forward.   

Review Team Evaluation/Recommendations:  The Review Team would like to propose that 
$200,000 continue to be held in reserve for such technical assistance program.  In order to 
activate this reserve, such determination would first need to be made by the Commission.  
The Review Team recommends that the Commission would review the details of such 
program at this future date. 

HOLYOKE 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 

YES 

Holyoke stated that “[[t]he casino will draw investment from developers who might otherwise look to the 
built environment and economic niche Holyoke shares with Springfield, as well as tax revenue from tourists 
and visitors who will view Holyoke as a pass-through rather than a destination. Holyoke must seek 
mitigation to offset the expected increased traffic on Route 91 and Route 5 through the city, address the 
diminished visibility of the city in comparison with Springfield to the south, and develop a strategy to 
capture regional economic growth related to the development of the MGM casino. 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 

See above on #1. 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

Holyoke states in its application that the plan:  “relates to the gaming facility of MGM Springfield in two 
direct ways. It seeks to develop local resources and identity relating to the Holyoke's ecotourism and 
cultural tourism assets to offset regional investment lost to competition with Springfield's comparative 
advantage as a tourist destination due to the new casino as well as to mitigate costs associated with pass-



RESERVE PLANNING / TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT 
3 | P a g e  
 
 
through traffic experienced by Holyoke and other neighboring communities. In addition, these efforts made 
possible by the Mitigation Fund are intended to build upon the regional growth of tourism associated with 
the completion and operation of MGM Springfield by attracting tourists and capturing revenue from visitors 
to the region.” 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure YES 

In its application, “[t]he City proposes to utilize $35,000 to retain a consulting firm to coordinate with staff 
and community stakeholders in the creation of a Holyoke Tourism Plan, with the goal of bringing together 
existing and emerging community resources in ecotourism, cultural tourism, entertainment, and hospitality 
to market the city as a destination congruent with the development of MGM Springfield. The remaining 
$65,000 will be reserved to implement the deliverables of the Tourism Plan, which are expected to include 
strategies to build identity for and engagement in Holyoke attractions, address fragmentary land ownership 
that inhibits development in the Mount Tom region, and maintain communication within Holyoke's 
burgeoning tourism industry and to potential visitors outside.” 

The Review Team believes that the Holyoke plan to is consistent with other plans approved by the 
Commission (e.g. Saugus, Northampton). 
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party. 

N/A 

6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development 
pilot program activities 

YES 

In its application Holyoke states:  “[a]s a primary deliverable in FY 2018 for one staff planner as well as 
involving input and feedback equivalent to approximately three paid hours of senior staff contribution per 
week, the Holyoke Tourism Plan funded by the Community Mitigation Fund will be matched by 
approximately $16,000 in in-kind services rendered by the Holyoke Planning Department per year. These 
efforts will serve to buttress the value and utility of the MGC's award.” 
 
The Review Team believes that the in kind match is reasonable. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

Holyoke states in its application that “[w]hile the current goal of selecting and retaining a consultant to 
develop a tourism plan for the City of Holyoke does not involve direct coordination with PVPC, we will 
collaborate with the regional planning agency wherever feasible, such as sharing data for planning purposes 
in the short-term and identifying direct points of synergistic activities in the long-term implementation of 
the Tourism Plan's deliverables.” 
The Review Team believes that Holyoke has significantly demonstrated that regional benefits and 
coordination with PVPC. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements are 

not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
 

Holyoke states in its application that, “Holyoke's Surrounding Community Agreement with MGM Springfield 
does not include elements that would be redundant with this MGC proposal.” 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 

by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any 
agreements between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. YES 



RESERVE PLANNING / TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT 
4 | P a g e  
 
 
“[t]he $35,000 to retain a consulting firm to coordinate with staff and community stakeholders in the 
creation of a Holyoke Tourism Plan… The remaining $65,000 will be reserved to implement the deliverables 
of the Tourism Plan”.   
The Commission staff will review the scope, budget and timetable for the remaining $65,000 when 
Holyoke develops its Tourism Plan. 

Review Team Evaluation/Recommendations:  Economic development planning relating to 
casino facilities is in keeping with the authorized purposes of the Community Mitigation Fund 
Reserve, which can be used “for planning, either to determine how to achieve further 
benefits from a facility or to avoid or minimize any adverse impacts.” 

Given the above, Review Team recommends that the Commission approve Holyoke’s request 
to use $35,000 of its Reserve for the purposes outlined in its application.  The remaining 
$65,000 will be reserved to implement the deliverables of the Tourism Plan.  The applicant 
must provide the Tourism Plan to the Commission staff for approval prior to any expenditure.   

WRENTHAM 

1. Mitigate impacts related to the construction of Category 1 gaming facilities that have 
occurred or are occurring as of February 1, 2018 

YES 

Wrentham noted that “[a]s a result of the construction of the Plain ridge Park Casino at the 
southeast quadrant of the 1- 495/Route 1 interchange, the Town of Wrentham is experiencing an 
increased interest in development along Wrentham's portion of Route” 
2. The significance of the impact to be remedied YES 

Wrentham noted that “[p]revious funding from the Gaming Commission in the amount of $50,000 
was used to conduct a comprehensive land use, transportation and marketing study of the 
corridor. The creation of new zoning regulations is one of the major recommendations in the study. 
The existing regulations are ill-suited to promote and accommodate the type of development that 
Wrentham wants to attract to compliment the casino and the current permitted development 
along Route 1. The construction of the casino has altered the types of development that will occur 
along Route 1 in Wrentham.” 
The Review Team believes that Wrentham has demonstrated the connection to the Plainridge 
Park Casino and the benefits of the approach. 
3. The potential for the proposed mitigation measure to address the impact YES 

Wrentham notes in its application that it will “…work with McCabe enterprises on creating new 
zoning regulations for the Route 1 Corridor in Wrentham (Exhibit B) that will eventually be 
accepted at Town Meeting. McCabe Enterprises, along with the Pare Corporation, worked together 
to conduct a comprehensive Route 1 Corridor Study that is nearing completion.” 
4. The feasibility and reasonableness of the proposed mitigation measure YES 

The Review Team feels this is a reasonable next step in the proposed project. 
5. The demonstration that any program to assist non-governmental entities is for a 

demonstrated public purpose and not for the benefit or maintenance of a private 
party. 

N/A 

6. The significance of any matching funds for planning efforts or workforce development YES 



RESERVE PLANNING / TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT 
5 | P a g e  
 
 

pilot program activities 
“The Town of Wrentham will provide in-kind services towards the proposed project in the form of staff and 
local board/committee time. The Director of Planning & Development will provide guidance and technical 
support to the consultant and will coordinate communication between the consultant preparing the study 
and local boards/committees. The Board of Selectmen and the Economic Development Committee will 
provide in-kind services by offering guidance to the consultant as well….” 
The Review Team believes that the in kind match is reasonable. 
7. Any demonstration of regional benefits from a mitigation award YES 

“The Metropolitan Area Planning Council (MAPC) will be consulted on the project and made aware of the 
proposed changes. The neighboring communities will be involved in that the existing zoning regulations in 
Foxboro ugh to the north and Plainville to the south will be referenced during the development of the new 
zoning regulations to ensure some form of consistency through these portions of the corridor. Also, the RPA 
and ALL adjacent towns will be notified of the proposed Zoning By-Law amendment when the public hearing 
is scheduled before the Planning Board prior to Town Meeting.” 
The Review Team believes that Holyoke has significantly demonstrated that regional benefits and 
coordination with MAPC. 
8. A demonstration that other funds from host or surrounding community agreements 

are not available to fund the proposed mitigation measure 
YES 

Wrentham application states:  “In addition Section 4(ii) of the Surrounding Community Agreement states 
that SF Gaming shall cooperate with the Town in the design and conduct of impact studies to identify, based 
on empirical evidence, any materially adverse impacts to the Town or its residents and businesses from the 
construction or operation of the Project that are of magnitude sufficient to make the implementation of 
project mitigation measures reasonably necessary; and to craft and implement such mitigation measures, as 
further described in Section 6 of this Agreement. Therefore, the proposed zoning regulations creation is the 
type of study referred to in this section.” 
9. A demonstration that such mitigation measure is not already required to be completed 

by the licensee pursuant to any regulatory requirements or pursuant to any 
agreements between such licensee and applicant 

YES 

The SCA states “SF Gaming shall cooperate with the town in the design and conduct of impact 
studies… 
10.  The inclusion of a detailed scope, budget and timetable for each mitigation request. YES 
The Review Team notes that staff will get more information about the scope, budget, and timetable in the 
grant implementation process, should the Commission choose to award this grant. 

 
Review Team Evaluation/Recommendations:  Economic development planning relating to 
casino facilities is in keeping with the authorized purposes of the 2015 Community Mitigation 
Fund Reserve, which can be used “for planning, either to determine how to achieve further 
benefits from a facility or to avoid or minimize any adverse impacts.”  Given the above, the 
Review Team recommends that the Commission approve Wrentham’s request to use $40,000 
of its Reserve for the purposes outlined in its application.   
 
 







































































































































































































































































































































































































1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
101 Federal Street, 12th Floor, Boston, MA 02110 

APPENDIXG 

2018 COMMUNITY MITIGATION FUND 

2018 RESERVE PLANNING GRANT/ TRIBAL GAMING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

APPLICATION 

BD-18-1068-1068C-1068L-22137 

Please complete the entire application. 

City of Holyoke 

NAME OF MUNICIPALITY/GOVERNMENT ENTITY/DISTRICT 

Marcos Marrero, Director of Planning and Economic Development 

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBLE FOR HANDLING OF FUNDS ON BEHALF OF 

MUNICIPALITY/GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY (CONTRACT MANAGER) 

20 Korean Veterans Plaza, Suite 406 Holyoke, MA 01040 

ADDRESS OF INDIVIDUAL RESPONSIBLE FOR HANDLING OF FUNDS ON BEHALF OF 

MUNICIPALITY/GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY (CONTRACT MANAGER) 

413-322-5575; marreroma@holyoke.org 

PHONE# AND EMAIL ADDRESS OF INDIVIDUAL ON BEHALF OF MUNICIPALITY /GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 

(CONTRACT MANAGER) 

Marcos Marrero, Director of Planning and Economic Development 

NAME OF INDIVIDUAL AUTHORIZED TO COMMIT FUNDS ON BEHALF OF MUNICIPALITY /GOVERNMENTAL 

ENTITY 

20 Korean Veterans Plaza, Suite 406, Holyoke, MA 01040 

ADDRESS, PHONE# AND EMAIL OF INDIVIDUAL AUTHORIZED TO COMMIT FUNDS ON BEHALF OF 

MUNICIPALITY /GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY 

MGM Springfield 

NAME OF GAMING LICENSEE 



2018 PLANNING PROJECT APPLICATION 

Pa2e2 

1. IMPACT DESCRIPTION 

Please describe in detail the related impact that is attributed to the construction or operation of a 
gaming facility. Please provide support for the determination that the construction or operation of 
the gaming facility caused, is causing or may cause the impact. 
The development of an $800 million MGM-brand casino and its attendant hospitality and entertainment 
services in Springfield presents a challenge and opportunity for smaller communities in the Pioneer Valley 
region, including the city of Holyoke. The casino will draw investment from developers who might otherwise 
look to the built environment and economic niche Holyoke shares with Springfield, as well as tax revenue 
from tourists and visitors who will view Holyoke as a pass-through rather than a destination. Holyoke must 
seek mitigation to offset the expected increased traffic on Route 91 and Route 5 through the city, address the 
diminished visibility of the city in comparison with Springfield to the south, and develop a strategy to capture 
regional economic growth related to the development of the MGM casino. 

2. PROPOSED USE OF PLANNING FUND 

Please identify the amount of funding requested. Please provide documentation (e.g.- invoices, 
proposals, estimates, etc.) adequate for the Commission to ensure that the funds will be used for 
the cost of planning to mitigate the impact from the construction or operation of a proposed 
gaming establishment. Please describe how the planning request will address the specific impact 
indicated. Please attach additional sheets/supplemental materials if necessary. 
Based upon the estimates and expenditures of precedent applications for mitigation funding before the MGC, 
the City of Holyoke requests $100,000 in mitigation to be used in two stages. First, the City proposes to utilize 
$35,000 to retain a consulting firm to coordinate with staff and community stakeholders in the creation of a 
Holyoke Tourism Plan, with the goal of bringing together existing and emerging community resources in eco-
tourism, cultural tourism, entertainment, and hospitality to market the city as a destination congruent with 
the development of MGM Springfield. The remaining $65,000 will be reserved to implement the deliverables 
of the Tourism Plan, which are expected to include strategies to build identity for and engagement in Holyoke 
attractions, address fragmentary land ownership that inhibits development in the Mount Tom region, and 
maintain communication within Holyoke's burgeoning tourism industry and to potential visitors outside. 



2018 PLANNING PROJECT APPLICATION 

Page3 

3. CONNECTION TO GAMING FACILITY 

Please provide specificity/evidence that the requested fund will be used to address issues or impact 
related to the gaming facility. 
The Tourism Plan funded by the Community Mitigation Fund necessarily relates to the gaming facility of MGM 
Springfield in two direct ways. It seeks to develop local resources and identity relating to the Holyoke's eco-
tourism and cultural tourism assets to offset regional investment lost to competition with Springfield's 
comparative advantage as a tourist destination due to the new casino as well as to mitigate costs associated 
with pass-through traffic experienced by Holyoke and other neighboring communities. In addition, these 
efforts made possible by the Mitigation Fund are intended to build upon the regional growth of tourism 
associated with the completion and operation of MGM Springfield by attracting tourists and capturing 
revenue from visitors to the region. 

4. IMPACT CONTROLS/ ADMINISTRATION OF IMPACT FUNDS 

Please provide detail regarding the controls that will be used to ensure that funds will only be used 
in planning to address the specific impact. If non-governmental entities will receive any funds, 

please describe what reporting will be required and how the applicant will remedy any misuse of 
funds. 
Upon the successful approval of the grant by the MGC, the Holyoke Office of Planning and Economic 
Development (OPED) will directly administer the fund and the resultant product, the Holyoke Tourism Plan. As 
a first step, OPED would be required to establish a fund through City Council approval, specifically for the 
purposes stated in any agreement documents between the MGC and the City of Holyoke, including this 
application. Once the fund is approved in City Council, the spending is limited to the stated scope, ensuring its 
specific and responsible use. OPED will oversee the delivery of all scope items related to the Holyoke Tourism 
plan and will submit to the MGC the following materials to inform the Committee of our progress: 

a. A detailed RFP describing the deliverables sought from a qualified consultant to develop 
and/or implement the Holyoke Tourism Plan; 

b. The Scope of Services and contract between the City of Holyoke and the selected consultant, 
and; 

c. The final Holyoke Tourism Plan and estimated budget for deliverables contained therein. 
Planning staff will be responsible for selecting the consultant to receive funding related to the development of 
the Holyoke Tourism Plan and directing said efforts, as well as reporting back to the Commission through the 
above-listed material submissions to demonstrate the relevant and appropriate use of mitigation funds 
towards addressing the impact of the casino. 



2018 PLANNING PROJECT APPLICATION 

Page4 

5. CONSULTATION WITH REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY (RPA) l NEARBY 

COMMUNITIES 

Please provide details about the Applicant's consultation with the Regional Planning Agency 
serving the community and nearby communities to determine the potential for cooperative 
regional efforts regarding planning activities. 
The City of Holyoke collaborates with the Pioneer Valley Planning Commission wherever possible in the 
shared goal of regional development. While the current goal of selecting and retaining a consultant to develop 
a tourism plan for the City of Holyoke does not involve direct coordination with PVPC, we will collaborate with 
the regional planning agency wherever feasible, such as sharing data for planning purposes in the short-term 
and identifying direct points of synergistic activities in the long-term implementation of the Tourism Plan's 
deliverables. 

6. MATCHING FUNDS FROM GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER ENTITY 

Please demonstrate that the governmental or other entity will provide significant funding to match 
or partially match the assistance required from the Community Mitigation Fund. Please provide 
detail on what your community will contribute to the planning projects such as in-kind services or 
planning funds. 
Planning and Economic Development Staff will devote substantial paid staff time as an in-kind contribution to 
support the process of researching, producing, and implementing the Holyoke Tourism Plan with roles in both 
directly overseeing consultant work and stakeholder engagement as well as critical feedback to the draft 
Tourism Plan. As a primary deliverable in FY 2018 for one staff planner as well as involving input and feedback 
equivalent to approximately three paid hours of senior staff contribution per week, the Holyoke Tourism Plan 
funded by the Community Mitigation Fund will be matched by approximately $16,000 in in-kind services 
rendered by the Holyoke Planning Department per year. These efforts will serve to buttress the value and 
utility ofthe MGC's award. 
Other recent Holyoke efforts which used MGC-approved funding streams (specifically the funds from the 
surrounding community agreement with MGM Springfield) demonstrate how Holyoke seeks to creatively 
leverage these funds and coordinate with its own programming. In this recent case, Holyoke leveraged MGM 
funding towards the redevelopment of the Cubit mill at 164 Race Street, the creation of a state-of-the-art 
culinary institution which can feed into MGM's hiring needs while also providing a series of land acquisitions 
and tax incentives to bring the project to completion. The OPED would seek to leverage all MGC-approved 
funding with public institutional investment and private development to maximize the value and impact of the 
award. 



2018 PLANNING PROJECT APPLICATION 

Pat!e 5 

7. RELEVANT EXCERPTS FROM HOST OR SURROUNDING COMMUNITY AGREEMENTS 

AND MASSACHUSETTS ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT ("MEPA"} DECISION 

a) Please describe and include excerpts regarding the impact and potential mitigation from any 
relevant sections of the community's Host or Surrounding Community Agreement. 

b) Where applicable, please also briefly summarize and/or provide page references to the most 
relevant language included in the most relevant MEPA certificate(s) or comment(s) submitted by 
the community to MEPA. 

c) Please explain how this impact was either anticipated or not anticipated in that Agreement or 
such MEPA decision. 

d) If planning funds are sought for mitigation not required under MEPA, please provide justification 
why funding should be utilized to plan for such mitigation. For example, a community could 
provide information on the significance of potential impacts if the impact exceeds projected 
estimates. 
Holyoke's Surrounding Community Agreement with MGM Springfield does not include elements that would 
be redundant with this MGC proposal. The Agreement focuses upon evaluation of conditions and impacts of 
the MGM casino though a "Baseline Study of Surrounding Community Conditions" and "Retroactive 'Look 
Back' Studies." The Study Scope for each indicated in Exhibit A ofthe agreement identifies "Tourism and 
Community Business Development" as a potential area of positive impact that could result from the casino 
and which will receive analysis as part of the SCA, suggesting its viability as a strategy to capture regional 
economic growth. 

CERTIFICATION BY MUNICIPALITY/GOVERNMENTAL 

ENTITY 

On behalf of the aforementioned municipality/governmental 
entity I hereby certify that the funds that are requested in this 
application will be used solely for the purposes articulated in 
this Application. 



TO: Chairman Crosby, Commissioners  

FROM: Jill Griffin, Director of Workforce, Supplier and Diversity Development  

CC: Ed Bedrosian, Executive Director; Catherine Blue, General Counsel  

DATE: June 7, 2018  

RE: Encore Boston Harbor Workforce Development and Diversity Plan 

 
On March 29, 2018 Wynn Boston Harbor presented the initial draft of the Wynn Workforce 
Development and Diversity Plan intended to satisfy Chapter 23k, Sections 18, 21 and MA Gaming 
Commission Agreement to Award a Category 1 License to Wynn -Condition 14, 17. A revised document, 
entitled Encore Boston Harbor Workforce Development and Diversity Plan is included in materials for 
your review and potential vote today. 
 
Background: 
As part of the effort to ensure that Massachusetts residents benefit from the operational jobs created 
by casino development in the Commonwealth, the MA Legislature established requirements in the 
Expanded Gaming Act that casino licensees must satisfy and produce for Commission approval an 
Affirmative Action Program for Equal Opportunity. As referenced by Sections 18 and 21 of Chapter 23k 
the Affirmative Action Program must describe how the licensee will identify and market employment 
opportunities to under and unemployed residents of the Commonwealth and to work with the MA Dept. 
of Labor and Workforce Development and related state and local agencies to create this program. (c.23k 
21 (20)) 
 
Additionally, in the Category 1 Gaming License to Wynn MA, Condition 14 requires the provision of a 
plan within 90 days of the Commission’s request.  MGC Staff requested the plan on January 25, 2018 
with a due date of April, 25, 2018. Wynn has satisfied this condition with the submission of the Wynn 
Workforce Development and Diversity Plan to MGC staff on March 26, 2018. The license condition also 
requires a robust public outreach component to identify and market employment opportunities to 
unemployed residents of MA (17) and also specifies that the plan must incorporate an affirmative action 
program of equal opportunity which guarantees to provide equal employment opportunities to all 
employees qualified for licensure in all employment categories, including persons with disabilities;  
 
Section 18 (9) of  the Gaming Act called out the following priorities:  
• establishing, funding and maintaining human resource hiring and training practices that 

promote the development of a skilled and diverse workforce 
• access to promotion opportunities through a workforce training program that: 
• has transparent career paths with measurable criteria that lead to increased responsibility and 

higher pay grades, career advancement and promotion; 
• employee access to additional resources including tuition reimbursement or stipends, to enable 

employees to acquire the education or job training needed to advance career paths  
 
Further requirements include: 
• Utilizes the existing labor force in the commonwealth. 
• Identifies workforce training programs offered by the gaming establishment; and  



• identifies the methods for accessing employment at the gaming establishment. 
 
Finally, an important priority in the Gaming Law is equity and inclusion.  As part of this process, all 
gaming Licensees are required to set diversity hiring goals and submit strategic plans for the inclusion of 
minorities, women and veterans in the workforce. 
 
 
Public Comment: 
The plan was posted for public comment April 2 until May 1, 2018 and those and other submitted 
comments have been shared with the Region A Licensee. Public Comments from the following entities 
and individuals are included: 
 
Asian American Civic Association 
Cambridge College 
Casino Action Network 
Disabled American Veterans 
Everett Haitian Community Center (Eben-Ezer Family and Children Services) 
Hispanic American Institute 
Juan Lopera, Tufts Health Plan 
Metro North Regional Employment Board 
Quincy Asian Resources Inc  
Urban League 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

1 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
Wynn owes itsWe owe our success to itsour employees, so the most important decision we make at our 

properties is always going to be "Who do we hire?" Once we find the perfect person for the job, 

everything else falls into place: the satisfied guests, the Five Star awards, and the continued growth of 

our company.  

WynnEncore Boston Harbor (“WBHEEBH”) is a luxury, global destination gaming resort located in 

Everett, Massachusetts that will feature 671 hotel rooms with sweeping views of the Boston skyline and 

Boston Harbor, ultra-premium spa, luxury retail, high-end dining, and state-of-the-art ballroom and 

meeting spaces. At $2.5 billion invested, the resort will be the largest private single-phase development 

in the history of the Commonwealth.  Situated on the waterfront along the Mystic River and connected 

to Boston Harbor, WBHEBH will include a six-acre park along the water that will feature a Harborwalk, 

events lawn, and public viewing areas, ornate floral displays, and retail and dining experiences 

overlooking the water.   

WBHEBH is currently under construction with resort opening anticipated June 2019.  Prior to opening, 

we will hire over 4,000 individuals for the resort opening team.  These team members will transform a 

beautiful building into a five-star luxury resort.  

This Workforce Development and Diversity Plan (this “Plan”) outlines our strategy to recruit, hire, and 

retain over 4,000 qualified, local, and diverse individuals for our resort team.  This Plan supports 

legislation included in the Gaming Act that calls for “establishing, funding and maintaining human 

resource hiring and training practices that promote the development of a skilled and diverse workforce” 

and the goal of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission to create opportunities for unemployed and 

under-employed individuals.   

We are confident that WBHEBH will be a source of economic growth and opportunity for our Host 

Community of Everett, Surrounding Communities, the greater-region, and the entire Commonwealth. 

This Plan is the roadmap to ensuring the career opportunities created by WBHEBH are as widespread as 

possible, and supports our business interests to have a local and diverse workforce well suited to serve 

our diverse guests. 

This Plan is a result of dozens of meetings and conversations with educators and community 

stakeholders regarding best practices for building a diverse and local workforce.  Since releasing the 

initial draft of the Plan in March 2018, we have held numerous meetings and received constructive 

feedback and ideas from numerous stakeholders.  This final draft reflects those conversations and the 

feedback and comments received.  We are grateful to our community stakeholders for their interest in 

the Plan and the time spent providing feedback.  We look forward to collaborating with the 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission, our Host, Surrounding, and Neighboring Communities, and 

numerous educational and diverse community partners to implement this Plan.  



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

2 
 

Our Objectives 

 

The following objectives form the basis for this Plan and are the drivers behind workforce development 
activities leading to the WBHEBH opening in June 2019:   
 

1. Raise Awareness:  Before we can successfully recruit, we must ensure the community is aware 

of who we are as an employer, the upcoming career opportunities, the skills required for those 

opportunities, the application process, and the timeline for hiring.   

 

2. Prepare Career Seekers: We will work to ensure local and diverse career seekers are not only 

aware of the coming career opportunities, but are prepared to successfully apply for and 

succeed in those jobs.  We will connect job seekers with the training needed to develop skills 

required for our jobs. 

3. Recruit and Hire a Qualified, Local, and Diverse Workforce:  To open successfully, we need to 

recruit and hire a workforce that is qualified, local, and diverse. Hiring the right talent from the 

start will improve retention and support the success of ongoing resort operations. 

4. Develop and Retain: Once on board, we will create a work environment in which team 

members can thrive and pursue opportunities for professional growth.   

Each of these objectives is supported by activities and tactics outlined in the plan that follows.  
 
Objectives Timeline: 

 
 

 
 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

3 
 

OBJECTIVE 1: RAISE AWARENESS FOR WBHEBH CAREER OPPORTUNITIES 
WBHEBH is a new employer in Massachusetts and we look forward to providing our team members 

outstanding career opportunities, a supportive work environment, training, and competitive pay and 

benefits.  As a critical first step in the workforce development process, we must build understanding 

among the local workforce of our brand and offering as a company and an employer.   

We will work to raise awareness for the following:  

1) WBHEBH as an employer: luxury hospitality employer providing competitive pay and benefits, 

training, and opportunities for professional growth;  

2) Available career opportunities and the skills required for those opportunities; 

3) Applicant requirements: attitude, skills, job fit, drug test, gaming license approval, background 

check; and  

4) Timeline and process for application.  

Commitment to Local and Diverse Outreach & Hiring 
 
We are committed to hiring a local workforce and know that locally-based employees contribute to 
business success.  When commuting times are limited, and individuals are able to work close to home, 
team members will be happier and better able to serve our guests.  We look forward to implementing 
the following hiring preferences: first, to residents of our Host Community - Everett; second, to our 
Surrounding Community of Malden; and third, to Surrounding Communities Boston, Cambridge, 
Chelsea, Somerville, and Medford.  These hiring preferences are outlined in our Host and Surrounding 
Community Agreements. WBHEBH will use good faith efforts to hire no less than 75% of team members 
from within 30 minutes of Everett.  , as outlined in the Encore Boston Harbor gaming license conditions.  
For the purposes of this Plan, and taking into account the widely variable commuting times in the 
region, we have defined “30 minutes” as residents of cities and towns that fall within 30 miles of the 
Resort site.    
 
Residents of the following cities will be counted as living within 30 minutes: 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

4 
 

 
 
 
We will also offer a hiring preference to qualified Suffolk Downs employees.  EBH, with the support of 
the Mass Gaming Commission, contacted all Suffolk Downs employees several years ago regarding 
career opportunities.  We have retained data for those Suffolk Downs employees who responded with 
their information and will use that information to provide regular updates and communication to those 
individuals.  All outreach and awareness raising efforts will focus on these communities and will also 
extend to our Neighboring Communities of Lynn and Melrose.   
 
In addition to hiring local residents, we believe that workforce diversity is a significant driver of business 
success. WBHEBH has a culture of inclusion and commitment to equal opportunity for people regardless 
of race, religion, gender, age, sexual orientation, national origin, physical or mental handicap or 
disability and a culture in which all aspects of diversity are acknowledged and respected.  WBHEBH will 
serve guests from all over the world and a wide variety of backgrounds; we need a diverse workforce to 
provide the best experience possible for those diverse guests.   
 
As we move forward with operational hiring, we will build a diverse workforce that is reflective of the 
broader community in which we operate.  We have reviewed the demographics of our Host and 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

5 
 

Surrounding Communities, as well as the demographics in the broader region.  While we are fortunate 
to be opening in a time of economic prosperity, we face an environment that includes an extremely low 
rate of unemployment. With over 4,000 positions to fill, and a tight labor market, we will create 
opportunities for our Host and Surrounding Communities as well as the broader region.    Based on 
previous resort opening experiences, we anticipate sourcing over 80,000 applicants to identify and hire 
our team of over 4,000.   
 

 

 

Community Demographics:1

 

                                                           
1 Data Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau (2016). American Community Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved from Census 

Reporter Profile page for Massachusetts <https://censusreporter.org/profiles/04000US25-massachusetts/>  

 

Unemployment % Minority Population
Population in 

the Workforce 

Unemployed 

Individuals

Host and Surrounding 

Communities

Everett, Malden, Medford, 

Somerville, Boston, 

Cambridge, Chelsea

2.6% 48.8% 1,064,022 601,536 15,348

Counties: Host, 

Surrounding, Neighboring 

Communities

Essex, Middlesex, Suffolk 2.7% 34.5% 3,153,022 1,720,277 46,658

Counties within 30 mi 

Radius

Worcester, Essex, Middlesex, 

Suffolk, Norfolk, Plymouth, 

Bristol

2.9% 28.4% 5,741,681 3,085,600 90,604



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

6 
 

 

Massachusetts Veteran Demographics: 

2 

 
We have set the following workforce diversity goals to reflect the diversity of our community and 
region.  We will work with the Massachusetts Gaming Commission, our community partners, and our 
Host and Surrounding Communities to achieve and exceed these goals across the organizationin each 
department, front and back of house, and for both management and line level workforce. 

 
Women: 50%  
WBHEBH is committed to gender equity for its workforce, both in recruiting and in 
compensation.  Our goal is to hire women as 50% of our workforce.  We will pay equally for 
positions, regardless of the gender of the individual in that position.   
 
Minorities: 3540%  
The minority goal reflects the makeup of our broader community, and takes into account the 
hiring preference for residents of our Host & Surrounding Communities.  The broader region 
from which we will source candidates, includes the following counties: Essex, Middlesex, Suffolk, 
Norfolk, Plymouth, and WorcesterBristol.  The demographics of these counties includes 28% 
minorities.  To reflect the demographics of the region, as well as our preference for our Host & 
Surrounding Communities, which include 49% minorities across a much smaller population, we 
have set a goal of hiring a minimum of 3540% minorities. WBHEBH will utilize the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts definition of Minority3. 

 
Veterans: 3%  

                                                           
Massachusetts Department of Labor (2017). Labor Force and Unemployment Data. Retrieved from Labor Market 

Information < http://lmi2.detma.org/lmi/lmi_lur_a.asp#3/> 

 
2 Data Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2016). American Community Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved from Census 

Reporter Profile page for Massachusetts https://censusreporter.org/profiles/04000US25-massachusetts/  
 
3 https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleII/Chapter7C/Section6 

https://censusreporter.org/profiles/04000US25-massachusetts/


WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

7 
 

WBHEBH sees tremendous value in the skillset and experience of veterans, and is committed to 
providing opportunities for individuals who have served our country.  Of the 5.7% veteran 
population in Massachusetts, roughly half are veterans of recent conflicts and are actively 
engaged in the workforce.  Following discussions with veteran community stakeholders, 
including the Disabled American Veterans and the City of Everett Director of Veteran Services, 
we have set a goal of hiring 3% veterans as part of our workforce, reflecting the portion of 
veterans in the Commonwealth who are active in the workforce. 
 

We will place particular emphasis on raising employer brand and career opportunity awareness within 

our Host, Surrounding, and Neighboring Communities, Suffolk Downs employees, and among 

unemployed, diverse, and Veteran populations. All outreach activities, including job fairs, events, and 

targeted marketing, will be implemented first and foremost in our Host & Surrounding Communities. 

 

Hiring Preference Mechanics: Host & Surrounding Communities; Suffolk Downs employees 

As outlined in our Host & Surrounding Community Agreements, Encore Boston Harbor will extend a 

hiring preference to residents of the following communities: 1) Everett, 2) Malden, and 3) Boston, 

Cambridge, Chelsea, Medford, Somerville. A preference will also be extended to current and former 

Suffolk Downs employees. 

The mechanics of these preferences in hiring will be implemented as follows: 

For positions where individual resume review is the primary method of selection: 

- EVERETT resumes will be reviewed FIRST with qualified Everett residents receiving the first calls 
for interview 

- MALDEN resumes will be reviewed SECOND with qualified Malden residents receiving second 
calls for interviews 

- BOSTON, CAMBRIDGE, CHELSEA, MEDFORD, SOMERVILLE, SUFFOLK DOWNS resumes will be 
reviewed THIRD with qualified residents receiving priority calls for interviews 

- Resumes of Residents of the designated counties will be reviewed following the residents above.  
 

For positions where group or open call interviews are the typical approach (typical for high volume 

positions): 

- Priority access and dedicated time slots will be provided to Everett residents.  For example: if 
meet & greets and group interviews are scheduled from 10am – 2pm, Everett residents will be 
interviewed in the first slots from 10am – 11am.  We will invite Everett residents in advance for 
priority access interviews and will also fast track residents who show their ID with Everett 
address.   

- Next priority access will be given to Malden residents, with similarly designated advance times 
for meet & greets and interviews.  

- Following the times designated for Everett and Malden, time will be allocated for interviews 
with residents of the Surrounding Communities and Suffolk Downs employees.  



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

8 
 

 

Open call interviews for all interested career seekers will follow the three priority interview 
time slots outlined above, or will be held on a separate day.Our Careers: Summary & Timeline 
 

A wide range of careers will be available across the 4,000+ positions, ranging from gourmet server to 
sous chef to accountant.  Each full-time position provides competitive pay, benefits, and a pathway for 
growth.  We will use a range of outreach channels to ensure that career seekers are aware of these job 
opportunities, skills required by each, and timelines for applications and hiring.  The job titles 
highlighted below are examples of line level positions.  For each of the areas listed below there are 
corresponding management level positions.  High volume positions, as well as positions that are open to 
English Language Learners, are noted.  
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

9 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

10 
 

 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

11 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

12 
 

The following are outreach and awareness raising initiatives that will be continued or newly 

implemented to support our objective to Raise Awareness. 

The WBH Talent Network 

The WBHSkillSmart 

EBH is working to develop a career and skills exploration platform, driven by SkillSmart technology, that 
will play a key role in achieving success across several of our workforce development plan objectives: 1) 
Raising Awareness; 2) Preparing Career Seekers; and 3) Local & Diverse Recruiting & Hiring.  The 
SkillSmart platform will help job seekers:  
 

1. Learn about career opportunities with EBH;  
2. Understand the skills required and preferred for each position;  
3. Learn how their existing skills and experiences align with positions of interest; and  
4. Connect with training resources available for skill development that will enhance their ability to 

successfully apply for positions of interest.   
 
In addition to being a resource for job seekers and educators, the SkillSmart platform will provide EBH 
the capability to review the prospective candidate pool to determine interest in key career 
opportunities, understand any skills gaps, and tailor our outreach strategies. 
 
The SkillSmart platform will serve as a basis for informing career seekers regarding the specific skills 

required for each available career, and will connect them with local educational and training resources 

that can enhance skills needed for success in our careers.  

 

The EBH Talent Network  

The EBH Talent Network is a portal for 

individuals interested in working for 

WBHEBH to quickly submit their information 

and receive updates regarding job postings, 

career fairs, and more.  Job seekers use the 

Talent Network to submit their contact 

information, select areas of career interest, 

and upload a resume, if they choose (this 

step is not required).   

Through our outreach efforts as of 

MarchMay 2018, we have gathered 

information from over 8,2009,890 job 

seekers via the WBHEBH Talent Network 

portal.  We will use the existing WBHEBH 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

13 
 

Talent Network database to notify individuals of the SkillSmart launch, dealer school and other training 

opportunities, job fairs, job postings and more.   

WBHSkillSmart and the Talent Network are useful tools for exploring future job opportunities and 

training and staying updated, but are not used for application.  EBH will clearly brand these two tools, 

and our application portal, to avoid confusion for career seekers and community organizations.  

  

EBH Career Center   

The WBHEBH Career Center will open summerfall 2018 and will be a central hub for activity and learning 

about our careers and timelines.  Our Career Center will be located at 101 Station Landing in Medford, 

conveniently situated at the Wellington Station MBTA Orange Line stop.  The Career Center also has 

ample parking for individuals traveling by vehicle to meet with us and is ADA accessible.     

The Career Center will be staffed during regular business hours and will provide support and resources 

for job seekers, including guidance and information regarding upcoming career availability.  Additionally, 

computer terminals will be located at the Career Center where individuals can join the WBHEBH Talent 

Network, apply for jobs, create a SkillSmart profile, and find information regarding local skills training 

resources.    

We will provide personal support to individuals who need help navigating SkillSmart or other web-based 

job application tools.  We invite job seekers to meet with us, learn about WBHEBH as a company and 

employer, and learn about the upcoming career opportunities.   

Network of Geographically Strategic Physical Locations / WBHEBH Career Support Hubs 

We understand the importance of providing access to in-person support and computers where job 

seekers can speak to someone about the process, and receive assistance with using the online portals 

for applications and using the SkillSmart platform.  We also understand that having multiple locations, in 

addition to the WBHEBH Career Center, will facilitate access for a broader range of individuals.   

To meet this need, we will support a network of geographically strategic physical locations / WBHEBH 

Career Support Hubs where individuals can gain access to a computer, receive support for WBHEBH-

related job searches and use of WBHEBH career online tools including the WBHEBH Talent Network, the 

online application portal, and SkillSmart.  We will leverage a combination of Encore locations, career 

centers, and cultural centers.  We will staff WBHEBH representatives, train representatives from the 

host location organization, or provide informational materials to provide support to career seekers at 

each of these locations:.    

1. WBHEBH will have a Satellite Career Center at Everett City Hall.  This office will be regularly 

staffed by our team and will provide a second location where Everett residents can access a 

computer, receive support, and speak with an HR representative about employment 

opportunities.  We will have regular office hours with multi-lingual representatives of the Encore 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

14 
 

recruitment team for community members who may need support in a language other than 

English. 

 

2. Regional One-Stop Career Centers4, serving unemployed individuals and covering our Host & 

Surrounding Communities.  A designated Career Center staff member will be trained by our 

team to support job seekers in using the Talent Network, SkillSmart, and our Application Portal.    

a. Career Source – Chelsea 

b. Career Source – Cambridge 

c. Boston Career Link – Roxbury  

d. JVS Career Solutions – Boston 

 

3. Local Community Centers Serving Diverse Populations with computer access and personnel 

support.  Similar to the Career Centers, we will train representatives at each of these locations 

to provide assistance to job seekers interested in a career with WBHEBH. 

a. La Communidad – Everett 

b. Everett Haitian Community Center – Everett 

c. Chelsea Collaborative - Chelsea 

d. ABCD (Action for Boston Community Development) Mystic Valley Opportunity Center - 

Malden 

a.e. Urban League of Eastern Massachusetts - Roxbury 

b.f. Somerville Community Corporation - Somerville 

c.g. Asian American Civic Association – Boston 

h. City of Cambridge Office of Workforce Development - Cambridge 

 

4. Local Public Libraries are a place where community members can access computers and the 

internet.  We will provide the public libraries with clear, easy-to-use instructions for online 

WBHEBH career tools.  

a. Everett 

b. Malden 

c. Medford 

d. Charlestown (Boston) 

e. Grove Hall - Dorchester 

e.f. Somerville 

f.g. Chelsea 

g.h. Cambridge 

                                                           
4 https://www.mass.gov/service-details/find-a-career-center-near-you  

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/find-a-career-center-near-you


WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

15 
 

 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

16 
 

 

Career Fairs 

Career fairs are required by Encore’s Host and Surrounding Community Agreements and are a great way 

to connect with community members.  

We know that a personal interaction between our hiring managers and job seekers cannot be replaced 

with a digital experience.  Over the last four years, WBHEBH has participated in dozens of career fairs, 

and plans to continue with these efforts,  attending fairs hosted by our community partners, and hosting 

our own career fairs leading up to major department hiring.  We know that a personal interaction 

between our team, our hiring managers, and job seekers is crucial to connecting to the local community 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

17 
 

and job seekers.  The digital experience is designed for convenience; we will connect personally with as 

many candidates as we can.   

Career seekers may check the WBHEBH website for regular updates regarding career fairs.  A summary 

of career fairs attended in March, April, and May, and planned for June, 2018 is below: 

 

• March 1st: Lasell College Hospitality Day Career Fair 

• March 26th: Informational Session at Endicott College School of Hospitality  

• March 29th:  Roxbury Community College Job Fair  

• March 29th: El Mundo Latino Career Fair  

• April 2nd:  Affinity Leadership Consortium (ALC) Career Fair – ALC is a collaboration of greater 

Boston area diverse professional groups. 

• April 26th: Mayor of Boston’s Neighborhood Career Fair – Mattapan 

• April 28th: Chelsea Collaborative Community Day  

• May 1st: Boston Herald Diversity Job Fair 

• May 5th:  North American Indian Center of Boston Career Fair 

• May 15th: La Comunidad Career Information Session 

• May 19th:  Women's Veterans Network Annual Fair 

• May 22nd: First Source Jobs/Somerville Community Corporation Career Fair 

• June 14th: Urban League of Eastern Mass Career Fair – Roxbury 

• June 18th : Asian American Civic Association Career Information Session 

• June 28th: Mayor of Boston’s Neighborhood Career Fair - Dorchester 

We will continue to collaborate with partners to host and attend Career Fairs that will help us reach 

local, minority, female, veteran, and disadvantaged members of the community.  

Encore held a dedicated career information session for Suffolk Downs workers in 2017.  We will host at 

least one additional, dedicated career information session for Suffolk Downs workers.  

Starting in June 2018, Encore will host monthly informational sessions, in coordination with our 

community partners.  These information sessions will rotate through our Host & Surrounding 

Communities. 

Regular Update Meetings with Community Representatives  

WBHEBH has established a structure of quarterly update meetings with our community partners, 

focusing on small group engagement with diverse populations and regional career centers serving 

unemployed populations.  We understand the importance of community partners in disseminating 

information to career seekers and supporting efforts to recruit qualified, local, and diverse talent for our 

open positions.  We will establishhave established clear lines for candidate referrals for each of these 

groups.   



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

18 
 

The following quarterly update meetings are in place: 

1. HispanicLatino Community – convened by the Hispanic American Institute, Chelsea 

Collaborative, and La Comunidad 

2. African AmericanBlack Community – convened by Urban League of Eastern Massachusetts 

3. Asian Community – convened by the Asian American Civic Association and James Chan, former 

Chief of Staff to Boston City Councilor Bill Linehan 

4. Local Community Career Advisors – convened by the Metro-North Regional Employment Board 

and the Private Industry Council 

5. Veteran Community - convened by the Disabled American Veterans (DAV) and the Director of 

Veteran Services for the City of Everett 

Grassroots Outreach in Partnership with Community Based Organizations 

Encore has built relationships with dozens of community based organizations, training providers, 

educational institutions, and government entities over the last several years.  We will continue our work 

with these organizations to raise awareness for career opportunities and to enhance our ability to 

connect with local, diverse, and economically disadvantaged individuals. In May 2018, Encore provided 

trainings for over 60 representatives from career centers, training providers, and community-based 

organizations who will provide support to career seekers.  We will work with local CBOs in the following 

manner: 

• Provide organization representatives with training for using Encore career tools  

• Include on regular communication regarding positions available for application, upcoming hiring 

events, and updates regarding the hiring process 

• Coordinate career information sessions and job fairs on site with these organizations 

• Participate in career fairs and other community events hosted by organizations 

• Provide outreach materials 

• Provide a designated point of contact with the Encore recruitment team for candidate referrals 

and questions 

• When requested and appropriate, we will set up regular Encore recruitment team “office hours” 

with these organizations 

Encore will rely on our community partners to help us reach local and diverse individuals, advertise 

career opportunities, and refer candidates for job openings and career fairs.  We will track candidate 

referrals from partners via the SkillSmart system.  

 

OUR PARTNERS 

 
With the monumental task ahead, we know we cannot achieve our goals alone.  We will rely on strong 
partnerships with local government, community, and educational partners to help us engage, prepare, 
and recruit an exceptional team.



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

19 
 

 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

20 
 

Social & Traditional Media   

WBHEBH will launch a comprehensive and targeted employment outreach campaign to inform career 

seekers about our company and who we are as an employer, our jobs, timelines, and job requirements.  

The outreach campaign will be launched in summer 2018.  The outreach campaign will focus on reaching 

unemployed individuals, diverse community members, and residents of our Host & Surrounding 

Communities as well as the broader region.  

We will adopt a wide range of marketing tactics to ensure that virtually every potential candidate is 

reached.  The campaign will be multi-lingual, with a focus on key languages spoken in our local 

communities: Spanish, Chinese, Haitian, and Portuguese.  The employment brand marketing plan will be 

implemented through the following channels: 

• Social Media 

• Digital Media  

• Place-based 

• Radio 

• Events 

• Out of Home: billboards, transit, bus stops, etc. 

• PR outreach 

• Print – local news publications 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

21 
 

OBJECTIVE 2: PREPARE CAREER SEEKERS 
WBHEBH will work to ensure that local career seekers are not only aware of the upcoming career 

opportunities, but are prepared to successfully enter those career paths.   

We believe that individuals with the right personalities and basic aptitude can be trained to succeed in 

almost any role.  We are looking for job seekers who are eager to serve guests, serve their fellow team 

members, and to work hard, all with a positive attitude.  Those attributes cannot be trained.  The best 

way for job seekers to prepare is to, first, gain some on-the-job experience in a hospitality role prior to 

applying with WBHEBH; and second, to enhance any needed skills through training and education.  

We will help career seekers prepare by building both hard skills (i.e. culinary and table games dealing) as 

well as soft skills like career readiness, communication, management, and customer service. The 

following hard-skills areas will be of particular focus: 

• English as a Second Language 

• Basic computer skills  

• Culinary 

• Casino – Dealer 

• Casino – Surveillance 
 

SkillSmart 

WBHEBH is working to develop a career and skills exploration platform, driven by SkillSmart technology, 
that will play a key role in achieving success across several of our workforce development plan 
objectives: 1) Raising Awareness; 2) Preparing Career Seekers; and 3) Local & Diverse Recruiting & 
Hiring.  The SkillSmart platform will help job seekers:  
 

1.5. Learn about career opportunities with WBHEBH;  
2.6. Understand the skills required and preferred for each position;  
3.7. Learn how their existing skills and experiences align with positions of interest; and  
4.8. Connect with training resources available for skill development that will enhance their ability to 

successfully apply for positions of interest.   
 
In addition to being a resource for job seekers and educators, the SkillSmart platform will provide 
WBHEBH the capability to review the prospective candidate pool to determine interest in key career 
opportunities, understand any skills gaps, and tailor our outreach strategies.  The SkillSmart platform 
will track referrals from community partners.  
 
The SkillSmart platform will serve as a basis for informing career seekers regarding the specific skills 

required for each available career, and will connect them with local educational and training resources 

that can enhance skills needed for success in our careers. The Greater Boston Gaming Career Institute 

and local educational partners will play a critical role in supporting our ability to meet this objective, and 

be a critical piece of the SkillSmart career and skills training exploration platform.    



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

22 
 

SkillSmart will connect career seekers with educational and training resources specific to the skills 

required by WBHEBH opportunities. A wide range of educational and training resources will be featured 

on the platform, from community college courses to online learning to skills training programs and adult 

education hosted at local high schools.  Bunker Hill Community College, Roxbury Community College, 

and North Shore Community College have provided or will provide course details that will correspond 

with specific skills required by positions at Encore.  Career seekers will be able to view a position they 

are interested in, see the skills required by that job, and click through to specific courses they can take 

that will enhance their skills if needed.  

 

 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

23 
 

 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

24 
 

Greater Boston Gaming Career Institute  

Subject to approval by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission, WBHEBH will partner with Cambridge College 

to open a gaming careers school to prepare individuals to become dealers and casino surveillance specialists. 

WBHEBH will provide the curriculum, equipment, teachers, and expertise for the program. Cambridge College 

will provide the space and administrative support for the Institute.  EBH will employ approximately 1,000 full 

time and part time dealers for the casino operation.  We expect roughly half of the individuals hired for these 

roles to be trained at the local Gaming Careers Institute.   

Details for the Institute are as follows: 

• LOCATION: The Gaming Career Institute will be located in Charlestown, Boston less than two miles 

from the resort location, and will be accessible via Orange Line public transportation.  

WBH 

• SCHEDULE: Courses are expected to begin the second week of September.  The course is 16 weeks 

long with classes held five days per week, Monday through Friday.  Three scheduling options will be 

available to accommodate schedule needs of those who wish to take the course.  Makeup days will be 

held on Saturdays.  The second semester of the Gaming Careers Institute is expected to begin on 

Tuesday, January 22nd, completing in early May 2019 in time for the June 2019 opening.  

o 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

o 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

o 6:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. 

 

• COST: The cost of the course will be $1,100. 

 

• CURRICULUM: The curriculum comprises just over 300 hours of training and includes two casino 

games, customer service, CPR, and responsible gaming.  This training provides students with a broad 

skillset that prepares them to be a table games dealer or to take on a role that leverage customer 

service, CPR, and responsible gaming skills (i.e. casino host or security).  To pass the class, students will 

need to pass a final, simulation “audition” that will prepare them for an audition for a casino role.  

• APPLICATION PROCESS: Each student who wishes to attend the Gaming Institute must apply.  The 

application process will take place in August 2018 and will include:  

o Basic math aptitude test to demonstrate ability to do basic math required for table games 

dealing 

o Basic written application with acknowledgement and confirmation of willingness to: work 

flexible hours (nights, weekends, holidays); pass a background screening, pass a drug test, 

become licensed with the Massachusetts Gaming Commission.  

o Panel interview with representatives from Cambridge College and Encore Boston Harbor.  

During this brief  interview, we will assess whether each candidate has the right attitude and 

personality for a position as a table games dealer.  

 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

25 
 

• COMMITMENT TO HIRE: Encore Boston Harbor commits to hiring 100% of individuals that: graduate 

from the Gaming Institute including passing the final, simulation audition; pass a drug test; clear 

background screening; and receive a gaming license from the Massachusetts Gaming Commission.   

 

• STUDENT RECRUITMENT: EBH will launch targeted advertising and marketing to ensure that local and 

diverse potential students are aware of the Gaming Institute program, timeline for application, cost, 

and career opportunities made available by the program.  We will turn to our Community Partners to 

ensure community members are informed about the Gaming Institute, and to refer student 

candidates. 

 

Scholarships & Student Support 

EBH will sponsor Gaming Career Institute financial need based scholarships, fully funding 50 individuals to 

learn the two games (blackjack + one additional game of choice) required to audition for a table games dealer 

position.complete the Gaming Institute course.  Our community partners will nominatesupport the 

scholarships by recommending individuals for these scholarships.  Ten scholarship spots will be allocated to 

Everett residents.  The Scholarships will provide opportunities for Everett and surrounding community 

residents, veterans, and minorities, who are in need of financial support to complete the Gaming Career 

Institute curriculum.  One half of the scholarships will be awarded to women.   Scholarship recipients will be 

determined by Cambridge College, which will use their financial aid office and procedures to determine 

financial need.   

As part of Cambridge College’s continued focus on access to education, they are committed to exploring and 

identifying options for individuals to afford to participate in the Gaming Career Institute.  Cambridge College 

knows that there will be significant number of employment opportunities provided by WBHEBH, and wants to 

ensure that the widest spectrum of individuals can enroll.  To do this, Cambridge College will seek to find 

financial aid for training from multiple sources.   

Cambridge College is currently aware of funding being available for these types of training programs and is 

pursuing these dollars through all possible options, exploring alternatives that may capitalize on Individual 

Training Accounts through One Stop Career Centers, Section 30 Training Opportunity Program support, and 

Trade Adjustment Assistance.  In each case the Cambridge College team will work to identify and communicate 

all of the required steps for potential candidates to access available federal resources. 

Cambridge College will also seek out partnerships or funding sources that can target segments of the 

population as a whole by pursuing Workforce Development Grant funding earmarked for the Gaming 

Commission, in particular with the goal of ensuring access for underserved and underrepresented populations.  

Finally, Cambridge College will also reach out to neighboring cities and towns that have been fortunate 

recipients of casino mitigation dollars, to examine their willingness to possibly provide training grants to 

targeted communities under their jurisdiction.   



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

26 
 

Cambridge College is actively considering options for students of the Greater Boston Gaming Career Institute 

to be able to link this experience to degree attainment.  The possibility of assigning prior learning assessment 

credits for students who successfully complete this program, could eventually be articulated into certificate, 

associate or bachelor’s degree credentials. Discussions are underway to develop this as a pathway in a 

structured relationship between Cambridge College, Bunker Hill Community College, and Roxbury Community 

College. 

Culinary Training 

The Massachusetts Executive Office of Labor and Workforce Development estimates over 14% growth in 

demand for restaurant cooks between 2014 and 2024 in Massachusetts5, translating to demand for over 3,000 

new employees in restaurant cook roles.  EBH will employ roughly 300 individuals in line level cook positions.    

Encore is aware of the existing, regional culinary skills gap and has taken steps to address that gap.  The EBH 

Executive Chef and human resources team are working with the Massachusetts Professional Association of 

Culinary Trainers (MPACT), a consortium of regional culinary training providers that includes Community 

Servings, NECAT, SnapChef, Future Chefs, and more.   We will feature culinary training programs on the 

SkillSmart platform and will continue to engage with local culinary training providers to help prepare 

individuals for culinary roles at Encore. In addition to working with the MPACT, EBH will recruit from the 

culinary program at Bunker Hill Community College and other local schools.  We will provide competitive 

wages and benefits, supporting our efforts to recruit in an environment with high demand for culinary 

workers.   

English as a Second Language (ESOL) 

Encore will hire for over 900 positions that do not require fluent English.  These positions range from Cook to 

Porter to Traffic Attendant and are highlighted in the career summary on page 7.   Once hired, Encore will 

partner with local ESOL providers to offer all team members English as a second language courses free of 

charge. Prior to opening, EBH will work with local ESOL providers to ensure that individuals are aware of ESOL 

resources and are able to take advantage of them to prepare for a career at Encore.   

EBH will reach out to state-funded and other ESOL programs and will invite locally based ESOL providers to 

attend career information sessions where they can connect with career seekers.  ESOL providers will also be 

included on the SkillSmart platform.  

Local Education and Training Providers 

WBHEBH will work closely with local educational and training providers for culinary, hospitality, general & 

administrative, and other jobs.   

Bunker Hill Community College will be a key resource for community members seeking to enhance their skills 

in anticipation of applying for a position with WBHEBH.  Bunker Hill’s online and in person courses available in 

culinary arts, hotel and restaurant management, and more will be featured on the SkillSmart platform.  In 

                                                           
5 Source: http://lmi2.detma.org/Lmi/Occupation_Projection.asp?Area=01000025long  

http://lmi2.detma.org/Lmi/Occupation_Projection.asp?Area=01000025long


WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

27 
 

addition to connecting community members with the tremendous learning resources available at Bunker Hill 

Community College, we will partner with Bunker Hill to identify student candidates for our roles and 

collaborate on job fairs.  Bunker Hill students and alumni will be a key recruiting target, particularly for culinary 

roles.   

Roxbury Community College, North Shore Community College, and other locally based Community Colleges 

will be key partners for providing classroom training to career seekers.  WBHEBH will include Roxbury and 

North Shore Community CollegeColleges on the SkillSmart platform and will engage with Roxbury and North 

Shore Community College students and alumni as candidates for resort positions.  

WBHEBH will continue to work with the New England Center for Arts and Technology (NECAT) to provide 

culinary training opportunities for disadvantages community members.  NECAT has held its first culinary class 

at the new location at Everett High School.  A second class is now underway in Everett. EBH will recruit NECAT 

graduates for culinary roles.    

BEST Corp. will partner with WBHEBH as a training provider for hotel operations positions.  The BEST Corp. 

training locations in Medford and Roxbury, both accessible via the Orange Line, will be a convenient training 

resource for career seekers in our Host & Surrounding Communities.  

The academic institutions and training providers listed above are just a few examples of the dozens of among 

the training providers we will partnerhave connected with; we continue to reach out to other training 

resources that can support local and diverse career seekers as they prepare for WBHEBH opportunities.  

Training partners are included in the list on page 15.  

 

  



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

28 
 

OBJECTIVE 3: RECRUIT & HIRE A QUALIFIED, LOCAL & DIVERSE WORKFORCE 
WBH’sEBH’s ultimate goal is to recruit, onboard, and retain a qualified, local, and diverse workforce.  To 

accomplish this objective, we will build on the outreach and training efforts outlined above and will work to 

create an efficient and inclusive hiring process.  

Applicant Tracking System 

WBHEBH will utilize an Applicant Tracking System (“ATS”) and applicant portal for the resort opening, allowing 

us to communicate and follow up with applicants, supporting a positive candidate experience.  The ATS will 

provide the recruitment team with data regarding gender, ethnicity, veteran status, and residency of 

applicants.  We will use this information to ensure that we are receiving applications from diverse and local 

candidates.    

Career opportunities will be posted on the applicant portal well in advance of hiring decision dates (at least 10 

weeks) to ensure there is ample time for job seekers to learn about the opportunity, apply, and go through the 

hiring process.  

As outlined on the hiring timeline on page 9, positions will be posted for application in January and February of 

2019, with interviews following in March and April.  

Inclusive Job Descriptions & Job Requirements 

We will be hiring for over 450 different job titles.  As a key element of preparation for recruiting and hiring, the 

WBHEBH team created job descriptions for all of these positions, closely evaluating each included job 

requirement and ensuring that no educational or experience credential was listed as “required” unless that 

requirement is absolutely essential to the success of the business.  The job descriptions are written to be clear 

and detailed, and as inclusive as possible.  

We will not require a high school degree or equivalent for several of our positions up to a supervisor level.  We 

believe this standard will open our jobs to a broader range of individuals who may not have had the 

opportunity to complete high school or a GED prior to entering the workforce.  WBHEBH will provide team 

members the opportunityaccess to take GED classes on site at the resortfree of charge once the propertyresort 

is open and stabilized.  For many positions, we will not require prior experience, and will provide on-the-job 

training to support inexperienced team members. 

Career Fairs & Mass Hiring Events 

Career Fairs, as previously discussed, will be a method for raising awareness, but will also play a critical role in 

large-scale departmental hiring.  WBHEBH will host targeted career fairs for hotel, food & beverage, casino, 

security, and other departments, where applicants will meet hiring managers, interview, and be notified, in 

many cases the same-day, of hiring decisions and next steps.  Our Community Partners will be asked to help 

advertise hiring events and to send referrals to career fairs and hiring events.   



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

29 
 

As outlined on the hiring timeline shown on page 9, hiring events will take place in February, March, and April 

of 2019.  During these months, we will interview thousands of individuals to find those who are the best fit for 

the EBH team.  

As described above, priority access at Hiring Events will be provided to residents of Everett and Encore’s 

Surrounding Communities.   

Career fairs will be hosted throughout our Host and Surrounding Communities, at locations that are 

convenient to public transportation and parking.  We will host a minimum of four career fairs in the City of 

Everett prior to opening.  We will host career fairs on schedules accessible to career seekers who are currently 

employed and are not able to take time away from their current work schedule to attend, including evenings, 

weekends, and all-day events with multiple windows for attendance.  

Many career fairs and hiring events will be open to individuals who may not have had an opportunity to apply 

online. 

Panel Interviews  

We will utilize panel interviews as a way for hiring managers to meet large groups of candidates.  For several 

entry-level positions, an invitation to a panel interview will not require a resume.  All individuals who have 

applied for these positions will be invited to meet the hiring manager and participate in a group interview.  

Local and Diverse Community Partner Referral System 

WBHEBH has established a clear pathway for referrals from local Career Centers and diverse community 

partners.  We rely on these partners to understand our expectations and opportunities, and then connect their 

constituents to jobs for which they are well suited.  We have already seen the benefits of referral partnerships 

with regional career centers, with a few current members of the small but growing WBHEBH team sourced 

through relationships with career centers and community partners. Referrals from our community partners 

will be given special consideration, where possible.  We will continue to work with and source candidates from 

these critical partners. 

Encore will track referrals through the SkillSmart platform and will report back to community partners 

regarding successful referrals.  Community Partners may refer candidates to the Encore team by sending the 

referral and desired position directly to a member of the Encore employment team.  Referrals will be carefully 

reviewed by the employment team and will be provided, at minimum, the opportunity for a meet & greet or 

phone interview.  The Encore team will provide feedback to community partners regarding referred candidates 

to ensure that community partners are aware of successful referrals and understand reasons why unsuccessful 

candidates are not a fit for the position. 

Training for Hiring Managers: Behavioral Interviewing, Diversity & Inclusion for Interviewing 

All hiring managers will be trained in behavioral interviewing and inclusionary hiring.  WBHEBH is taking the 

extra step to provide training to all hiring managers to refine their skills in evaluating candidates based on 

behaviors that will be indicators of success.  The best way to prepare for strong retention is to find the best fit 

for a job from the start.  Managers will be trained to look for “transferable skills” to create opportunities 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

30 
 

where other employers may not have seen one.  Understanding the value of a diverse and inclusive workforce 

will be part of the training received by hiring managers, as well as strategies to minimize any potential sub-

conscious bias while interviewing.  From hiring a more qualified workforce, to reducing turnover costs, 

managers will see the business benefits of diversity and inclusion.   

All Hiring Managers will complete diversity and inclusion training as well as training on ways to mitigate 

unconscious bias during the hiring process.  Encore will work with a third party provider to deliver this training.  

 

Background Screening 

EBH follows Massachusetts law, which allows for employers to conduct a drug and background screening for 

every individual that is hired.   

For individuals with a CORI, EBH will aim to be as inclusive as possible and review each background check on a 

case by case basis.  In addition, the Mass Gaming Commission will designate positions that are exempt from 

licensing, further streamlining access to jobs. 

OBJECTIVE 4: DEVELOP & RETAIN 
Once initial hiring is complete, WBHEBH will be most successful if we create an environment in which 

individuals can professionally progress and thrive.  We will take a comprehensive approach to developing and 

retaining our team members, from competitive pay and benefits, to career pathways, to tuition 

reimbursement.   

The same level of outstanding service extended to our guests is extended to our team members. WBHEBH 

believes that only “people make people happy” and that our team members are best positioned to provide 

excellent service to our guests when their needs are met.  

Competitive Pay & Benefits 

We will offer industry competitive compensation and benefits including: 

• Paid time off 

• Paid sick time 

• Six weeks paid parental leave 

• Medical Insurance  

• Dental Insurance 

• Vision Insurance 

• Other Insurance (life, short- and long-term disability) 

• 401K with employer match 

• Flexible Spending Accounts for medical and childcare expenses 

• Tuition Reimbursement and Scholarship Fund 

• Negotiated childcare provider discount  



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

31 
 

• Team Member Wellness programs 

• Team Member Events and Volunteer Opportunities 

• Meals at the Employee Dining Room 

Onboarding & Orientation Training 

All new team members will go through on onboarding process that includes orientation and training. During 

orientation, new team members will be introduced to all EBH policies and receive safety, responsible gaming, 

emergency procedure, and sexual harassment training. This is our first step in setting up new employees for 

success and establishing an environment of respect and a culture of inclusion.  

Career Pathways  

For many individuals, a work environment with opportunities for advancement and growth is key to feeling 

fulfilled and happy in the work environment.  We will provide a wide range of career pathways, with many 

leaders in the Company progressing from entry level positions to executive leadership roles.   EBH is 

committed to promoting from within the organization.  



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

32 
 

Below are examples of Table Games and Culinary career pathways.  

 

Training & Education 

We believe that with the right attitude and aptitude, team members can be trained to work in any job they are 

passionate about.  Each operational department has a designated Training Manager that will provide on-the-

job training to team members.   

In addition to on-the-job skills training, we will provide leadership training for all supervisors and above. The 

leadership training curriculum includes the following: 

• Foundations of Leadership / Leadership 101 

• Active Listening 

• Effective Communication & Coaching 

• Team Building 

• Team Dynamics 

• Change Management 

• Task Management 

Dealer

(1-3 years)

Casino 

Team 
Lead

(2-4 
years)

Table 
Games 

Shift 
Manager

(3-5 
years)

Table 
Games 

Manager

(5-8 
years)

Table 
Games 

Director

(8-10 
years) 

Cook II

(1-3 years)

Cook I

(2-4 years)

Chef de 
Partie
(3-5 

years)

Assistant 
Chef / 

Chef de 
Cuisine

(5-8 
years)

Executive 
Chef

(8-10 
years) 

Dealer

(1-3 years)

Casino 

Team 
Lead

(2-4 
years)

Table 
Games Shift 

Manager

(3-5 years)

HS Degree 
or 

equivalent 
Required

Table 
Games 

Manager

(5-8 
years)

Table 
Games 

Director

(8-10 years)

Bachelors 
Degree or 
Equivalent 

exp. 
required 

Cook II

(1-3 years)

Cook I

(2-4 
years)

Chef de 
Partie
(3-5 

years)

Assistant 
Chef / Chef 
de Cuisine

(5-8 years)

HS Degree or 
equivalent 
Required

Executive 
Chef

(8-10 
years) 

Bachelors 
Degree or 
Equivalent 
experience 

required 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

33 
 

• Management Styles 

• Positive Reinforcement / Performance Management 

• SMART Goals 

The leadership training program provides a strong leadership foundation to new leaders and reinforces 

effective leadership skills for tenured managers.  

For aspiring managers, WBHEBH will have a “Manager in Training” program that allows promising front-line 

team members an opportunity to step into a leadership role with the support of a mentor and regular 

feedback from department heads.  

In addition to the leadership training provided to all supervisors and above, WBHEBH will offer a range ofthe 

following courses to all team members, free of charge.  These courses range from :  

• English as a Second Language, to Citizenship, to Finance.  English as a Second Language. These courses 

are contextualized by department, to ensure that team members are learning vocabulary that will help 

them succeed in their work environment.  

• WBH will offer GED courses to our team members who may be seeking to advance their education.   

Citizenship.  

• GED  

The Tuition Reimbursement program, mentioned in the Benefits section above, combined with access to GED 

and other training, will create a supportive environment for professional development and career success.  

Communication and Feedback 

One of our Core Values is “Always Strive to be Better.”  We are committed to continual improvement and 

supporting team members as they make professional progress.  We will implement a structure of daily positive 

reinforcement and constructive feedback as well as a structure for regular reviews, ensuring team members 

are aware of areas for improvement and the steps required to make the next move in their career. 

Storytelling  

Storytelling is a unique program that focuses on celebrating and recognizing daily successes of our team 

members.  Before each shift begins, managers gather their team for a pre-shift meeting.  As part of that 

meeting, team members are encouraged to share stories of exceptional guest service or examples of team 

members going above and beyond to serve their fellow team members.  Truly exceptional examples are 

brought to the attention of a manager, written about, and posted through all back-of-house areas, bringing 

special recognition to the outstanding performer.  Storytelling inspires, motivates, and emphasizes the 

importance of excellence across all levels of the organization and most importantly…storytelling has a positive 

impact on enhancing one’s self-esteem.  We help our team members take pride in their work and their 

abilities.  

Below are two recent Storytelling features: 

 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

34 
 

    



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

35 
 



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

36 
 

WeSave Program 

The WeSave Program provides team members access to discounts on a wide range of goods and services 

within their local community.  We will partner with local restaurants, shops, dry cleaners, and many other local 

vendors and service providers to offer special discounts to our team members.  

Employee Foundation and WECare Volunteer Program 

The Employee Foundation and the WECare Volunteer Program provide opportunities for WBHEBH team 

members to be involved in community service and contribute financially to organizations they care about, with 

a matching donation from WBHEBH. 

 

INTERNAL ACCOUNTABILITY & REPORTING: 
To successfully meet our local and diverse hiring goals and to fulfill the objectives laid out in this plan, a system 
of reporting and accountability will be required.  We will regularly review applicant and new hire data to 
monitor progress and ensure we are on track. 
 
WBHEBH established an internal Diversity & Workforce Development Council for operations that will meet on 
a regular basis to review diversity progress, identify areas for improvement, and develop ideas for strategic 
community engagement.  Regular meetings to review progress towards diversity goals is a best practice 
implemented during the design and construction phase of the WBHEBH development and played a critical role 
in our success in engaging a local and diverse workforce for construction.  We will make use of this best 
practice for operations.  The Diversity & Workforce Development Council will be led by our Vice President of 
Human Resources.  and will include five members from across the organization including Employment, Legal, 
and Operations. The Council will meet on a monthly basis.  The Council will review statistics on the existing 
team as well as diversity of incoming applicants. 
 
The Diversity & Workforce Development Council will meet on a regular basis and will report to WBHEBH 
executives on progress during regular senior management meetings.   
 
Department heads will be held responsible for meeting diversity goals within their departments for both 

manager and line level team members.  Corrective Action meetings will be held for departments that are not 

meeting the goals.  Encore will leverage partnerships with diverse partners and other outside resources to 

course correct if department diversity and diversity of the incoming talent pools are not on track for meeting 

goals. 

 

CONCLUSION 
We look forward to bringing over 4,000 careers to Everett, Massachusetts. We are excited to grow the 

WBHEBH team and to provide career paths to a local and diverse group of individuals.  The success of the 

WBHEBH resort will be greatest if we can bring a local and diverse group of individuals, with a broad range of 

talents, together to create an incredible hospitality experience for our guests.  



WYNNENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

March 26June 4, 2018 
 

DRAFT 
 

37 
 

We thank the many community, educational, diverse, and government partners that have supported our 

efforts and look forward to working with these partners as we undertake the monumental hiring task ahead.  

With the Plan outlined herein, we believe we will be successful in achieving our objectives to raise awareness; 

prepare career seekers; recruit and hire qualified, local, and diverse team members; and develop and retain an 

outstanding workforce.  

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

 

1 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
We owe our success to our employees, so the most important decision we make at our properties is 

always going to be "Who do we hire?" Once we find the perfect person for the job, everything else falls 

into place: the satisfied guests, the Five Star awards, and the continued growth of our company.  

Encore Boston Harbor (“EEBH”) is a luxury, global destination gaming resort located in Everett, 

Massachusetts that will feature 671 hotel rooms with sweeping views of the Boston skyline and Boston 

Harbor, ultra-premium spa, luxury retail, high-end dining, and state-of-the-art ballroom and meeting 

spaces. At $2.5 billion invested, the resort will be the largest private single-phase development in the 

history of the Commonwealth.  Situated on the waterfront along the Mystic River and connected to 

Boston Harbor, EBH will include a six-acre park along the water that will feature a Harborwalk, events 

lawn, and public viewing areas, ornate floral displays, and retail and dining experiences overlooking the 

water.   

EBH is currently under construction with resort opening anticipated June 2019.  Prior to opening, we will 

hire over 4,000 individuals for the resort opening team.  These team members will transform a beautiful 

building into a five-star luxury resort.  

This Workforce Development and Diversity Plan (this “Plan”) outlines our strategy to recruit, hire, and 

retain over 4,000 qualified, local, and diverse individuals for our resort team.  This Plan supports 

legislation included in the Gaming Act that calls for “establishing, funding and maintaining human 

resource hiring and training practices that promote the development of a skilled and diverse workforce” 

and the goal of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission to create opportunities for unemployed and 

under-employed individuals.   

We are confident that EBH will be a source of economic growth and opportunity for our Host 

Community of Everett, Surrounding Communities, the greater-region, and the entire Commonwealth. 

This Plan is the roadmap to ensuring the career opportunities created by EBH are as widespread as 

possible, and supports our business interests to have a local and diverse workforce well suited to serve 

our diverse guests. 

This Plan is a result of dozens of meetings and conversations with educators and community 

stakeholders regarding best practices for building a diverse and local workforce.  Since releasing the 

initial draft of the Plan in March 2018, we have held numerous meetings and received constructive 

feedback and ideas from numerous stakeholders.  This final draft reflects those conversations and the 

feedback and comments received.  We are grateful to our community stakeholders for their interest in 

the Plan and the time spent providing feedback.  We look forward to collaborating with the 

Massachusetts Gaming Commission, our Host, Surrounding, and Neighboring Communities, and 

numerous educational and diverse community partners to implement this Plan.  



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

 

2 
 

Our Objectives 

 

The following objectives form the basis for this Plan and are the drivers behind workforce development 
activities leading to the EBH opening in June 2019:   
 

1. Raise Awareness:  Before we can successfully recruit, we must ensure the community is aware 

of who we are as an employer, the upcoming career opportunities, the skills required for those 

opportunities, the application process, and the timeline for hiring.   

 

2. Prepare Career Seekers: We will work to ensure local and diverse career seekers are not only 

aware of the coming career opportunities, but are prepared to successfully apply for and 

succeed in those jobs.  We will connect job seekers with the training needed to develop skills 

required for our jobs. 

3. Recruit and Hire a Qualified, Local, and Diverse Workforce:  To open successfully, we need to 

recruit and hire a workforce that is qualified, local, and diverse. Hiring the right talent from the 

start will improve retention and support the success of ongoing resort operations. 

4. Develop and Retain: Once on board, we will create a work environment in which team 

members can thrive and pursue opportunities for professional growth.   

Each of these objectives is supported by activities and tactics outlined in the plan that follows.  
 
Objectives Timeline: 

 

 
 
 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

3 
 

OBJECTIVE 1: RAISE AWARENESS FOR EBH CAREER OPPORTUNITIES 
EBH is a new employer in Massachusetts and we look forward to providing our team members 

outstanding career opportunities, a supportive work environment, training, and competitive pay and 

benefits.  As a critical first step in the workforce development process, we must build understanding 

among the local workforce of our brand and offering as a company and an employer.   

We will work to raise awareness for the following:  

1) EBH as an employer: luxury hospitality employer providing competitive pay and benefits, 

training, and opportunities for professional growth;  

2) Available career opportunities and the skills required for those opportunities; 

3) Applicant requirements: attitude, skills, job fit, drug test, gaming license approval, background 

check; and  

4) Timeline and process for application.  

Commitment to Local and Diverse Outreach & Hiring 
 
We are committed to hiring a local workforce and know that locally-based employees contribute to 
business success.  When commuting times are limited, and individuals are able to work close to home, 
team members will be happier and better able to serve our guests.  We look forward to implementing 
the following hiring preferences: first, to residents of our Host Community - Everett; second, to our 
Surrounding Community of Malden; and third, to Surrounding Communities Boston, Cambridge, 
Chelsea, Somerville, and Medford.  These hiring preferences are outlined in our Host and Surrounding 
Community Agreements. EBH will use good faith efforts to hire no less than 75% of team members from 
within 30 minutes of Everett, as outlined in the Encore Boston Harbor gaming license conditions.  For 
the purposes of this Plan, and taking into account the widely variable commuting times in the region, we 
have defined “30 minutes” as residents of cities and towns that fall within 30 miles of the Resort site.    
 
Residents of the following cities will be counted as living within 30 minutes: 
 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

4 
 

 
 
 
We will also offer a hiring preference to qualified Suffolk Downs employees.  EBH, with the support of 
the Mass Gaming Commission, contacted all Suffolk Downs employees several years ago regarding 
career opportunities.  We have retained data for those Suffolk Downs employees who responded with 
their information and will use that information to provide regular updates and communication to those 
individuals.  All outreach and awareness raising efforts will focus on these communities and will also 
extend to our Neighboring Communities of Lynn and Melrose.   
 
In addition to hiring local residents, we believe that workforce diversity is a significant driver of business 
success. EBH has a culture of inclusion and commitment to equal opportunity for people regardless of 
race, religion, gender, age, sexual orientation, national origin, physical or mental handicap or disability 
and a culture in which all aspects of diversity are acknowledged and respected.  EBH will serve guests 
from all over the world and a wide variety of backgrounds; we need a diverse workforce to provide the 
best experience possible for those diverse guests.   
 
As we move forward with operational hiring, we will build a diverse workforce that is reflective of the 
broader community in which we operate.  We have reviewed the demographics of our Host and 
Surrounding Communities, as well as the demographics in the broader region.  While we are fortunate 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

5 
 

to be opening in a time of economic prosperity, we face an environment that includes an extremely low 
rate of unemployment. With over 4,000 positions to fill, and a tight labor market, we will create 
opportunities for our Host and Surrounding Communities as well as the broader region.    Based on 
previous resort opening experiences, we anticipate sourcing over 80,000 applicants to identify and hire 
our team of over 4,000.   
 

 

Community Demographics: 

1

 

                                                           
1 Data Sources:  U.S. Census Bureau (2016). American Community Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved from Census 

Reporter Profile page for Massachusetts <https://censusreporter.org/profiles/04000US25-massachusetts/>  

Massachusetts Department of Labor (2017). Labor Force and Unemployment Data. Retrieved from Labor Market 

Information < http://lmi2.detma.org/lmi/lmi_lur_a.asp#3/> 

 

Unemployment % Minority Population
Population in 

the Workforce 

Unemployed 

Individuals

Host and Surrounding 

Communities

Everett, Malden, Medford, 

Somerville, Boston, 

Cambridge, Chelsea

2.6% 48.8% 1,064,022 601,536 15,348

Counties: Host, 

Surrounding, Neighboring 

Communities

Essex, Middlesex, Suffolk 2.7% 34.5% 3,153,022 1,720,277 46,658

Counties within 30 mi 

Radius

Worcester, Essex, Middlesex, 

Suffolk, Norfolk, Plymouth, 

Bristol

2.9% 28.4% 5,741,681 3,085,600 90,604



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

6 
 

 

Massachusetts Veteran Demographics: 

2 

 
We have set the following workforce diversity goals to reflect the diversity of our community and 
region.  We will work with the Massachusetts Gaming Commission, our community partners, and our 
Host and Surrounding Communities to achieve and exceed these goals in each department, front and 
back of house, and for both management and line level workforce. 

 
Women: 50%  
EBH is committed to gender equity for its workforce, both in recruiting and in compensation.  
Our goal is to hire women as 50% of our workforce.  We will pay equally for positions, regardless 
of the gender of the individual in that position.   
 
Minorities: 40%  
The minority goal reflects the makeup of our broader community, and takes into account the 
hiring preference for residents of our Host & Surrounding Communities.  The broader region 
from which we will source candidates, includes the following counties: Essex, Middlesex, Suffolk, 
Norfolk, Plymouth, and Bristol.  The demographics of these counties includes 28% minorities.  To 
reflect the demographics of the region, as well as our preference for our Host & Surrounding 
Communities, which include 49% minorities across a much smaller population, we have set a 
goal of hiring a minimum of 40% minorities. EBH will utilize the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts definition of Minority3. 

 
Veterans: 3%  
EBH sees tremendous value in the skillset and experience of veterans, and is committed to 
providing opportunities for individuals who have served our country.  Of the 5.7% veteran 
population in Massachusetts, roughly half are veterans of recent conflicts and are actively 
engaged in the workforce.  Following discussions with veteran community stakeholders, 
including the Disabled American Veterans and the City of Everett Director of Veteran Services, 

                                                           
2 Data Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2016). American Community Survey 1-year estimates. Retrieved from Census 

Reporter Profile page for Massachusetts https://censusreporter.org/profiles/04000US25-massachusetts/  
 
3 https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleII/Chapter7C/Section6 

https://censusreporter.org/profiles/04000US25-massachusetts/


ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

7 
 

we have set a goal of hiring 3% veterans as part of our workforce, reflecting the portion of 
veterans in the Commonwealth who are active in the workforce. 
 

We will place particular emphasis on raising employer brand and career opportunity awareness within 

our Host, Surrounding, and Neighboring Communities, Suffolk Downs employees, and among 

unemployed, diverse, and Veteran populations. All outreach activities, including job fairs, events, and 

targeted marketing, will be implemented first and foremost in our Host & Surrounding Communities. 

Hiring Preference Mechanics: Host & Surrounding Communities; Suffolk Downs employees 

As outlined in our Host & Surrounding Community Agreements, Encore Boston Harbor will extend a 

hiring preference to residents of the following communities: 1) Everett, 2) Malden, and 3) Boston, 

Cambridge, Chelsea, Medford, Somerville. A preference will also be extended to current and former 

Suffolk Downs employees. 

The mechanics of these preferences in hiring will be implemented as follows: 

For positions where individual resume review is the primary method of selection: 

- EVERETT resumes will be reviewed FIRST with qualified Everett residents receiving the first calls 
for interview 

- MALDEN resumes will be reviewed SECOND with qualified Malden residents receiving second 
calls for interviews 

- BOSTON, CAMBRIDGE, CHELSEA, MEDFORD, SOMERVILLE, SUFFOLK DOWNS resumes will be 
reviewed THIRD with qualified residents receiving priority calls for interviews 

- Resumes of Residents of the designated counties will be reviewed following the residents above.  
 

For positions where group or open call interviews are the typical approach (typical for high volume 

positions): 

- Priority access and dedicated time slots will be provided to Everett residents.  For example: if 
meet & greets and group interviews are scheduled from 10am – 2pm, Everett residents will be 
interviewed in the first slots from 10am – 11am.  We will invite Everett residents in advance for 
priority access interviews and will also fast track residents who show their ID with Everett 
address.   

- Next priority access will be given to Malden residents, with similarly designated advance times 
for meet & greets and interviews.  

- Following the times designated for Everett and Malden, time will be allocated for interviews 
with residents of the Surrounding Communities and Suffolk Downs employees.  
 

Open call interviews for all interested career seekers will follow the three priority interview 
time slots outlined above, or will be held on a separate day. 
 
Our Careers: Summary & Timeline 
 

A wide range of careers will be available across the 4,000+ positions, ranging from gourmet server to 
sous chef to accountant.  Each full-time position provides competitive pay, benefits, and a pathway for 
growth.  We will use a range of outreach channels to ensure that career seekers are aware of these job 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

8 
 

opportunities, skills required by each, and timelines for applications and hiring.  The job titles 
highlighted below are examples of line level positions.  For each of the areas listed below there are 
corresponding management level positions.  High volume positions, as well as positions that are open to 
English Language Learners, are noted.  
 

 
 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

9 
 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

10 
 

The following are outreach and awareness raising initiatives that will be continued or newly 

implemented to support our objective to Raise Awareness. 

SkillSmart 

EBH is working to develop a career and skills exploration platform, driven by SkillSmart technology, that 
will play a key role in achieving success across several of our workforce development plan objectives: 1) 
Raising Awareness; 2) Preparing Career Seekers; and 3) Local & Diverse Recruiting & Hiring.  The 
SkillSmart platform will help job seekers:  
 

1. Learn about career opportunities with EBH;  
2. Understand the skills required and preferred for each position;  
3. Learn how their existing skills and experiences align with positions of interest; and  
4. Connect with training resources available for skill development that will enhance their ability to 

successfully apply for positions of interest.   
 
In addition to being a resource for job seekers and educators, the SkillSmart platform will provide EBH 
the capability to review the prospective candidate pool to determine interest in key career 
opportunities, understand any skills gaps, and tailor our outreach strategies. 
 
The SkillSmart platform will serve as a basis for informing career seekers regarding the specific skills 

required for each available career, and will connect them with local educational and training resources 

that can enhance skills needed for success in our careers.  

 

The EBH Talent Network  

The EBH Talent Network is a portal for 

individuals interested in working for EBH to 

quickly submit their information and receive 

updates regarding job postings, career fairs, 

and more.  Job seekers use the Talent 

Network to submit their contact 

information, select areas of career interest, 

and upload a resume, if they choose (this 

step is not required).   

Through our outreach efforts as of May 

2018, we have gathered information from 

over 9,890 job seekers via the EBH Talent 

Network portal.  We will use the existing EBH 

Talent Network database to notify 

individuals of the SkillSmart launch, dealer school and other training opportunities, job fairs, job postings 

and more.   



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

11 
 

SkillSmart and the Talent Network are useful tools for exploring future job opportunities and training 

and staying updated, but are not used for application.  EBH will clearly brand these two tools, and our 

application portal, to avoid confusion for career seekers and community organizations.  

  

EBH Career Center   

The EBH Career Center will open fall 2018 and will be a central hub for activity and learning about our 

careers and timelines.  Our Career Center will be located at 101 Station Landing in Medford, 

conveniently situated at the Wellington Station MBTA Orange Line stop.  The Career Center also has 

ample parking for individuals traveling by vehicle to meet with us and is ADA accessible.     

The Career Center will be staffed during regular business hours and will provide support and resources 

for job seekers, including guidance and information regarding upcoming career availability.  Additionally, 

computer terminals will be located at the Career Center where individuals can join the EBH Talent 

Network, apply for jobs, create a SkillSmart profile, and find information regarding local skills training 

resources.    

We will provide personal support to individuals who need help navigating SkillSmart or other web-based 

job application tools.  We invite job seekers to meet with us, learn about EBH as a company and 

employer, and learn about the upcoming career opportunities.   

Network of Geographically Strategic Physical Locations / EBH Career Support Hubs 

We understand the importance of providing access to in-person support and computers where job 

seekers can speak to someone about the process, and receive assistance with using the online portals 

for applications and using the SkillSmart platform.  We also understand that having multiple locations, in 

addition to the EBH Career Center, will facilitate access for a broader range of individuals.   

To meet this need, we will support a network of geographically strategic physical locations / EBH Career 

Support Hubs where individuals can gain access to a computer, receive support for EBH-related job 

searches and use of EBH career online tools including the EBH Talent Network, the online application 

portal, and SkillSmart.  We will leverage a combination of Encore locations, career centers, and cultural 

centers.  We will staff EBH representatives, train representatives from the host location organization, or 

provide informational materials to provide support to career seekers at each of these locations.    

1. EBH will have a Satellite Career Center at Everett City Hall.  This office will be regularly staffed 

by our team and will provide a second location where Everett residents can access a computer, 

receive support, and speak with an HR representative about employment opportunities.  We will 

have regular office hours with multi-lingual representatives of the Encore recruitment team for 

community members who may need support in a language other than English. 

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

12 
 

2. Regional One-Stop Career Centers4, serving unemployed individuals and covering our Host & 

Surrounding Communities.  A designated Career Center staff member will be trained by our 

team to support job seekers in using the Talent Network, SkillSmart, and our Application Portal.    

a. Career Source – Chelsea 

b. Career Source – Cambridge 

c. Boston Career Link – Roxbury  

d. JVS Career Solutions – Boston 

 

3. Local Community Centers Serving Diverse Populations with computer access and personnel 

support.  Similar to the Career Centers, we will train representatives at each of these locations 

to provide assistance to job seekers interested in a career with EBH. 

a. La Communidad – Everett 

b. Everett Haitian Community Center – Everett 

c. Chelsea Collaborative - Chelsea 

d. ABCD (Action for Boston Community Development) Mystic Valley Opportunity Center - 

Malden 

e. Urban League of Eastern Massachusetts - Roxbury 

f. Somerville Community Corporation - Somerville 

g. Asian American Civic Association – Boston 

h. City of Cambridge Office of Workforce Development - Cambridge 

 

4. Local Public Libraries are a place where community members can access computers and the 

internet.  We will provide the public libraries with clear, easy-to-use instructions for online EBH 

career tools.  

a. Everett 

b. Malden 

c. Medford 

d. Charlestown (Boston) 

e. Grove Hall - Dorchester 

f. Somerville 

g. Chelsea 

h. Cambridge 

                                                           
4 https://www.mass.gov/service-details/find-a-career-center-near-you  

https://www.mass.gov/service-details/find-a-career-center-near-you


ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

13 
 

 

Career Fairs 

Career fairs are required by Encore’s Host and Surrounding Community Agreements and are a great way 

to connect with community members.  

We know that a personal interaction between our hiring managers and job seekers cannot be replaced 

with a digital experience.  Over the last four years, EBH has participated in dozens of career fairs, and 

plans to continue with these efforts,  attending fairs hosted by our community partners, and hosting our 

own career fairs leading up to major department hiring.  We know that a personal interaction between 

our team, our hiring managers, and job seekers is crucial to connecting to the local community and job 

seekers.  The digital experience is designed for convenience; we will connect personally with as many 

candidates as we can.   



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

14 
 

Career seekers may check the EBH website for regular updates regarding career fairs.  A summary of 

career fairs attended in March, April, and May, and planned for June, 2018 is below: 

 

• March 1st: Lasell College Hospitality Day Career Fair 

• March 26th: Informational Session at Endicott College School of Hospitality  

• March 29th:  Roxbury Community College Job Fair  

• March 29th: El Mundo Latino Career Fair  

• April 2nd:  Affinity Leadership Consortium (ALC) Career Fair – ALC is a collaboration of greater 

Boston area diverse professional groups. 

• April 26th: Mayor of Boston’s Neighborhood Career Fair – Mattapan 

• April 28th: Chelsea Collaborative Community Day  

• May 1st: Boston Herald Diversity Job Fair 

• May 5th:  North American Indian Center of Boston Career Fair 

• May 15th: La Comunidad Career Information Session 

• May 19th:  Women's Veterans Network Annual Fair 

• May 22nd: First Source Jobs/Somerville Community Corporation Career Fair 

• June 14th: Urban League of Eastern Mass Career Fair – Roxbury 

• June 18th : Asian American Civic Association Career Information Session 

• June 28th: Mayor of Boston’s Neighborhood Career Fair - Dorchester 

We will continue to collaborate with partners to host and attend Career Fairs that will help us reach 

local, minority, female, veteran, and disadvantaged members of the community.  

Encore held a dedicated career information session for Suffolk Downs workers in 2017.  We will host at 

least one additional, dedicated career information session for Suffolk Downs workers.  

Starting in June 2018, Encore will host monthly informational sessions, in coordination with our 

community partners.  These information sessions will rotate through our Host & Surrounding 

Communities. 

Regular Update Meetings with Community Representatives  

EBH has established a structure of quarterly update meetings with our community partners, focusing on 

small group engagement with diverse populations and regional career centers serving unemployed 

populations.  We understand the importance of community partners in disseminating information to 

career seekers and supporting efforts to recruit qualified, local, and diverse talent for our open 

positions.  We have established clear lines for candidate referrals for each of these groups.   

The following quarterly update meetings are in place: 

1. Latino Community – convened by the Hispanic American Institute, Chelsea Collaborative, and La 

Comunidad 

2. Black Community – convened by Urban League of Eastern Massachusetts 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

15 
 

3. Asian Community – convened by the Asian American Civic Association and James Chan, former 

Chief of Staff to Boston City Councilor Bill Linehan 

4. Local Community Career Advisors – convened by the Metro-North Regional Employment Board 

and the Private Industry Council 

5. Veteran Community - convened by the Disabled American Veterans (DAV) and the Director of 

Veteran Services for the City of Everett 

Grassroots Outreach in Partnership with Community Based Organizations 

Encore has built relationships with dozens of community based organizations, training providers, 

educational institutions, and government entities over the last several years.  We will continue our work 

with these organizations to raise awareness for career opportunities and to enhance our ability to 

connect with local, diverse, and economically disadvantaged individuals. In May 2018, Encore provided 

trainings for over 60 representatives from career centers, training providers, and community-based 

organizations who will provide support to career seekers.  We will work with local CBOs in the following 

manner: 

• Provide organization representatives with training for using Encore career tools  

• Include on regular communication regarding positions available for application, upcoming hiring 

events, and updates regarding the hiring process 

• Coordinate career information sessions and job fairs on site with these organizations 

• Participate in career fairs and other community events hosted by organizations 

• Provide outreach materials 

• Provide a designated point of contact with the Encore recruitment team for candidate referrals 

and questions 

• When requested and appropriate, we will set up regular Encore recruitment team “office hours” 

with these organizations 

Encore will rely on our community partners to help us reach local and diverse individuals, advertise 

career opportunities, and refer candidates for job openings and career fairs.  We will track candidate 

referrals from partners via the SkillSmart system.  

 

OUR PARTNERS 

 
With the monumental task ahead, we know we cannot achieve our goals alone.  We will rely on strong 
partnerships with local government, community, and educational partners to help us engage, prepare, 
and recruit an exceptional team.



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

16 
 

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

17 
 

Social & Traditional Media   

EBH will launch a comprehensive and targeted employment outreach campaign to inform career seekers 

about our company and who we are as an employer, our jobs, timelines, and job requirements.  The 

outreach campaign will be launched in summer 2018.  The outreach campaign will focus on reaching 

unemployed individuals, diverse community members, and residents of our Host & Surrounding 

Communities as well as the broader region.  

We will adopt a wide range of marketing tactics to ensure that virtually every potential candidate is 

reached.  The campaign will be multi-lingual, with a focus on key languages spoken in our local 

communities: Spanish, Chinese, Haitian, and Portuguese.  The employment brand marketing plan will be 

implemented through the following channels: 

• Social Media 

• Digital Media  

• Place-based 

• Radio 

• Events 

• Out of Home: billboards, transit, bus stops, etc. 

• PR outreach 

• Print – local news publications 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

18 
 

OBJECTIVE 2: PREPARE CAREER SEEKERS 
EBH will work to ensure that local career seekers are not only aware of the upcoming career 

opportunities, but are prepared to successfully enter those career paths.   

We believe that individuals with the right personalities and basic aptitude can be trained to succeed in 

almost any role.  We are looking for job seekers who are eager to serve guests, serve their fellow team 

members, and to work hard, all with a positive attitude.  Those attributes cannot be trained.  The best 

way for job seekers to prepare is to, first, gain some on-the-job experience in a hospitality role prior to 

applying with EBH; and second, to enhance any needed skills through training and education.  

We will help career seekers prepare by building both hard skills (i.e. culinary and table games dealing) as 

well as soft skills like career readiness, communication, management, and customer service. The 

following hard-skills areas will be of particular focus: 

• English as a Second Language 

• Basic computer skills  

• Culinary 

• Casino – Dealer 

• Casino – Surveillance 
 

SkillSmart 

EBH is working to develop a career and skills exploration platform, driven by SkillSmart technology, that 
will play a key role in achieving success across several of our workforce development plan objectives: 1) 
Raising Awareness; 2) Preparing Career Seekers; and 3) Local & Diverse Recruiting & Hiring.  The 
SkillSmart platform will help job seekers:  
 

5. Learn about career opportunities with EBH;  
6. Understand the skills required and preferred for each position;  
7. Learn how their existing skills and experiences align with positions of interest; and  
8. Connect with training resources available for skill development that will enhance their ability to 

successfully apply for positions of interest.   
 
In addition to being a resource for job seekers and educators, the SkillSmart platform will provide EBH 
the capability to review the prospective candidate pool to determine interest in key career 
opportunities, understand any skills gaps, and tailor our outreach strategies.  The SkillSmart platform 
will track referrals from community partners.  
 
The SkillSmart platform will serve as a basis for informing career seekers regarding the specific skills 

required for each available career, and will connect them with local educational and training resources 

that can enhance skills needed for success in our careers. The Greater Boston Gaming Career Institute 

and local educational partners will play a critical role in supporting our ability to meet this objective, and 

be a critical piece of the SkillSmart career and skills training exploration platform.    



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

19 
 

SkillSmart will connect career seekers with educational and training resources specific to the skills 

required by EBH opportunities. A wide range of educational and training resources will be featured on 

the platform, from community college courses to online learning to skills training programs and adult 

education hosted at local high schools.  Bunker Hill Community College, Roxbury Community College, 

and North Shore Community College have provided or will provide course details that will correspond 

with specific skills required by positions at Encore.  Career seekers will be able to view a position they 

are interested in, see the skills required by that job, and click through to specific courses they can take 

that will enhance their skills if needed.  

 

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

20 
 

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

21 
 

Greater Boston Gaming Career Institute  

Subject to approval by the Massachusetts Gaming Commission, EBH will partner with Cambridge College to 

open a gaming careers school to prepare individuals to become dealers and casino surveillance specialists. EBH 

will provide the curriculum, equipment, teachers, and expertise for the program. Cambridge College will 

provide the space and administrative support for the Institute.  EBH will employ approximately 1,000 full time 

and part time dealers for the casino operation.  We expect roughly half of the individuals hired for these roles 

to be trained at the local Gaming Careers Institute.   

Details for the Institute are as follows: 

• LOCATION: The Gaming Career Institute will be located in Charlestown, Boston less than two miles 

from the resort location, and will be accessible via Orange Line public transportation.  

 

• SCHEDULE: Courses are expected to begin the second week of September.  The course is 16 weeks 

long with classes held five days per week, Monday through Friday.  Three scheduling options will be 

available to accommodate schedule needs of those who wish to take the course.  Makeup days will be 

held on Saturdays.  The second semester of the Gaming Careers Institute is expected to begin on 

Tuesday, January 22nd, completing in early May 2019 in time for the June 2019 opening.  

o 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

o 1:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

o 6:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. 

 

• COST: The cost of the course will be $1,100. 

 

• CURRICULUM: The curriculum comprises just over 300 hours of training and includes two casino 

games, customer service, CPR, and responsible gaming.  This training provides students with a broad 

skillset that prepares them to be a table games dealer or to take on a role that leverage customer 

service, CPR, and responsible gaming skills (i.e. casino host or security).  To pass the class, students will 

need to pass a final, simulation “audition” that will prepare them for an audition for a casino role.  

• APPLICATION PROCESS: Each student who wishes to attend the Gaming Institute must apply.  The 

application process will take place in August 2018 and will include:  

o Basic math aptitude test to demonstrate ability to do basic math required for table games 

dealing 

o Basic written application with acknowledgement and confirmation of willingness to: work 

flexible hours (nights, weekends, holidays); pass a background screening, pass a drug test, 

become licensed with the Massachusetts Gaming Commission.  

o Panel interview with representatives from Cambridge College and Encore Boston Harbor.  

During this brief  interview, we will assess whether each candidate has the right attitude and 

personality for a position as a table games dealer.  

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

22 
 

• COMMITMENT TO HIRE: Encore Boston Harbor commits to hiring 100% of individuals that: graduate 

from the Gaming Institute including passing the final, simulation audition; pass a drug test; clear 

background screening; and receive a gaming license from the Massachusetts Gaming Commission.   

 

• STUDENT RECRUITMENT: EBH will launch targeted advertising and marketing to ensure that local and 

diverse potential students are aware of the Gaming Institute program, timeline for application, cost, 

and career opportunities made available by the program.  We will turn to our Community Partners to 

ensure community members are informed about the Gaming Institute, and to refer student 

candidates. 

 

Scholarships & Student Support 

EBH will sponsor Gaming Career Institute financial need based scholarships, fully funding 50 individuals to 

complete the Gaming Institute course.  Our community partners will support the scholarships by 

recommending individuals for these scholarships.  Ten scholarship spots will be allocated to Everett residents.  

The Scholarships will provide opportunities for Everett and surrounding community residents, veterans, and 

minorities, who are in need of financial support to complete the Gaming Career Institute curriculum.  One half 

of the scholarships will be awarded to women.   Scholarship recipients will be determined by Cambridge 

College, which will use their financial aid office and procedures to determine financial need.   

As part of Cambridge College’s continued focus on access to education, they are committed to exploring and 

identifying options for individuals to afford to participate in the Gaming Career Institute.  Cambridge College 

knows that there will be significant number of employment opportunities provided by EBH, and wants to 

ensure that the widest spectrum of individuals can enroll.  To do this, Cambridge College will seek to find 

financial aid for training from multiple sources.   

Cambridge College is currently aware of funding being available for these types of training programs and is 

pursuing these dollars through all possible options, exploring alternatives that may capitalize on Individual 

Training Accounts through One Stop Career Centers, Section 30 Training Opportunity Program support, and 

Trade Adjustment Assistance.  In each case the Cambridge College team will work to identify and communicate 

all of the required steps for potential candidates to access available federal resources. 

Cambridge College will also seek out partnerships or funding sources that can target segments of the 

population as a whole by pursuing Workforce Development Grant funding earmarked for the Gaming 

Commission, in particular with the goal of ensuring access for underserved and underrepresented populations.  

Finally, Cambridge College will also reach out to neighboring cities and towns that have been fortunate 

recipients of casino mitigation dollars, to examine their willingness to possibly provide training grants to 

targeted communities under their jurisdiction.   

Cambridge College is actively considering options for students of the Greater Boston Gaming Career Institute 

to be able to link this experience to degree attainment.  The possibility of assigning prior learning assessment 

credits for students who successfully complete this program, could eventually be articulated into certificate, 

associate or bachelor’s degree credentials. Discussions are underway to develop this as a pathway in a 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

23 
 

structured relationship between Cambridge College, Bunker Hill Community College, and Roxbury Community 

College. 

Culinary Training 

The Massachusetts Executive Office of Labor and Workforce Development estimates over 14% growth in 

demand for restaurant cooks between 2014 and 2024 in Massachusetts5, translating to demand for over 3,000 

new employees in restaurant cook roles.  EBH will employ roughly 300 individuals in line level cook positions.    

Encore is aware of the existing, regional culinary skills gap and has taken steps to address that gap.  The EBH 

Executive Chef and human resources team are working with the Massachusetts Professional Association of 

Culinary Trainers (MPACT), a consortium of regional culinary training providers that includes Community 

Servings, NECAT, SnapChef, Future Chefs, and more.   We will feature culinary training programs on the 

SkillSmart platform and will continue to engage with local culinary training providers to help prepare 

individuals for culinary roles at Encore. In addition to working with the MPACT, EBH will recruit from the 

culinary program at Bunker Hill Community College and other local schools.  We will provide competitive 

wages and benefits, supporting our efforts to recruit in an environment with high demand for culinary 

workers.   

English as a Second Language (ESOL) 

Encore will hire for over 900 positions that do not require fluent English.  These positions range from Cook to 

Porter to Traffic Attendant and are highlighted in the career summary on page 7.   Once hired, Encore will 

partner with local ESOL providers to offer all team members English as a second language courses free of 

charge. Prior to opening, EBH will work with local ESOL providers to ensure that individuals are aware of ESOL 

resources and are able to take advantage of them to prepare for a career at Encore.   

EBH will reach out to state-funded and other ESOL programs and will invite locally based ESOL providers to 

attend career information sessions where they can connect with career seekers.  ESOL providers will also be 

included on the SkillSmart platform.  

Local Education and Training Providers 

EBH will work closely with local educational and training providers for culinary, hospitality, general & 

administrative, and other jobs.   

Bunker Hill Community College will be a key resource for community members seeking to enhance their skills 

in anticipation of applying for a position with EBH.  Bunker Hill’s online and in person courses available in 

culinary arts, hotel and restaurant management, and more will be featured on the SkillSmart platform.  In 

addition to connecting community members with the tremendous learning resources available at Bunker Hill 

Community College, we will partner with Bunker Hill to identify student candidates for our roles and 

collaborate on job fairs.  Bunker Hill students and alumni will be a key recruiting target, particularly for culinary 

roles.   

                                                           
5 Source: http://lmi2.detma.org/Lmi/Occupation_Projection.asp?Area=01000025long  

http://lmi2.detma.org/Lmi/Occupation_Projection.asp?Area=01000025long


ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

24 
 

Roxbury Community College, North Shore Community College, and other locally based Community Colleges 

will be key partners for providing classroom training to career seekers.  EBH will include Roxbury and North 

Shore Community Colleges on the SkillSmart platform and will engage with Roxbury and North Shore 

Community College students and alumni as candidates for resort positions.  

EBH will continue to work with the New England Center for Arts and Technology (NECAT) to provide culinary 

training opportunities for disadvantages community members.  NECAT held its first culinary class at the new 

location at Everett High School.  A second class is now underway in Everett. EBH will recruit NECAT graduates 

for culinary roles.    

BEST Corp. will partner with EBH as a training provider for hotel operations positions.  The BEST Corp. training 

locations in Medford and Roxbury, both accessible via the Orange Line, will be a convenient training resource 

for career seekers in our Host & Surrounding Communities.  

The academic institutions and training providers listed above are just a few examples of the dozens of among 

training providers we have connected with; we continue to reach out to other training resources that can 

support local and diverse career seekers as they prepare for EBH opportunities.  Training partners are included 

in the list on page 15.  

 

  



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

25 
 

OBJECTIVE 3: RECRUIT & HIRE A QUALIFIED, LOCAL & DIVERSE WORKFORCE 
EBH’s ultimate goal is to recruit, onboard, and retain a qualified, local, and diverse workforce.  To accomplish 

this objective, we will build on the outreach and training efforts outlined above and will work to create an 

efficient and inclusive hiring process.  

Applicant Tracking System 

EBH will utilize an Applicant Tracking System (“ATS”) and applicant portal for the resort opening, allowing us to 

communicate and follow up with applicants, supporting a positive candidate experience.  The ATS will provide 

the recruitment team with data regarding gender, ethnicity, veteran status, and residency of applicants.  We 

will use this information to ensure that we are receiving applications from diverse and local candidates.    

Career opportunities will be posted on the applicant portal well in advance of hiring decision dates (at least 10 

weeks) to ensure there is ample time for job seekers to learn about the opportunity, apply, and go through the 

hiring process.  

As outlined on the hiring timeline on page 9, positions will be posted for application in January and February of 

2019, with interviews following in March and April.  

Inclusive Job Descriptions & Job Requirements 

We will be hiring for over 450 different job titles.  As a key element of preparation for recruiting and hiring, the 

EBH team created job descriptions for these positions, closely evaluating each included job requirement and 

ensuring that no educational or experience credential was listed as “required” unless that requirement is 

absolutely essential to the success of the business.  The job descriptions are written to be clear and detailed, 

and as inclusive as possible.  

We will not require a high school degree or equivalent for several of our positions up to a supervisor level.  We 

believe this standard will open our jobs to a broader range of individuals who may not have had the 

opportunity to complete high school or a GED prior to entering the workforce.  EBH will provide team 

members access to GED classes free of charge once the resort is open and stabilized.  For many positions, we 

will not require prior experience, and will provide on-the-job training to support inexperienced team members. 

Career Fairs & Mass Hiring Events 

Career Fairs, as previously discussed, will be a method for raising awareness, but will also play a critical role in 

large-scale departmental hiring.  EBH will host targeted career fairs for hotel, food & beverage, casino, 

security, and other departments, where applicants will meet hiring managers, interview, and be notified, in 

many cases the same-day, of hiring decisions and next steps.  Our Community Partners will be asked to help 

advertise hiring events and to send referrals to career fairs and hiring events.   

As outlined on the hiring timeline shown on page 9, hiring events will take place in February, March, and April 

of 2019.  During these months, we will interview thousands of individuals to find those who are the best fit for 

the EBH team.  

As described above, priority access at Hiring Events will be provided to residents of Everett and Encore’s 

Surrounding Communities.   



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

26 
 

Career fairs will be hosted throughout our Host and Surrounding Communities, at locations that are 

convenient to public transportation and parking.  We will host a minimum of four career fairs in the City of 

Everett prior to opening.  We will host career fairs on schedules accessible to career seekers who are currently 

employed and are not able to take time away from their current work schedule to attend, including evenings, 

weekends, and all-day events with multiple windows for attendance.  

Many career fairs and hiring events will be open to individuals who may not have had an opportunity to apply 

online. 

Panel Interviews  

We will utilize panel interviews as a way for hiring managers to meet large groups of candidates.  For several 

entry-level positions, an invitation to a panel interview will not require a resume.  All individuals who have 

applied for these positions will be invited to meet the hiring manager and participate in a group interview.  

Local and Diverse Community Partner Referral System 

EBH has established a clear pathway for referrals from local Career Centers and diverse community partners.  

We rely on these partners to understand our expectations and opportunities, and then connect their 

constituents to jobs for which they are well suited.  We have already seen the benefits of referral partnerships 

with regional career centers, with a few current members of the small but growing EBH team sourced through 

relationships with career centers and community partners. Referrals from our community partners will be 

given special consideration, where possible.  We will continue to work with and source candidates from these 

critical partners. 

Encore will track referrals through the SkillSmart platform and will report back to community partners 

regarding successful referrals.  Community Partners may refer candidates to the Encore team by sending the 

referral and desired position directly to a member of the Encore employment team.  Referrals will be carefully 

reviewed by the employment team and will be provided, at minimum, the opportunity for a meet & greet or 

phone interview.  The Encore team will provide feedback to community partners regarding referred candidates 

to ensure that community partners are aware of successful referrals and understand reasons why unsuccessful 

candidates are not a fit for the position. 

Training for Hiring Managers: Behavioral Interviewing, Diversity & Inclusion for Interviewing 

All hiring managers will be trained in behavioral interviewing and inclusionary hiring.  EBH is taking the extra 

step to provide training to all hiring managers to refine their skills in evaluating candidates based on behaviors 

that will be indicators of success.  The best way to prepare for strong retention is to find the best fit for a job 

from the start.  Managers will be trained to look for “transferable skills” to create opportunities where other 

employers may not have seen one.  Understanding the value of a diverse and inclusive workforce will be part 

of the training received by hiring managers, as well as strategies to minimize any potential sub-conscious bias 

while interviewing.  From hiring a more qualified workforce, to reducing turnover costs, managers will see the 

business benefits of diversity and inclusion.   

All Hiring Managers will complete diversity and inclusion training as well as training on ways to mitigate 

unconscious bias during the hiring process.  Encore will work with a third party provider to deliver this training.  



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

27 
 

 

Background Screening 

EBH follows Massachusetts law, which allows for employers to conduct a drug and background screening for 

every individual that is hired.   

For individuals with a CORI, EBH will aim to be as inclusive as possible and review each background check on a 

case by case basis.  In addition, the Mass Gaming Commission will designate positions that are exempt from 

licensing, further streamlining access to jobs. 

OBJECTIVE 4: DEVELOP & RETAIN 
Once initial hiring is complete, EBH will be most successful if we create an environment in which individuals 

can professionally progress and thrive.  We will take a comprehensive approach to developing and retaining 

our team members, from competitive pay and benefits, to career pathways, to tuition reimbursement.   

The same level of outstanding service extended to our guests is extended to our team members. EBH believes 

that only “people make people happy” and that our team members are best positioned to provide excellent 

service to our guests when their needs are met.  

Competitive Pay & Benefits 

We will offer industry competitive compensation and benefits including: 

• Paid time off 

• Paid sick time 

• Six weeks paid parental leave 

• Medical Insurance  

• Dental Insurance 

• Vision Insurance 

• Other Insurance (life, short- and long-term disability) 

• 401K with employer match 

• Flexible Spending Accounts for medical and childcare expenses 

• Tuition Reimbursement and Scholarship Fund 

• Negotiated childcare provider discount  

• Team Member Wellness programs 

• Team Member Events and Volunteer Opportunities 

• Meals at the Employee Dining Room 

Onboarding & Orientation Training 

All new team members will go through on onboarding process that includes orientation and training. During 

orientation, new team members will be introduced to all EBH policies and receive safety, responsible gaming, 

emergency procedure, and sexual harassment training. This is our first step in setting up new employees for 

success and establishing an environment of respect and a culture of inclusion.  



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

28 
 

Career Pathways  

For many individuals, a work environment with opportunities for advancement and growth is key to feeling 

fulfilled and happy in the work environment.  We will provide a wide range of career pathways, with many 

leaders in the Company progressing from entry level positions to executive leadership roles.   EBH is 

committed to promoting from within the organization.  

Below are examples of Table Games and Culinary career pathways.  

 

Training & Education 

We believe that with the right attitude and aptitude, team members can be trained to work in any job they are 

passionate about.  Each operational department has a designated Training Manager that will provide on-the-

job training to team members.   

In addition to on-the-job skills training, we will provide leadership training for all supervisors and above. The 

leadership training curriculum includes the following: 

• Foundations of Leadership / Leadership 101 

• Active Listening 

• Effective Communication & Coaching 

• Team Building 

• Team Dynamics 

• Change Management 

• Task Management 

• Management Styles 

• Positive Reinforcement / Performance Management 

• SMART Goals 

The leadership training program provides a strong leadership foundation to new leaders and reinforces 

effective leadership skills for tenured managers.  

Dealer

(1-3 years)

Casino 

Team 
Lead

(2-4 
years)

Table 
Games Shift 

Manager

(3-5 years)

HS Degree 
or 

equivalent 
Required

Table 
Games 

Manager

(5-8 
years)

Table 
Games 

Director

(8-10 years)

Bachelors 
Degree or 
Equivalent 

exp. 
required 

Cook II

(1-3 years)

Cook I

(2-4 
years)

Chef de 
Partie
(3-5 

years)

Assistant 
Chef / Chef 
de Cuisine

(5-8 years)

HS Degree or 
equivalent 
Required

Executive 
Chef

(8-10 
years) 

Bachelors 
Degree or 
Equivalent 
experience 

required 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

29 
 

For aspiring managers, EBH will have a “Manager in Training” program that allows promising front-line team 

members an opportunity to step into a leadership role with the support of a mentor and regular feedback from 

department heads.  

In addition to the leadership training provided to all supervisors and above, EBH will offer the following 

courses to all team members, free of charge:  

• English as a Second Language. These courses are contextualized by department, to ensure that team 

members are learning vocabulary that will help them succeed in their work environment.  

• Citizenship.  

• GED  

The Tuition Reimbursement program, mentioned in the Benefits section above, combined with access to GED 

and other training, will create a supportive environment for professional development and career success.  

Communication and Feedback 

One of our Core Values is “Always Strive to be Better.”  We are committed to continual improvement and 

supporting team members as they make professional progress.  We will implement a structure of daily positive 

reinforcement and constructive feedback as well as a structure for regular reviews, ensuring team members 

are aware of areas for improvement and the steps required to make the next move in their career. 

Storytelling  

Storytelling is a unique program that focuses on celebrating and recognizing daily successes of our team 

members.  Before each shift begins, managers gather their team for a pre-shift meeting.  As part of that 

meeting, team members are encouraged to share stories of exceptional guest service or examples of team 

members going above and beyond to serve their fellow team members.  Truly exceptional examples are 

brought to the attention of a manager, written about, and posted through all back-of-house areas, bringing 

special recognition to the outstanding performer.  Storytelling inspires, motivates, and emphasizes the 

importance of excellence across all levels of the organization and most importantly…storytelling has a positive 

impact on enhancing one’s self-esteem.  We help our team members take pride in their work and their 

abilities.  

Below are two recent Storytelling features: 

 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

30 
 

    



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

31 
 



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

32 
 

WeSave Program 

The WeSave Program provides team members access to discounts on a wide range of goods and services 

within their local community.  We will partner with local restaurants, shops, dry cleaners, and many other local 

vendors and service providers to offer special discounts to our team members.  

Employee Foundation and WECare Volunteer Program 

The Employee Foundation and the WECare Volunteer Program provide opportunities for EBH team members 

to be involved in community service and contribute financially to organizations they care about, with a 

matching donation from EBH. 

 

INTERNAL ACCOUNTABILITY & REPORTING: 
To successfully meet our local and diverse hiring goals and to fulfill the objectives laid out in this plan, a system 
of reporting and accountability will be required.  We will regularly review applicant and new hire data to 
monitor progress and ensure we are on track. 
 
EBH established an internal Diversity & Workforce Development Council for operations that will meet on a 
regular basis to review diversity progress, identify areas for improvement, and develop ideas for strategic 
community engagement.  Regular meetings to review progress towards diversity goals is a best practice 
implemented during the design and construction phase of the EBH development and played a critical role in 
our success in engaging a local and diverse workforce for construction.  We will make use of this best practice 
for operations.  The Diversity & Workforce Development Council will be led by our Vice President of Human 
Resources and will include five members from across the organization including Employment, Legal, and 
Operations. The Council will meet on a monthly basis.  The Council will review statistics on the existing team as 
well as diversity of incoming applicants. 
 
The Diversity & Workforce Development Council will report to EBH executives on progress during regular 
senior management meetings.   
 
Department heads will be held responsible for meeting diversity goals within their departments for both 

manager and line level team members.  Corrective Action meetings will be held for departments that are not 

meeting the goals.  Encore will leverage partnerships with diverse partners and other outside resources to 

course correct if department diversity and diversity of the incoming talent pools are not on track for meeting 

goals. 

 

CONCLUSION 
We look forward to bringing over 4,000 careers to Everett, Massachusetts. We are excited to grow the EBH 

team and to provide career paths to a local and diverse group of individuals.  The success of the EBH resort will 

be greatest if we can bring a local and diverse group of individuals, with a broad range of talents, together to 

create an incredible hospitality experience for our guests.  



ENCORE BOSTON HARBOR 

WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT & DIVERSITY PLAN    

June 4, 2018 
 

33 
 

We thank the many community, educational, diverse, and government partners that have supported our 

efforts and look forward to working with these partners as we undertake the monumental hiring task ahead.  

With the Plan outlined herein, we believe we will be successful in achieving our objectives to raise awareness; 

prepare career seekers; recruit and hire qualified, local, and diverse team members; and develop and retain an 

outstanding workforce.  

 



 
 
Workforce Development & Diversity Plan 
Comment & Response Summary 
June 4, 2018 
 

1 
 

GOALS & HIRING PREFERENCES  
 

COMMENT EBH RESPONSE 

1. Request to increase 35% minority goal. Minority hiring goal increased to 40%.  

2. Hiring diversity goals should apply to all 
levels within the organization, front of 
house and back of house.  

Clarify that diversity targets will be applied to all 
departments, front of house and back of house, and to 
all levels of the organization.  Department heads will 
be held responsible for the diversity within their 
department.  

3. 75% goal within 30 minutes of Everett. 
Clearly define how “30 minutes will be 
measured” 

Given the variability in commuting times that makes 
“30 minutes” difficult to measure, we will measure the 
75% goal within 30 minutes of Everett as residents of 
cities within 30 miles of the resort site.  Within these 
cities, all outreach efforts will be focused on our Host 
& Surrounding Communities, Suffolk Downs 
employees, and targeted areas of high unemployment 
(i.e. Lawrence) 

4. Explain how the hiring “Preference” will 
work for Host & Surrounding 
Communities 

The mechanics of preference will be as follows: 
For positions where individual resume review is the 
primary method of selection: 

- EVERETT resumes will be reviewed FIRST with 
qualified Everett residents receiving the first 
calls for interview 

- MALDEN resumes will be reviewed SECOND 
with qualified Malden residents receiving the 
priority calls for interviews 

- BOSTON, CAMBRIDGE, CHELSEA, MEDFORD, 
SOMERVILLE, SUFFOLK DOWNS resumes will 
be reviewed THIRD with qualified residents 
receiving priority calls for interviews 

- Resumes of Residents of the designated 
counties will be reviewed following the 
residents above.  

For positions where group or open call interviews are 
the typical approach: 

- Priority access will be given to Everett 
residents.  For example: if meet & greets and 
group interviews are scheduled from 10am – 
2pm, Everett residents will be interviewed in 
the first slots from 10am – 11am.  We will 
invite Everett residents in advance for priority 
access interviews and will also fast track 



 
 
Workforce Development & Diversity Plan 
Comment & Response Summary 
June 4, 2018 
 

2 
 

residents who show their ID with Everett 
address.   

- Next priority access will be given to Malden 
residents, with similarly designated advance 
times for meet & greets and interviews.  

- Following the times designated for Everett 
and Malden, time will be allocated for 
residents of the Surrounding Communities 
and Suffolk Downs employees.  

- Open call interviews for all interested career 
seekers will follow the three priority interview 
time slots outlined above, on a separate day.  

5. Several comments recommended 
specific hiring goals for the Host & 
Surrounding Communities (i.e. 
percentages) 

Encore will maintain our hiring preference for these 
communities. All outreach efforts have been and will 
be targeted in our Host & Surrounding Communities, 
etc. These efforts have been highlighted in the plan. 

6. Clarification on how veteran hiring goal 
was reached. Add detail on how we will 
target the veteran community.  

 

5.7% of the population in Massachusetts has veteran 
status.  Of that population, roughly half, or 2.8% are 
veterans of recent conflicts, and are still in the active 
workforce.  We reviewed these figures with the City of 
Everett Veteran’s Services Representative and the 
Disabled American Veterans, who confirm that 3% is 
an appropriate hiring target given the veteran 
population in Massachusetts. Encore will continue to 
work closely with local veterans groups and city 
Veteran Services Representatives.  

 
OUTREACH 
 

COMMENT EBH RESPONSE 

1. Career Support Hubs – ensure that these 
are not only career centers, but are 
locations that provide a cultural fit with 
local residents. 

Encore has added the Everett Haitian Community 
Center, La Comunidad, Chelsea Collaborative, the 
Urban League, Malden Immigrant Learning Center, as 
Career Support Hubs that cater to specific cultural 
needs within our Host & Surrounding Communities.  

2. Provide detail on community 
partnerships to help raise awareness. 

A full list of partners is included.  

3. Include diverse professional networks 
like ALPFA, NABA, NAAP, etc. 

These partners are highlighted in the plan.  Encore 
recently attended a consortium job fair put together 
by these groups.  

4. The quarterly convenings appear to be 
focused on the business community 

We will split these meetings into workforce and 
business related, separate meetings; this will be more 



 
 
Workforce Development & Diversity Plan 
Comment & Response Summary 
June 4, 2018 
 

3 
 

rather than the workforce community.  
Should be expanded to include those 
who focus on resident and workforce 
connections and workforce needs.  

productive. Added La Comunidad, Chelsea 
Collaborative as co-conveners of the quarterly Latino 
workforce check in.  
 

5. Job fairs – note that these are required 
by the Host & Surrounding Community 
Agreements.  

Will note. Will also highlight examples of recently 
attended career fairs and plans for upcoming career 
fairs.  

6. Provide more detail and timelines for 
outreach and awareness raising efforts.   

Encore will host monthly informational sessions 
starting in June 2018.  These information sessions will 
rotate through our Host & Surrounding Communities.   

7. Clarify role of SkillSmart vs. the 
application portal vs. the Talent 
Network.  Request for training on these 
tools. 

Encore will clearly brand these tools on our careers 
webpage.  We have provided application portal, talent 
network, and skillsmart training to over 60 
representatives from local career centers and 
community groups.   

8. Provide information regarding how 
many positions will be available to 
English Language Learners  

Over 900 positions (i.e. Guest Room Attendants, 
Public Area Porters, Cook I, Cook II) will be available to 
English Language learners.  Highlight these positions in 
the plan. Emphasize that ESL classes will be accessible 
to all team members free of charge as part of the 
Encore training benefits.  

9. Suffolk Downs – include more details 
regarding outreach to former Suffolk 
Downs employees 

Will highlight / emphasize the Suffolk Downs outreach 

 
 
TRAINING / PREPARING CAREER SEEKERS 
 

COMMENT EBH RESPONSE 

1. Gaming School – provide more details on 
school generally, information on 
screening process.  

o Cost, financial aid 
o Recruitment, advertising 
o Timeline 
o What is provided by WBH vs. 

Cambridge College? 
o Selection process for students? 

There is a concern that 
individuals will invest time and 
resources in the school and not 
necessarily be a good fit for a job 

Program detail included in the updated plan. 
- Begins the first full week of September 
- Program cost is confirmed to be $1,100 and 

will include 308 hours of training to include 2 
table games, CPR, responsible gaming and 
Customer Service.  

- Classes will be offered on three scheduling 
waves, 8am-12pm; 1pm – 5pm; 6pm – 10pm 5 
days per week.  Makeup classes available on 
Saturdays. 

- A screening process will be put in place up 
front to ensure that only those who have a 
reasonable chance of successfully completing 



 
 
Workforce Development & Diversity Plan 
Comment & Response Summary 
June 4, 2018 
 

4 
 

afterward.  Need to provide 
details on the selection process.  
This is not like another degree 
where there are multiple nearby 
employers looking for the 
skillset.  

o Encore involvement in the 
selection process for the school, 
and the scholarships. 

o Confirm that scholarships will be 
provided to need based 
individuals. 

o Recommendation that Encore 
commit to interviewing all 
graduates of the program. 

o Alignment of training programs 
to specific careers in the resort.  

the course are spending their time and 
resources on the class.  The up-front 
screening will include: 

o Math screening – brief computer test 
to test math skills 

o English / personality screening – 5-
minute panel interview with 
Cambridge College, Encore team 

o Commitment to work nights, 
weekends, holidays 

o Commitment to pass drug test 
o Commitment to background screening 
o Commitment to obtain Mass Gaming 

Commission license 
- We will begin the screening process August 6th 

to allow for time to screen students prior to 
Sept 4th start date. 

- Commit to hiring 100% of individuals that: 
graduate from the school including passing 
the final, simulation audition; pass drug test; 
pass background check; receive gaming 
license.  These team members will be subject 
to the 90-day trial period (applicable to all 
new hires). 

- Individuals who may not be a good fit for 
table games dealers will have received 
training on skills (CPR, customer service, 
responsible gaming) that will make them a 
good fit for other positions in the resort, i.e. 
security, hosts 

 
The 50 scholarships provided by Encore Boston 
Harbor will be allocated based on financial need.  
Cambridge College, with consultation from EBH, will 
create the scholarship application process.  EBH 
community partners will be provided with full 
information regarding the screening process and will 
provide scholarship candidate recommendations.  

2. What is Encore doing to support other 
training in the region?  ESOL, culinary, 
hospitality, etc.? Particular focus on 

Encore directly supports the NECAT culinary training 
program.  We will add the other culinary training 
providers to our community partners list. Specifically 
mention culinary as a training area we will focus on. 



 
 
Workforce Development & Diversity Plan 
Comment & Response Summary 
June 4, 2018 
 

5 
 

culinary, where there is a regional skills 
gap. 

Emphasize the fact that we have already met with 
numerous culinary training providers.    
 
All local ESOL, culinary, hospitality and other relevant 
skills training programs will be included on the 
SkillSmart platform.  

3. Calendar – extend “prepare career 
seekers” beyond opening date to 
account for churn after opening. 

Change made to the overall calendar. 

4. GED classes for EBH employees – clarify 
that this is offered to all employees free 
of charge 

Encore will provide GED, ESL, and Citizenship classes 
free of charge to all team members. We will partner 
with an outside provider to provide these classes.   

 
HIRING PROCESS 
 

COMMENT EBH RESPONSE 

1. Add questions about ethnicity, gender, 
veteran status, disability status to our 
application portal.  

Questions regarding race, gender, veteran status and 
disabilities will be added to our applicant tracking 
system. 

2. Add diversity and unconscious bias 
training for hiring managers. 

Will include / emphasize in the plan.  

3. Addressing barriers to employment for 
local and diverse individuals, specifically 
CORIs and childcare. 

Encore will work with a local childcare provider – and 
will provide discounted rates Encore team members 
for a network of childcare locations. 
 
For individuals with a CORI, we will aim to be as 
inclusive as possible and review each background 
check on a case by case basis.  In addition, the Mass 
Gaming Commission will be designating positions that 
are exempt from licensing, further streamlining access 
to jobs.  

4. More details regarding referral process 
for community partner organizations. 
How will we track and report on hires as 
a result of referrals? 

We will be able to track referrals through the 
SkillSmart platform.  Community Partners may refer 
candidates to the Encore team by sending the referral 
and desired position directly to a member of the 
Encore employment team.  Referrals will be carefully 
reviewed by the employment team and will be 
provided, at minimum, the opportunity for a meet & 
greet or phone interview.  The Encore team will 
provide feedback to community partners regarding 
referred candidates to ensure that community 
partners are aware of successful referrals and 



 
 
Workforce Development & Diversity Plan 
Comment & Response Summary 
June 4, 2018 
 

6 
 

understand reasons why unsuccessful candidates are 
not a fit for the position.  

5. How will we hold ourselves 
accountable?  What will we do to right 
the ship if our hiring is not moving in the 
right direction in terms of local and 
diverse team members? 

We have established a Workforce Diversity Council, 
that will regularly check on workforce diversity.   The 
Workforce Diversity Council will be led by the VP of 
Human Resources, and will include 5 members from 
across the organization including Employment, Legal, 
and Operations.  The Council will meet on a monthly 
basis.  The Council will review statistics on the existing 
team as well as diversity of incoming applicants.  
 
Department heads will be held responsible for 
meeting diversity goals within their departments for 
both manager and line level team members.  
Corrective Action meetings will be held for 
departments that are not meeting the goals.  
 
Encore will leverage partnerships with diverse 
partners and other outside resources to course 
correct if department diversity and diversity of the 
incoming talent pools are not on track for meeting 
goals.  

6. Provide more information on the career 
pathways charts, i.e. educational 
requirements 

Educational requirements by level included.   

7. Clearly state our intention to promote 
from within.  

Clarified in the plan.  

 
 
 





































 
 

 
 

 

TO: Chairman Crosby, Commissioner Cameron, Commissioner O’Brien, 
Commissioner Stebbins, Commissioner Zuniga 

 

FROM: Paul Connelly, Director of Licensing  

DATE: June 4, 2018  

RE: Plainridge Park Casino: Gaming Beverage License – Renewal 
 

The Division of Licensing is forwarding Plainridge Park Casino’s (PPC) application for 
renewal of their Gaming Beverage License – per 205 CMR 136.03(3) – with a 
recommendation that it be approved by the Commission.  

PPC has submitted an application for renewal of their Gaming Beverage License that 
contains nine distinct Licensed Areas: 

LICENSED AREA REQUESTED HOURS OF OPERATION 

1 Casino Gaming Floor*  8AM – 1AM 

2 Flutie’s 11AM – 1AM 

3 Slack’s 11AM – 1AM 

4 Revolution 1776 Bar  8AM – 1AM 

5 Food Court (Slice, b.good)  8AM – 1AM 

6 Dark Horse Bar 11AM – 1AM 

7 Mountain Skipper Express 11AM – 9PM 

8 Racing Apron  8AM – 1AM 

9 Banquet Event Space  8AM – 1AM 

* Includes additional “High Limit Lounge Area”. 

The renewal application mirrors the conditions of PPC’s existing alcohol license but also 
includes the addition of a new “High Limit Lounge Area” on the gaming floor.  This area was 
previously occupied by a retail shop not included in PPC’s gaming floor Licensed Area 
application.  That shop is being relocated and PPC is requesting that the High Limit Lounge 
along with a separate, adjoining alcohol storage area be added to the gaming floor Licensed 



 
 

 
 

Area.  The High Limit Lounge will have a portable bar serving beer, wine, and liquor.  There 
will be no bottle service.  The adjoining liquor storage area will be locked at all times.   

The Division of Licensing has reviewed the application and determined that it contains all 
of the elements required in accordance with 205 CMR 136.04 and adequate liquor liability 
insurance as required by 205 CMR 136.07(1).  Additionally, PPC submitted the renewal 
application fee as required by 205 CMR 136.05. 

The Division of Licensing also consulted with the Investigation and Enforcement Bureau 
(IEB) regarding PPC’s renewal application and compliance history pertaining to the sale 
and storage of alcoholic beverages.  The IEB took no issue with the renewal application and 
recognized PPC’s strong compliance history.  

Therefore, the Division of Licensing is forwarding this application to the Commission with a 
recommendation that it be approved. 









































































Updated June 4, 2018

GAMESENSE BRAND RELAUNCH



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION

Relaunch GameSense at Plainridge Park
Evolve with the BCLC GameSense brand refresh and focus on 
how to make it work harder to support the GameSense Info 
Center and Advisors.

Launch GameSense at MGM
Create a successful launch coinciding with the opening of 
MGM in Springfield in Aug 24, 2018.

Introduce GameSense to Western MA
Drive awareness of GameSense as a responsible gambling 
resource for Western MA.

Our campaign objectives for Phase 1



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 3

Our strategy

Recreational Gamblers At Risk Problem Gamblers

Address the continuum of gamblers and mindsets



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 4

Our discovery and input to date

MassGaming
Commission Strategy 

and Input session 
2/6

BCLC Branding 
Update

3/14 

Plainridge Park 
Casino Site Visit

3/16

Meeting with 
MGM Springfield

4/5

BCLC Final Brand 
Book
4/17

Review audience research and materials from February through April



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 5

Key creative elements
 GameSense Info Center:

o Environmental branding within the Info Center

o Signage throughout the casinos/resorts to drive to the Info Center

 GameSense Advisor support:

o Branded shirts to encourage conversations

o Swag to attract and give away to casino attendees

 Promotional and interactive:

o Myths or facts printed on table top flip pieces

o On digital screens 

 Website for awareness, education and engagement



GAMESENSE CREATIVE



ENVIRONMENTAL BRANDING



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 8



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 9



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 10



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 11



RESTAURANT AND BAR



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 13



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 14



GameSense Info Center



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 16



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 17



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 18



UNIFORMS



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 20



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 21



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 22



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 23



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 24



WEBSITE



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 26



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 27



PROJECT PLAN



© 2018 KHJ BRAND ACTIVATION 29

Project plan

2         9         16       23       30       7         14       21       28       4         11       18       25       2         9         16       23       30       6         13       20       

Campaign Development

Plainridge Park Concept and Production

Outreach Planning

Develop plan

Assets

Website Design and Development

MGM Casino Material Design and Production

Media in Western MA begins

April May June July August



THANK YOU!

Questions?



 
 

 
 

 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 

_____________________________________________________________ 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Chairman Crosby and Commissioners Cameron, O’Brien, Stebbins and Zuniga  

From: Edward Bedrosian, Jr. and Derek Lennon 

Date:  6/7/2018 

Re: Fiscal Year 2019 (FY19) Budget Recommendations (VOTE) 

________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary 
The Massachusetts Gaming Commission’s (MGC) initial Fiscal Year 2019 (FY19) budget and 
assessment projections are composed of the following: 
 

Gaming 
 $22.6M for gaming regulatory costs including funding for 84.3 full-time equivalents (FTEs), 

1 of which is a new position funded in FY19 and 2 contract positions; 

 $2.04M assessment from the Commonwealth indirect costs; 

 $3.85M assessment for the Office of the Attorney General’s (AGO) gaming operations 

inclusive of Massachusetts State Police (MSP) assigned to the AGO; 

 $4.82M assessment for the research and responsible gaming agenda inclusive of 2 FTEs, 

which does not include DPH costs.  The costs of DPH will be funded from the Public Health 

Trust Fund for the first time in FY19; 

 $75K for the Alcohol and Beverage Control Commission (ABCC); resulting in, 

 $33.4M total funding of the Gaming Control Fund. 

 
Racing 

 $2.52M for racing regulatory costs including funding for 7.7 FTEs; 

 $202.7K assessment from the Commonwealth for indirect costs; 

 $2.72M combined total of regulated racing costs. 

 

Total 

 $36.1M – Total Gaming Fund Costs ($33.4M) plus Total Racing Costs ($2.72M). 

 This funds ~94 FTEs and 2 contract positions. 

 
A list of the MGC’s spending and revenue projections by appropriation is attached to this document 
(Attachment A).  
 
The MGC, under 205 CMR 121.00 will assess gaming licensees the difference between its Gaming 
Control Fund (1050-0001) budget and anticipated revenues in FY19.  The MGC’s gaming regulatory 



 
 
 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
 

costs combined with the statutorily required assessments are projected to be $33.4M, and revenues 
are anticipated to be ~$5.08M, which would leave an assessment of $28.32M to be divided up 
among the licensees.   
 
The Racing Division’s budget is funded through a portion of wagering as stipulated in statute.  
While the landscape of thoroughbred racing in Massachusetts is not stable, the Division’s budget 
was built using prior year revenue projections revised based on the experienced from FY16-FY17.    

 
Regulatory vs. Statutory Costs 

It is important to distinguish among the different components of the proposed Gaming Control 
Fund for FY19 and understand the difference between regulatory and statutory costs.  The 
composition of the $33.4M can be broken up into two areas.  The first area comprises the regulatory 
costs of the Massachusetts Gaming Commission to regulate category 1 and 2 facilities.  The 
regulatory costs are directly within control of the Gaming Commission. The second area, comprises 
statutory costs that are assessments contained in the Expanded Gaming Act but are not within the 
budgetary discretion of the Gaming Commission.  The statutory costs are the responsibility of our 
licensees to pay.  The break out of regulatory versus statutorily required costs is illustrated in the 
chart below: 
 

Item Amount Notes 

Regulatory Costs 

MGC Regulatory Costs 22,605,257.67 Costs of MGC to Regulate Category 1 and 2 facilities. 

   Statutorily Required 

Office of the Attorney General 3,856,997.20 
Up to $3M for AGO operations (~$2.76M in FY19)  and a 
separate reimbursement for their share of MSP costs. 

Research and Responsible Gaming  4,825,981.00 
Does not include DPH responsible gaming costs.  Those 
will be funded by PHTF in this and future years. 

Commonwealth Assessed Indirect 
Costs 2,037,294.23 

Governor's office of Administration and Finance assesses 
these costs and they go directly to the MA General Fund. 

Alcohol Beverage Control Commission 75,000.00 
 Total Statutory Costs 10,795,272.00 
  

The statutorily required costs in FY19 are projected to be $10.79M and include  
 $3.85M for the costs of the Attorney General’s Office (C. 12 § 11M),  

 $4.82M for the Research and Responsible Gaming office, which will be funded from the 

Public Health Trust Fund in subsequent years (C. 23K § 56(e), 58, and 71),  

 $75K for the Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission (C. 10 § 72A), and  

 $2.04M for Commonwealth of Massachusetts Assessed Indirect Costs (ANF Bulletin 5).   

 
The Commission’s regulatory FY19 budget projections total $22.6M, and fund 11 divisions.  The 
funding level of each division along with the change from the previous year is laid out in further 
detail later in this memorandum. 
 

Gaming Control Budget FY19 Compared to FY18 
The MGCs currently approved FY18 budget for the Gaming Control Fund is $31.08M.  The MGC is 
recommending an FY19 budget of $33.4M that includes both regulatory and statutory costs.  The 



 
 
 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
 

Gaming Control Fund’s total budget increase is ~7.5%.  The MGC’s regulatory costs grew by 
~9.77% from $20.6M in FY18 to $22.6M in FY19 while the statutorily required costs grew by 
~2.9% from $10.49M in FY18 to $10.8M in FY19.  The table below explains significant changes by 
regulatory vs statutorily required costs between fiscal years. 
 

Fund Grouping Name 
 Current Year 
Amount  

 Next Year 
Amount   Variance  

% 
Change  Explanation 

Gaming Control Fund-10500001 
     

 
MGC Regulatory Costs    20,593,675.81  

   
22,605,257.67  

   
2,011,581.86  9.77% 

Annualization of MGM 
Springfield Costs 

Statutorily Required Costs 
     

 
Indirect      1,693,854.46  

     
2,037,294.23  

       
343,439.77  20.28% 

Annualization of MGM 
Springfield Costs 

 

Research and Responsible 
Gaming/PHTF      5,053,957.84  

     
4,825,981.00  

    
(227,976.84) -4.51% 

Costs of DPH no longer funded 
from here. 

 

Office of Attorney General 
and AGO MSP      3,668,416.98  

     
3,856,997.20  

       
188,580.22  5.14% 

Annualization of MGM 
Springfield Costs 

 

Alcohol and Beverage Control 
Commission            75,000.00          75,000.00                          -    0.00% 

 

Statutorily Required Costs Total  10,491,229.28  
           
10,795,272.43  

                
304,043.15  2.90%  

Gaming Control Fund Total    31,084,905.09  
   
33,400,530.10  

   
2,315,625.01  7.45% 

  
The chart below breaks the costs above out in a little more detail by object class within each 
grouping: 
 

Fund 
Grouping 
Name 

Obj 
Class Obj Class Name 

 Current Year 
Amount  

 Next Year 
Amount  Variance 

% 
Change Explanation 

Gaming Control Fund-
10500001 

      

  
MGC Regulatory 
Costs 

      

  
AA 

REGULAR EMPLOYEE 
COMPENSATION 

                           
6,206,831.99  

                    
7,301,056.69  

     
1,094,224.70  17.63% Annualization of MGM hires. 

  
BB 

REGULAR EMPLOYEE 
RELATED EXPEN 

                                  
78,400.00  

                           
89,400.00  

            
11,000.00  14.03% 

Additional in-state travel and 
training for category 1 Casinos 

  
CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES 

                                  
43,250.00  

                        
135,000.00  

            
91,750.00  212.14% Annualization of MGM hires. 

  
DD 

PENSION & INSURANCE 
RELATED EX 

                           
2,295,124.31  

                    
2,674,809.96  

         
379,685.65  16.54% Annualization of MGM hires. 

  
EE 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES 

                               
653,223.64  

                        
601,607.48  

          
(51,616.16) -7.90% 

 

  
GG 

ENERGY COSTS AND 
SPACE RENTAL 

                           
1,247,229.38  

                    
1,271,894.58  

            
24,665.20  1.98% Lease escalator 

  
HH 

CONSULTANT SVCS (TO 
DEPTS) 

                           
1,487,756.00  

                        
750,644.48  

       
(737,111.52) -49.55% 

Decrease of legal costs to 
minimum required for 
insurance 

  
JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES 

                           
4,595,689.01  

                    
5,643,125.02  

     
1,047,436.01  22.79% 

Annualization of MGM public 
safety costs 

  
KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 

                                  
78,944.00  

                           
96,000.00  

            
17,056.00  21.61% 

Start-up equipment for MGM 
Springfield 

  
LL 

EQUIPMENT LEASE-
MAINTAIN/REPAR 

                                  
32,106.80  

                           
36,824.00  

               
4,717.20  14.69% 

Introductory period for new 
copier leases expired and will 
have to pay per click copy 
costs 

  
NN INFRASTRUCTURE: 

                                     
1,000.00  

                              
2,500.00  

               
1,500.00  150.00% 

 

  
PP STATE AID/POL SUB                                                                    31.30% Additional WFSD grants 



 
 
 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 
 

114,244.00  150,000.00  35,756.00  

  
UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses 

                           
3,759,876.68  

                    
3,852,395.46  

            
92,518.78  2.46% 

Refresh of equipment, and 
anticipated costs of opening 
category 1 facilities 

 

MGC Regulatory 
Costs Total 

 

                        
20,593,675.81  

                 
22,605,257.67  

     
2,011,581.86  9.77% 

 

 
Indirect 

       

  
EE 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES 

                           
1,693,854.46  

                    
2,037,294.23  

         
343,439.77  20.28% Annualization of MGM costs 

 
Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF 

     

  
AA 

REGULAR EMPLOYEE 
COMPENSATION 

                               
205,317.50  

                        
201,973.00  

             
(3,344.50) -1.63% 

 

  
BB 

REGULAR EMPLOYEE 
RELATED EXPEN 

                                     
6,000.00  

                              
6,000.00  

                                 
-    0.00% 

 

  
DD 

PENSION & INSURANCE 
RELATED EX 

                                  
74,591.84  

                           
75,012.77  

                    
420.93  0.56% 

 

  
EE 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES 

                                  
18,000.00  

                           
32,995.23  

            
14,995.23  83.31% 

 

  
FF 

FACILITY OPERATIONAL 
EXPENSES 

                                          
500.00  

                              
1,000.00  

                    
500.00  100.00% 

 

  
HH 

CONSULTANT SVCS (TO 
DEPTS) 

                           
1,419,351.50  

                    
2,454,000.00  

     
1,034,648.50  72.90% 

Increase in GameSense 
advisors for MGM opening 

  
JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES 

                                  
15,000.00  

                                                
-    

          
(15,000.00) 

-
100.00% 

 

  
MM 

PURCHASED 
CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS 

                                  
25,000.00  

                           
10,000.00  

          
(15,000.00) -60.00% 

 

  
PP STATE AID/POL SUB 

                           
3,215,197.00  

                    
2,045,000.00  

   
(1,170,197.00) -36.40% 

DPH costs will be against PHTF 
this year.  Not included in this 
item in FY19 

  
UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses 

                                  
75,000.00  

                                                
-    

          
(75,000.00) 

-
100.00% 

No IT  development costs 
anticipated this year. 

 
Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF Total 

                           
5,053,957.84  

                    
4,825,981.00  

       
(227,976.84) -4.51% 

 

 
Office of Attorney General and AGO MSP 

     

  
JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES 

                           
1,068,416.98  

                    
1,096,997.20  

            
28,580.22  2.68% Annualization of trooper class 

  
OO (blank) 

                           
2,600,000.00  

                    
2,760,000.00  

         
160,000.00  6.15% Annualization of MGM hires. 

 
Office of Attorney General and AGO MSP Total 

                           
3,668,416.98  

                    
3,856,997.20  

         
188,580.22  5.14% 

 

 
Alcohol and Beverage Control Commission 

     

  
OO (blank) 

                                  
75,000.00  

                           
75,000.00  

                                 
-    0.00% 

 

10500001 Total 
  

                        
31,084,905.09  

                 
33,400,530.10  

     
2,315,625.01  7.45% 

  
FY19 Regulatory Budget Development Process and Recommendations 

In FY19, the MGC will continue allocating funds to each division/bureau and tracking contractual 
commitments, expenditures and salaries against each division/bureau budget.  The Commission 
will be using the expense budget feature in the Massachusetts Management and Accounting 
Reporting System (MMARS) to establish these budgets and automate the process of keeping track 
of budget to actual expenditures and commitments.  
 
The MGC’s office of finance met with each division/bureau head within the MGC and developed 
spending and revenue projections that are realistic representations of what will be needed in FY19 
to operate the Commission, as well as what can be expected for revenue based on the Commission’s 
current fee structures.  These requests were then reviewed by the CFAO, the Executive Director, 
and the Treasurer of the Commission.  A third review was conducted by representatives of the 
current gaming licensees (Penn, Encore and MGM) at a meeting on May 11, 2018 at the MGC office.  



 
 
 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
 

The meeting included a comprehensive review of the Commission’s budget at a line item level, as 
well as a review of each division’s staffing levels by employee and anticipated hires.  
 
The following section of this memorandum is a summary by appropriation of spending anticipated 
for the MGC Regulatory costs of the Gaming Control Fund and the Racing Oversight and 
Development Fund.  Immediately following each summary is a chart that demonstrates significant 
variances between FY18 and FY19 for each division/bureau.  Attachment B to this document 
provides a view of each division’s budget by object class, object code and then specific budget item.  
This same information can be found in Attachment C but the view is ordered first by object class, 
then object code, then division and finally by specific budget item.   
 
10500001 Gaming Control Trust Fund 
The MGC Regulatory portion of the Gaming Control Trust funds 11 divisions/bureaus.  Each 
division’s/bureau’s costs of providing regulatory oversight to expanded gaming are built into the 
spending figures in the table below, which represents, at a macro level, the anticipated spending.  
This item funds 84.3 FTEs.  The FY19 recommended spending level includes funding for 1 new IT 
position, as well as funding for the positions approved in the FY18 spending plan. While we 
determine the Research and Responsible Gaming/Public Health Trust Fund (PHTF) component of 
the Gaming Control Fund to be a statutorily required funding source, 2 MGC FTEs in that unit are 
not included in the 84.3 regulatory FTE count, but are included in the 96 overall FTE count.  The 
majority of the increased costs are from annualizing the hiring and public safety costs that were 
partially funded in FY18 to support the opening of the MGM Springfield facility. 
 
Below is a chart that shows the FY18 currently approved budget by division compared to FY19 
proposed budget for the Regulatory portion of the Gaming Control Fund with a brief explanation for 
any large discrepancies.  Further details for budgets by each division are provided in attachments B 
and C: 
  
The Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF budget is considered a Statutorily required 
component of the Gaming Control Fund due to the fact that it will be funded from the Public Health 
Trust Fund (PHTF) once category 1 facilities become operational and taxes from gross gaming 
revenue begin to fund the PHTF.  However, I have included a brief chart of that budget comparing 
FY18 to FY19 below because 2 MGC employees are funded from that budget. 
 

Fund 
Grouping 
Name Division Division Name 

 Current Year 
Amount  

 Next Year 
Amount   Variance  

% 
Change Explanation 

Gaming Control Fund-10500001 
     MGC Regulatory Costs 

  

  
1000 

Finance and 
Administration 

                           
2,057,570.73  

                    
2,107,937.82  

            
50,367.09  2.45% 

 

  
1100 Human Resources 

                               
515,643.51  

                        
659,838.34  

         
144,194.83  27.96% 

Annualization of a new hire, raises on 
higher total salary, and increased 
workers comp 

  
1200 Legal 

                           
1,923,859.30  

                    
1,223,585.71  

       
(700,273.59) -36.40% 

Reduce litigation costs to minimum 
required by insurance 

  
1300 Executive Director 

                               
876,698.44  

                        
862,101.87  

          
(14,596.57) -1.66% 

 

  
1400 

Information 
Technology 

                           
4,602,230.02  

                    
4,967,360.61  

         
365,130.59  7.93% Annualization of 2 new hires 

  
1500 Commissioners 

                               
882,570.81  

                        
886,684.93  

               
4,114.12  0.47% 

 

  
1600 

Workforce and 
Supplier Diversity 

                               
440,261.41  

                        
481,792.46  

            
41,531.05  9.43% Annualization of new hire 

  
1800 Communications 

                               
358,654.82  

                        
379,186.94  

            
20,532.12  5.72% New intern 

  
1900 Ombudsman                                                                       1.38% 

 



 
 
 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
 

442,378.19  448,478.49  6,100.30  

  
5000 

Investigations and 
Enforcement 
Bureau 

                           
7,836,453.82  

                    
9,801,338.50  

     
1,964,884.68  25.07% 

Annualization of MGM hires and 
public safety costs associated with 
MGM 

  
7000 Licensing Division 

                               
657,354.76  

                        
786,952.00  

         
129,597.24  19.71% Annualization of new hires 

 

MGC Regulatory Costs 
Total 

 

                        
20,593,675.81  

                 
22,605,257.67  

     
2,011,581.86  9.77% 

 

 
Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF 

     

  
1700 

Problem 
Gambling 

                           
5,053,957.84  

                    
4,825,981.00  

       
(227,976.84) -4.51% 

  
10500003 Racing Development and Oversight Trust Fund 
This item funds the operations of the Racing division.  The majority of funding from this 
appropriation is payroll, seasonal payroll, and fringe related costs.  Costs of the division are payroll, 
drug and laboratory testing, ISA to DPH, and purchased client services for economic hardship 
payments, eighth pole payments, and the jockey guild. 
 
Below is a chart that shows the FY18 currently approved budget by division compared to FY19 
proposed budget for the Racing Oversight and Development Fund with a brief explanation for any 
large discrepancies.  Further details for budgets by each division are provided in attachments B and 
C: 
 

Fund 
Grouping 
Name Division Division Name 

 Current Year 
Amount  

 Next Year 
Amount   Variance  

% 
Change Explanation 

Racing Oversight and Development Trust Fund-10500003     
                                 
-        

  MGC Regulatory Costs       
                                 
-        

    1000 
Finance and 
Administration 

                               
223,481.41  

                        
283,090.19  

            
59,608.78  26.67%   

    1100 Human Resources 
                               
114,220.90  

                           
99,382.99  

          
(14,837.91) -12.99%   

    1200 Legal 
                                  
49,773.57  

                           
50,173.52  

                    
399.95  0.80%   

    1300 Executive Director 
                                  
48,957.77  

                           
49,426.05  

                    
468.28  0.96%   

    1400 
Information 
Technology 

                                  
46,744.56  

                        
104,063.51  

            
57,318.95  122.62%   

    1500 Commissioners 
                                  
73,473.01  

                           
58,411.22  

          
(15,061.79) -20.50%   

    1800 Communications 
                                  
15,367.26  

                           
15,458.57  

                       
91.31  0.59%   

    3000 Racing Division 
                           
1,854,555.21  

                    
1,853,098.17  

             
(1,457.04) -0.08%   

    7000 Licensing Division 
                                     
1,349.76  

                              
5,197.02  

               
3,847.26  285.03%   

  
MGC Regulatory Costs 
Total   

                           
2,427,923.45  

                    
2,518,301.24  

            
90,377.79  3.72%   

        
                           
2,427,923.45  

                    
2,518,301.24  

            
90,377.79  3.72%   

 
Funding Exposures not Included in FY19 Budget Proposal 

FY19 was another challenging budget year given the opening of MGM Springfield in August of 2018, 
less than 90 days into FY19 and the projected opening of the Encore facility in Everett in June of 
2019, just days before the close of the fiscal year.  In addition to the anticipated openings of the two 
category 1 casinos, we have built in the minimum required by our insurance policy for litigation 
costs in the legal budget.  Staff anticipates the figure to grow above the amount funded in this 
budget 

 



 
 
 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
 

It is important for the Commission to be aware that there are both regulatory and public safety 
costs that are anticipated for the FY19 budget year that are not included in this proposal.  The costs 
of both public safety personnel as well as gaming agents for the Everett category 1 facility are not 
included in this budget.  That facility is anticipated to open in June of 2019.  The costs not included 
in this budget have been discussed with our licensees, as well as the rationale for not including the 
costs.  Staff intends on returning to the Commission between the end of the first quarter of FY19 
and end of calendar year 2018 to address both the public safety and regulatory funding exposures 
as the landscape and timeline for the opening of Everett facility becomes more concrete and better 
estimates are available. This is similar to the process used for funding the MGM start-up costs in the 
last budget cycle. 
 

Assessment on Licensees 
Chapter 23K §56 (a)-(c) define how the MGC will fund its annual costs related to Gaming/non-
racing activities.  This chapter was further defined through 205 CMR 121.00.  By taking the 
projected spending less the net revenues projected for FY19, the commission will utilize 205 CMR 
121.01 3(c) to assess ~$28.3M on licensees as shown in the chart below: 
 

Licensee Slots 
Table 

Games 

Table 

Gaming 

Positions* 

Total 

Gaming 

Positions* 

 Percentage of 
Gaming 
Positions 

Annual Assessment 

MGM 3,000 100 600 3,600 38.99% $11,042,096.71  

Encore 3,242 168 1,008 4,250 46.03% $13,035,847.95  

Penn 1,250         -                   -    1,383 14.98% $4,242,385.45  

  7,492 268 1,608 9,233 100.00% $28,320,330.10  

*Table gaming positions, slots and table gaming positions are derived by using the HLT figures from Finance Plan section of 
the Presentation under 2.3 the table titled Proposed Facility Suitability.  For estimating gaming positions from table games, 

a multiplier of 6 for each table game is used. For PPC, it is the amount approved as of June 2017. 

 
Conclusion 

Staff is proposing an FY19 Gaming Control Fund budget of $33.4M for Regulatory and Statutorily 
Required Costs and an FY19 Racing Oversight and Development Fund budget of $2.72M for 
Regulatory and Statutorily Required Costs.  The budget presentation from May 24, 2018 was posted 
to the Commission’s website for a public comment period of May 25th through June 5th.  Staff seeks a 
vote to either approve the budget proposed by staff, or make changes and approve a modified 
version of the budget. 
 
Staff would like to remind the Commissioners that there are both public safety and regulatory 
funding exposures not built into this budget that will need to be addressed prior to the end of 
calendar year 2018.   
 
Attachments: 
Attachment A:  FY19 Listing of Accounts Spending and Revenue 
Attachment B:  Next Year Budget All Departments for Commission 
Attachment C:  Next Year Budget by Object Class for Commission      
 
 



2019

Row Labels  Initial Projection 
10500001--Gaming Control Fund
MGC Regulatory Cost
AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 7,301,056.69$              
BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN 89,400.00$                    
CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES 135,000.00$                  
DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX 2,674,809.96$              
EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 601,607.48$                  
FF PROGRAM, FACILITY, OPERATIONAL SUPPIES -$                                
GG ENERGY COSTS AND SPACE RENTAL 1,271,894.58$               
HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS) 750,644.48$                  
JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES 5,643,125.02$              
KK Equipment Purchase 96,000.00$                    
LL EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR 36,824.00$                    

NN NON-MAJOR FACILITY MAINTENANCE REPAIR 2,500.00$                      
PP STATE AID/POL SUB/OSD 150,000.00$                  
TT PAYMENTS & REFUNDS  -$                                
UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses 3,852,395.46$              
MGC Regulatory Cost Subtotal: 22,605,257.67$            

EE--Indirect Costs 2,037,294.23$              

Office of Attorney General 
ISA to AGO $2,760,000.00
TT Reimbursement for AGO 0810-1024 -$                                
AGO State Police 1,096,997.20$               
Office of Attorney General Subtotal: 3,856,997.20$              

Research and Responsible Gaming/Public Health Trust Fund
AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 201,973.00$                  
BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN 6,000.00$                      
CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES
DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX 75,012.77$                    
EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 32,995.23$                    
FF PROGRAMMATIC FACILITY OPERATONAL SUPPLIES 1,000.00$                      
HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS) 2,454,000.00$              
JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES -$                                
MM PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS 10,000.00$                    
PP STATE AID/POL SUB 2,045,000.00$              
UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses -$                                
ISA to DPH -$                                
Research and Responsible Gaming/Public Health Trust Fund 

Subtotal: 4,825,981.00$              

ISA to ABCC 75,000.00$                    

Gaming Control Fund Total Costs 33,400,530.10$            

Revenues Initial Projection  
Gaming Control Fund Beginning Balance 0500 -$                                
Phase 1 Collections (restricted) 0500 -$                                
Phase 1 Refunds 0500 -$                                
Phase 2 Category 1 Collections (restricted) 0500 -$                                
Region C Phase 1 Investigation Collections 0500 -$                                
Region C Phase 2 Category 1 Collections 0500 -$                                
Grant Collections (restricted) 0500 50,000.00$                    
Region A slot Machine Fee 0500 1,945,200.00$              
Region B Slot Machine Fee 0500 1,800,000.00$              
Slots Parlor Slot Machine Fee 0500 750,000.00$                  
Gaming Employee License Fees (GEL) 3000 300,000.00$                  
Key Gaming Executive (GKE) 3000 15,000.00$                    
Key Gaming Employee (GKS) 3000 20,000.00$                    
Non-Gaming Vendor (NGV) 3000 25,000.00$                    
Vendor Gaming Primary (VGP) 3000 75,000.00$                    
Vendor Gaming Secondary (VGS) 3000 25,000.00$                    
Gaming School License (GSB) -$                                
Gaming Service Employee License (SER) 3000 75,000.00$                    
Subcontractor ID Initial License (SUB) 3000 -$                                

Budget Projections

Revenue Projections



Temporary License Initial License (TEM) 3000 -$                                
Veterans Initial License (VET) 3000 -$                                
Transfer of Licensing Fees to CMF 0500 -$                                
Assessment 0500 28,320,330.10$            
Misc/Bank Interest 0500 -$                                
Grand Total 33,400,530.10$            

Row Labels  Initial Projection 
 1050003 
AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 779,111.86$                  
BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN 12,000.00$                    
CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES 425,000.00$                  
DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX 279,030.65$                  
EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 42,485.00$                    
FF PROGRAMMATIC FACILITY OPERATONAL SUPPLIES 2,000.00$                      
HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS) 25,000.00$                    
JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES 727,758.73$                  
KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASES 915.00$                          
LL EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR 155,000.00$                  
MM PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS -$                                
NN INFRASTRUCTURE: -$                                
TT LOANS AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS -$                                
UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses 70,000.00$                    
EE --Indirect Costs 202,687.10$                  
ISA to DPH -$                                
Grand Total 2,720,988.34$              

Revenues Initial Projection
Plainridge Assessment 4800 121,200.00$                  
Plainridge Daily License Fee 3003 108,600.00$                  
Plainridge Occupational License 3003/3004 55,000.00$                    
Plainridge Racing Development Oversight Live 0131 25,000.00$                    

Plainridge Racing Development Oversight Simulcast 0131 135,000.00$                  

Racing Oversight and Development Balance Forward 0131 400,000.00$                  
Raynham Assessment 4800 96,150.00$                    
Raynham Daily License Fee 3003 108,600.00$                  

Raynham Racing Development Oversight Simulcast 0131 133,000.00$                  
Suffolk Assessment 4800 526,650.00$                  
Suffolk Commission Racing Development Oversight Simulcast 

0131 140,000.00$                  
Suffolk Daily License Fee 3003 78,000.00$                    
Suffolk Occupational License 3003/3004 33,000.00$                    
Suffolk Racing Development Oversight Live 0131 22,000.00$                    
Suffolk TVG Commission Live 0131 18,000.00$                    
 Suffolk TVG Commission Simulcast 0131 125,000.00$                  
Suffolk Twin Spires Commission Live 0131 15,000.00$                    
Suffolk Twin Spires Commission Simulcast 0131 97,000.00$                    
Suffolk Xpress Bet Commission Live 0131 13,000.00$                    
Suffolk Xpress Bet Commission Simulcast 0131 45,000.00$                    
Suffolk NYRA Bet Commission Live 0131 7,500.00$                      
Suffolk NYRA Bet Commission Simulcast 0131 22,000.00$                    
Transfer to General Fund 10500140 0000
Wonderland Assessment 4800 6,000.00$                      
Wonderland Daily License Fee 3003 78,000.00$                    

Wonderland Racing Development Oversight Simulcast 0131 10,000.00$                    
Plainridge fine 2700 25,000.00$                    
Suffolk Fine 2700 4,500.00$                      
Plainridge Unclaimed wagers 5009 168,000.00$                  
Suffolk Unclaimed wagers 5009 250,000.00$                  
Raynham Unclaimed wagers 5009 160,000.00$                  
Wonderland Unclaimed wagers 5009 15,000.00$                    
Misc/Bank Interest 0131 500.00$                          

Grand Total $3,041,700.00

Budget Projections

Revenue Projections



Next Year Budget All Departments for Commission
Approp Division/ 

Bureau
Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  

Amount
Current Year 

Amount
VarianceBudget 

Grouping
Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1000 Finance and Administration

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for MGM Opening $0.00$35,961.55 ($35,961.55) -100.00%

Employee 
Compensation

Salaries $404,322.01$364,080.20 $40,241.81 11.05%

Obj Class Totals: $404,322.01$400,041.75 $4,280.26 1.07%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-State Travel $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM $0.00$12,543.39 ($12,543.39) -100.00%

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $143,170.42$126,991.17 $16,179.25 12.74%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM $0.00$521.44 ($521.44) -100.00%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $6,994.77$5,279.16 $1,715.61 32.50%

Obj Class Totals: $150,165.19$145,335.16 $4,830.03 3.32%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E01 Office & Administrative Supplies Supplies Adoni Spring Water/Milhench $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

Supplies Cam Office Supplies $8,500.00$10,000.00 ($1,500.00) -15.00%

Supplies W.B. Mason $23,500.00$25,000.00 ($1,500.00) -6.00%

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printing Millenium/RazzMTazz/MG Products $3,500.00$3,950.00 ($450.00) -11.39%

E05 Postage Chargeback Postage ITD PAD Chargeback for postal Services $2,743.92$2,664.00 $79.92 3.00%

E06 Postage Postage Postage for Ashburton Mail Room $2,400.00$2,400.00 $0.00 0.00%

Postage Postage for Pitney Bowes, Fed Ex, UPS $1,500.00$1,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions Go To Meeting $6,400.00$0.00 $6,400.00 #Div/0!

E15 Bottled Water Water Quench $1,254.00$684.00 $570.00 83.33%

E18 State Single Audit Chargeback FY 17 Chargeback 
Single State Audit

Chargeback $500.00$300.00 $200.00 66.67%

E19 Fees, Fines, Licenses, Permits & 
Chargebacks

Fees, Fines, 
Licensed, 
Chargebakcs

EZ Pass $1,000.00$300.00 $700.00 233.33%

E20 Motor Vehicle Chargeback OVM Motorized Vehicle Chargeback--Leases of 
ford fusion and ford escape

$12,689.64$12,689.64 $0.00 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 1 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1000 Finance and Administration

E22 Temp Use Space/Confer-Incidental 
Includes Reservation Fees

Laz Parking Parking at 33 Arch St.  13 spaces $54,000.00$54,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E30 Credit Card Purchases Credit Card Credit Card Incidental Purchases $2,000.00$500.00 $1,500.00 300.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Travel Agency Fees $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conference 
Registrations

Registration Fees $0.00$5,000.00 ($5,000.00) -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $127,487.56$126,487.64 $999.92 0.79%

GG ENERGY COSTS AND SPACE RENTAL

G01 Space Rental Office Lease 101 Federal St. 12 months $1,195,969.14$1,182,473.94 $13,495.20 1.14%

Rent Umass Office Rent $2,540.00$2,540.00 $0.00 0.00%

G03 Electricity Electricity 101 Federal St. 12 months $32,635.44$32,635.44 $0.00 0.00%

G05 Fuel For Vehicles Gas Wex Bank/Gulf $5,000.00$1,500.00 $3,500.00 233.33%

Obj Class Totals: $1,236,144.58$1,219,149.38 $16,995.20 1.39%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Insurance Comprehensive Insurance Policy $95,094.48$86,450.00 $8,644.48 10.00%

H19 Management Consultants CPA Firm for Annual Audits consistent with 
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

$38,550.00$38,550.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $133,644.48$125,000.00 $8,644.48 6.92%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J10 Auxiliary Financial Services Auxiliary Financial 
Services

Credit Card Fees/BillMatrix $300.00$0.00 $300.00 #Div/0!

JJ2 Auxiliary Services Courier USA Couriers $200.00$200.00 $0.00 0.00%

Shredding ProShred $850.00$750.00 $100.00 13.33%

Obj Class Totals: $1,350.00$950.00 $400.00 42.11%

LL EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR

L24 Motorized Vehicle Equipment Rental or 
Lease

Rental Cars Enterprise Car Rental $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%

L25 Office Equipment Rental or Lease Printing Pitney Bowes $750.00$532.80 $217.20 40.77%

L26 Printing/Photocopy & Micrographics 
Equip Rent/Lease

Copier Canon Financial Services
Recurring Payment of $5.4K for 13th floor
Recurring Payment of $4.8K IEB
Per Click costs of $2.5K

$12,738.00$12,738.00 $0.00 0.00%

L46 Print, Photocopying & Micrograph 
Equipment Maint/Repair

Copier Canon USA/Maintenance & Repair--Initial 
Contract Rate Ended

$7,500.00$3,000.00 $4,500.00 150.00%

Xerox Leases Xerox Leases
Recurring Payments of $11.1K for 3 machines
Per Click costs of $4.2K (avg of this year)

$15,336.00$15,336.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $36,824.00$32,106.80 $4,717.20 14.69%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 2 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1000 Finance and Administration

NN INFRASTRUCTURE:

N50 Non-Major Facility Infrastructure 
Maintenance and Repair

Repairs Office/Building  Repairs $2,500.00$1,000.00 $1,500.00 150.00%

Obj Class Totals: $2,500.00$1,000.00 $1,500.00 150.00%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

IT Consultants Web penetration Testing $8,000.00$0.00 $8,000.00 #Div/0!

U10 Information Tech (IT) Equipment 
Maintenance & Repair

Cable Cable/Comcast $4,500.00$4,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $12,500.00$4,500.00 $8,000.00 177.78%

Division/Bureau Totals: $2,107,937.82$2,057,570.73 $50,367.09 2.45%

1100 Human Resources

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $200,955.72$157,680.34 $43,275.38 27.45%

Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for MGM Opening $0.00$19,615.37 ($19,615.37) -100.00%

Raises 2.0% COLA/Bonus Incentives Agency Wide $168,097.61$121,971.16 $46,126.45 37.82%

Obj Class Totals: $369,053.33$299,266.87 $69,786.46 23.32%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B02 In-State Travel Travel In State Travel $2,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00 100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $2,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00 100.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM  35.41% $0.00$6,841.84 ($6,841.84) -100.00%

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $71,172.58$54,998.90 $16,173.68 29.41%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM 1.73% $0.00$284.42 ($284.42) -100.00%

Payroll Taxes & 
Fringe on Raises

Payroll Taxes & Fringe on Raises $62,435.41$44,312.12 $18,123.29 40.90%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $3,477.02$2,286.36 $1,190.66 52.08%

D15 Workers' Compensation Chargebacks Worker's Comp 
Chargeback

Worker's Comp Chargeback $75,000.00$50,000.00 $25,000.00 50.00%

Obj Class Totals: $212,085.01$158,723.64 $53,361.37 33.62%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees   SHRM, NEHRA, The Partnership

$5,000.00$2,000.00 $3,000.00 150.00%

E19 Fees, Fines, Licenses, Permits & 
Chargebacks

Licenses Fees, Fines, Licenses, Permits & Chargebacks 
for HRCMS and HRD

$9,000.00$2,653.00 $6,347.00 239.24%

E22 Temp Use Space/Confer-Incidental 
Includes Reservation Fees

Conference 
Incidentals

Conference Incidentals $3,700.00$0.00 $3,700.00 #Div/0!

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 3 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1100 Human Resources

E30 Credit Card Purchases Credit Card 
Charges

FIA Card $1,000.00$0.00 $1,000.00 #Div/0!

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

ISA with EOHHS EOHHS Professional Development (MasSP 
Trainings)

$12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Training Conference, Training and Registration Fees $1,000.00$13,000.00 ($12,000.00) -92.31%

EE9 Employee Recognition Chargeback Employee Morale Employee Recognition Program $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $36,700.00$34,653.00 $2,047.00 5.91%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Legal Consultants Employment Laywers $5,000.00$0.00 $5,000.00 #Div/0!

Worker's Comp Workers Comp Litigation Fees $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$5,000.00 $5,000.00 100.00%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J46 Temporary Help Services Temp Help Resource Connection--Possibly for IEB or 
Licensing

$15,000.00$0.00 $15,000.00 #Div/0!

JJ2 Auxiliary Services EAP Crisis Management EAP program $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

HR Investigations HR Investigations $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Testing All One Health Resouces $3,000.00$5,000.00 ($2,000.00) -40.00%

Obj Class Totals: $30,000.00$17,000.00 $13,000.00 76.47%

Division/Bureau Totals: $659,838.34$515,643.51 $144,194.83 27.96%

1200 Legal

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $486,791.39$479,248.37 $7,543.02 1.57%

Obj Class Totals: $486,791.39$479,248.37 $7,543.02 1.57%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel and Training $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In State Travel $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B05 Conference, Training, Registration and 
Membership Dues and L

Professional 
Licenses

Professional and Bar Licenses $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $9,000.00$9,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $172,372.83$167,161.83 $5,211.00 3.12%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $8,421.49$6,949.10 $1,472.39 21.19%

Obj Class Totals: $180,794.32$174,110.93 $6,683.39 3.84%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E01 Office & Administrative Supplies Supplies Office Supplies $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 4 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1200 Legal

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions Subscriptions and Memberships Westlaw 
ABA

$11,000.00$7,000.00 $4,000.00 57.14%

E13 Advertising Expenses Reg Advertising Advertising of Regs and Meetings $10,000.00$5,000.00 $5,000.00 100.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Conference/Trainings $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

EE Conference, 
Training, Registion 
Fees

Conference, Training, Registion Fees $4,000.00$0.00 $4,000.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $40,000.00$27,000.00 $13,000.00 48.15%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Litigation Defense Outside Counsel Litigation Defense $400,000.00$1,100,000.00 ($700,000.00) -63.64%

Outside Counsel General Practice, Regulations, Laws, etc. $50,000.00$80,000.00 ($30,000.00) -37.50%

Outside Counsel Labor Employment Law $20,000.00$20,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

H19 Management Consultants Hearing Officer Hearing Officer $32,000.00$32,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $502,000.00$1,232,000.00 ($730,000.00) -59.25%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

JJ1 Legal Support Services Operational 
Services

Offsite Storage $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U07 Information Technology (IT) Equipment IT Equipment 
Purchase

Encrypted Flash Drives $2,500.00$0.00 $2,500.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $2,500.00$0.00 $2,500.00 #Div/0!

Division/Bureau Totals: $1,223,585.71$1,923,859.30 ($700,273.59) -36.40%

1300 Executive Director

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $584,513.54$589,524.27 ($5,010.73) -0.85%

Obj Class Totals: $584,513.54$589,524.27 ($5,010.73) -0.85%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Two conferences Out of State $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-State Mileage and Rental Cars $4,000.00$2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$8,000.00 $2,000.00 25.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $205,598.90$211,446.64 ($5,847.74) -2.77%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $11,489.43$2,727.53 $8,761.90 321.24%

Obj Class Totals: $217,088.33$214,174.18 $2,914.15 1.36%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 5 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1300 Executive Director

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Memberships NAGR $500.00$0.00 $500.00 #Div/0!

E30 Credit Card Purchases Credit Card Credit Card Purchases $10,000.00$15,000.00 ($5,000.00) -33.33%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Gaming Forum Gaming Forum TBD $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $20,500.00$25,000.00 ($4,500.00) -18.00%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H19 Management Consultants Strategic 
Consultant

General Consultant needs for 
Commissioners or Executive Director

$20,000.00$40,000.00 ($20,000.00) -50.00%

Obj Class Totals: $20,000.00$40,000.00 ($20,000.00) -50.00%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J50 Instructors/Lecturers/Trainers Training Catalant Jira Training $10,000.00$0.00 $10,000.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$0.00 $10,000.00 #Div/0!

Division/Bureau Totals: $862,101.87$876,698.45 ($14,596.58) -1.66%

1400 Information Technology

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $813,313.08$560,397.81 $252,915.27 45.13%

Obj Class Totals: $813,313.08$560,397.81 $252,915.27 45.13%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel G2E/Gartner $4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-state travel $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $265,910.67$195,466.76 $70,443.91 36.04%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $12,991.40$8,125.77 $4,865.63 59.88%

Obj Class Totals: $278,902.07$203,592.53 $75,309.54 36.99%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printers Printers @$250/printer $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Travel Agent Expenses $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E56 Secretariat Central Services Chargeback IT Support ANF Chargeback for IT services (Help Desk 
Charges  $659.79 per desktop)

$0.00$52,783.00 ($52,783.00) -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $8,000.00$60,783.00 ($52,783.00) -86.84%

GG ENERGY COSTS AND SPACE RENTAL

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 6 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1400 Information Technology

G01 Space Rental Data Center Markley Data Center Costs (Rack Space 
$10.8K, Electricity $13.2K, and Fiber $4K)

$35,750.00$28,080.00 $7,670.00 27.31%

Obj Class Totals: $35,750.00$28,080.00 $7,670.00 27.31%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U01 Telecommunications Services Data Cable Comcast Internet (Gaming Lab) and Cable 
Service (Meeting Rooms)

$4,800.00$4,800.00 $0.00 0.00%

Plainridge Video Video Circuit for Boston & Plainville for 
Surveillance and CMS

$76,500.00$76,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

VPN VPN Accounts $8,100.00$8,100.00 $0.00 0.00%

U02 Telecommunications Services - Voice Cellular Service Cell Phone Service $65,985.00$65,985.00 $0.00 0.00%

Phone Lines Conference Bridge Lines $1,500.00$1,980.00 ($480.00) -24.24%

Phone Lines DSCI phone services $7,000.00$9,000.00 ($2,000.00) -22.22%

Phone Lines MCI Fax Line $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%

Phone Lines Measured Business Lines $6,550.00$6,550.00 $0.00 0.00%

U03 Software & Information Technology 
Licenses (IT)

Software Adobe, Sharepoint, Office 365, Project, Vizio, 
Dragon, Winzip

$50,000.00$50,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Software CodeGuard MGC Website Backup Service $5,000.00$2,000.00 $3,000.00 150.00%

Software Insight/Jira $23,000.00$0.00 $23,000.00 #Div/0!

Software Kobitron - GLI Testing Platform $2,500.00$1,500.00 $1,000.00 66.67%

Software Prezi Software $3,300.00$3,300.00 $0.00 0.00%

U04 Information Technology Chargeback Internet MAGNET (Internet Access -2x50Mbps 
@$3,686/month, 1x20Mbps 
@$3138/month, 1x0.06units 
@$105.30/month)

$118,454.00$118,454.00 $0.00 0.00%

IT Support ANF Chargeback for Space at Chelsea and 
Springfield

$89,000.00$89,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Mobile Devices Mobile Device Management (@ 
$3.95/year/unit)

$4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

On Base Chargeback for electronics record 
management system--OnBase

$90,000.00$0.00 $90,000.00 #Div/0!

OSC Chargeback MMARS Chargeback $5,000.00$10,000.00 ($5,000.00) -50.00%

Phone Lines Windstream WAN for Data Connection 
$1.5K/month

$18,000.00$18,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

CMS CMS  - IGT Intelligen--Includes start-up for 
Everett and Springfield locations

$2,484,206.46$2,262,544.68 $221,661.78 9.80%

CMS CMS change orders $20,000.00$0.00 $20,000.00 #Div/0!

CMS CMS Intelligen--Increase for shot clock $0.00$14,500.00 ($14,500.00) -100.00%

Consultant IT Consultants Gartner $30,000.00$30,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 7 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1400 Information Technology

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

Consulting IT Consulting Support @ $100/hr (Advizex 
and Soltrix)
$25K for GLI Testing

$75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

EOPS Network 
Connection

Needed to interface LMS with EOPS CJIS 
Network--Firewalls and equipment

$50,000.00$130,663.00 ($80,663.00) -61.73%

LMS Licensing System Continual Upgrades to 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 Development

$350,000.00$500,000.00 ($150,000.00) -30.00%

Training Technical Training $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

U06 Information Technology (IT) Cabling Phone FTG Phone lines maintenance etc. $20,000.00$14,000.00 $6,000.00 42.86%

U07 Information Technology (IT) Equipment Hardware Gaming Technology Laboratory Equipment $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Equipment--Equipment for 
new troopers and gaming agents

$50,000.00$30,000.00 $20,000.00 66.67%

Servers Servers and Storage $40,000.00$40,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

U09 Information Technology (IT) Equip Rental 
Or Lease

Leases HP Leases $89,500.00$89,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

U10 Information Tech (IT) Equipment 
Maintenance & Repair

Maintenance Aruba Maintenance $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Maintenance EMC Maintenance $0.00$50,000.00 ($50,000.00) -100.00%

Maintenance Printer Maintenance $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%

Maintenance VMWare Mainteance $21,000.00$21,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $3,825,395.46$3,743,376.68 $82,018.78 2.19%

Division/Bureau Totals: $4,967,360.61$4,602,230.02 $365,130.59 7.93%

1500 Commissioners

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Compensation $575,926.01$558,769.76 $17,156.25 3.07%

Obj Class Totals: $575,926.01$558,769.76 $17,156.25 3.07%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel 
Reimbursements

Travel Reimbursements
--In State (6 Commission Meetings a Year, 
Site Visits)
--Out of Pocket Out of State Expenses

$15,000.00$10,000.00 $5,000.00 50.00%

Obj Class Totals: $15,000.00$10,000.00 $5,000.00 50.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $203,935.40$194,898.89 $9,036.51 4.64%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $9,963.52$8,102.16 $1,861.36 22.97%

Obj Class Totals: $213,898.92$203,001.05 $10,897.87 5.37%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Office Supplies Lane Printing, etc. $200.00$0.00 $200.00 #Div/0!

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 8 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1500 Commissioners

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions Trade Journals $5,460.00$3,000.00 $2,460.00 82.00%

E22 Temp Use Space/Confer-Incidental 
Includes Reservation Fees

75-101 Parking 
Garage

Parking 75-101 $28,200.00$28,200.00 $0.00 0.00%

Meeting Space Temporary Space $1.2/mtg @ 6mtgs $7,500.00$7,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

E30 Credit Card Purchases Credit Card Allowable Credit Card Expenses $7,500.00$12,500.00 ($5,000.00) -40.00%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Registration Fees Conference/Trainings $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $53,860.00$56,200.00 ($2,340.00) -4.16%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J33 Photographic & Micrographic Services Stenographer Court Reports and Stenography  $2.1K/mtg $25,000.00$54,600.00 ($29,600.00) -54.21%

Obj Class Totals: $25,000.00$54,600.00 ($29,600.00) -54.21%

KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

K07 Office Furnishings Office Equipment Display Cases
Display Cases

$3,000.00$0.00 $3,000.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $3,000.00$0.00 $3,000.00 #Div/0!

Division/Bureau Totals: $886,684.93$882,570.81 $4,114.12 0.47%

1600 Workforce and Supplier Diversity

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $187,613.00$187,317.58 $295.42 0.16%

Salaries Salaries--Delayed hires $0.00($9,615.38) $9,615.38 -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $187,613.00$177,702.20 $9,910.80 5.58%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Other Out of State Travel-Inclusive Airfare, 
Hotel, Lodging
--Las Vegas Gaming Conference G2E

$1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-state Travel
AOC as well as site visits of licensees

$6,000.00$3,000.00 $3,000.00 100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $7,000.00$4,000.00 $3,000.00 75.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $66,433.76$65,336.37 $1,097.39 1.68%

Fringe Fringe--Delayed hires $0.00($3,353.84) $3,353.84 -100.00%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes--Delayed Hires $0.00($139.42) $139.42 -100.00%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $3,245.70$2,716.10 $529.60 19.50%

Obj Class Totals: $69,679.46$64,559.21 $5,120.25 7.93%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printing Flyer printing/Workforce Development $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 9 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1600 Workforce and Supplier Diversity

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Administrative 
Expenses

Marketing Sponsorships of Diversity and 
Opportunity Events

$2,500.00$25,000.00 ($22,500.00) -90.00%

E22 Temp Use Space/Confer-Incidental 
Includes Reservation Fees

Conferences Access Opportunity Meetings $7,000.00$7,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Travel Agent $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conference, 
Training 
Registration Fees

GNEMSDC, Umass, Colette Phillips $11,000.00$0.00 $11,000.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $32,500.00$44,000.00 ($11,500.00) -26.14%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

HH3 Media Design, Editorial and 
Communication

CONSULTANTS AOC Outreach Campaign/ net zero change $0.00$35,756.00 ($35,756.00) -100.00%

Media Design KHJ $35,000.00$0.00 $35,000.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $35,000.00$35,756.00 ($756.00) -2.11%

PP STATE AID/POL SUB

P01 Grants To Public Entities Grants Worforce Development and Diversity Grants
--Women In construction Outreach
--WF Coordinator Community Colleges
--Gaming Training Schools
--Regional WF Collaborations

$150,000.00$150,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

STATE AID/POL 
SUB

Grants to Public Entities/ net zero change $0.00($35,756.00) $35,756.00 -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $150,000.00$114,244.00 $35,756.00 31.30%

Division/Bureau Totals: $481,792.46$440,261.41 $41,531.05 9.43%

1800 Communications

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Regular Salaries $198,950.66$197,428.90 $1,521.76 0.77%

Obj Class Totals: $198,950.66$197,428.90 $1,521.76 0.77%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B02 In-State Travel Travel 
Reimbursement

In-State Travel Reimbursement $3,900.00$3,900.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $3,900.00$3,900.00 $0.00 0.00%

CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES

C05 Contracted Student Interns Intern Student Intern-Co-op $20,000.00$0.00 $20,000.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $20,000.00$0.00 $20,000.00 #Div/0!

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $70,448.43$68,863.20 $1,585.23 2.30%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 10 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1800 Communications

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $3,787.85$2,862.72 $925.13 32.32%

Obj Class Totals: $74,236.28$71,725.92 $2,510.36 3.50%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printing Printing $6,100.00$6,100.00 $0.00 0.00%

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Adminstrative 
Expenses

Subscriptions  Net Zero Adjustment $0.00$3,500.00 ($3,500.00) -100.00%

Subscriptions Subscriptions, Licensing, Memberships $27,000.00$25,000.00 $2,000.00 8.00%

Obj Class Totals: $33,100.00$34,600.00 ($1,500.00) -4.34%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

HH3 Media Design, Editorial and 
Communication

Website Design Marketing & Website Design $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

JJ2 Auxiliary Services Operational 
Services/Streaming

Net Zero Adjustment to EE and KK $0.00($4,500.00) $4,500.00 -100.00%

Streaming Streaming & Production of Public Meetings $23,000.00$30,000.00 ($7,000.00) -23.33%

Obj Class Totals: $23,000.00$25,500.00 ($2,500.00) -9.80%

KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

K05 Office Equipment Equipment 
Purchases

Photography/Streaming Equipment Net Zero 
Purchase

$1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%

Division/Bureau Totals: $379,186.94$358,654.82 $20,532.12 5.72%

1900 Ombudsman

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employees $317,105.50$313,488.00 $3,617.50 1.15%

Obj Class Totals: $317,105.50$313,488.00 $3,617.50 1.15%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B02 In-State Travel In State Travel 
Reimbursement

In-State Travel Reimbursement and Out of 
State
--Visits to Other Licensee Sites

$4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $112,287.06$109,344.61 $2,942.45 2.69%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $5,485.93$4,545.58 $940.35 20.69%

Obj Class Totals: $117,772.99$113,890.19 $3,882.80 3.41%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 11 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

1900 Ombudsman

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions/Mem
berships

Instatrac subscription $4,600.00$5,000.00 ($400.00) -8.00%

E22 Temp Use Space/Confer-Incidental 
Includes Reservation Fees

Conferences and 
Incidentals

Gaming Policy Advisory Committee $5,000.00$6,000.00 ($1,000.00) -16.67%

Obj Class Totals: $9,600.00$11,000.00 ($1,400.00) -12.73%

Division/Bureau Totals: $448,478.49$442,378.19 $6,100.30 1.38%

5000 Investigations and Enforcement Bureau

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for MGM Opening $0.00$201,488.96 ($201,488.96) -100.00%

Employee 
Compensation

Placeholder for potential additional hires (FI, 
Attorney, Civilian Investigator, etc)

$0.00$0.00 $0.00 #Num!

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Salaries $2,851,916.70$2,012,550.36 $839,366.34 41.71%

Salaries Salaries--Delayed hires $0.00($23,230.77) $23,230.77 -100.00%

A07 Shift Differential Pay Employee 
Compnesation

Shift Differential for Gaming agents $0.00$18,750.00 ($18,750.00) -100.00%

A08 Overtime Pay Overtime Overtime for Gaming Agents. $42,000.00$10,000.00 $32,000.00 320.00%

Obj Class Totals: $2,893,916.70$2,219,558.55 $674,358.15 30.38%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of state travel reimbursements for 
gaming enforcement agents and non-state 
police staff

$15,000.00$15,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-state-travel reimbursements for gaming 
enforcement agents and non-state police 
staff

$8,000.00$8,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $23,000.00$23,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES

C23 Management, Business Professionals & 
Admin Services

Contracted Civilian Investigators $50,000.00$27,000.00 $23,000.00 85.19%

Obj Class Totals: $50,000.00$27,000.00 $23,000.00 85.19%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM 35.41 $0.00$70,279.35 ($70,279.35) -100.00%

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% on AA $930,784.95$701,977.57 $228,807.38 32.59%

Fringe Fringe--Delayed hires  35.41% $0.00($8,102.89) $8,102.89 -100.00%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$391.50 ($391.50) -100.00%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes--Delayed Hires $0.00($336.84) $336.84 -100.00%

Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$2,921.59 ($2,921.59) -100.00%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% on AA $54,136.91$29,181.98 $24,954.93 85.51%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 12 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

5000 Investigations and Enforcement Bureau

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Taxes Taxes on CC Employees  1.73% $865.00$0.00 $865.00 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $985,786.86$796,312.26 $189,474.60 23.79%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E01 Office & Administrative Supplies Supplies Supplies $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions Lexis Nexis,Hire Authority, Nat.Student Loan
Increase of $500/month for GOLD 
Subscription Service

$57,250.00$55,000.00 $2,250.00 4.09%

E20 Motor Vehicle Chargeback Motor Vehcile 
Lease

OVM Chargeback $6,109.92$0.00 $6,109.92 #Div/0!

E30 Credit Card Purchases Credit Card Credit Card Purchases $15,000.00$15,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Agent Travel Agent for Trainings and Investigations $100,000.00$100,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Registrations Training/Conference Registration Fees. $30,000.00$30,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $213,359.92$205,000.00 $8,359.92 4.08%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J25 Laboratory & Pharmaceutical Services Finger Prints State 
Police

Chargeback for Finger Print Costs for 
Licenses @ $50/set and ~4.5K prints

$50,000.00$175,000.00 ($125,000.00) -71.43%

Finger Prints State 
Police

ISA Finger Print--Decrease for actual amount 
ISA drafted for

$0.00($125,000.00) $125,000.00 -100.00%

Plainville Police 
Salaries

Plainville Police Salaries $273,000.00$273,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Springfield Police 
Salaries

Springfield Police GEU 6 FTEs $609,248.00$0.00 $609,248.00 #Div/0!

State Police 83rd RTT costs not funded by Community 
Mitigation Fund

$0.00$702,404.00 ($702,404.00) -100.00%

State Police MGC Salaries for MGC Investigations and 
Background Unit

$865,211.33$969,003.97 ($103,792.64) -10.71%

State Police MGC State Police Troopers Plainville Straight 
Time and Payroll Taxes

$1,340,281.04$1,283,085.53 $57,195.51 4.46%

State Police MSP Staff Costs at MGM 13 FTEs $1,644,657.26$448,768.12 $1,195,889.14 266.48%

State Police OT & 
Travel

OT and Travel for Troopers assigned to MGC 
GEU

$750,000.00$750,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

J28 Law Enforcement Lease Vehicles Plainville Law Enforcement Vehicles $8,877.39$8,877.39 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $5,541,275.02$4,485,139.01 $1,056,136.01 23.55%

KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

K07 Office Furnishings Gaming Equipment 2 electronic fingerprint machines and 4 
kobetron units

$72,000.00$53,444.00 $18,556.00 34.72%

Office Equipment Patrol Riffles/Active Shooter  Gear $10,000.00$15,000.00 ($5,000.00) -33.33%

Obj Class Totals: $82,000.00$68,444.00 $13,556.00 19.81%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 13 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

5000 Investigations and Enforcement Bureau

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U02 Telecommunications Services - Voice Mobile Devices Wifi Cards for Staff $50/month $12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Division/Bureau Totals: $9,801,338.50$7,836,453.82 $1,964,884.68 25.07%

7000 Licensing Division

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for Everett Opening $0.00$13,730.77 ($13,730.77) -100.00%

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employee Salaries $469,551.47$397,674.74 $71,876.73 18.07%

Obj Class Totals: $469,551.47$411,405.51 $58,145.96 14.13%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out-of State Travel Reimbursements $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel MGM Opening/Hiring Events $4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $6,500.00$6,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES

C05 Contracted Student Interns Contract Employee for MGM Springfield $65,000.00$16,250.00 $48,750.00 300.00%

Obj Class Totals: $65,000.00$16,250.00 $48,750.00 300.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM  35.41% $0.00$4,789.29 ($4,789.29) -100.00%

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $166,268.18$138,708.95 $27,559.23 19.87%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$199.10 ($199.10) -100.00%

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$235.63 ($235.63) -100.00%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73%% $8,132.35$5,766.28 $2,366.07 41.03%

Obj Class Totals: $174,400.53$149,699.25 $24,701.28 16.50%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Supplies Supplies for new employees and temporary 
operations in Springfield

$10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

E06 Postage Postage Federal Express Charges $1,500.00$1,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Agent Travel Leaders
G2E for meetings with Vendors and 
Licensing of Primaries

$10,000.00$12,000.00 ($2,000.00) -16.67%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conferences Conference, Training & Registration. $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $26,500.00$28,500.00 ($2,000.00) -7.02%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Temp Help Temp Help for Everett Opening $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 14 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

7000 Licensing Division

Obj Class Totals: $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J46 Temporary Help Services Temp Help Services Temp Help to assist with processing 
application during MGM opening

$10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

K07 Office Furnishings Equipment 
Purchases

Equipment for new employees $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Division/Bureau Totals: $786,952.00$657,354.76 $129,597.24 19.71%

$22,605,257.67$20,593,675.82 $2,011,581.85MGC Regulatory Costs Totals: 9.77%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 15 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Indirect

2000 MGC Indirect

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E16 Indirect Cost Recoupment Indirect Indirect on MGM Opening Costs from 
Midyear Presentation

$0.00$33,904.66 ($33,904.66) -100.00%

Indirect Agency 
Wide

Indirect at 10% of AA, CC, HH, JJ and UU 
excluding U07

$2,037,294.23$1,659,949.80 $377,344.43 22.73%

Obj Class Totals: $2,037,294.23$1,693,854.46 $343,439.77 20.28%

Division/Bureau Totals: $2,037,294.23$1,693,854.46 $343,439.77 20.28%

$2,037,294.23$1,693,854.46 $343,439.77Indirect Totals: 20.28%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 16 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF

1700 Problem Gambling

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $201,973.00$205,317.50 ($3,344.50) -1.63%

Obj Class Totals: $201,973.00$205,317.50 ($3,344.50) -1.63%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel $3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-State-Travel Reimbursements $3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $71,518.64$71,614.74 ($96.10) -0.13%

Taxes Tax rate of  1.73% $3,494.13$2,977.10 $517.03 17.37%

Obj Class Totals: $75,012.77$74,591.84 $420.93 0.56%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES

MEMBERSHIPS/CREDIT CARD EXPENSES  
NET ZERO CHANGE

$25,995.23$10,000.00 $15,995.23 159.95%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Agency Fees Travel Leaders $2,000.00$4,000.00 ($2,000.00) -50.00%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conferences Conference, Training & Registration Fees $5,000.00$4,000.00 $1,000.00 25.00%

Obj Class Totals: $32,995.23$18,000.00 $14,995.23 83.31%

FF FACILITY OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

F16 Library & Teaching Supplies & Materials Books Library/reference books $1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Crime Analysis Crime Analyst $30,000.00$50,000.00 ($20,000.00) -40.00%

Research Strategic Planning $15,000.00$0.00 $15,000.00 #Div/0!

H19 Management Consultants CONSULTANT SVCS Mass Council MGM additional staff $0.00$64,351.50 ($64,351.50) -100.00%

H23 Program Coordinators Branding GameSense media buys etc. KHJ $200,000.00$150,000.00 $50,000.00 33.33%

CONSULTANT 
SVCS (TO DEPTS)

PROGRAM COORDINATIORS  NET ZERO 
CHANGE

$0.00($25,000.00) $25,000.00 -100.00%

Consultants Cambridge Health Alliance contract costs $150,000.00$400,000.00 ($250,000.00) -62.50%

GRAC/RDASC/Rese
arch Consultants

Bruce Cohen--$20K/Joel Weissman/Jeff 
Moratta/Anthony Roman
Other Consultants on Stipends max of $20K
Peer Review process for research agenda

$45,000.00$40,000.00 $5,000.00 12.50%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 17 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF

1700 Problem Gambling

H23 Program Coordinators Mass Council Mass Council on Compulsive Gambling 
including employees to man Game Sense 
booth at Penn and MGM
--Staffed 16 hrs per day 
--VSE
--Play My Way
--Required by Statute Chapter 194, Section 9

$1,835,000.00$640,000.00 $1,195,000.00 186.72%

Research 
Consultant/ Umass

Tom Land--Need Better Description $79,000.00$0.00 $79,000.00 #Div/0!

Special Study Public Health Trust Fund requested study of 
a sub-population

$100,000.00$100,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $2,454,000.00$1,419,351.50 $1,034,648.50 72.90%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J62 Contracted (Non-employees) Advisory 
Board or Commission Mem

PROGRAMATIC 
SERVICES

BOARD MEMBER STIPENDS   NET ZERO 
CHANGE

$0.00$15,000.00 ($15,000.00) -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $0.00$15,000.00 ($15,000.00) -100.00%

MM PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS

M04 Services Purch Support of Human/Social 
Services for Clients

PPC 
reimbursements 
for Play My Way 
Incentives

PPC reimbursements for Play My Way 
Incentives

$10,000.00$15,000.00 ($5,000.00) -33.33%

Problem Gambling Problem Gambling Solutions--Jeff Marotta 
reviewing applications and consultations

$0.00$10,000.00 ($10,000.00) -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$25,000.00 ($15,000.00) -60.00%

PP STATE AID/POL SUB

P01 Grants To Public Entities Data Storage Grant Final Component of Research Agenda data 
storage of player data to not-for-profit entity

$50,000.00$75,000.00 ($25,000.00) -33.33%

DPH ISA DPH ISA for operations and grants from 
public health trust fund.  Balance remaining 
from $5M after research agenda is 
accounted for.

$0.00$1,140,197.00 ($1,140,197.00) -100.00%

Umass Magic Core/Optional--Cohort Study $815,000.00$1,200,000.00 ($385,000.00) -32.08%

P06 Other Financial Assistance to State 
Authorities

Umass Seigma/Umass core--Baseline Study on-going $1,180,000.00$800,000.00 $380,000.00 47.50%

PP1 Grants To Non-Public Entities Play My Way Incentives

Obj Class Totals: $2,045,000.00$3,215,197.00 ($1,170,197.00) -36.40%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U07 Information Technology (IT) Equipment ITRAK Development of ITRAK and Migration from 
Current Process

$0.00$10,000.00 ($10,000.00) -100.00%

Play Management Development of Play Management Software $0.00$65,000.00 ($65,000.00) -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $0.00$75,000.00 ($75,000.00) -100.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 18 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF

1700 Problem Gambling

Division/Bureau Totals: $4,825,981.00$5,053,957.84 ($227,976.84) -4.51%

$4,825,981.00$5,053,957.84 ($227,976.84)Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF Totals: -4.51%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 19 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Office of Attorney General and AGO MSP

9000 Office of the Attorney General

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J25 Laboratory & Pharmaceutical Services State Police AGO State Police OT $350,000.00$350,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

State Police AGO Straight Time Troopers and Payroll 
Taxes 6FTEs for FY18

$746,997.20$501,256.98 $245,740.22 49.02%

State Police MSP Staff Costs at AGO for 2 additional 
troopers for 26 pay periods in FY18 bringing 
total for the MSP AGO Gaming Unit to 6 FTEs

$0.00$217,160.00 ($217,160.00) -100.00%

Obj Class Totals: $1,096,997.20$1,068,416.98 $28,580.22 2.68%

OO

O99 Attorney General Funds 18 FTEs assigned to the unit, various 
percentages of~ 5.5FTEs of support, and 
management positions, office space, travel, 
conferences, and investigative costs.

$2,760,000.00$2,600,000.00 $160,000.00 6.15%

Obj Class Totals: $2,760,000.00$2,600,000.00 $160,000.00 6.15%

Division/Bureau Totals: $3,856,997.20$3,668,416.98 $188,580.22 5.14%

$3,856,997.20$3,668,416.98 $188,580.22Office of Attorney General and AGO MSP Totals: 5.14%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 20 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Alcohol and Beverage Control Commission

9001

OO

O01 ISA with ABCC ABCC $75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Division/Bureau Totals: $75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

$75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00Alcohol and Beverage Control Commission Totals: 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 21 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Appropriation Totals $33,400,530.10$31,084,905.10 $2,315,625.00 7.45%

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

1000 Finance and Administration

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive  Employee 
Compensation

Admin Employees Salaries $206,424.23$163,926.80 $42,497.43 25.92%

Obj Class Totals: $206,424.23$163,926.80 $42,497.43 25.92%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41%
%

$73,094.82$57,177.67 $15,917.15 27.84%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $3,571.14$2,376.94 $1,194.20 50.24%

Obj Class Totals: $76,665.96$59,554.61 $17,111.35 28.73%

Division/Bureau Totals: $283,090.19$223,481.41 $59,608.78 26.67%

1100 Human Resources

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive  Employee 
Compensatio

HR Employees Salaries $72,468.28$83,782.66 ($11,314.38) -13.50%

Obj Class Totals: $72,468.28$83,782.66 ($11,314.38) -13.50%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $25,661.01$29,223.39 ($3,562.38) -12.19%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $1,253.70$1,214.85 $38.85 3.20%

Obj Class Totals: $26,914.71$30,438.24 ($3,523.53) -11.58%

Division/Bureau Totals: $99,382.99$114,220.90 ($14,837.91) -12.99%

1200 Legal

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive  Employee 
Compensation

Legal Employees Salaries $36,585.62$36,509.62 $76.00 0.21%

Obj Class Totals: $36,585.62$36,509.62 $76.00 0.21%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $12,954.97$12,734.56 $220.41 1.73%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $632.93$529.39 $103.54 19.56%

Obj Class Totals: $13,587.90$13,263.95 $323.95 2.44%

Division/Bureau Totals: $50,173.52$49,773.57 $399.95 0.80%

1300 Executive Director

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Exec. Dir.  Employees Salaries $36,040.58$35,911.23 $129.35 0.36%

Obj Class Totals: $36,040.58$35,911.23 $129.35 0.36%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 22 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

1300 Executive Director

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $12,761.97$12,525.83 $236.14 1.89%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $623.50$520.71 $102.79 19.74%

Obj Class Totals: $13,385.47$13,046.54 $338.93 2.60%

Division/Bureau Totals: $49,426.05$48,957.77 $468.28 0.96%

1400 Information Technology

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

IT  Employees Salaries $75,881.22$34,287.81 $41,593.41 121.31%

Obj Class Totals: $75,881.22$34,287.81 $41,593.41 121.31%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $26,869.54$11,959.58 $14,909.96 124.67%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $1,312.75$497.17 $815.58 164.04%

Obj Class Totals: $28,182.29$12,456.75 $15,725.54 126.24%

Division/Bureau Totals: $104,063.51$46,744.56 $57,318.95 122.62%

1500 Commissioners

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Commissioners  Employees Salaries $55,487.25$53,893.50 $1,593.75 2.96%

Obj Class Totals: $55,487.25$53,893.50 $1,593.75 2.96%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $1,964.04$18,798.05 ($16,834.01) -89.55%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $959.93$781.46 $178.47 22.84%

Obj Class Totals: $2,923.97$19,579.51 ($16,655.54) -85.07%

Division/Bureau Totals: $58,411.22$73,473.01 ($15,061.79) -20.50%

1800 Communications

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Communications Employees Salaries $11,272.11$11,272.11 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $11,272.11$11,272.11 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $3,991.45$3,931.71 $59.74 1.52%

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $195.01$163.44 $31.57 19.32%

Obj Class Totals: $4,186.46$4,095.15 $91.31 2.23%

Division/Bureau Totals: $15,458.57$15,367.26 $91.31 0.59%

3000 Racing Division

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 23 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

3000 Racing Division

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employee Salaries $281,163.00$293,177.00 ($12,014.00) -4.10%

Obj Class Totals: $281,163.00$293,177.00 ($12,014.00) -4.10%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel Reimbursement $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

B02 In-State Travel Travel In State Travel Reimbursement $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES

C04 Contracted Seasonal Employees Seasonals Seasonal salaries for Plainridge at 35 weeks $425,000.00$360,000.00 $65,000.00 18.06%

Obj Class Totals: $425,000.00$360,000.00 $65,000.00 18.06%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $99,559.82$102,260.14 ($2,700.32) -2.64%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $4,864.12$4,251.07 $613.05 14.42%

Taxes for Seasonals Taxes for Seasonals @1.73% $7,352.50$6,012.00 $1,340.50 22.30%

Obj Class Totals: $111,776.44$112,523.21 ($746.77) -0.66%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E01 Office & Administrative Supplies Supplies W.B. Mason $7,600.00$6,000.00 $1,600.00 26.67%

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printing Sir Speedy $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Memberships AA Dority/Organization of Racing 
Investigators

$5,625.00$1,005.00 $4,620.00 459.70%

Memberships Assoc. of Racing Regulators $18,700.00$18,700.00 $0.00 0.00%

E13 Advertising Expenses Public Hearing 
Notices

Boston Globe $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Public Hearing 
Notices

Boston Herald $700.00$700.00 $0.00 0.00%

Public Hearing 
Notices

Dow Jones/Cape Cod Times $0.00$150.00 ($150.00) -100.00%

Public Hearing 
Notices

Sun Chronical $0.00$300.00 ($300.00) -100.00%

E15 Bottled Water Water Belmont Springs/DS Waters of America $360.00$200.00 $160.00 80.00%

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Agent Travel $5,000.00$3,000.00 $2,000.00 66.67%

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conferences Assoc. of Racing Comm./Delaware 
Racing/Thoroughbred Racing

$3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $42,485.00$34,555.00 $7,930.00 22.95%

FF FACILITY OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 24 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

3000 Racing Division

F05 Laboratory Supplies Vet Supplies Gloves, scrubs etc. $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H19 Management Consultants Hearing Officer David Murray $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J10 Auxiliary Financial Services Credit Cards Bank of America credit card terminal fees $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

J25 Laboratory & Pharmaceutical Services Testing Health Resources Corp. $1,800.00$1,800.00 $0.00 0.00%

J28 Law Enforcement State Police Mass State Police Straight and OT $368,958.73$465,000.00 ($96,041.27) -20.65%

JJ1 Legal Support Services Stenographer Catuagno Court Reporting $6,500.00$6,500.00 $0.00 0.00%

JJ2 Auxiliary Services Autopsies Trustees of Tufts College $22,000.00$22,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Testing Lab HFL Sports Science $7,500.00$7,000.00 $500.00 7.14%

Testing Lab Industrial Laboratories $320,000.00$312,000.00 $8,000.00 2.56%

Obj Class Totals: $727,758.73$815,300.00 ($87,541.27) -10.74%

LL EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR

L46 Print, Photocopying & Micrograph 
Equipment Maint/Repair

Maintenance 
Contract

K & A Industries $915.00$2,000.00 ($1,085.00) -54.25%

Obj Class Totals: $915.00$2,000.00 ($1,085.00) -54.25%

MM PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS

M03 Purchased Human & Social Services For 
Clients/Non Medical

Hardship Payments Economic Hardship Payments $20,000.00$20,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Legislative 
Mandate

Jockey's Guild $65,000.00$65,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

M04 Services Purch Support of Human/Social 
Services for Clients

ISA ISA with DPH Compulsive Gambling $70,000.00$70,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

Obj Class Totals: $155,000.00$155,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U02 Telecommunications Services - Voice Phones Verizon/AT&T $5,000.00$15,000.00 ($10,000.00) -66.67%

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

Chrims Arthur Evans $15,000.00$16,000.00 ($1,000.00) -6.25%

U09 Information Technology (IT) Equip Rental 
Or Lease

Computer Leases Ontario Investments $0.00$12,000.00 ($12,000.00) -100.00%

U10 Information Tech (IT) Equipment 
Maintenance & Repair

Security & 
Surveillence

Test Barn $50,000.00

Obj Class Totals: $70,000.00$43,000.00 $27,000.00 62.79%

Division/Bureau Totals: $1,853,098.17$1,854,555.21 ($1,457.04) -0.08%

7000 Licensing Division

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 25 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

7000 Licensing Division

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employee Salaries $3,789.57$0.00 $3,789.57 #Div/0!

Obj Class Totals: $3,789.57$0.00 $3,789.57 #Div/0!

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 34.88% $1,341.89$1,295.88 $46.01 3.55%

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.45% $65.56$53.88 $11.68 21.68%

Obj Class Totals: $1,407.45$1,349.76 $57.69 4.27%

Division/Bureau Totals: $5,197.02$1,349.76 $3,847.26 285.03%

$2,518,301.24$2,427,923.45 $90,377.79MGC Regulatory Costs Totals: 3.72%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 26 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

Indirect

2000 MGC Indirect

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E16 Indirect Cost Recoupment Indirect Agency 
Wide

Indirect at 10% of AA, CC, HH, JJ and UU 
excluding U07

$202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65 24.04%

Obj Class Totals: $202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65 24.04%

Division/Bureau Totals: $202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65 24.04%

$202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65Indirect Totals: 24.04%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 27 of 28



Approp Division/ 
Bureau

Object Class  Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year  
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

Appropriation Totals $2,720,988.34$2,591,321.90 $129,666.44 5.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 28 of 28



Next Year Budget By Object Class for Commission
Approp UnitObj 

Class
Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 

Amount
Current Year 

Amount
VarianceBudget 

Grouping
Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for MGM Opening $0.00$35,961.55 ($35,961.55) -100.00%1000

Employee 
Compensation

Salaries $404,322.01$364,080.20 $40,241.81 11.05%1000

Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $200,955.72$157,680.34 $43,275.38 27.45%1100

Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for MGM Opening $0.00$19,615.37 ($19,615.37) -100.00%1100

Raises 2.0% COLA/Bonus Incentives Agency Wide $168,097.61$121,971.16 $46,126.45 37.82%1100

Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $486,791.39$479,248.37 $7,543.02 1.57%1200

Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $584,513.54$589,524.27 ($5,010.73) -0.85%1300

Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $813,313.08$560,397.81 $252,915.27 45.13%1400

Employee 
Compensation

Employee Compensation $575,926.01$558,769.76 $17,156.25 3.07%1500

Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $187,613.00$187,317.58 $295.42 0.16%1600

Salaries Salaries--Delayed hires $0.00($9,615.38) $9,615.38 -100.00%1600

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Salaries $198,950.66$197,428.90 $1,521.76 0.77%1800

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employees $317,105.50$313,488.00 $3,617.50 1.15%1900

Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for MGM Opening $0.00$201,488.96 ($201,488.96) -100.00%5000

Employee 
Compensation

Placeholder for potential additional hires (FI, 
Attorney, Civilian Investigator, etc)

$0.00$0.00 $0.00 #Num!5000

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Salaries $2,851,916.70$2,012,550.36 $839,366.34 41.71%5000

Salaries Salaries--Delayed hires $0.00($23,230.77) $23,230.77 -100.00%5000

Employee 
Compensation

New Hires for Everett Opening $0.00$13,730.77 ($13,730.77) -100.00%7000

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employee Salaries $469,551.47$397,674.74 $71,876.73 18.07%7000

A07 Shift Differential Pay Employee 
Compnesation

Shift Differential for Gaming agents $0.00$18,750.00 ($18,750.00) -100.00%5000

A08 Overtime Pay Overtime Overtime for Gaming Agents. $42,000.00$10,000.00 $32,000.00 320.00%5000

Obj Class Totals: $7,301,056.69$6,206,831.99 $1,094,224.70 17.63%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 1 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Travel Out of State Travel and Training $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Travel Two conferences Out of State $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1300

Travel Out of State Travel G2E/Gartner $4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Travel 
Reimbursements

Travel Reimbursements
--In State (6 Commission Meetings a Year, 
Site Visits)
--Out of Pocket Out of State Expenses

$15,000.00$10,000.00 $5,000.00 50.00%1500

Travel Other Out of State Travel-Inclusive Airfare, 
Hotel, Lodging
--Las Vegas Gaming Conference G2E

$1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1600

Travel Out of state travel reimbursements for 
gaming enforcement agents and non-state 
police staff

$15,000.00$15,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

Travel Out-of State Travel Reimbursements $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-State Travel $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Travel In State Travel $2,000.00$1,000.00 $1,000.00 100.00%1100

Travel In State Travel $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Travel In-State Mileage and Rental Cars $4,000.00$2,000.00 $2,000.00 100.00%1300

Travel In-state travel $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Travel In-state Travel
AOC as well as site visits of licensees

$6,000.00$3,000.00 $3,000.00 100.00%1600

Travel 
Reimbursement

In-State Travel Reimbursement $3,900.00$3,900.00 $0.00 0.00%1800

In State Travel 
Reimbursement

In-State Travel Reimbursement and Out of 
State
--Visits to Other Licensee Sites

$4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1900

Travel In-state-travel reimbursements for gaming 
enforcement agents and non-state police 
staff

$8,000.00$8,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

Travel MGM Opening/Hiring Events $4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

B05 Conference, Training, Registration and 
Membership Dues and L

Professional 
Licenses

Professional and Bar Licenses $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Obj Class Totals: $89,400.00$78,400.00 $11,000.00 14.03%

CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES

C05 Contracted Student Interns Intern Student Intern-Co-op $20,000.00$0.00 $20,000.00 #Div/0!1800

Contract Employee for MGM Springfield $65,000.00$16,250.00 $48,750.00 300.00%7000

C23 Management, Business Professionals & 
Admin Services

Contracted Civilian Investigators $50,000.00$27,000.00 $23,000.00 85.19%5000

Obj Class Totals: $135,000.00$43,250.00 $91,750.00 212.14%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 2 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM $0.00$12,543.39 ($12,543.39) -100.00%1000

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $143,170.42$126,991.17 $16,179.25 12.74%1000

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM $0.00$521.44 ($521.44) -100.00%1000

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $6,994.77$5,279.16 $1,715.61 32.50%1000

Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM  35.41% $0.00$6,841.84 ($6,841.84) -100.00%1100

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $71,172.58$54,998.90 $16,173.68 29.41%1100

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM 1.73% $0.00$284.42 ($284.42) -100.00%1100

Payroll Taxes & 
Fringe on Raises

Payroll Taxes & Fringe on Raises $62,435.41$44,312.12 $18,123.29 40.90%1100

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $3,477.02$2,286.36 $1,190.66 52.08%1100

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $172,372.83$167,161.83 $5,211.00 3.12%1200

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $8,421.49$6,949.10 $1,472.39 21.19%1200

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $205,598.90$211,446.64 ($5,847.74) -2.77%1300

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $11,489.43$2,727.53 $8,761.90 321.24%1300

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $265,910.67$195,466.76 $70,443.91 36.04%1400

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $12,991.40$8,125.77 $4,865.63 59.88%1400

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $203,935.40$194,898.89 $9,036.51 4.64%1500

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $9,963.52$8,102.16 $1,861.36 22.97%1500

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $66,433.76$65,336.37 $1,097.39 1.68%1600

Fringe Fringe--Delayed hires $0.00($3,353.84) $3,353.84 -100.00%1600

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes--Delayed Hires $0.00($139.42) $139.42 -100.00%1600

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $3,245.70$2,716.10 $529.60 19.50%1600

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $70,448.43$68,863.20 $1,585.23 2.30%1800

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $3,787.85$2,862.72 $925.13 32.32%1800

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $112,287.06$109,344.61 $2,942.45 2.69%1900

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $5,485.93$4,545.58 $940.35 20.69%1900

Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM 35.41 $0.00$70,279.35 ($70,279.35) -100.00%5000

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% on AA $930,784.95$701,977.57 $228,807.38 32.59%5000

Fringe Fringe--Delayed hires  35.41% $0.00($8,102.89) $8,102.89 -100.00%5000

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$391.50 ($391.50) -100.00%5000

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes--Delayed Hires $0.00($336.84) $336.84 -100.00%5000

Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$2,921.59 ($2,921.59) -100.00%5000

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% on AA $54,136.91$29,181.98 $24,954.93 85.51%5000

Taxes Taxes on CC Employees  1.73% $865.00$0.00 $865.00 #Div/0!5000

Fringe Fringe on New Hires for MGM  35.41% $0.00$4,789.29 ($4,789.29) -100.00%7000

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $166,268.18$138,708.95 $27,559.23 19.87%7000

Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$199.10 ($199.10) -100.00%7000

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 3 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Payroll Taxes Payroll Taxes on New Hires for MGM  1.73% $0.00$235.63 ($235.63) -100.00%7000

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73%% $8,132.35$5,766.28 $2,366.07 41.03%7000

D15 Workers' Compensation Chargebacks Worker's Comp 
Chargeback

Worker's Comp Chargeback $75,000.00$50,000.00 $25,000.00 50.00%1100

Obj Class Totals: $2,674,809.96$2,295,124.32 $379,685.64 16.54%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E01 Office & Administrative Supplies Supplies Adoni Spring Water/Milhench $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Supplies Cam Office Supplies $8,500.00$10,000.00 ($1,500.00) -15.00%1000

Supplies W.B. Mason $23,500.00$25,000.00 ($1,500.00) -6.00%1000

Supplies Office Supplies $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Supplies Supplies $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printing Millenium/RazzMTazz/MG Products $3,500.00$3,950.00 ($450.00) -11.39%1000

Printers Printers @$250/printer $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Office Supplies Lane Printing, etc. $200.00$0.00 $200.00 #Div/0!1500

Printing Flyer printing/Workforce Development $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1600

Printing Printing $6,100.00$6,100.00 $0.00 0.00%1800

Supplies Supplies for new employees and temporary 
operations in Springfield

$10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

E05 Postage Chargeback Postage ITD PAD Chargeback for postal Services $2,743.92$2,664.00 $79.92 3.00%1000

E06 Postage Postage Postage for Ashburton Mail Room $2,400.00$2,400.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Postage Postage for Pitney Bowes, Fed Ex, UPS $1,500.00$1,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Postage Federal Express Charges $1,500.00$1,500.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Subscriptions Go To Meeting $6,400.00$0.00 $6,400.00 #Div/0!1000

Subscriptions Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees   SHRM, NEHRA, The Partnership

$5,000.00$2,000.00 $3,000.00 150.00%1100

Subscriptions Subscriptions and Memberships Westlaw 
ABA

$11,000.00$7,000.00 $4,000.00 57.14%1200

Memberships NAGR $500.00$0.00 $500.00 #Div/0!1300

Subscriptions Trade Journals $5,460.00$3,000.00 $2,460.00 82.00%1500

Administrative 
Expenses

Marketing Sponsorships of Diversity and 
Opportunity Events

$2,500.00$25,000.00 ($22,500.00) -90.00%1600

Adminstrative 
Expenses

Subscriptions  Net Zero Adjustment $0.00$3,500.00 ($3,500.00) -100.00%1800

Subscriptions Subscriptions, Licensing, Memberships $27,000.00$25,000.00 $2,000.00 8.00%1800

Subscriptions/Mem
berships

Instatrac subscription $4,600.00$5,000.00 ($400.00) -8.00%1900

Subscriptions Lexis Nexis,Hire Authority, Nat.Student Loan
Increase of $500/month for GOLD 
Subscription Service

$57,250.00$55,000.00 $2,250.00 4.09%5000

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 4 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

E13 Advertising Expenses Reg Advertising Advertising of Regs and Meetings $10,000.00$5,000.00 $5,000.00 100.00%1200

E15 Bottled Water Water Quench $1,254.00$684.00 $570.00 83.33%1000

E18 State Single Audit Chargeback FY 17 Chargeback 
Single State Audit

Chargeback $500.00$300.00 $200.00 66.67%1000

E19 Fees, Fines, Licenses, Permits & 
Chargebacks

Fees, Fines, 
Licensed, 
Chargebakcs

EZ Pass $1,000.00$300.00 $700.00 233.33%1000

Licenses Fees, Fines, Licenses, Permits & Chargebacks 
for HRCMS and HRD

$9,000.00$2,653.00 $6,347.00 239.24%1100

E20 Motor Vehicle Chargeback OVM Motorized Vehicle Chargeback--Leases of 
ford fusion and ford escape

$12,689.64$12,689.64 $0.00 0.00%1000

Motor Vehcile 
Lease

OVM Chargeback $6,109.92$0.00 $6,109.92 #Div/0!5000

E22 Temp Use Space/Confer-Incidental 
Includes Reservation Fees

Laz Parking Parking at 33 Arch St.  13 spaces $54,000.00$54,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Conference 
Incidentals

Conference Incidentals $3,700.00$0.00 $3,700.00 #Div/0!1100

75-101 Parking 
Garage

Parking 75-101 $28,200.00$28,200.00 $0.00 0.00%1500

Meeting Space Temporary Space $1.2/mtg @ 6mtgs $7,500.00$7,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1500

Conferences Access Opportunity Meetings $7,000.00$7,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1600

Conferences and 
Incidentals

Gaming Policy Advisory Committee $5,000.00$6,000.00 ($1,000.00) -16.67%1900

E30 Credit Card Purchases Credit Card Credit Card Incidental Purchases $2,000.00$500.00 $1,500.00 300.00%1000

Credit Card 
Charges

FIA Card $1,000.00$0.00 $1,000.00 #Div/0!1100

Credit Card Credit Card Purchases $10,000.00$15,000.00 ($5,000.00) -33.33%1300

Credit Card Allowable Credit Card Expenses $7,500.00$12,500.00 ($5,000.00) -40.00%1500

Credit Card Credit Card Purchases $15,000.00$15,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Travel Agency Fees $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Travel Conference/Trainings $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Travel Travel Agent Expenses $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Travel Travel Agent $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1600

Travel Agent Travel Agent for Trainings and Investigations $100,000.00$100,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

Travel Agent Travel Leaders
G2E for meetings with Vendors and 
Licensing of Primaries

$10,000.00$12,000.00 ($2,000.00) -16.67%7000

E56 Secretariat Central Services Chargeback IT Support ANF Chargeback for IT services (Help Desk 
Charges  $659.79 per desktop)

$0.00$52,783.00 ($52,783.00) -100.00%1400

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 5 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

EE Conference, 
Training, Registion 
Fees

Conference, Training, Registion Fees $4,000.00$0.00 $4,000.00 #Div/0!1200

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conference 
Registrations

Registration Fees $0.00$5,000.00 ($5,000.00) -100.00%1000

ISA with EOHHS EOHHS Professional Development (MasSP 
Trainings)

$12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1100

Training Conference, Training and Registration Fees $1,000.00$13,000.00 ($12,000.00) -92.31%1100

Gaming Forum Gaming Forum TBD $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1300

Registration Fees Conference/Trainings $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1500

Conference, 
Training 
Registration Fees

GNEMSDC, Umass, Colette Phillips $11,000.00$0.00 $11,000.00 #Div/0!1600

Registrations Training/Conference Registration Fees. $30,000.00$30,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

Conferences Conference, Training & Registration. $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

EE9 Employee Recognition Chargeback Employee Morale Employee Recognition Program $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1100

Obj Class Totals: $601,607.48$653,223.64 ($51,616.16) -7.90%

GG ENERGY COSTS AND SPACE RENTAL

G01 Space Rental Office Lease 101 Federal St. 12 months $1,195,969.14$1,182,473.94 $13,495.20 1.14%1000

Rent Umass Office Rent $2,540.00$2,540.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Data Center Markley Data Center Costs (Rack Space 
$10.8K, Electricity $13.2K, and Fiber $4K)

$35,750.00$28,080.00 $7,670.00 27.31%1400

G03 Electricity Electricity 101 Federal St. 12 months $32,635.44$32,635.44 $0.00 0.00%1000

G05 Fuel For Vehicles Gas Wex Bank/Gulf $5,000.00$1,500.00 $3,500.00 233.33%1000

Obj Class Totals: $1,271,894.58$1,247,229.38 $24,665.20 1.98%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Insurance Comprehensive Insurance Policy $95,094.48$86,450.00 $8,644.48 10.00%1000

Legal Consultants Employment Laywers $5,000.00$0.00 $5,000.00 #Div/0!1100

Worker's Comp Workers Comp Litigation Fees $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1100

Litigation Defense Outside Counsel Litigation Defense $400,000.00$1,100,000.00 ($700,000.00) -63.64%1200

Outside Counsel General Practice, Regulations, Laws, etc. $50,000.00$80,000.00 ($30,000.00) -37.50%1200

Outside Counsel Labor Employment Law $20,000.00$20,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Temp Help Temp Help for Everett Opening $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

H19 Management Consultants CPA Firm for Annual Audits consistent with 
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

$38,550.00$38,550.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Hearing Officer Hearing Officer $32,000.00$32,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

Strategic 
Consultant

General Consultant needs for 
Commissioners or Executive Director

$20,000.00$40,000.00 ($20,000.00) -50.00%1300

HH3 Media Design, Editorial and 
Communication

CONSULTANTS AOC Outreach Campaign/ net zero change $0.00$35,756.00 ($35,756.00) -100.00%1600

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 6 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

HH3 Media Design, Editorial and 
Communication

Media Design KHJ $35,000.00$0.00 $35,000.00 #Div/0!1600

Website Design Marketing & Website Design $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1800

Obj Class Totals: $750,644.48$1,487,756.00 ($737,111.52) -49.55%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J10 Auxiliary Financial Services Auxiliary Financial 
Services

Credit Card Fees/BillMatrix $300.00$0.00 $300.00 #Div/0!1000

J25 Laboratory & Pharmaceutical Services Finger Prints State 
Police

Chargeback for Finger Print Costs for 
Licenses @ $50/set and ~4.5K prints

$50,000.00$175,000.00 ($125,000.00) -71.43%5000

Finger Prints State 
Police

ISA Finger Print--Decrease for actual amount 
ISA drafted for

$0.00($125,000.00) $125,000.00 -100.00%5000

Plainville Police 
Salaries

Plainville Police Salaries $273,000.00$273,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

Springfield Police 
Salaries

Springfield Police GEU 6 FTEs $609,248.00$0.00 $609,248.00 #Div/0!5000

State Police 83rd RTT costs not funded by Community 
Mitigation Fund

$0.00$702,404.00 ($702,404.00) -100.00%5000

State Police MGC Salaries for MGC Investigations and 
Background Unit

$865,211.33$969,003.97 ($103,792.64) -10.71%5000

State Police MGC State Police Troopers Plainville Straight 
Time and Payroll Taxes

$1,340,281.04$1,283,085.53 $57,195.51 4.46%5000

State Police MSP Staff Costs at MGM 13 FTEs $1,644,657.26$448,768.12 $1,195,889.14 266.48%5000

State Police OT & 
Travel

OT and Travel for Troopers assigned to MGC 
GEU

$750,000.00$750,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

J28 Law Enforcement Lease Vehicles Plainville Law Enforcement Vehicles $8,877.39$8,877.39 $0.00 0.00%5000

J33 Photographic & Micrographic Services Stenographer Court Reports and Stenography  $2.1K/mtg $25,000.00$54,600.00 ($29,600.00) -54.21%1500

J46 Temporary Help Services Temp Help Resource Connection--Possibly for IEB or 
Licensing

$15,000.00$0.00 $15,000.00 #Div/0!1100

Temp Help Services Temp Help to assist with processing 
application during MGM opening

$10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

J50 Instructors/Lecturers/Trainers Training Catalant Jira Training $10,000.00$0.00 $10,000.00 #Div/0!1300

JJ1 Legal Support Services Operational 
Services

Offsite Storage $2,500.00$2,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1200

JJ2 Auxiliary Services Courier USA Couriers $200.00$200.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Shredding ProShred $850.00$750.00 $100.00 13.33%1000

EAP Crisis Management EAP program $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1100

HR Investigations HR Investigations $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1100

Testing All One Health Resouces $3,000.00$5,000.00 ($2,000.00) -40.00%1100

Operational 
Services/Streaming

Net Zero Adjustment to EE and KK $0.00($4,500.00) $4,500.00 -100.00%1800

Streaming Streaming & Production of Public Meetings $23,000.00$30,000.00 ($7,000.00) -23.33%1800

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 7 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

Obj Class Totals: $5,643,125.02$4,595,689.01 $1,047,436.01 22.79%

KK EQUIPMENT PURCHASE

K05 Office Equipment Equipment 
Purchases

Photography/Streaming Equipment Net Zero 
Purchase

$1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%1800

K07 Office Furnishings Office Equipment Display Cases
Display Cases

$3,000.00$0.00 $3,000.00 #Div/0!1500

Gaming Equipment 2 electronic fingerprint machines and 4 
kobetron units

$72,000.00$53,444.00 $18,556.00 34.72%5000

Office Equipment Patrol Riffles/Active Shooter  Gear $10,000.00$15,000.00 ($5,000.00) -33.33%5000

Equipment 
Purchases

Equipment for new employees $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%7000

Obj Class Totals: $96,000.00$78,944.00 $17,056.00 21.61%

LL EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR

L24 Motorized Vehicle Equipment Rental or 
Lease

Rental Cars Enterprise Car Rental $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

L25 Office Equipment Rental or Lease Printing Pitney Bowes $750.00$532.80 $217.20 40.77%1000

L26 Printing/Photocopy & Micrographics 
Equip Rent/Lease

Copier Canon Financial Services
Recurring Payment of $5.4K for 13th floor
Recurring Payment of $4.8K IEB
Per Click costs of $2.5K

$12,738.00$12,738.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

L46 Print, Photocopying & Micrograph 
Equipment Maint/Repair

Copier Canon USA/Maintenance & Repair--Initial 
Contract Rate Ended

$7,500.00$3,000.00 $4,500.00 150.00%1000

Xerox Leases Xerox Leases
Recurring Payments of $11.1K for 3 machines
Per Click costs of $4.2K (avg of this year)

$15,336.00$15,336.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Obj Class Totals: $36,824.00$32,106.80 $4,717.20 14.69%

NN INFRASTRUCTURE:

N50 Non-Major Facility Infrastructure 
Maintenance and Repair

Repairs Office/Building  Repairs $2,500.00$1,000.00 $1,500.00 150.00%1000

Obj Class Totals: $2,500.00$1,000.00 $1,500.00 150.00%

PP STATE AID/POL SUB

P01 Grants To Public Entities Grants Worforce Development and Diversity Grants
--Women In construction Outreach
--WF Coordinator Community Colleges
--Gaming Training Schools
--Regional WF Collaborations

$150,000.00$150,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1600

STATE AID/POL 
SUB

Grants to Public Entities/ net zero change $0.00($35,756.00) $35,756.00 -100.00%1600

Obj Class Totals: $150,000.00$114,244.00 $35,756.00 31.30%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U01 Telecommunications Services Data Cable Comcast Internet (Gaming Lab) and Cable 
Service (Meeting Rooms)

$4,800.00$4,800.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 8 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

U01 Telecommunications Services Data Plainridge Video Video Circuit for Boston & Plainville for 
Surveillance and CMS

$76,500.00$76,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

VPN VPN Accounts $8,100.00$8,100.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

U02 Telecommunications Services - Voice Cellular Service Cell Phone Service $65,985.00$65,985.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Phone Lines Conference Bridge Lines $1,500.00$1,980.00 ($480.00) -24.24%1400

Phone Lines DSCI phone services $7,000.00$9,000.00 ($2,000.00) -22.22%1400

Phone Lines MCI Fax Line $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Phone Lines Measured Business Lines $6,550.00$6,550.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Mobile Devices Wifi Cards for Staff $50/month $12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%5000

U03 Software & Information Technology 
Licenses (IT)

Software Adobe, Sharepoint, Office 365, Project, Vizio, 
Dragon, Winzip

$50,000.00$50,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Software CodeGuard MGC Website Backup Service $5,000.00$2,000.00 $3,000.00 150.00%1400

Software Insight/Jira $23,000.00$0.00 $23,000.00 #Div/0!1400

Software Kobitron - GLI Testing Platform $2,500.00$1,500.00 $1,000.00 66.67%1400

Software Prezi Software $3,300.00$3,300.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

U04 Information Technology Chargeback Internet MAGNET (Internet Access -2x50Mbps 
@$3,686/month, 1x20Mbps 
@$3138/month, 1x0.06units 
@$105.30/month)

$118,454.00$118,454.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

IT Support ANF Chargeback for Space at Chelsea and 
Springfield

$89,000.00$89,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Mobile Devices Mobile Device Management (@ 
$3.95/year/unit)

$4,000.00$4,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

On Base Chargeback for electronics record 
management system--OnBase

$90,000.00$0.00 $90,000.00 #Div/0!1400

OSC Chargeback MMARS Chargeback $5,000.00$10,000.00 ($5,000.00) -50.00%1400

Phone Lines Windstream WAN for Data Connection 
$1.5K/month

$18,000.00$18,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

IT Consultants Web penetration Testing $8,000.00$0.00 $8,000.00 #Div/0!1000

CMS CMS  - IGT Intelligen--Includes start-up for 
Everett and Springfield locations

$2,484,206.46$2,262,544.68 $221,661.78 9.80%1400

CMS CMS change orders $20,000.00$0.00 $20,000.00 #Div/0!1400

CMS CMS Intelligen--Increase for shot clock $0.00$14,500.00 ($14,500.00) -100.00%1400

Consultant IT Consultants Gartner $30,000.00$30,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Consulting IT Consulting Support @ $100/hr (Advizex 
and Soltrix)
$25K for GLI Testing

$75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

EOPS Network 
Connection

Needed to interface LMS with EOPS CJIS 
Network--Firewalls and equipment

$50,000.00$130,663.00 ($80,663.00) -61.73%1400

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 9 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

MGC Regulatory Costs

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

LMS Licensing System Continual Upgrades to 
Phase 1 and Phase 2 Development

$350,000.00$500,000.00 ($150,000.00) -30.00%1400

Training Technical Training $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

U06 Information Technology (IT) Cabling Phone FTG Phone lines maintenance etc. $20,000.00$14,000.00 $6,000.00 42.86%1400

U07 Information Technology (IT) Equipment IT Equipment 
Purchase

Encrypted Flash Drives $2,500.00$0.00 $2,500.00 #Div/0!1200

Hardware Gaming Technology Laboratory Equipment $5,000.00$5,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Equipment--Equipment for 
new troopers and gaming agents

$50,000.00$30,000.00 $20,000.00 66.67%1400

Servers Servers and Storage $40,000.00$40,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

U09 Information Technology (IT) Equip Rental 
Or Lease

Leases HP Leases $89,500.00$89,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

U10 Information Tech (IT) Equipment 
Maintenance & Repair

Cable Cable/Comcast $4,500.00$4,500.00 $0.00 0.00%1000

Maintenance Aruba Maintenance $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Maintenance EMC Maintenance $0.00$50,000.00 ($50,000.00) -100.00%1400

Maintenance Printer Maintenance $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Maintenance VMWare Mainteance $21,000.00$21,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1400

Obj Class Totals: $3,852,395.46$3,759,876.68 $92,518.78 2.46%

$22,605,257.67$20,593,675.82 $2,011,581.85MGC Regulatory Costs Totals: 9.77%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 10 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Indirect

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E16 Indirect Cost Recoupment Indirect Indirect on MGM Opening Costs from 
Midyear Presentation

$0.00$33,904.66 ($33,904.66) -100.00%2000

Indirect Agency 
Wide

Indirect at 10% of AA, CC, HH, JJ and UU 
excluding U07

$2,037,294.23$1,659,949.80 $377,344.43 22.73%2000

Obj Class Totals: $2,037,294.23$1,693,854.46 $343,439.77 20.28%

$2,037,294.23$1,693,854.46 $343,439.77Indirect Totals: 20.28%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 11 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive Employee 
Compensation

Employee Salaries $201,973.00$205,317.50 ($3,344.50) -1.63%1700

Obj Class Totals: $201,973.00$205,317.50 ($3,344.50) -1.63%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel $3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1700

B02 In-State Travel Travel In-State-Travel Reimbursements $3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $6,000.00$6,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $71,518.64$71,614.74 ($96.10) -0.13%1700

Taxes Tax rate of  1.73% $3,494.13$2,977.10 $517.03 17.37%1700

Obj Class Totals: $75,012.77$74,591.84 $420.93 0.56%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES

MEMBERSHIPS/CREDIT CARD EXPENSES  
NET ZERO CHANGE

$25,995.23$10,000.00 $15,995.23 159.95%1700

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Agency Fees Travel Leaders $2,000.00$4,000.00 ($2,000.00) -50.00%1700

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conferences Conference, Training & Registration Fees $5,000.00$4,000.00 $1,000.00 25.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $32,995.23$18,000.00 $14,995.23 83.31%

FF FACILITY OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

F16 Library & Teaching Supplies & Materials Books Library/reference books $1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $1,000.00$500.00 $500.00 100.00%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H09 Attorneys/Legal Services Crime Analysis Crime Analyst $30,000.00$50,000.00 ($20,000.00) -40.00%1700

Research Strategic Planning $15,000.00$0.00 $15,000.00 #Div/0!1700

H19 Management Consultants CONSULTANT SVCS Mass Council MGM additional staff $0.00$64,351.50 ($64,351.50) -100.00%1700

H23 Program Coordinators Branding GameSense media buys etc. KHJ $200,000.00$150,000.00 $50,000.00 33.33%1700

CONSULTANT 
SVCS (TO DEPTS)

PROGRAM COORDINATIORS  NET ZERO 
CHANGE

$0.00($25,000.00) $25,000.00 -100.00%1700

Consultants Cambridge Health Alliance contract costs $150,000.00$400,000.00 ($250,000.00) -62.50%1700

GRAC/RDASC/Rese
arch Consultants

Bruce Cohen--$20K/Joel Weissman/Jeff 
Moratta/Anthony Roman
Other Consultants on Stipends max of $20K
Peer Review process for research agenda

$45,000.00$40,000.00 $5,000.00 12.50%1700

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 12 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF

H23 Program Coordinators Mass Council Mass Council on Compulsive Gambling 
including employees to man Game Sense 
booth at Penn and MGM
--Staffed 16 hrs per day 
--VSE
--Play My Way
--Required by Statute Chapter 194, Section 9

$1,835,000.00$640,000.00 $1,195,000.00 186.72%1700

Research 
Consultant/ Umass

Tom Land--Need Better Description $79,000.00$0.00 $79,000.00 #Div/0!1700

Special Study Public Health Trust Fund requested study of 
a sub-population

$100,000.00$100,000.00 $0.00 0.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $2,454,000.00$1,419,351.50 $1,034,648.50 72.90%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J62 Contracted (Non-employees) Advisory 
Board or Commission Mem

PROGRAMATIC 
SERVICES

BOARD MEMBER STIPENDS   NET ZERO 
CHANGE

$0.00$15,000.00 ($15,000.00) -100.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $0.00$15,000.00 ($15,000.00) -100.00%

MM PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS

M04 Services Purch Support of Human/Social 
Services for Clients

PPC 
reimbursements 
for Play My Way 
Incentives

PPC reimbursements for Play My Way 
Incentives

$10,000.00$15,000.00 ($5,000.00) -33.33%1700

Problem Gambling Problem Gambling Solutions--Jeff Marotta 
reviewing applications and consultations

$0.00$10,000.00 ($10,000.00) -100.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $10,000.00$25,000.00 ($15,000.00) -60.00%

PP STATE AID/POL SUB

P01 Grants To Public Entities Data Storage Grant Final Component of Research Agenda data 
storage of player data to not-for-profit entity

$50,000.00$75,000.00 ($25,000.00) -33.33%1700

DPH ISA DPH ISA for operations and grants from 
public health trust fund.  Balance remaining 
from $5M after research agenda is 
accounted for.

$0.00$1,140,197.00 ($1,140,197.00) -100.00%1700

Umass Magic Core/Optional--Cohort Study $815,000.00$1,200,000.00 ($385,000.00) -32.08%1700

P06 Other Financial Assistance to State 
Authorities

Umass Seigma/Umass core--Baseline Study on-going $1,180,000.00$800,000.00 $380,000.00 47.50%1700

PP1 Grants To Non-Public Entities Play My Way Incentives1700

Obj Class Totals: $2,045,000.00$3,215,197.00 ($1,170,197.00) -36.40%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U07 Information Technology (IT) Equipment ITRAK Development of ITRAK and Migration from 
Current Process

$0.00$10,000.00 ($10,000.00) -100.00%1700

Play Management Development of Play Management Software $0.00$65,000.00 ($65,000.00) -100.00%1700

Obj Class Totals: $0.00$75,000.00 ($75,000.00) -100.00%

$4,825,981.00$5,053,957.84 ($227,976.84)Research and Responsible Gaming/PHTF Totals: -4.51%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 13 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Office of Attorney General and AGO MSP

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

J25 Laboratory & Pharmaceutical Services State Police AGO State Police OT $350,000.00$350,000.00 $0.00 0.00%9000

State Police AGO Straight Time Troopers and Payroll 
Taxes 6FTEs for FY18

$746,997.20$501,256.98 $245,740.22 49.02%9000

State Police MSP Staff Costs at AGO for 2 additional 
troopers for 26 pay periods in FY18 bringing 
total for the MSP AGO Gaming Unit to 6 FTEs

$0.00$217,160.00 ($217,160.00) -100.00%9000

Obj Class Totals: $1,096,997.20$1,068,416.98 $28,580.22 2.68%

OO

O99 Attorney General Funds 18 FTEs assigned to the unit, various 
percentages of~ 5.5FTEs of support, and 
management positions, office space, travel, 
conferences, and investigative costs.

$2,760,000.00$2,600,000.00 $160,000.00 6.15%9000

Obj Class Totals: $2,760,000.00$2,600,000.00 $160,000.00 6.15%

$3,856,997.20$3,668,416.98 $188,580.22Office of Attorney General and AGO MSP Totals: 5.14%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 14 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Alcohol and Beverage Control Commission

OO

O01 ISA with ABCC ABCC $75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%9001

Obj Class Totals: $75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

$75,000.00$75,000.00 $0.00Alcohol and Beverage Control Commission Totals: 0.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 15 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500001 Mass. Gaming Commission

Appropriation Totals $33,400,530.10$31,084,905.10 $2,315,625.00 7.45%

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

AA REGULAR EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

A01 Salaries: Inclusive  Employee 
Compensation

Admin Employees Salaries $206,424.23$163,926.80 $42,497.43 25.92%1000

 Employee 
Compensatio

HR Employees Salaries $72,468.28$83,782.66 ($11,314.38) -13.50%1100

 Employee 
Compensation

Legal Employees Salaries $36,585.62$36,509.62 $76.00 0.21%1200

Employee 
Compensation

Exec. Dir.  Employees Salaries $36,040.58$35,911.23 $129.35 0.36%1300

Employee 
Compensation

IT  Employees Salaries $75,881.22$34,287.81 $41,593.41 121.31%1400

Employee 
Compensation

Commissioners  Employees Salaries $55,487.25$53,893.50 $1,593.75 2.96%1500

Employee 
Compensation

Communications Employees Salaries $11,272.11$11,272.11 $0.00 0.00%1800

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employee Salaries $281,163.00$293,177.00 ($12,014.00) -4.10%3000

Employee 
Compensation

Regular Employee Salaries $3,789.57$0.00 $3,789.57 #Div/0!7000

Obj Class Totals: $779,111.86$712,760.73 $66,351.13 9.31%

BB REGULAR EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPEN

B01 Other Out Of State Travel - INCLUSIVE: 
AIRFARE, HOTEL, LODGI

Travel Out of State Travel Reimbursement $10,000.00$10,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

B02 In-State Travel Travel In State Travel Reimbursement $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Obj Class Totals: $12,000.00$12,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

CC SPECIAL EMPLOYEES

C04 Contracted Seasonal Employees Seasonals Seasonal salaries for Plainridge at 35 weeks $425,000.00$360,000.00 $65,000.00 18.06%3000

Obj Class Totals: $425,000.00$360,000.00 $65,000.00 18.06%

DD PENSION & INSURANCE RELATED EX

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41%
%

$73,094.82$57,177.67 $15,917.15 27.84%1000

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $3,571.14$2,376.94 $1,194.20 50.24%1000

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $25,661.01$29,223.39 ($3,562.38) -12.19%1100

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $1,253.70$1,214.85 $38.85 3.20%1100

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $12,954.97$12,734.56 $220.41 1.73%1200

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $632.93$529.39 $103.54 19.56%1200

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $12,761.97$12,525.83 $236.14 1.89%1300

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $623.50$520.71 $102.79 19.74%1300

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 16 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

D09 Fringe Benefit Cost Recoupment Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $26,869.54$11,959.58 $14,909.96 124.67%1400

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $1,312.75$497.17 $815.58 164.04%1400

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $1,964.04$18,798.05 ($16,834.01) -89.55%1500

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $959.93$781.46 $178.47 22.84%1500

Fringe Fringe rate of 35.41% $3,991.45$3,931.71 $59.74 1.52%1800

Taxes Tax rate of 1.73% $195.01$163.44 $31.57 19.32%1800

Fringe Fringe Rate of 35.41% $99,559.82$102,260.14 ($2,700.32) -2.64%3000

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.73% $4,864.12$4,251.07 $613.05 14.42%3000

Taxes for Seasonals Taxes for Seasonals @1.73% $7,352.50$6,012.00 $1,340.50 22.30%3000

Fringe Fringe Rate of 34.88% $1,341.89$1,295.88 $46.01 3.55%7000

Taxes Tax Rate of 1.45% $65.56$53.88 $11.68 21.68%7000

Obj Class Totals: $279,030.65$266,307.72 $12,722.93 4.78%

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E01 Office & Administrative Supplies Supplies W.B. Mason $7,600.00$6,000.00 $1,600.00 26.67%3000

E02 Printing Expenses & Supplies Printing Sir Speedy $500.00$500.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

E12 Subscriptions, Memberships & Licensing 
Fees

Memberships AA Dority/Organization of Racing 
Investigators

$5,625.00$1,005.00 $4,620.00 459.70%3000

Memberships Assoc. of Racing Regulators $18,700.00$18,700.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

E13 Advertising Expenses Public Hearing 
Notices

Boston Globe $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Public Hearing 
Notices

Boston Herald $700.00$700.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Public Hearing 
Notices

Dow Jones/Cape Cod Times $0.00$150.00 ($150.00) -100.00%3000

Public Hearing 
Notices

Sun Chronical $0.00$300.00 ($300.00) -100.00%3000

E15 Bottled Water Water Belmont Springs/DS Waters of America $360.00$200.00 $160.00 80.00%3000

E41 Out Of State Travel Expen on Behalf of 
State Employ

Travel Agent Travel $5,000.00$3,000.00 $2,000.00 66.67%3000

EE2 Conference, Training and Registration 
Fees

Conferences Assoc. of Racing Comm./Delaware 
Racing/Thoroughbred Racing

$3,000.00$3,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Obj Class Totals: $42,485.00$34,555.00 $7,930.00 22.95%

FF FACILITY OPERATIONAL EXPENSES

F05 Laboratory Supplies Vet Supplies Gloves, scrubs etc. $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Obj Class Totals: $2,000.00$2,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

HH CONSULTANT SVCS (TO DEPTS)

H19 Management Consultants Hearing Officer David Murray $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Obj Class Totals: $25,000.00$25,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

JJ OPERATIONAL SERVICES

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 17 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

MGC Regulatory Costs

J10 Auxiliary Financial Services Credit Cards Bank of America credit card terminal fees $1,000.00$1,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

J25 Laboratory & Pharmaceutical Services Testing Health Resources Corp. $1,800.00$1,800.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

J28 Law Enforcement State Police Mass State Police Straight and OT $368,958.73$465,000.00 ($96,041.27) -20.65%3000

JJ1 Legal Support Services Stenographer Catuagno Court Reporting $6,500.00$6,500.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

JJ2 Auxiliary Services Autopsies Trustees of Tufts College $22,000.00$22,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Testing Lab HFL Sports Science $7,500.00$7,000.00 $500.00 7.14%3000

Testing Lab Industrial Laboratories $320,000.00$312,000.00 $8,000.00 2.56%3000

Obj Class Totals: $727,758.73$815,300.00 ($87,541.27) -10.74%

LL EQUIPMENT LEASE-MAINTAIN/REPAR

L46 Print, Photocopying & Micrograph 
Equipment Maint/Repair

Maintenance 
Contract

K & A Industries $915.00$2,000.00 ($1,085.00) -54.25%3000

Obj Class Totals: $915.00$2,000.00 ($1,085.00) -54.25%

MM PURCHASED CLIENT/PROGRAM SVCS

M03 Purchased Human & Social Services For 
Clients/Non Medical

Hardship Payments Economic Hardship Payments $20,000.00$20,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Legislative 
Mandate

Jockey's Guild $65,000.00$65,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

M04 Services Purch Support of Human/Social 
Services for Clients

ISA ISA with DPH Compulsive Gambling $70,000.00$70,000.00 $0.00 0.00%3000

Obj Class Totals: $155,000.00$155,000.00 $0.00 0.00%

UU IT Non-Payroll Expenses

U02 Telecommunications Services - Voice Phones Verizon/AT&T $5,000.00$15,000.00 ($10,000.00) -66.67%3000

U05 Information Technology (IT) Temp Staff 
Augmentation Profs

Chrims Arthur Evans $15,000.00$16,000.00 ($1,000.00) -6.25%3000

U09 Information Technology (IT) Equip Rental 
Or Lease

Computer Leases Ontario Investments $0.00$12,000.00 ($12,000.00) -100.00%3000

U10 Information Tech (IT) Equipment 
Maintenance & Repair

Security & 
Surveillence

Test Barn $50,000.003000

Obj Class Totals: $70,000.00$43,000.00 $27,000.00 62.79%

$2,518,301.24$2,427,923.45 $90,377.79MGC Regulatory Costs Totals: 3.72%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 18 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

Indirect

EE ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

E16 Indirect Cost Recoupment Indirect Agency 
Wide

Indirect at 10% of AA, CC, HH, JJ and UU 
excluding U07

$202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65 24.04%2000

Obj Class Totals: $202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65 24.04%

$202,687.10$163,398.45 $39,288.65Indirect Totals: 24.04%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 19 of 20



Approp UnitObj 
Class

Object_name Item Short Name New Description Next Year 
Amount

Current Year 
Amount

VarianceBudget 
Grouping

Percent 
Change

10500003 MGC Mass Racing Development and Oversigh

Appropriation Totals $2,720,988.34$2,591,321.90 $129,666.44 5.00%

Monday, May 21, 2018 Page 20 of 20



 

 
 

 

 
SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 

 
 

 The Massachusetts Gaming Commission (“Commission”) hereby files this Small 
Business Impact Statement in accordance with G.L. c. 30A, §2 relative to the proposed 
amendment of 205 CMR 138.15: Internal Control Procedures for Access Badge System and 
Issuance of Temporary License Credentials, and Restricted Areas; notice of which was filed 
with the Secretary of the Commonwealth.  This regulation was developed as part of the process 
of promulgating regulations governing the operation of gaming establishments in the 
Commonwealth, and is largely governed by G.L. c. 23K §§ 4(28), and 5.  The proposed 
amendment to the regulation updates the provisions related to credentials for key gaming 
employees, gaming employees, and gaming service employees. 
 
 This regulation and the proposed amendment therein apply solely to licensees and their 
employees.  Therefore, it will not impact any small businesses.  In accordance with G.L. c.30A, 
§2, the Commission offers the following responses to the statutory questions: 
 

1. Estimate of the number of small businesses subject to the proposed regulation: 
 
There are no small businesses that will be impacted by this regulation or the proposed 
amendment therein, as it applies to licensees and their employees only. 
 

2. State the projected reporting, recordkeeping and other administrative costs required for 
compliance with the proposed regulation: 
 
There are no reporting, recordkeeping or administrative costs created by this regulation, 
nor by the proposed amendment to this regulation that do not already exist at this time.   
 

3. State the appropriateness of performance standards versus design standards: 
 
 The proposed amendment is intended to update the protocol for compliance with the 
 regulation.  A performance standard is necessary to describe the intent of this 
 amendment. 
 

4. Identify regulations of the promulgating agency, or of another agency or department of 
the Commonwealth, which may duplicate or conflict with the proposed regulation: 

 
 There are no conflicting regulations in 205 CMR, and the Commission is unaware of any 
 conflicting or duplicating regulations of any other agency or department of the 
 Commonwealth. 
 



 
 

 
 

5. State whether the proposed regulation is likely to deter or encourage the formation of new 
businesses in the Commonwealth: 

 
 As this amendment to the regulation is directed at licensees and employees, it is unlikely 
 that it will deter or encourage the formation of new businesses in the Commonwealth. 
 
 
      Massachusetts Gaming Commission 
      By: 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Shara Bedard 
      Paralegal 
 
 
Dated: _________________ 
 
 

 



205 CMR:  MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
205 CMR 138:  UNIFORM STANDARDS OF ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES AND 

INTERNAL CONTROLS 
  
 
138.15: Internal Control Procedures for Access Badge System and Issuance of Temporary 

License Credentials, and Restricted Areas  

(1) A system of internal controls submitted by a gaming licensee in accordance with 205 CMR 
138.02 shall include provisions related to credentials. All key gaming employees, gaming employees, 
and gaming service employees, while engaged in the performance of their duties on the premises of 
the gaming establishment, shall visibly display a credential issued by the gaming licensee on his or 
her person at all times, and have in their possession their commission issued identification. The 
system of internal controls related to credentials shall at a minimum incorporate the following 
credentialing system:  
 
*** 
 
(2) The commission shall issue an official credential that shall bear the inscription "Massachusetts 
Gaming Commission", the official seal of the commission, the signature of the chair of the 
commission or his or her designee, as well as a photograph of the licensee or registrant and specific 
identification information for the person to whom the credential is issued. The information shall 
include:  

(a) License or registration number;  
(b) Name; and  
(c) Access code.  

(RESERVED) 
 
(3) The credential format shall be in a shape and legibility that will enhance surveillance capability 
and visual acuity. The final design shall be subject to approval by the IEB. The credential shall 
include, at a minimum: 

            (a) A unique number or code identifying the employee (e.g.- gaming service employee                                                                                            

                  registration number); 

            (b) Employee’s name; and 

            (c) Access code letter in accordance with 205 CMR 138.15(1). 

(4) Notwithstanding 205 CMR 138.15(1), the Director of the IEB or his or her designee, may, upon 
written request by a gaming licensee, and upon a showing of good cause, exempt certain positions, 
titles, or persons from the requirements of 205 CMR 138.15(1).  

(5) Commission employees, agents or contractors or employees of agencies authorized to conduct 
regulatory or regulatory related activities pursuant to M.G.L. c. 23K at a gaming establishment shall 
carry their agency credentials on their person at all times while engaged in the performance of their 
duties. Credentials may not be utilized for unofficial, social, or non-employment related access, 
purpose, or presence within any gaming establishment.  



 
(6) A temporary credential shall only be issued by the security department if the following criteria 
are verified:  

(a) The employee to whom the credential is to be issued is listed in the gaming licensee's 
current employee status report;  
(b) The employee holds a current license or registration issued is properly licensed or 
registered in accordance with 205 CMR 134.00: Licensing and Registration of Employees, 
Vendors, Junket Enterprises and Representatives, and Labor Organizations, as applicable;  
(c) The employee is authorized by his or her supervisor to possess the specific credential to 
be working in the designated or restricted area authorized by such credential; and  
(d) The employee has not been issued more than 12 temporary credentials within the 
preceding 12 month period from the issuance of the first temporary credential.  
(7) The temporary credentials may be issued to an employee only for a 24 hour period and 
shall contain the following information:  
(a) A prominent space to allow the insertion of the name of the specific employee to whom it 
is issued;  
(b) The date and time of issuance by the security department;  
(c) Name and credential number of issuing security officer;  
(d) The conspicuous notation that the credential is "VOID AFTER 24 HOURS"; and  
(e) A sequential number reflecting the number of temporary credentials issued at that gaming 
establishment that is to be recorded in both an onsite IEB and security department bound log 
book or database.  
(8) The IEB shall approve the design of the temporary credentials. The gaming licensee's 
security department shall secure the temporary credentials until needed for issuance in 
compliance with 205 CMR 138.15(7). The security department shall provide a monthly 
report to the IEB identifying the number, names, departments and frequency of temporary 
credentials issued as well as any missing, stolen, destroyed, or replaced credentials. The IEB 
may require additional information regarding any credential issuance or utilization and the 
gaming licensee shall provide all such information in a timely fashion.  

 
 







Supplemental Attachment No. 1 
Blue Tarp redevelopment, LLC  

MGM Springfield NDA  

Reque
st # 

Document 
or Report 
Type 

Regulation 
Section 

Reason for Non-disclosure Frequency 
of 
Submission 

One-time 
or 
continuing  

Subject to 
Redaction 
(Y/N) 

Previously 
Approved by 
Commission 

31 MGMRI 
Compliance 
Binder 

115.01(4) The MGM Resorts International (MGMRI) Compliance Binder is prepared by MGMRI 
Compliance, pursuant to the MGMRI Compliance Plan (Plan), and tracks all known and/or 
reportable matters under the Plan from inception until closure, including regulatory matters 
involving the gaming licensee, a qualifier, licensed employee, subsidiary or any gaming entity 
owned or operated by MGMRI.  The Compliance Binder is a confidential, internal set of 
documents distributed to the Compliance Committee, Legal and other members of executive 
and senior management that may attend the quarterly Compliance Committee meetings.  The 
Compliance Binder is created for internal use and is reviewed by the Compliance Committee 
as part of its regular duties at each quarterly meeting.  It contains assessments and 
summaries of potential and actual regulatory violations and measures to address and 
continually improve regulatory compliance.  The Binder is iterative and updated each quarter 
as matters are tracked from inception to conclusion.  While some material in the Compliance 
Binder may be subject to the Commission’s Continuing Duty reporting regulation, 205 CMR 
115.01(4), other material is not.  For example, the Compliance Binder includes all known 
potential and actual regulatory violations regardless of whether the outcome may involve a 
fine of $50,000 or greater.  Access to the Compliance Binder will provide the Investigations 
and Enforcement Bureau a complete and timely picture of all known and reportable 
compliance matters under the Plan.  Similar to the Compliance Committee notes, the 
confidential nature of the Compliance Binder ensures that it is prepared in the most complete 
manner and that compliance matters are documented openly.  Matters in the Compliance 
Binder may not result in formal action by a regulator or other government agency.  While 
created for internal purposes, the Compliance Binder is voluntarily distributed to each gaming 
regulator where MGMRI or a subsidiary is licensed [process in MA pending approval of the 
NDA].  The Compliance Binder is treated as confidential in all jurisdictions where it is currently 
submitted to gaming regulators.  Public disclosure of such materials would harm the Company 
by placing internal, commercially sensitive information into the marketplace and would 
discourage voluntarily providing the Compliance Binder to regulators in the first instance.  
Voluntarily providing the Compliance Binder as part of the Company’s continuing duty 
obligations will comprehensively address many of Section 115.01(4)’s requirements such as 
115.01(4)(e),(f) and (g) but will not be a substitute for reporting public matters required in 
other sections. 

Quarterly Continuing (N) N/A 



ADDENDUM A 
 
This Addendum (hereinafter, “Addendum”) is incorporated by reference into the existing 
Nondisclosure Agreement (hereinafter, “NDA”) now in effect dated January 10, 2018, made and 
entered into by and between Blue Tarp reDevelopment, LLC (hereinafter, “Blue Tarp”) and the 
Massachusetts Gaming Commission (hereinafter, “Commission”)(collectively, the “parties”). All 
terms and conditions of the existing NDA shall remain in full force and effect and shall be made 
applicable to the information and materials identified below.  
 
Whereas, the Commission determined at a public meeting on June 7, 2018 that the requisite legal 
standard has been satisfied, the request by Blue Tarp to amend the existing NDA in the manner 
indicated below was approved. By this Addendum, the information and materials identified 
below shall be effectively attached to the list contained in the existing NDA and made subject to 
all terms and conditions contained therein:  
 

# INFORMATION/MATERIAL 
(including any limits on non-disclosure) 

AUTHORITY 
(205 CMR, license 

condition, etc.) 

31 Compliance Binder. Typically updated quarterly, the binder is prepared on a 
corporate-wide basis by MGM Resorts International pursuant to its Compliance 
Plan for the corporate compliance committee members and other associated 
executives, and is comprised of documents containing assessments, summaries, 
and action items relative to potential and actual regulatory and legal issues. 
(Blue Tarp shall remain responsible for ensuring all information required to be 
submitted in accordance with 205 CMR 115.01(4) and other applicable sources 
be submitted under separate cover as otherwise required.).  

205 CMR 115.01(d) 
for certain parts. 

 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be duly executed 
effective June 7, 2018.  
 
 

 
BLUE TARP REDEVELOPMENT, LLC 

 
By: 
 
 
Print name: 
 
Title: 

MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION 
 
By:   

 

 
Print Name:  Edward Bedrosian, Jr. 
 
Title:  Executive Director 
 

 


	Commissioners-Packet 6-7-18 PART 2 UPDATE
	Commissioners-Packet 6-7-18 PART 3 UPDATE
	6a1) PPC Alcohol License Renewal
	6a2) PPC GBLR - Banquet Event Space  (East Side Racing Building 2nd Floor)
	6a3) PPC GBLR - Dark Horse Bar 1st Floor Racing Building
	6a4) PPC GBLR - Flutie's
	6a5) PPC GBLR - Food Court (Slice b.good) (2)
	6a6) PPC GBLR - Mountain Skipper Express (Racing Building 2nd Fllor west side)
	6a7) PPC GBLR - Racing Apron Outside Bar_
	6a8) PPC GBLR - Revolution 1776 Lounge
	6a9) PPC GBLR - Slack's (2)
	7a) GameSense MassGaming Commission Public Meeting 060518
	Gamesense brand relaunch
	Our campaign objectives for Phase 1
	Our strategy
	Our discovery and input to date
	Key creative elements
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	Slide Number 27
	Slide Number 28
	Project plan
	Slide Number 30

	8a1) FY19 Budget Memo on Letterhead 6.7
	8a2) Attachment A- FY19 Listing of Accounts Spending and Revenue
	8a3) Attachment B- Next Year Budget All Departments For Commission
	8a4) Attachment C- Next Year Budget By Object Class For Commission
	9a1) DRAFT SBIS 205 CMR 138.15 Internal Control Procedures for Access Badge System and Issuance of Temporary License Credentials, and Restricted Areas
	9a2) DRAFT REG 205 CMR 138.15 Internal Control Procedures for Access Badge System and Issuance of Temporary License Credentials, and Restricted Areas
	9b1) NDA Request Form (executed) - Compliance Binder
	9b2) NDA - Compliance Binder
	9b3) MGM- addendum A to existing NDA (June 2018)
	MASSACHUSETTS GAMING COMMISSION





